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Hainan Meilan International Airport Company Limited

A joint stock company incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability
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CORPORATE MISSION
1 E

Our company seizes the strategic opportunities arising from our country building the
“Marine Power Construction” (8/¥58E) and China (Hainan) Pilot Free Trade Zone
(Port), and serves the “One Belt and One Road” (—#& — ) Initiative to develop in a
higher quality, more efficient and more sustainable direction, and fully consolidates
the achievements of SKYTRAX five-star Airport. We timely choose to carry out
other necessary capital operation plans according to its development needs and
strive to become an investment management group with strategic complement
and industrial chain cluster taking asset management as the core, combining the
investment and the development, supplemented by similar financial supports for
the businesses and the airport.

COMPANY BACKGROUND
NEIL Sy

Hainan Meilan International Airport Company Limited (the “Meilan Airport” or the
“Company”) is a joint stock Company incorporated in the People’s Republic of
China ("PRC"” or “China") with limited liability on 28 December 2000. The H shares
of the Company were issued and listed on the Main Board (the “Main Board”) of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”)
on 18 November 2002. On 6 November 2003, the Company was approved by the
Ministry of Commerce ("MOC") of the PRC to convert into a foreign invested joint
stock company. The Company changed its name from “Hainan Meilan International
Airport Company Limited” to “HNA Infrastructure Company Limited”, with effect
from 2 March 2015. The Company changed its name from “HNA Infrastructure
Company Limited” to “Regal International Airport Group Company Limited”,
with effect from 9 August 2018. The Company changed its name from “Regal
International Airport Group Company Limited” to “Hainan Meilan International
Airport Company Limited"”, with effect from 20 November 2019.

The Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are currently engaged
in both aeronautical and non-aeronautical businesses at Meilan Airport, Haikou
City, Hainan Province, the PRC. The aeronautical businesses of the Company
mainly consist of the provision of terminal facilities, ground handling services and
passenger services. The non-aeronautical businesses of the Company mainly
include the leasing of commercial and retail spaces at Meilan Airport, franchising
of airport related business, advertising, car parking, cargo handling and sales of
consumable goods.

Major awards of the Company in 2019 were as follows:

. “"SKYTRAX five-star Airport”

. “Award for Public Welfare Practice of 2018"

. “QOutstanding Corporation of Social Responsibility Award 2019"

. “Demonstration Case Award of ‘Beautiful China" Ecological Civilization

Construction”
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
NCIE= e

NAME IN CHINESE
SEEREREERGARAT

NAME IN ENGLISH

Hainan Meilan International Airport Company Limited

CORPORATE WEBSITE

www.mlairport.com

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Wang Zhen, Chairman
Wang Hong, President
Wang Hexin

Yu Yan

Xing Zhoujin

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Chan Nap Kee, Joseph
Yan Xiang

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Deng Tianlin

Fung Ching, Simon
George F Meng
He Linji

SUPERVISORS

Liao Hongyu, Chairman
Zhang Shusheng
Liu Guiling

COMPANY SECRETARY

Xing Zhouijin

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Wang Zhen
Xing Zhouijin
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
ANGIE- e

MEMBERS OF AUDIT COMMITTEE

Deng Tianlin, Chairman
Fung Ching, Simon
George F Meng

MEMBERS OF REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Deng Tianlin, Chairman
Fung Ching, Simon
Yu Yan

MEMBERS OF NOMINATION COMMITTEE
He Linji, Chairman

Wang JZhen

Deng Tianlin

MEMBERS OF STRATEGIC COMMITTEE

Fung Ching, Simon, Chairman
Deng Tianlin

He Linji

Wang Zhen

Yu Yan

LEGAL ADDRESS AND HEAD OFFICE
Office Building of Meilan Airport

Haikou City

Hainan Province, the PRC

PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

10th Floor, Everbright Centre
108 Gloucester Road
Wanchai

Hong Kong
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LEGAL ADVISER AS TO HONG KONG LAW
Luk & Partners

In Association with Morgan, Lewis & Bockius
Suite 1902-09, 19th Floor

Edinburgh Tower, The Landmark

15 Queen’s Road Central

Central, Hong Kong

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian LLP
11/F PricewaterhouseCoopers Center

2 Link Square, 202 Hu Bin Road

Huangpu District

Shanghai, China

PRINCIPAL BANKER

Bank of China
Haikou Jinyu Sub-branch
1/F, Geology Building

66 Nansha Road

Haikou City

Hainan Province, the PRC

China Everbright Bank
Haikou Yingbin Sub-branch

1/F Longquan Garden

56 Longkun South Road

Haikou City

Hainan Province, the PRC

H SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Rooms 1712-1716

17th Floor Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

STOCK CODE

00357
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
B2

TWO-YEAR COMPARISON OF KEY FINANCIAL FIGURES
METEMBERNLER

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—-HLEE

(RMB'000) 2019 2018 Change
(AR¥FIL) —E-hE —E-N\F )
3 Revenue A 1,576,371 1,703,824 -7.48%
Y Gross profit EF 825,018 957,176 -13.81%
' Net profit attributable to shareholders of 5B R AR R IR R A F R
l’ the Company 575,413 622,041 -7.50%
' Earnings per share — basic (RMB) BREF - EXARET) 1.22 1.31 -6.87%
Net cash generated from operating activities EEEDHELENFRE 831,278 1,225,110 -32.15%
Current ratio mE L & 40% 13% 27.00%
Gearing ratio BEBEBX 55.02% 48.43% 6.59%
EBITDA EBITDA 969,660 1,143,377 -156.19%
Revenue (RMB’000) Gross profit (RMB’000)
KA (AR¥TFT) EXN (AR¥TFT)
1,703,824
1,576,371
957,176
825,018
2019 2018 2019 2018
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FIVE-YEAR SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL

PERFORMANCE
EFERBEREHRE

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
BT %5 1 &

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t-BLERE

(RMB'000) 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
(AR¥FT) —E-AEFE ZE-NF ZE—+tF ZE-RF ZZT-h0F
Revenue WA 1,576,371 1,703,824 1,469,855 1,208,710 1,063,431
Net profit attributable to BN ARRREMN
shareholders of the Company FAE 575,413 622,041 484,440 392,942 438,771
EBITDA EBITDA 969,660 1,143,377 932,598 784,941 756,542
FIVE-YEAR SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL POSITION
EFERBEMRREE
For the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1+—HLEE
(RMB'000) 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
(AR®F7T) —E-AEFE ZE-N\F =ZE—+tF - ZT—h8F
Total assets BEE 11,456,163 8,866,141 9,078,150 8,195,831 6,962,243
Total liabilities FES=NIy 6,303,572 4,294,201 4,986,157 4,468,163 3,710,852
Total equity Emast 5,152,591 4,571,940 4,091,993 3,727,668 3,251,391
OPERATION DATA HIGHLIGHTS
Y s S S|
LTEELERRE
Two-year Comparison of Key Operation Data
MEFTELEEELEERER
For the year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=+—HLEFE
2019 2018 Change
—E-hE —E-N\F g
The passenger throughput REEHE
(headcount in ten thousand) (Bfy : BAR) 2,421.66 2,412.36 0.39%
In which: Domestic HepEHA 2,281.51 2,297.51 -0.70%
International and regional B R Fe b & 140.15 114.85 22.03%
Aircraft takeoff and landing (flights) TR ABPR SRR (BB AL 3R) 164,786 165,186 -0.24%
In which: Domestic HepEHA 153,095 155,814 -1.75%
International and regional B K & 11,691 9,372 24.74%
Cargo and mail volume (tons) EBTHEHEEN  H) 322,357.50 324,697.50 0.72%
In which: Domestic Heh B/ 298,935.60 306,301.60 -2.40%
International and regional B BR K% b [ 23,421.90 18,395.90 27.32%

SEEMEREERNERAA B —E-AFEHR Y/



CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EREWwE
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“Reaching Higher with Service Excellence” refers
to the service concept of “All start from the needs
of passengers” upheld by the staff of Meilan to
offer “sincere, smooth, comfortable and delightful”
super-value services to worldwide passengers
continuously according to international, professional
and personalized five-star standards.

(2 BRBIZEEMARAI-DRKE
FEREBIORBES KEBERLE FXL.
AMEHNDERE BEASZRKFRHIEL -
g5 - &7 ~ Wi WBERS -

To shareholders: BERIALIR ¢

In 2019, due to the influence from Sino-US trade friction, Brexit, and fierce local —Z— N TEPEXEHER - KERE - Bt
geopolitical games and other factors, the growth of world economy and trade 4 BUABZEERIERNEFE  CAKELE HILRHEE
slowed down significantly. Globally, the growth rates of major developed economies  JR4E - ZEREE AL BB Z L BB EFETT > &
kept going downward. The effects of monetary and fiscal policies in countries, B H 23 E & EEEK HE BURENMWERMS - #
especially developed economies, have weakened, and downward pressure on the — AT EEELCE T 1T J73E A0 ©

economy of emerging economies has increased.

In the past year, major economies have taken measures to meet the challenges in  BE—F/ - AEN2HREELZE SREPHEE - &=
the global economic and trade environment, such as adopting quantitative easing ~ Z4CEREIREUELE - @ EHECERBEES MK
policies or interest rates cuts in due course while expanding government spending  #%& » RIEEABRN L @ Be2REBELE TR -

to avoid a global economic recession.
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2019 coincided with the 70th anniversary of the founding of the PRC. This year,
the internal and external environment for the development of China’'s economy has
become more complicated and severe. China increased countercyclical adjustments
by further deepening supply-side structural reforms. It has shown resilience and
potential in resisting downward pressure, and maintained an overall stability and
advancing amid stability. Its economic growth has remained within a reasonable
range, with main indicators in compliance with expectations.

In 2019, affected by the internal and external economic environment, domestic
industries experienced greater development obstacles. Meanwhile, with the
increasing demand of safety, efficiency and quality of the civil aviation industry
of China, and in the face of increasingly severe situation, the Group worked as
a cohesive team and was committed to serving the customers with sincerity,
continuously breaking through the protection limit, strictly guarding the security
line, and fighting all difficulties with high morale, and the 21st safety operation year
has been successfully achieved. As of 31 December 2019, the annual passenger
throughput of the Group reached a record high of 24.2166 million.

RESULTS

In 2019, the Group's total revenue amounted to RMB1,576,371,078, representing
a decrease of 7.48% as compared to 2018. Revenue from aviation business
amounted to RMB709,389,882, representing a decrease of 22.48% as compared
to 2018. Revenue from non-aviation business amounted to RMB866,981,196,
representing an increase of 9.92% as compared to 2018. The decrease in the
Group's total revenue and revenue from aviation business was mainly due to the
impart of the policy that the refund of the Civil Aviation Development Fund ceased
to be recognized as the Group's revenue.

OVERVIEW OF AVIATION BUSINESS

In 2019, the contradiction between the development requirements of civil aviation
industry in China and the lack of resources support capacity remained prominent,
and the challenge to prevent and resolve major safety risks remained severe. In
light of the downward pressure on the economy, civil aviation enterprises were
relatively weak in anti-risk capabilities. Against this background, the civil aviation
industry in China insisted on zero tolerance for safety hazards and fulfilled its
strongest responsibility to ensure safety by preventing safety risks with the highest
standards, implementing safety supervision with the strictest requirements and
ensuring stability and controllability with the most practical measures, to firmly
grasp the bottom line for the safety of civil aviation.

In addition, benefited from the favorable policies of building China (Hainan) Pilot Free
Trade Zone (Port), aviation industry and tourism industry of Hainan have ushered in
new development opportunities. In light of the situation, the Group expanded the
coverage of the route network and enhanced accessibility, by means of focusing on
certain key work such as building a regional hub airport, serving the national “One
Belt and One Road” (—# — ) Initiative and improving the internationalization
of Hainan International Tourism Island, in order to make the international aviation
market develop rapidly.

3

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TRBE
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TRBE

In 2019, Meilan Airport continued to intensify its efforts to explore the aviation
market. It promoted the development of the transport market in summer by fully
developing the air routes in summer and autumn, and actively reduced the negative
effects from suspension of Boeing 737MAX aircraft and the policy of the Civil
Aviation Administration of China (the “CAAC") implementing the control over the
total number of flights throughout the year (“cap control”), while exploring the
international aviation market and support coordination with full efforts to accelerate
and promote the construction of the international transit hub and China (Hainan)
Pilot Free Trade Zone (Port).

In 2019, the CAAC issued the “Implementation Opinions on Accelerating the
Development of Hainan's Civil Aviation Industry to Support Hainan's Comprehensive
Deepening of Reform and Opening-up” ({(ER MNP ESERMEZEZFSEE2E
FMEREFHBMNEHE R))(the “Implementation Opinions”), supporting for high-
quality development of Hainan's civil aviation industry in various fields including air
routes, infrastructure construction, policy, funds, talent cultivation, etc. with a view
to building an aviation regional gateway hub facing the Pacific and Indian Oceans.
The official implementation of the Implementation Opinions will accelerate the
construction of Hainan civil aviation infrastructure, promote the development of air
routes and flights and reduce the operating costs of airlines and charter companies,
so as to break the bottleneck of the development and reform of the civil aviation
industry in Hainan, and help further expand the aviation business of Meilan Airport.

With consent from the CAAC, the implementation of the “Airspace Adjustment Plan
in Hainan" (O8R5 5 %)) commenced from 27 February 2020. The
airspace of Hainan Province will be structured into two parallel routes from a single
channel mode, which will enhance Hainan's civil aviation operation in three areas,
i.e. “safety, efficiency, and capacity”. The airspace adjustment can ensure the
continuous and smooth take-off and landing of the inbound and outbound flights,
improve the airspace carrying capacity of Hainan, and help further improve the
normal rate of flights of Meilan Airport.

As compared to 2018, Meilan Airport has added 76 new routes, including 67
domestic routes as well as 9 international and regional routes in 2019. The total
passenger throughput for the year reached 24.2166 million, flight take-off and
landing up to 164,786 times and cargo and mail volume up to 322,357.50 tons, with
a year-on-year growth of 0.39%, -0.24% and -0.72%, respectively. The decline in
growth of major business indicators was mainly due to the impacts of the “cap
control” policy of the CAAC and suspension of Boeing 737MAX aircraft. In the
context of slowing down in the overall growth of the civil aviation industry, Meilan
Airport has basically completed its annual transportation and production target and
its passenger throughput ranked 17th amongst civil airports in China.

OVERVIEW OF NON-AVIATION BUSINESS

In 2019, the non-aviation business of the Group maintained growth momentum and
achieved annual revenue of RMB866,981,196, representing a year-on-year increase
of 9.92% and accounting for 55.00% of the Group’s total revenue.

10
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In 2019, the Group sought to broaden its business thinking by developing new
businesses and optimizing existing businesses. Hotel income recorded significant
increase due to the full operation of rooms and supporting facilities of Meilan
Airport Hotel; VIP room income recorded sustained growth due to the intensified
efforts made to expansion of Xinyi membership card business; the income from
freight business recorded sustained growth as the Group strengthened mail
agency business cooperation with SF Express and actively expanded direct mail
and allcargo aircraft business cooperation. The non-aviation business of the Group
achieved good performance in revenue.

In 2019, the Group recorded franchise income of RMB412,800,059, representing
a year-on-year decrease of 1.05%; freight and packaging income reached
RMB102,646,801, representing a year-on-year increase of 5.63%; hotel income
amounted to RMB101,253,309, representing a year-on-year increase of 227.07%;
VIP room income reached RMB75,664,796, representing a year-on-year increase
of 83.84%; rental income reached RMB74,783,568, representing a year-on-year
decrease of 16.17%; car parking income reached RMB14,598,056, representing a
year-on-year decrease of 45.53%.

PHASE Il EXPANSION PROJECT

As of the end of 2019, the construction of airfield area of and the outdoor
engineering of the T2 terminal of the Meilan Airport Phase |l Expansion Project
(the “Phase Il Expansion Project”) have entered the finalization stage. Various
preparations for the completion and acceptance of the airfield area have begun,
while the interior decoration and professional equipment installation and
commissioning have been fully promoted, and the installation of baggage tracking
system, air conditioner, elevator, boarding bridge and other equipment has been
basically completed. Work area monomers, pipe networks, roads and other projects
have also entered the finishing sprint stage.

The supporting ringlike road and bridge transportation system has generally taken
shape, the east access road and the tunnel have been functionally opened to traffic,
50% of the railway-related projects and the underground main structure of the
parking building have been completed, and the preliminary approval of design for
the new tower has been obtained.

According to schedule, the project aims to be put into use as a whole in 2020. The
Phase Il Expansion Project, as a key major infrastructure construction project in
Hainan Province, will integrate various modes of transportation such as aviation,
railway and road once completed. By then, an efficient and convenient traffic
transfer system will be established.

The Phase |l Expansion Project will further promote development of the
headquarters economy and airspace industries in Jiangdong New District, Haikou
City, accelerate the construction of China (Hainan) Pilot Free Trade Zone (Port),
and improve the operational support capacity of Meilan Airport upon putting in
use, which is of positive significance to Meilan Airport for building itself a regional
aviation hub of south China and Southeast Asia.
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TERMINAL COMPLEX PROJECT

Situated on the north side of Meilan Airport, the terminal complex project has a
gross floor area of 315,300 sq.m. The project has multiple business patterns and
functions and encompasses the commercial building, the hotel building, GTC
(Ground Traffic Center, a traffic hub) and the parking building. The commercial
building brings together various business patterns, including off-shore duty-free
shopping, aviation science and technology museum, Hainan featured products
shopping, outlet and food court.

GTC on the ground floor of the terminal complex integrates inter-city express, bus,
high-speed railway and taxi and other transportation tools, forming a land-based
three-dimensional transportation service system for Meilan Airport, and providing
multiple and convenient traffic services for travelers. In 2019, 6 new bus routes
were opened, with 80,449 departures carrying 1,282,388 passengers; 5 new inter-
city routes towards Danzhou and Wenchang and other cities were opened, with
8,988 departures carrying 230,111 passengers; 1,134,154 taxis accessed the
center and carried 1,912,339 passengers. In addition, the roundabout high-speed
railway and suburban trains of Hainan pass directly to GTC and can reach suburbs or
surrounding attractions of Haikou in only 3 minutes.

In 2019, Meilan Airport Hotel rooms were in full operation. Through targeted
marketing measures and active source market expansion, the annual room
occupancy rate was 79.21%, and about 450,000 guests were given reception.
Meilan Airport Hotel won awards such as the 14th China Hotel Starlight Award
“China Top Ten Newly Opened Hotels” and the Best Airport Hotel Award in China
Tourism and Hotel List for its excellent service quality.

The parking building of the terminal complex has 3,315 parking lots, equipped
with intelligent access gate system and self-service payment machine, which can
significantly improve traffic out efficiency. In 2019, a total of 7,156,964 vehicles
accessed the building.

Duty-paying commerce of the terminal complex is situated on the south side of
the second to fifth floors of the aviation tourism city of the terminal complex, with
a gross floor area of approximately 78,000 sg.m., of which approximately 12,859
sg.m. is retail business area and approximately 3,180 sg.m. is catering area. On 8
January 2019, the outlet stores in the terminal complex officially opened, gathering
approximately 75 well-known brands at home and abroad, including ASH, Levi's,
CALVIN KLEIN, PUMA, Clarks, Kipling, NIKE, GUESS, Discovery, Polo, ADIDAS, etc.
As of the end of 2019, the second to fifth floors of the aviation tourism city of the
terminal complex were in full operation with 108 stores opened.
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INTEREST PAYMENT OF DEBENTURES PAYABLE

According to the announcement of the Company dated 19 March 2012, the
Company announced to complete domestic issuance of debentures with the
principal amount of RMB800 million and a term of 7 years. Pursuant to the Listing
Announcement of 2011 Corporate Bonds of Hainan Meilan International Airport
Co., Ltd. (BEEMBEBREERHERARN _E——FRAIEF LT AEE))
released by the Company on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (the “Shanghai Stock
Exchange”) on 19 April 2012, the coupon rate of debentures was 7.8%. Interest
of RMB62,400,000 for the period from March 2018 to March 2019 was paid by the
Company in March 2019, and the principal has been fully repaid on the due date.

The Company issued the first tranche of its non-public corporate bonds of RMB500
million to qualified investors on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (the “Shenzhen
Stock Exchange”) on 27 April 2016 with a term of 3 years and a fixed interest rate
of 7.3% per annum and the interest is payable annually. Interest of RMB36,500,000
for the period from April 2018 to April 2019 was paid by the Company in April 2019,
and the principal has been fully repaid on the due date.

The Company issued the second tranche of its non-public corporate bonds of
RMB520 million to qualified investors on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange on 2
September 2016 with a term of 3 years and a fixed interest rate of 6.7% per annum
and the interest is payable annually. Interest of RMB25,892,000 for the period from
September 2018 to September 2019 was paid by the Company on September
2019, and the principal has been fully repaid on the due date.

THE PROGRESS OF PROPOSED ISSUANCE
OF DOMESTIC SHARES AND PROPOSED
ISSUANCE OF NEW H SHARES

According to the disclosures in the announcements of the Company dated 30
December 2016, 27 April 2017, 1 February 2018, 21 December 2018, 24 September
2019 and 30 September 2019:

(1) the Company and Haikou Meilan International Airport Company Limited
(the “Parent Company”) entered into the 2018 supplemental domestic
shares subscription agreement on 21 December 2018 after negotiation,
pursuant to which the Parent Company agreed to subscribe for 189,987,125
new domestic shares of the Company as consideration for the transfer
of the phase | runway assets by the Parent Company to the Company
and 12,500,000 new domestic shares of the Company by cash at an
aggregate subscription price of RMB100,000,000 (the “Parent Company
Subscription”), and the validity period of shareholders’ resolution and
relevant authorisation granted to the board of directors of the Company (the
“Board”) in relation to the Parent Company Subscription has been extended
to 25 June 2020;
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(2)  the Company and HNA Infrastructure Investment Group Co., Ltd. (“Hainan
HNA", /8 E iR R & £ BR (D AR A F]) entered into a termination
agreement on 21 December 2018 after negotiation, pursuant to which, the
Company and Hainan HNA mutually agreed to terminate the Hainan HNA
domestic shares subscription agreement and the supplemental Hainan HNA
domestic shares subscription agreement with immediate effect from the
effective date of the termination agreement, and both parties have confirmed
that there are no unsettled matters, disputes or potential disputes in relation
to the Hainan HNA domestic shares subscription agreement and the
supplemental Hainan HNA domestic shares subscription agreement;

(3)  the specific mandate was granted to the Board to issue not more than
200,000,000 new H shares, and the validity period of the specific mandate
and relevant authorisation granted to the Board in relation to the new H
shares issue has been extended to 25 June 2020;

(4) considering that HOPU Investments has extensive resources and expertise,
who can add significant value to the Company and the development of Meilan
Airport, the Company and Aero Infrastructure Holdings Company Limited, an
affiliate of HOPU Investments, entered into a subscription agreement on 29
September 2019, pursuant to which, Aero Infrastructure Holdings Company
Limited conditionally agreed to subscribe for and the Company conditionally
agreed to allot and issue 200,000,000 new H shares at a subscription price
of HK$4.69 per share, and the gross proceeds will be approximately HK$938
million (the “"HOPU Subscription”); and

(5) consequential amendments were proposed to be made to the articles of
association of the Company.

The Company convened an extraordinary general meeting, an H shares class
meeting and a domestic shares class meeting on 26 June 2017, 20 March 2018, 3
June 2019 and 21 February 2020, respectively, to consider and approve the relevant
proposals for the proposed issuance of domestic shares and proposed issuance
of new H shares and relevant extension resolutions. The proposals were currently
under review of the China Securities Regulatory Commission (the “CSRC"). Each
of the completion of the Parent Company Subscription and the HOPU Subscription
shall be subject to certain conditions precedent. For details of conditions precedent
to the Parent Company Subscription and fulfillment thereof, please refer to
Appendix Il of the circular of the Company dated 7 January 2020. For details of
conditions precedent to the HOPU Subscription, please refer to the circular of the
Company dated 7 January 2020, and as of the date of this annual report, none of
such conditions precedent were satisfied or waived. The Company will notify the
shareholders and potential investors of the Company with the information on the
progress of the proposed issuance of domestic shares and proposed issuance of
new H shares project in the future (if necessary).
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INTELLIGENT AIRPORT CONSTRUCTION

In 2019, as a part of the overall planning on intelligent airport construction of Meilan
Airport, the Group continued to advance the construction of intelligent airports by
introducing big data, the Internet of Things, artificial intelligence and other advanced
technologies, focusing on building intelligent passenger service platforms, security
full processes, airport operation cooperation platforms and other applications to
comprehensively promote the integration of airport information chains and build
an airport management system of “smart services, smart security, and smart
operations”.

The Group operates the “Airport 3.0"
project at a total of 135 points in departure lounge, terminal area, east gallery, west
gallery, baggage carousel and arrival hall of the domestic terminal of Meilan Airport.
Through the full-process information service of the public information intelligent
reminder system and the airport service intelligent recommendation system, Meilan
Airport has become the first airport in the world to fully realize the full process of
public information services and intelligent pre-boarding services based on big data
and airport service scenarios.

intelligent travel information service platform

In August 2019, as recommended by the Department of Public Safety of the CAAC,
the security full process optimization project of Meilan Airport was included in the
list of “Civil Aviation Security Science and Technology Information Construction
Achievements” of China Civil Airports Association, and was selected as the first
batch of the “"Four Types of Airports” (i.e. “safe airport”, “green airport”, “smart
airport”, “humanistic airport”) benchmarking projects by the Department of Airports
of the CAAC. In December 2019, the operation cooperation platform project of
Meilan Airport successfully passed the review and acceptance of the CAAC, and
achieved the interconnection of air traffic management bureau, airline companies
and airport three-party data, which improved the safe operation efficiency of Meilan
Airport.

OUTLOOK

In 2020, due to uncertainties in the development of global trade, finance, and
geopolitical conditions and other factors, the economic downside risks remain
and are expected to continue to affect the stability and development of the global
economy.

The year of 2020 is the last year of China’'s comprehensive construction of a well-
off society and the “13th Five-Year”
new development concepts of innovation, coordination, greenness, openness and

Plan. China will unswervingly implement the

sharing, and continue to implement a proactive fiscal policy and a stable monetary
policy and deepen the reform of the economic system, laying a solid foundation for
the development of the “14th Five-Year”
century goal.

Plan and the achievement of the second
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In order to respond to various measures taken by the PRC government to
deepen reform and opening-up in an all-round way and firmly grasp the historical
development opportunities for the construction of China (Hainan) Pilot Free Trade
Zone (Port), Hainan Province will closely follow the goal of building a well-off society
in an all-round way, highlighting high-quality development, maintaining the overall
tone of pursuing progress amid stability, adhering to the new development concept,
and insisting on the supply-side structural reform as the main line and the reform
and opening-up as the driving force, so as to build a high-standard and high-quality
pilot free trade zone and make every effort to build a free trade port.

In 2020, Hainan Province will accelerate the construction of an air traffic hub with
full coverage of “North-South and East-West". The Hainan Provincial Department
of Transportation will work with relevant departments to make every effort to
increase the route from Hainan to Beijing Daxing International Airport (the “Daxing
Airport”), introduce air cargo subsidy measures, explore the development of
unmanned aircraft logistics and other related formats, explore the construction of
a global general aviation network, and strengthen the coordinated development
of general aviation and transportation aviation to enhance air traffic capacity and
expand the space for civil aviation development. Meilan Airport, as the provincial
capital city airport of Hainan Province, will continue to play its own advantages,
seize favourable policy opportunities, explore and innovate in an all-round way,
and actively promote the development of Hainan Province into an aviation regional
gateway hub facing the Pacific Ocean and the Indian Ocean.

According to the spirit of 2020 Provincial Business Working Conference of Hainan
Provincial Department of Commerce, Hainan will expand the off-shore duty-
free policy, increase tourism consumption, and build Hainan into an international
consumption center city. Along with the further increase of off-shore duty-free
shopping quota and the further expansion of off-shore duty-free policy coverage, it
is believed that it will incur better return to the Group.

At the beginning of 2020, the sudden outbreak of the pneumonia epidemic (the
"Epidemic”) caused by the novel coronavirus spread nationwide and even globally.
In order to strictly prevent and control the spread of the Epidemic in Hainan and to
check in and out of Hainan Island, the Group actively carried out the prevention and
control of the Epidemic and effectively provided the flight support. Affected by the
Epidemic, the main business figures of the Group are expected to decline to a great
extent in 2020.

In order to actively respond to the adverse effects of the Epidemic, under the
premise of ensuring safe production, the Company will

- continuously focus on implementing the “13th Five-Year” Development Plan
of the CAAC and the “Action Plan of Promoting the ‘One Belt and One Road’
Initiatives for Civil Aviation (2016-2030)" ({R A& — & — K JERITET
£/(2016-2030))), insist on equal emphasis on safety and efficiency, adhere
to the bottom line of safety, improve and optimize the various operation
procedures and improve the professional quality of employees to cope with
the increasing safety pressure;
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- take advantage of policy and expand the aviation market;

- tap opportunities for cooperation with domestic and foreign airports, promote
the development of airport trusteeship, airport consultation and other
business, and further tap potential resources;

- organize diversified activities in line with national policies, industry policies
and airport operation needs, strengthen interaction with customers and
media, enhance brand value and assume social responsibility;

- establish and improve the enterprise value management system through
capital operation and investors relationship maintenance; and

- through multiple channels such as roadshows, performance announcements
and other events, communicate with the market, strengthen relationship with
investors, promote the enhancement of corporate value of the Company and
ensure the healthy and sustainable development of Meilan Airport so as to
provide all the shareholders with more brilliant achievements.

PROMOTE TRANSFORMATION AND UPGRADE,
STRIVE FOR WIN-WIN IN OUTPUT QUANTITY
AND OPERATION QUALITY

In 2020, in order to facilitate Hainan Province to achieve the goal of building an
aviation regional gateway hub facing the Pacific and Indian Oceans, the Group will

- actively cooperate with relevant Hainan provincial government departments,
actively develop overseas routes, explore the international aviation market
development space through close contact with airlines and charter operators,
and strive to complete overseas route development goals, and at the
same time, actively participate in domestic and foreign route development
conferences to enhance exposure of Meilan Airport to the international
market;

- make full use of the existing resources and maximize the use of resources,
and break the bottleneck of business development through multiple measures
such as increasing publicity and optimizing operational management
processes; and

- continuously consolidate the results of the special action on “Key Issues in
Service Quality”, comprehensively sort out service standards in accordance
with the “Service Quality Evaluation Indicators for Civil Airports in China” ({1
B 2 415 iR 75 & 2 5T B 3E512)), improve the service management system,
optimize 9 convenient service measures, and improve the regularity and the
proportion of self-service flight passengers, perfecting the flight environment,
improving the quality of details, inspiring enterprise vitality, and providing
passengers with comprehensive and high-value excellent services.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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STICK TO CORE CAPABILITY CONSTRUCTION,
CONSTANTLY CLUTCH ATTENTION ON SAFETY

In 2020, the Group will continue to strengthen the construction of “focusing on
the local communities, laying foundation, strengthening basic capabilities” (the
“three basics"”), and establish and improve the long-term mechanism of work
style construction of safety practitioners from aspects such as the implementation
of main responsibilities, qualification and capacity building, and safety supervision,
to further consolidate the foundation of the “three basics”. Efforts will be made
to promote the integration of civil aviation statutory self-inspection with safety
operation systems, the integration of database on self-inspection matter with daily
supervision and the integration of standards for statutory self-inspection with the
Company’s manual standards, gradually establish a perfect self-inspection model,
and perform monitoring and evaluation of the integration results through improved
safety performance management.

FIRMLY DEEPEN EFFICIENCY PROMOTION AND
SOLIDLY DEVELOP BRAND IMPROVEMENT

In 2020, the Group will take multiple measures in parallel to continuously improve
the normal service quality of flights and passenger satisfaction. In accordance with
the requirements of the “Construction Guide for Large-scale Airport Operation
Coordlnatlon Mechanism (Operation Management Committee)” ((AEUH# 1581715
FARHER CEE L) ERIER)) issued by the CAAC, and following the concept that
“coordination is the core, air management is the key, and the platform connects all
parties”, the physical operation of the coordination committee for flight operation
management of Meilan Airport is further promoted to optimize organizational
structure, seat settings and coordination mechanisms, strengthen the integration of
the business chain of each unit, and build an efficient and collaborative large-scale
operation information system relying on the A-CDM (Airport-Collaborative Decision
Making) system. At the same time, the Group will coordinate the existing operation
management mode of Meilan Airport to plan for the putting into use of the Phase
Il Expansion Project, and conduct operational evaluations and transfers based on
the new operating environment and characteristics of the dual runways and dual
terminals.

In 2020, the Group will solidify the achievement of brand building with full efforts,
strengthen international cooperation, take the idea of “providing genuine services
and building a humanistic airport” as the guidance, focus on meeting the needs of
passengers, continuously improve its brand work system and promote the efficient
operation of branding system. Through scientific organization and standardized
management, it is expected that the commercial value of brand will be finally
realized.
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In 2020, the Group will continue to put the sustainable development strategy into
practice, learn from successful development experience of advanced domestic and
overseas airports, thoroughly implement the spirit of the “Work Plan of Civil Aviation
on Thoroughly Implementing the ‘Three-Year Blue Sky Defending Plan'" (R fin & &l
FE<ITmERRETE = FTBEEI>TEH X)), promote the green development
of civil aviation, enhance virtuous circle of resources, effectively enhance the
airport’s ability to reduce consumption and control pollution, consistently practice
the concept of green development of “environmental protection, conservation,
technology and humanization GR{R * 8749 * BHE « AM1k)”, adhere to the goal
orientation of improving quality and efficiency, and enhance the level of energy
saving and emission reduction in production and operation.

SPARE NO EFFORT TO BUILD A
COMPREHENSIVE THREE-DIMENSIONAL
TRANSPORTATION CENTER

In 2020, the Group will effectively take advantage of favorable policies on
development of the civil aviation industry, step up route development, expand route
coverage network, enhance its presence in international aviation market, promote
Hainan Province to give full play to its role as a strategic fulcrum of the “Maritime
Silk Road”,
e-commerce, international distribution and international re-export functions, and

strengthen the construction of international ports and cross-border

build an aviation logistics network linking Australia, New Zealand and Southeast
Asia. The Group will also continue to step up its efforts in promoting construction
of the Phase Il Expansion Project while advancing the preparations for the putting
into use of the Phase Il Expansion Project and strive to cultivate Meilan Airport as
a comprehensive three-dimensional transportation center with its base in Northern
Hainan, which gears to the need of entire Hainan Province and radiates in Southeast
Asia.
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—ight the Epidemic
Meilan Airport is in the action
? T B T TE)

At the beginning of the new year of 2020, the sudden outbreak of novel coronavirus pneumonia epidemic (the “Epidemic”) has spread across
the nation and the world. In order to strictly prevent and control the spread of the Epidemic in Hainan and safeguard the first pass in and out
Hainan Island, Meilan Airport severely guarded the airport gateway, and employees in all positions of the Company rose to the challenge and
fight the Epidemic in front line. This is a war without the shooting, we are sure to win the battle!
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They are the invisible “hands” of Meilan Airport, ensuring
the network operation security of Meilan Airport. [
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With the impact of the Epidemic fading, the Phase Il
Expansion Project is now being constructed with the
progress quickened and full load. Workers, wearing
masks in multiple construction sites such as the airport
terminal, comprehensive traffic roads and bridges, and
parking buildings, are all hectic, and the entire scene was
well-ordered. They worked night and day. We appreciate
those who dedicated themselves to the struggle!
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B TAMEECSSRIEMIGE - RE308KE  FE
BEZER T RRITIRTD - BERSUKFFR - 2T
RER - BHBRETAERHENA |

They are voiceless under the mask, while the places are
full of heartwarming as far as their eyes can reach.
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"On behalf of Haikou Meilan International Airport, | would
like to pay the highest respect to the crew and medical staff.
Today you go to Hubei to give them assistance with the love
of people in Hainan. It is our responsibility and glory to serve
you. | wish you a safe and successful triumph soon. | will
stay at the ramp tower of Meilan Airport, waiting for you to
return safely!”

[RERKEOXHERRSNEREAABREEAESR
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First Aid
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It - RETHEXHBEHITIES - FHRAFLRER !

During the Epidemic, the staff of Meilan Airport
adhered to the front line and served the passengers
wholeheartedly to ensure the smooth flight. The most
joyful thing that they feel is that their quality service is
recognized by travelers. Even wearing masks can’'t hide
their smiles!
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Although the impact of the Epidemic gradually fading, the
prevention and control personnel of Meilan Airport cannot
afford to slacken their efforts. We are never evasive and
hesitant before the Epidemic! Sticking to our post and
making concerted efforts to win the prevention and control
war! Work is battle!
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT

Civil Aviation Industry of China

In 2019, civil aviation development in China continued to flourish, achieving
breakthrough results in many aspects, including transportation aviation achieved a
new safety record of 112 months and 80.68 million hours of continuous safe flight,
making a record of air defense safety with zero accidents for seventeen years and
seven months.

Chinese civil aviation industry recorded total volume of transport of 129.32 billion
ton kilometers, passenger throughput of 660 million passengers, cargo and mail
volume of 7.532 million tons, which accordingly increased by 7.2%, 7.9% and 2.0%
on year-on-year basis. The passenger and cargo transportation scale ranked second
in the world and the total volume of transport accounted for 13% of the world civil
aviation.

In the context of the total number of flights growing by 5.57% year-on-year, the
annual flight on-time rate reached 81.65%, above 80% for two consecutive years.

In 2019, there were 62 transportation airlines, 3,818 transportation aircrafts in
China, and 238 certificated transportation airports, of which 39 were with an annual
passenger traffic volume of more than 10 million passengers, an increase of 2 over
the same period of last year. The industry strength was further enhanced. There
were 246 certificated general-purpose airports, surpassing transportation airports
for the first time.

In 2019, there were many positive news from Chinese civil aviation industry.

On 19 September 2019, the Central Committee of the Communist Party of
China and the State Council issued the “Outline for the Construction of a
Strong Country in Transportation” ((RBEEZRXHAE)) (the “Outline”).

The Outline clearly states:

- in terms of construction of general airports, it is necessary to promote the
construction of general airports with tourism, agricultural operations, and
emergency rescue functions in areas where conditions permit;

- in terms of building an international aviation hub, it is necessary to rely on
world-class urban agglomerations such as the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei, the
Yangtze River Delta, and the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area
to create an international aviation hub with global competitiveness, promote
the integrated planning and construction of a comprehensive transportation
hub, and vigorously develop the hub economy;
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

- in terms of transport service quality and efficiency, it is necessary to improve
the aviation service network, gradually concentrate the construction of the
airport network, vigorously develop regional aviation, promote the effective
connection of branches, and improve the capacity and quality of aviation
services; promote the development of air-land and other combined transport
to form a unified multimodal transport’'s standards and rules; improve the
aviation logistics network and improve the efficiency of air cargo; cultivate
a dynamic general aviation market, improve the government procurement
service policy, and steadily expand the market size of aviation consumption
and other markets;

- in terms of open cooperation, it is necessary to improve the global
connectivity of civil aviation and promote the construction of the 21st Century
Maritime Silk Road; vigorously develop an aviation logistics hub; and

- in terms of improving governance capabilities, it is necessary to continuously
deepen the reform of the airspace management system and establish
and improve systems and mechanisms that are suitable for the integrated
development of integrated transportation.

Civil aviation infrastructure construction and support capacity have been
continuously improved.

On 25 September 2019, Daxing Airport was officially put into operation. Daxing
Airport has the largest single terminal building in the world at present. It plans to
handle 72 million passengers in 2025. The long-term planned annual passenger
throughput is over 100 million.

The combination of cost reduction policies such as halving the collection of Civil
Aviation Development Fund for airlines, suspension of floating of aircraft take-
off and landing fee standards, and expansion of the scope of special policies for
regional aircraft models, has reduced corporate costs throughout the year and
directly converted them into corporate operating benefits of more than RMB9
billion. The various subsidy policies funds such as discounted loans for small and
medium-sized airports, regional aviation and general aviation were RMB3.66 billion.

With various policy support and vigorous construction, in 2019, civil aviation industry
in China completed a fixed asset investment of RMB95 billion in total. 10 new
runways were added, with 1.749 million sg.m. of terminal buildings and oil depot
volume of 320,000 cubic meters. The total number of certificated transportation
airports reached 238.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Civil aviation international cooperation has been comprehensively
strengthened.

Through efforts to expand airway rights resources, significantly increase the
transport capacity of entering mainstream markets such as Tokyo, Japan, and
expand access to air transport markets with South Korea, Finland, and other
countries, “one-time submission and one-net-community” for international airway
right allocation has been achieved, and 549 new international and regional routes
were established.

In May 2019, China and the EU co-signed the “Agreement on Civil Aviation Safety
between the Government of the PRC and the European Union” ({fFZE A B HF1E
BT FIBOMEE BB R A ZE 2 21 E)) and the “Agreement between the Government
of the PRC and the European Union on Several Aspects of Flight” ({FR#E AR
30 I T AN B B BR RE AR I & T 5 B 5E D). The signing of agreements for the
first time in the field of civil aviation between the PRC and the European Union has
further enriched the connotation of China-EU comprehensive strategic partnership.
The continuous deepening of the opening-up pattern has brought about a new
round of development opportunities for the civil aviation industry of China.

Nine measures, such as improving passenger travel information notification
services and promoting paperless and convenient travel, have promoted the
significant improvement of civil aviation service quality.

In 2019, the CAAC vigorously promoted the RFID (Radio Frequency ldentification)
baggage tracking and other technologies throughout the civil airport, included the
“same price and quality in the same city” initiative in the evaluation indicators of
airport service quality, and promoted the launch of international “through flights”
policy to bring convenience for transit of international passengers. Electronic
waybills for air freight reached 1.6 million. The 12326 civil aviation service quality
supervision hotline commenced operation. Domestic airlines complaint response
rate reached 100%. With the effort of the informationization and standardization
construction, the civil aviation industry will bring greater satisfaction to passengers
and benefit the development of the civil aviation industry.

The Company will pay close attention to the development of domestic aviation
industry in 2020, and prepare for the unknown factors beforehand. The Company
will conduct in-depth study of national policies, while ensuring safe operation, make
good use of policies and flexible use of strategies. Efforts will be made to optimize
the Company’s development environment, and constantly consolidate and enhance
the position of Meilan Airport among medium to large-sized domestic airports in
China.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Profile of Tourism in Hainan

In 2019, Hainan Province further promoted the stable development of tourism
in Hainan by centering on the main line of accelerating the construction of China
(Hainan) Pilot Free Trade Zone (Port) and taking the building of an international
tourism consumption center as the starting point.

In 2019, the tourism development of Hainan showed a good trend of overall stability
and steady improvement in quality. The province received 83,112,000 tourists both
from domestic and overseas, representing a year-on-year growth of 9%, among
which, overnight tourists reached 68,245,100, representing a year-on-year growth
of 7.8%; and received 1,435,900 inbound overnight tourists, representing a year-on-
year growth of 13.6%; total revenue of the tourism industry reached RMB105.78
billion, representing a year-on-year growth of 11.3%. The added value of the tourism
industry increased by 10% year on year.

These remarkable achievements were benefited not only from the construction
of China (Hainan) Pilot Free Trade Zone (Port) with support of the country, but
also from a series of world spotlight economic, cultural and sport events such as
Bo'ao Forum for Asia, Hainan Island International Film Festival, Hainan International
Tourism Food Fair, Hunan TV New Year's Eve Party, Hainan International Tourism
Island Happy Festival and so on, which were all held in Hainan and greatly promoted
the sustainable and rapid development of the tourism of Hainan.

In order to promote the quality and efficiency of the tourism and cultural industry,
based on optimizing the business environment, Hainan has solidly promoted
industry investment and project construction. Eight companies including China Duty
Free Group Co., Ltd. (FE % mEE)ERE LA F) and China Tourism Group
Co., Ltd. (FER#EEE B R A F)) and so on have registered and set headquarters,
cultural tourism headquarters or regional headquarters in Hainan. The first Sino-
Korea joint venture travel agency of Hainan, Sanya Lead International Travel Agency
(= REEBEIRTTH), settled in Sanya.

Focusing on the construction of an international tourism consumption center, in
2019, Hainan Province took the International Tourism Consumption Year as the
core and continuously improved the level of tourism internationalization. Summer
tourism promotion and consumption activities were launched from June to
September 2019, which effectively boosted summer tourism consumption. Since
the start of the one-year Hainan International Tourism Consumption Year, more than
500 events such as festivals, exhibitions, sports events and cultural performances
have been held, which has greatly boosted tourism consumption and promoted the
integrated development of tourism and the culture and sports industry. Constantly
innovative tourism marketing has realized rapid growth in inbound tourism and
further deepened foreign cultural and artistic exchanges.

On 19 December 2019, the General Office of Hainan Provincial Government
issued the “Implementation Plan of Hainan Province to Improve and Promote the
Consumption System Mechanism” (B E TTERHEBEEEBHIMSIEIET ) (the
“Implementation Plan”), which aims to give full play to the role of consumption in
the construction of China (Hainan) Pilot Free Trade Zone (Port) and further promote
the build of an international tourism consumption center.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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According to the Implementation Plan, Hainan will further expand market access in
the service consumption sector.

- in the field of tourism, service standards for self-driving and resident car camp
construction and the “Hainan Province Yacht Management Regulations” ()%
BB RS IEIEH)) will be formulated and launched to encourage qualified
Chinese-funded cruise transportation operators to launch pilot trials for cruise
sea routes, and simplify the entry procedures for Hong Kong and Macau
yachts. A paid vacation system will be implemented to encourage off-peak
vacations and flexible work schedules;

- in the field of culture, Hainan will vigorously develop novel cultural
consumption formats such as animation games, e-sports, digital arts, and
intellectual property rights transactions, and gradually expand the scope of
pilot projects for the development of cultural and creative products by cultural
relic units; and

- the Implementation Plan specifies that Hainan will establish a “one-stop”
service mechanism designated for commercial and mass events jointly with
departments at all levels and vigorously develop projects such as beach
sports, water sports, horse racing, aviation, outdoor sports and so on of
Hainan.

The year of 2020 is the last year of China’'s comprehensive construction of a well-
off society and the “13th Five-Year” Plan, a year for planning the “14th Five-
Year” Plan, a key year for accelerating the promotion of free trade ports with
Chinese characteristics, and is an important milestone for Hainan's comprehensive
deepening of reform and opening-up. Hainan Province will fully implement the
important speech of “4.13" by President Xi Jinping and the spirit of Document
No. 12 issued by the Central Committee of the CPC. Focusing on the strategy
of “building an international tourism consumption center under the framework
of the Free Trade Pilot Zone (Port)”, Hainan Province will highlight high-quality
development, stick to the main line of supply-side structural reforms, make
every effort to promote the construction of international tourist islands and the
establishment of national tourism demonstration zone, national public cultural
service system demonstration zone and national sports tourism demonstration
zone, implement thoroughly the International Tourism Consumption Year activity,
promote in-depth the integrated development of tourism, culture, radio, TV and
sports, and facilitate the important progress in the construction of an international
tourism consumption center.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Key Tourism Projects of Hainan
In 2019, local governments of all levels in Hainan made continuous and great efforts
to promote the construction of key tourism projects.

The berthing platform project of the China Railway Luxury Cruise Offshore Hotel
Tourism Project is located in the sea area of Baishamen, Haikou City. The total
estimated investment of the project is RMB1.2 billion. It was officially commenced
on 18 July 2019 and is expected to be completed and put into use by 2022. The
main construction content of the project is an international luxury cruise ship
berthing platform, including breakwaters, berthing platforms, star hotels, office
buildings, commercial buildings and other ancillary facilities, and it is planned to
purchase six-star cruise ships to open international and domestic tourist routes.
Hainan cruise tourism market has huge development potential. After the completion
of the project, it will bring development opportunities to catering, commerce,
tourism and other service industries in Haikou. It will also create new tourism
projects for Haikou and promote the development of tourism industry in Hainan.

On 29 July 2019, the signing ceremony of the Hello Kitty Theme Park Resort
(the “Park”) project was held in Haitang Bay of Sanya, marking that the Park will
officially settle in Sanya, becoming the first international IP brand theme park of
Hainan. Located in Haitang Bay of Sanya, the Park covers themed parks, themed
hotels and themed businesses, and integrates amusement projects, entertainment
performances, gourmet experiences, shopping experiences, and other formats.
The project will be implemented in accordance with international standards from
design, construction to operation. It is expected to open for business in 2024. The
settlement of the project will enhance Hainan's attractiveness as an international
tourist destination and become a new business card for Hainan.

Haikou Wuyuanhe National Wetland Park is located in Xiuying District, Haikou City,
Hainan Province, sourcing from Yongzhuang Reservoir in the south and to the
sea area Wuyuanhe estuaries in the north. Haikou Wuyuanhe National Wetland
Park, mainly includes 3 wetland units, i.e. Yongzhuang Reservoir, Wuyuanhe and
Wuyuanhe estuaries, with a planned total area of 1,300.58 hectares, of which
wetland area is 958.39 hectares and wetland rate is 73.69%. There are 427 species
and 318 genera of wild vascular plants in 96 families, and 154 species and 66
genera of wild vertebrates in 25 families in the wetland park. Among them, there
are 11 species of national class Il protected wild animals. The upstream Yongzhuang
Reservoir and the surrounding large area of volcanic lava wetlands and thickets and
swamps are well-preserved areas in Haikou City, with scarce animal habitats and
vegetation habitats in the city. On 25 December 2019, Haikou Wuyuanhe National
Wetland Park successfully passed the inspection and acceptance of 2019 Pilot
National Wetland Park by National Forestry and Grassland Bureau and officially
became a “National Wetland Park”.

In addition, in the context of the construction of China (Hainan) Pilot Free Trade
Zone (Port), all sectors are confident in the development prospects of Hainan's off-
shore duty-free market. Off-shore duty-free, as a golden sign of the Hainan tourism
market, will drive the development of Hainan's tourism industry.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The successive constructions and operations of these key tourism projects will
invigorate tourism in Hainan and contribute to a new development situation of
Hainan “comprehensive tourism”. Besides, with the convenience brought by
the roundabout railway to passengers, the future growth potential of passenger
throughput of Meilan Airport remains promising.

The Group will closely focus on the tourism development trends in Hainan Province,
and actively cooperate with the local governments to implement the promotion
work of tourism products. The Group will seize the development opportunity and
contribute to the new height of passenger throughput and cargo and mail volume in
Meilan Airport.

Transportation Situation within the Island

In respect of railways, the suburban train from Haikou Station to Meilan Airport
Station of Hainan Roundabout High Speed Railway, the first urban rail transit line
open for operation in Haikou City, and the first intercity train in China using high-
speed railway, commenced trial operation on 1 July 2019. Haikou Municipal
Government, together with Hainan Railway Co., Ltd. (& # B R A ) in Hainan,
made use of the surplus transport capacity of the Haikou section of the Roundabout
High Speed Railway to open operation railways as buses running between
Haikou Station and Meilan Airport Station. The operation line has a total length
of approximately 38 kilometers, with six stations. Haikou suburban trains run at a
maximum speed of 160 km/h. The vehicle has both the advantages of high-speed
EMUs and urban rail subway technology, and the characteristics of fast speed and
large passenger capacity, can achieve quick start, quick stop, and fast boarding and
landing, and adapts to the peak period of surge in passenger traffic and the demand
for “fast, high-volume, and dense stops” operations of heavy traffic areas, providing
another convenient travel option for passengers heading and leaving Meilan Airport.

In order to expand the service scope of high-speed rail transit, Haikou has also
optimized and adjusted the existing bus lines within 8 kilometers of the site area,
optimizing and adjusting 16 bus lines, including 8 new bus lines and 8 adjusted bus
lines, and added 129 new energy buses to achieve efficient travel and green travel.

In respect of roads, Hainan Province adhered to the concept of “coordinating all
traffic of the province as in a chess game” and strengthened the construction of the
highway network. Roundabout Highway, Central Expressway, Wengiong Highway,
Haiwen Highway, Haikou and Sanya Belt Highway have been completed and
opened to traffic successively, vigorously promoting local economic development.

On 28 December 2019, the Wan (Ning) Yang (Pu) Expressway was officially opened
to traffic, marking the full completion of the“Tian (H)" type expressway network
that Hainan people were looking forward to. It is another major achievement to
upgrade the modern infrastructure of the “Five Networks” (i.e., optical network,
power grid, road network, gas network and water network) of Hainan, and is
of great significance for promoting high-quality economic development and
accelerating the construction of China (Hainan) Pilot Free Trade Zone (Port).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In addition, Hainan has also built Haiwen Bridge, a bridge with the highest
earthquake resistance and wind resistance coefficient in China, and successively
completed the Yangpu Bridge, Qinglan Bridge, and Bo'ao Passage. These bridges
and tunnels have effectively promoted the development of Hai-Cheng-Wen and the
Greater Sanya Economic Circle.

In respect of the investment and construction of airports, it was pointed out at
the Working Conference on Transportation of Hainan Province on 9 January 2020
that in 2020, Hainan will accelerate the construction of Sanya New Airport, Danzhou
Airport and the Phase || Expansion Project and other projects, and build an air traffic
hub with full coverage of “North-South East-West".

In cooperation with relevant departments, the Department of Transportation of
Hainan Province will accelerate the construction of the Phase Il Expansion Project to
promote the dual-runway operation of Meilan Airport, and continuously optimize the
airport operation, improve operational efficiency, coordinate civil aviation to conduct
a new round of airport capacity assessment in a timely manner, so as to expand
Meilan Airport capacity. It will increase the routes from Hainan to Daxing Airport
with full efforts, introduce air cargo subsidy measures, explore the development of
drone logistics and other related business formats and the construction of a global
general aviation network, to strengthen the coordinated development of general
aviation and transportation aviation, enhance air traffic capacity, and expand the
space for civil aviation development.

Off-shore Duty-free

In 2019, as the further expansion of the effect of off-shore duty-free policy for
Hainan, the sales performance of duty-free goods in Hainan has reached a record
high.

In 2019, the annual sales revenue of Meilan Airport Off-shore Duty-Free Shop
reached RMB2,311,471,800, the total number of customers reached 1,267,054, and
the number of products sold was 3,573,715, representing a year-on-year increase
of 9.13%, 9.31% and 4.72%, respectively. In 2019, the off-shore duty-free sales of
Hainan reached RMB13.61 billion and the number of customers reached 3,840,000,
representing a year-on-year increase of 35% and 34%, respectively.

On 19 January 2019, Haikou Riyue Square Duty-Free Shop and Qionghai Bo'ao
Duty-Free Shop were opened. Haikou Riyue Square Duty-Free Shop has a business
area of 22,000 sq.m. and the first phase covers an area of 13,000 sgq.m. Qionghai
Bo'ao Duty-Free Shop has a business area of 4,200 sg.m. The two shops cover 38
categories of duty-free goods such as perfumes, cosmetics, bags, watches, jewelry,
food, etc., and have introduced nearly 200 world-renowned brands such as Chanel,
Dior, Cartier and Gucci. Passengers can purchase goods in the shops and pick up
the goods at the pick-up points. The air passengers can choose to pay a certain
amount of tax guarantee, choose to buy and pick up the goods at the same time.
Diversified pick-up methods bring more convenience to consumers. The opening of
Haikou and Bo’ao Duty-Free Shops is focused on building the Hainan International
Tourism Consumption Center, which is conducive to the upgrading of tourism
factors and the development of tourism economy of the North Hainan.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Affected by the Epidemic, since 26 January 2020, duty-free enterprises may deliver
duty-free goods purchased by passengers by mail. Meanwhile, passengers are
allowed to return and release their duty-free quota in light of the Epidemic and
repurchase after they have re-determined the departure date; for passengers who
are unwilling or inconvenient to return, they are allowed to withdraw the purchased
duty-free goods when leaving by plane, train or ship within three months or will be
refunded the deposit upon verification. This will reduce the impact of the Epidemic
on the off-shore duty-free business.

The government of Hainan Province will support enterprises engaging in duty-
free business to conduct various themed promotional activities, and promote the
sustained growth of duty-free goods consumption through discount promotions,
consumption coupons, and themed marketing activities. Such enterprises are
encouraged to actively integrate characteristic tourism resources including off-shore
duty-free, hotels and scenic spots, and open up the tourism industry chain such
as aviation, railways and banks, to create a novel consumption chain of “tourism +
duty-free”, thereby enhancing the attractiveness of Hainan as a tourist destination
and giving impetus to the rapid development of tourism on the island, which will
lead to an increase in passenger throughput and cargo and mail volume at Meilan
Airport.

BUSINESS AND REVENUE REVIEW

Overview

In 2019, civil aviation industry of China held firmly on the safety bottom line, the
Group complied with national and industry security action plans, responded the
“three basics” working requirement of the CAAC, implemented various safety
special projects. We actively implemented the national policy and therefore
successfully completed safety work of the major activities such as the National
People’'s Congress and Chinese People’s Political Consultative Congress in 2019,
the “One Belt and One Road” (—# —) Forum for International Cooperation, and
the Celebration of the 70th Anniversary of National Day in 2019, and achieved, as
scheduled, the 21st safety operation year since its opening.

In 2019, the Group's brand creation achieved results as follows: it was awarded
with the “Award for Public Welfare Practice of 2018" by the Organizing Committee
at the 8th China Public Welfare Festival, the “Outstanding Corporation of Social
Responsibility Award 2019"” by the Second Session of the Social Responsibility
Conference Organizing Committee; the “Demonstration Case Award of ‘Beautiful
China’ Ecological Civilization Construction” at the 22nd China Beijing International
High-Tech Expo co-organized by the Ministry of Science and Technology of the
PRC, the National Intellectual Property Administration, PRC, China Council for
the Promotion of International Trade and the People’s Government of Beijing
Municipality and won the honor of SKYTRAX five-star Airport again for its
outstanding quality of customer service and social responsibility. In the whole
year, it won 23 awards at provincial and ministerial-level or above, including 10
international awards and 6 national awards.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In 2019, the CAAC further implemented the policy of “cap control” of the total
number of flights throughout the year, which affected the efficiency of Meilan
Airport operation to a certain extent. Meilan Airport strengthened the cooperation
between the air traffic control tower and the apron tower, and optimized aircraft
access and apron operation and aircraft allocation rules to improve aircraft ground
taxiing efficiency, and fully solved flight delay planning and structural problems. The
implementation of the flight release judgment mechanism, and timely measures to
ensure the normal take-off and landing of flights, through the “4-hour allocation of
the position, all-weather dynamic adjustment” to improve the flight rate of the flight,
effectively improve the annual flight normal rate. The “non-full runway take-off”
project was actively promoted in conjunction with air traffic units, and ground signs,
airport lighting and billboards were upgraded and evaluated based on the “Technical
Standards for Airfield Area of Civil Airports” ({51 T & FITIZXED) to further
reduce flight delays and improve flight operating efficiency after the operation of the
project.

In 2019, the Group further implemented the construction requirements on the “Four
Types of Airports” (i.e. “safe airport”, “green airport”, “smart airport”, “humanistic
airport”) of the CAAC, continued to deepen the construction of intelligent airports,
vigorously promoted the work of security whole process, intelligent passenger
information service platform, paperless customs clearance procedures optimization,
and A-CDM system construction. Meilan Airport has completed the installation and
commissioning of the first batch of security whole process projects. At this stage,
the project is undergoing internal testing. The intelligent passenger information
service platform project is officially launched and applied to the big data platform in
the airport scenario, providing passengers with a more efficient and user-friendly
aviation service experience. 9 temporary electronic boarding verification devices
were equipped at check-in counters and security check channels of Meilan Airport
and officially launched to optimize customer paper-less check process. The design
and development of A-CDM system functions have established and improved based
on the six major operating mechanisms, i.e. the “airspace cooperative release
mechanism”, the “flight classification and disposal mechanism”, the “unfavorable
operating mechanism”, the “key resources coordination mechanism”, the “ground
operation supervision mechanism” and the “operation, assessment and promotion
mechanism”. A total of 21 functions including flight classification and disposal, key
resources management, assessment and promotion management, and operation
supervision, were added and revised, which effectively improved the on-time
performance management of flight.
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Overview of Aviation Business

In 2019, boosted by the overall stable growth of the PRC civil aviation industry,
and favorable factors including certain favorable policies, the construction of the
China (Hainan) Pilot Free Trade Zone (Port) and off-shore duty-free policy, though
the growth of Meilan Airport’s principal business indicators slowed down due to
the impact of the “cap control” policy of the CAAC and the grounding of Boeing
737MAX aircraft, its business stayed robust and it still ranked 17th among all civil
airports in China.

Revolving around the goals of constructing the regional aviation hub, serving
“One Belt and One Road” (—#%—) Initiative and constructing the
China (Hainan) Pilot Free Trade Zone (Port), Meilan Airport continuously expanded

the national

the coverage and accessibility of its route network and maintained rapid growth
in international aviation market; actively promoted Hainan aviation tourism in
cooperation with the government, airlines, travel agencies and charter operators,
which effectively improved its flight passenger load factor and provided a strong
source of customers for the rapid development of the international aviation market.

As of 31 December 2019, Meilan Airport operated a total of 297 originating routes,
including 261 domestic routes, 32 international routes and 4 regional routes;
Meilan Airport extended its reach to 149 cities, including 114 domestic cities, 31
international cities and 4 regional cities; and attracted 58 airlines to operate at
Meilan Airport in total, including 33 domestic airlines, 21 international airlines and 4
regional airlines.

Details of the aviation traffic throughput of Meilan Airport in 2019 and comparative
figures of last year are set out below:
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Passenger throughput RERULE
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In which: Domestic He o ER 2,281.51 2,297.51 -0.70%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group's total revenue from aviation business for 2019 was RMB709,389,882,
representing a decrease of 22.48% as compared to that of 2018, which was mainly
attributable to the adverse factors such as the abolition of the policy of recognition

BIEE & Mo

FEB _Z-NAEFREZEBARARBARE
709,389,8827T * R_ZE— \FREATFF22.48% ° ffit
EEBFWATREE %ﬁﬁﬂn?@%i%d&{’ﬁﬁ%)\

of refund of the Civil Aviation Development Fund as revenue. Ignoring the impact of HEERBUESTAAZFE @ FIBZAEZTE - A5H
this factor, the Group's revenue from aviation business actually increased by 6.73%. KR AERILRE.73% - AN EE =R
A breakdown of the Group's revenue from aviation business is as follows: WAFFEEINNAT -
Amount Changes
(RMB) over 2018
&8 B-Z—N\F
(AR# ) BE)
Passenger service charges RE RS & 349,874,021 1.14%
Ground handling service income RS & 226,584,824 18.94%
Fees and related charges on aircraft takeoff and landing ~ FREEHERE K ABRE UL B 132,931,037 3.64%
Refund of the Civil Aviation Development Fund RimERESRERMAL - -100%
Total revenue from aviation business LEE X 7 A ON 709,389,882 -22.48%
Overview of Non-aviation Business FEM 2 R ARt
In 2019, the non-aviation business of the Group maintained good growth —ZT— A% AEBEIFMEEKEERFIRIINER
momentum and achieved annual revenue of RMB866,981,196, representing a year-  f&%% - 2 F FIRIEMEE B WA AR 866,981,196
on-year increase of 9.92%. Its proportion to the Group's total revenue reached 7T ° R LK 9.92% » FEAR & B E U A M5t E
55.00%. 55.00% -
In 2019, the Group sought to broaden its business thinking by developing new —NF - FEEBBARERES  BLREES

businesses and optimizing existing businesses. Hotel income recorded significant
increase due to the full operation of rooms and supporting facilities of Meilan
Airport Hotel; VIP room income recorded sustained growth due to the intensified
efforts made to expansion of Xinyi membership card business; the income from
freight business recorded sustained growth as the Group strengthened mail
agency business cooperation with SF Express and actively expanded direct mail
and all-cargo aircraft business cooperation. The non-aviation business of the Group
achieved good performance in revenue.

In 2019, the Group recorded franchise income of RMB412,800,059, representing
a year-on-year decrease of 1.05%; freight and packaging income reached
RMB102,646,801, representing a year-on-year increase of 5.63%; the revenue
from operating Meilan Airport Hotel amounted to RMB101,253,309, representing
a year-on-year increase of 227.07%; VIP room income reached RMB75,664,796,
representing a year-on-year increase of 83.84%; rental income reached
RMB74,783,568, representing a year-on-year decrease of 16.17%; car parking

income reached RMB 14,598,056, representing a year-on-year decrease of 45.53%.

BREWMEREERBERIA  —E—AFFR

B %*Eﬁﬁfﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁﬁ%\ﬁ% o RMBISEEE
FEREEREEEES  HERAKERA : KO
REBASEREL EFFWAFEER  INKREE
SRARMGFREXEHAE BRERRTEBULE
EREXBAE BEREEEBHEER - AEEFE
nZE FEUARS T REFAAE ©

—NF  AEEBFHCERBARTEARE
412,800,0597T * AL TFE1.056% : EE RBEWA
# AR®102,646,8017C © R KS5.63% @ &%
BB S e AR ¥ 101,253,309 @ LG R
227.07% : EEFWAZEARYT5,664,7967T © [
#1583.84% : HEWAEARY74,783,5687T * [t
TFE16.17% : REHBWRAEARY 14,598,056 * [
L B8 45.53% ©



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Amount Changes

(RMB) over 2018

K- B-_ZT-N\F

(AR¥%¥ ) #E

Franchise income (v S LN 412,800,059 -1.05%
Freight and packaging income BERBERA 102,646,801 5.63%
Hotel income B JE WA 101,253,309 227.07%
VIP room income EEZWA 75,664,796 83.84%
Rental income HLWA 74,783,568 -16.17%
Car parking income FEIFZWA 14,598,056 -45.53%
Other income E g A 85,234,607 -1.20%
Total revenue from non-aviation business IR EHEWRA 866,981,196 9.92%

Franchise Income

In 2019, the franchise income of the Group aggregated to RMB412,800,059,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 1.05%, which was mainly attributable to the
introduction of new partners via tender and adjustment of franchise fees according
to tender results by the Company due to the impact of market environment,
resulting in the decrease in the advertising franchise fees.

Freight and Packaging Income

In 2019, the freight and packaging income of the Group aggregated to
RMB102,646,801, representing a year-on-year increase of 5.63%, which was
mainly due to the sustained growth in income from freight business as the Group
strengthened mail agency business cooperation with SF Express and actively
expanded direct mail and all-cargo aircraft business cooperation.

Hotel Income

In 2019, the hotel income of the Group amounted to RMB101,253,309, representing
a year-on-year increase of 227.07%, which was mainly attributable to the significant
increase in income resulting from the full operation of rooms and supporting
facilities of Meilan Airport Hotel.

VIP Room Income

In 2019, the VIP room income of the Group amounted to RMB75,664,796,
representing a year-on-year increase of 83.84%, which was mainly attributable to
the significant increase in the VIP room income due to the increase in sales volume
of VIP card resulting from the intensified efforts made by the Company to promote
the sales of Xinyi membership card.

34

R ERIA

SToAS AEENFEEHEA R EARY
412,800,0597T ' AL TP&1.05% * T EEHRZ NS
BHEYE  ALRBHBEIAFNSER  LRE
REERARETGERE SRESSTGEEE
T -

EERBERA

ZE-NF  AEESERBERARFERARE
102,646,801 T * AL K5.63% @ TEE2HRARNEE
mEEIEL RN R MRERBERSE  BIRHARRG
HEHUREEREEEAE  BEREEEBRALE
®E -

B JE WA

ZE-NF - AEEHERAABARE101,253,309
T FAHIER227.07%  TERANKEE EXFHIS
BIEREREREEREEERAZ S RIRA KGN

BEEZEWA

ZE-NF  AEEEEERAABARKT5,664,796
o0 B ES3.84% FERANARRNBERERS
EFRHENE  SEFRHEEENEN  FTREEEWA
RURIE DN ©

HAINAN MEILAN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED b-)- ANNUAL REPORT 2019



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Rental Income

In 2019, the rental income of the Group amounted to RMB74,783,568, representing
a year-on-year decrease of 16.17%, which was mainly attributable to the no renewal
upon expiration of premises lease contracts with certain merchants because of the
effect of market environment during the year.

Car Parking Income

In 2019, the car parking income of the Group aggregated to RMB14,598,056,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 45.53%, which was mainly due to change
in the revenue recognition model resulting from the lease of the management rights
of parking lots of the Company.

Cling to Safe Production without Loosening

The Group regards safety operation as a “lifeline” for its entire existence and
development. In 2019, in response to the severe ongoing security situation and
based on the core concept of “zero tolerance for hidden dangers”, the Group
actively upgraded its own safety management by strengthening the following
aspects of its work:

The Group has formulated work procedures for long-term hidden danger
management and hidden danger lists, established quality supervision and review
work mechanisms to incorporate all safety hidden danger projects and problems
found in inspections, and implemented closed-loop management of special
personnel tracking, to prevent the vicious cycle of repeated rectification of certain
problems.

The Group achieved safety management system integration. In 2019, the Group
performed its statutory self-inspection responsibilities with high standards, strict
requirements and high efficiency, effectively promoted the statutory self-inspection
work, and initially formed a transform of safety management from heteronomy
to self-discipline. The Group deeply integrated the statutory self-inspection
requirements with SMS (Safety Management System), while synchronously
launching the third round of self-inspection, organically combining the statutory self-
inspection and the corporate internal safety supervision.

The Group performed accountability on safety. The Group required employees to
strengthen their awareness of responsibility, and managers to go deep into the
grassroots to identify and solve problems; established an active reporting and
relief mechanism, set up honorary titles such as quarterly advanced individuals and
annual security information administrators, to encourage all units to report actively
through the safety supervision platform; increased safety investment, and correctly
understood and handled the relationship between safety and efficiency.

B E A W oA

AL N

ZE-NF AEEHSBRARBARET74,783,568
7T R TFE16.17%  TERHNTHSREFE
AEEHISBRGHAEAR I PRERAE -

FEZEBA

ST-AF  AEEEEHBRARGERARY
14,598,0567T * [ALL T [#45.53% © ¥ BRARNAAA
EEBEERHE - WA RRIER BRI -

ENMZ2EETHER
AEERKBZ2EERRETRROEGR] - =
Z-NEF  HEUBBEBRROZRTS  ULZE2REZ
RRIBZRUER  REBEBEBIRM IHETLHE &
BT F R 2ERKF

BYRERMBGETEREFMEIEE  BumEE
MRBEZ RS BREZE2REREE  REHER
MEEAAES  BEARMARER  HEHRE
HoHRBEREERMNBERER -

o

EHLZ2ERBARS - —E—NE ALEBESE
ECBER BRERUMWEECELITEEEMT A
MEEETEETIR PR TLRE2EERME
HEENEE - BEArEE TIEERESMS(Safety
Management System * @& B IR X EITRERE -
VYTRFEHFE=—HREDL  HETAENPERDBLE

ERARES -

\

S
I+

B oo oo 5 o
B Y OF 88 o

F-AREEZRETRIEEFEEEH -
RAEE  BRMEE  BREE B TH
3 Bt RUTHREFTEREBA - FE
BERBRY  FERELBALER
THME  MALEHRA - EERBM
MR RR -

34 mh

el S S 1
i mR Om

mw—q

A o> e 3> W

b

33

5

EWEREERHVERAA P —T—NFER

e



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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In 2019, Meilan Airport closely followed the pace of industry credit management and
the CAAC regulatory reform, relied on the platform of airport safety management
committee, operated safety agreement constraints as guarantee, applied method
of integral warning of red and yellow cards, controlled by means of access to
resources in controlled area, fulfilled the main responsibility and coordination
responsibility of the airport by enhancing the management of on-site units; further
strengthened “air defense, physical defense, technical defense” to supplement
shortcomings and achieve overall prevention and control and resolve outstanding
risks; and improved various management and control systems by enhancing fine
management to improve the quality of security management and brand influence of
Meilan Airport.

Raising the Quality of Service from the Inside Out

In 2019, the Group implemented the special action work of “Key Difficulty-
overcoming Tasks for Service Quality of Civil Aviation” in all respects and thoroughly
implemented 9 convenient service measures in-depth. Focusing on deepening
and improving the service management system, it comprehensively promoted
service quality and brand enhancement by improving the punctuality rate of flights,
continuously improving catering services at Meilan Airport, standardizing baggage

transportation services, and improving passenger transfer service experience, etc.

A new complaint management mechanism was established to complete the
connection with the management system of Civil Aviation Consumer Affairs Center,
and a complaint system which is available for access three times a day by special
personnel of the CAAC was set up to ensure timely response and timely processing;
the “Management Measures for Complaint of Meilan Airport” ({(GEBI# 5183 & 12
##%)) was reorganized and promulgated to divide the functions of the complaint
management organization, clarify the classification and acceptance channels of
complaints, and specify the customer complaint handling routines and requirements,
etc., to constrain the complaints handling procedures of various departments and
links from system level; and the construction of a visual system for passenger
services was promoted. The system includes a complaint management module,
which effectively promotes the efficiency and professionalization of complaint
management, and improves the efficiency and quality of complaint handling.

In 2019, Meilan Airport obtained three awards, i.e. the “Award for Public Welfare
Practice of 2018", the “Outstanding Corporation of Social Responsibility Award
2019" and the “Demonstration Case Award of '‘Beautiful China’ Ecological
Civilization Construction”, indicating that the Company has taken the social
responsibility bravely during its development and has been fully recognized by all
sectors of society. Meilan Airport will continue to give feedback to the society

through public welfare activities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Asset Analysis

As at 31 December 2019, the total assets of the Group amounted to
RMB11,456,162,938, representing a year-on-year increase of 29.21%, among
which, current assets amounted to RMB2,033,877,055, representing approximately
17.75% of the total assets; non-current assets amounted to RMB9,422,285,883,
representing approximately 82.25% of the total assets.

Capital Structure

The major objective of the Group's capital management is to ensure the ability of
ongoing operations and to maintain a healthy capital ratio in order to support its
business and maximize shareholders’ interests. The Group continued to emphasize
the appropriate mix of equity and debt to ensure an efficient capital structure to
reduce capital cost.

As at 31 December 2019, the interest-bearing debts of the Group mainly include
bank loans, finance lease payable and entrusted loans payable (the “total
borrowings"”), amounting to approximately RMB2,938,621,385, and cash and cash
equivalents were approximately RMB1,511,749,849.

The gearing ratio (total borrowings/total equity) of the Group was 21.69% as at 31
December 2019 (31 December 2018: 32.57%).

The Group maintained a balanced portfolio of loans at fixed interest rates and
variable rates to manage interest expenses. As at 31 December 2019, the Group's
syndicated loan (“Syndicated Loan") contract is denominated in Renminbi with a
floating rate, of which the amount is RMB1.944 billion.

The Group aimed to keep the balance between the continuity and flexibility of
funds by capitalizing on its total borrowings. As at 31 December 2019, 100% of
the Group's total borrowings will become due within one year. As at 31 December
2019, the Group's total borrowings were denominated in Renminbi and US dollars,
of which, the amount denominated in US dollars accounted for approximately
17.80% of the total borrowings, while cash and cash equivalents were held in
Renminbi and US dollars, of which, the cash and cash equivalents held in US dollars
accounted for approximately 0.04% of the total amount.
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Costs Analysis

The operation cost, selling expenses and administrative expenses of the
Group aggregated to RMB799,162,402 in 2019, representing an increase of
RMB12,496,708 or 1.59% as compared to that of 2018. Information on items with
large changes in cost and expense for the year is as follows:

(1) the employee salary and welfare expenses of the Group for the year
increased by RMB17,603,869 as compared with that of the corresponding
period of 2018, mainly due to the increased labor costs resulting from the
personnel reserve in advance for the operation of the Phase |l Expansion
Project;

(2)  the maintenance costs of the Group for the year decreased by RMB9,933,843
as compared with that of the corresponding period of 2018, mainly due
to the decrease in maintenance activities for the year after completion of
maintenance and renovation of equipment and facilities of Meilan Airport up
to the standard of a five-star airport in prior years;

(3)  the operating expense of VIP rooms of the Group for the year increased by
RMB6,942,526 as compared with that of the corresponding period of 2018,
mainly due to an increase in sales volume of Xinyi membership card, which
resulted in the increase in the relevant costs; and

(4)  the airport and logistic comprehensive services fee of the Group for the year
increased by RMB5,206,026 as compared with that of the corresponding
period of 2018, mainly due to the expansion of area of greening and
environmental maintenance after the putting into use of the terminal
complex.

In 2019, the financial income of the Group amounted to RMB14,041,631 (2018:
finance expenses of RMB120,021,798). The change is mainly attributable to the
decrease in interest expenses resulting from repayments of matured debts by the
Group during the year and more capitalisation of interests along with the increase of
construction in progress during the year.

Cash Flow

In 2019, the Group's net cash inflow from operating activities was RMB831,278,036,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 32.15%, which was mainly because the
refund of the Civil Aviation Development Fund was not received during the year.

In 2019, the Group's net cash outflow for investing activities was RMB686,983,411,
which was mainly attributable to payments for the construction of the Phase Il
Expansion Project.

In 2019, the Group's net cash inflow from financing activities was
RMB1,265,007,011,
Syndicated Loan for the Phase Il Expansion Project during the year.

which was mainly attributable to the draw-down of the
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Pledge of Assets

As mentioned in the Company’s announcement dated 1 February 2018, the
Company and the Parent Company, as co-borrowers, pledged the land use rights
and buildings owned by the Company and the Parent Company as security to secure
the Syndicated Loan of RMB7.8 billion from CDB Hainan Branch , ICBC Hainan
Branch and ABC Hainan Branch, as co-lenders, for a period of 20 years, which shall
be solely used for the construction of the airport project of the Phase Il Expansion
Project.

Accounts Receivable

As at 31 December 2019, the accounts receivable and other receivables of the
Group amounted to RMB504,360,108, representing an increase of 31.04% as
compared with the end of the previous year.

Details of the accounts receivable and other receivables of the Group are set out
in Note 4(2) and Note 4(4) to the financial statements. Policy for the accounts
receivable and their impairment is set out in Note 2(9)(a)(ii) to the financial
statements.

Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2019, current assets of the Group were RMB2,033,877,055,
total assets were RMB11,456,162,938, current liabilities were RMB5,147,193,063,
and total liabilities were RMB6,303,572,204.

As at 31 December 2019, the gearing ratio (total liabilities/total assets) of the Group
was 55.02%, representing an increase of 6.59% over that as at 31 December 2018,
which was mainly attributable to the increase in the borrowings during the year.

Foreign Exchange Risks

The businesses of the Group are principally conducted in Renminbi, except
certain aviation revenue, purchase of equipment and consulting service fee
which are denominated in US dollars or Hong Kong dollars. During the year,
the Group borrowed a loan denominated in US dollars from Aero Infrastructure
Investment Company Limited to meet capital requirements. As at 31 December
2019, the balance of the loan was US$75,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB523,215,000). The principal and interest of the aforesaid loan will be settled in
US dollars. Therefore, fluctuations in the foreign exchange rate of RMB against US
dollars will affect the financial performance of the Group. The Group has not entered
into any forward contracts to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange risks.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Financial Instruments

As at 31 December 2019, financial instruments of the Group mainly included bank
loans, cash and bank deposits. The purpose of these financial instruments is to
finance the Group's operations. Besides, the Group had other financial instruments
in relation to daily operations, such as receivables (excluding prepayments) and
payables (excluding statutory liabilities).

Contingent Liability
Save for the arrangement of the Syndicated Loan, as at 31 December 2019, the
Group had no other significant contingent liability.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD AND THEIR
PERFORMANCES

As of 31 December 2019, the Company held 24.5% equity interests in Hainan
Airlines Airport Holding (Group) Company Limited (“Airport Holding"). During the
year ended 31 December 2019, the Company recorded an investment income of
RMB6,847,978 from share of net profit attributable to the shareholders of Airport
Holding.

Set out below are the details:
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Airport Holding IR 2450 11.97 6,847,978 (7,240,191) 6,526,547  1370,744,642  1,364,610,308  1,011,715,103
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Airport Holding is mainly engaged in businesses in the PRC such as airport operation
and management and ground handling services related to the air transportation at
home and abroad, airport investment, airport transformation, warehousing (non-
hazardous cargo), and technical cooperation, consulting and services of domestic
and overseas air transportation in the PRC. The investment in Airport Holding is
conducive for the Group to strengthen its main business capabilities, helping it
expand its business scale as well as enhance its core competitiveness, safeguarding
the sustainable development of the Group with a solid guarantee, and to base its
own business in Hainan for a broader range of business across the country.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATED COMPANIES AND
JOINT VENTURES

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company did not carry out any major
acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries, associated companies or joint ventures.

FUTURE MATERIAL INVESTMENT AND
EXPECTED SOURCE OF FUND

On 21 August 2015, the Company and the Parent Company entered into an
investment and construction agreement (the “Investment and Construction
Agreement”), pursuant to which, the Company agreed to provide funds, amounting
to approximately RMB7.158 billion, to the airport project of the Phase Il Expansion
Project (the “Construction Project”). The sources of fund for the unfinished part of
the Construction Project are expected to be as follows:

(1) On 1 February 2018, the Company and the Parent Company, as co-borrowers,
entered into an agreement in relation to a long-term borrowing of RMB7.8
billion with CDB Hainan Branch, ICBC Hainan Branch and ABC Hainan Branch,
as co-lenders. According to the loan allocation agreement, the Company
will secure a long-term loan facility of RMB3.9 billion, the amount not yet
withdrawn is RMB1.956 billion, which shall be used for the construction of
the Construction Project; and

(2)  The Company will use part of its working capital generated from its operation
activities to support the Construction Project.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2019, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIEE R kT

CHANGE OF DIRECTORS

The Board of the Company comprises eleven directors (the “Directors”). During
the period from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019, changes in the directorship
of the Company are as follows:

Mr. Wang Hong had taken over the role of executive Director of Mr. Tu Haidong
from 3 June 2019, with a term of 3 years. His appointment was approved at the
annual general meeting held on 3 June 2019.

Mr. Wang Hexin has served as an executive Director since 3 June 2019, with a
term of 3 years. His appointment was approved at the annual general meeting held
on 3 June 2019. Mr. Liao Hongyu resigned as a non-executive Director on the same
day.

CHANGE OF SUPERVISORS

The supervisory committee of the Company (the “Supervisory Committee”) is
composed of three supervisors (the “Supervisors”). During the period from 1
January 2019 to 31 December 2019, change in the Supervisors of the Company is
as follows:

Mr. Liao Hongyu had taken over the role of independent representative Supervisor
of Mr. Yang Xiao from 3 June 2019, with a term of three years, which was approved
at the annual general meeting held on 3 June 2019, and he was elected as the
chairman of the Supervisory Committee on the same day.

CHANGE OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

During the period from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019, change in the senior
management of the Company is as follows:

In accordance with the actual working requirements of the Company, Mr. Wang
Hong had taken over the role of the president of the Company of Mr. Tu Haidong
from 25 March 2019, which was approved at the second meeting of the seventh
session of the Board held on 25 March 2019.

CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES

Mr. Wang Hong, an executive Director, ceased to serve as the deputy general
manager of the Parent Company in July 2019 and has served as the general
manager of the Parent Company since July 2019.

Mr. Deng Tianlin, an independent non-executive Director, ceased to serve as an
independent director of Hainan Airlines Holding Co., Ltd. (8 F 1= A (7 B R A
7)), which is listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 600221.SH; HNA
B Shares: 900945), in October 2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Mr. Fung Ching, Simon, an independent non-executive Director, ceased to serve
as the chief financial officer and company secretary of Greentown China Holdings
Limited (#7387 BI3EA& B BR A 7)), which is listed on the main board of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 3900.HK), in December 2019, and has served as
the chief financial officer of Logan Property Holdings Company Limited (8 Yt Hb Z= 15
f&AEBR A7), which is listed on the main board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
(Stock Code: 3380.HK), since January 2020.

Save as disclosed above, during the year ended 31 December 2019 and as of
the date of publication of this annual report, there were no other changes in the
Directors, Supervisors and chief executive of the Company, and the Company is
not aware of any other changes in the information of the Company's Directors,
Supervisors or chief executive which are required to be disclosed in accordance
with Rule 13.51B (1) of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

Employment, Remuneration Policy and Training

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had a total of 1,010 employees, representing
a year-on-year increase of 118 employees, which was mainly due to the increase
in business volume and the personnel reserve for the Phase Il Expansion Project,
resulting in the Company's increased labor demand. Employees are remunerated by
the Group based on their performance, experience and prevailing industry practices.
The Group will review the remuneration policy and related packages on a regular
basis. Bonuses and commissions may be awarded to employees according to the
assessment of their performance. The Group provided adequate trainings based on
the requirement of the positions of employees, with an aim to upgrade the talent of
employees. A total of 117 courses under the training scheme were completed, and
6,548 staffs participated in such courses.

Retirement Pension

The Company and its subsidiaries shall participate in the retirement scheme
operated by the relevant local governmental institutions. The PRC government
shall be responsible for the pension of the retired employees. The Group has to
make a contribution at a certain percentage of the salary of the employees with
permanent residence in the PRC (according to the retirement pension policies in
Hainan Province, the contribution ratio from January to April 2019 was 19%, while
the contribution ratio from May to December 2019 was adjusted to 16%). Once
the Group contributes to the retirement scheme, the employer’s contribution
is fully owned by the employees. For the year ended 31 December 2019, the
pension contribution of the Group was approximately RMB15,906,371 (2018:
RMB16,428,220).
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Accelerate the promotion of the construction
Of free-trade port in Hainan,
cm%ﬂerxaw%Mﬂgh&3ofopenwmgup!
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Central Committee of the Communist Party of China officially released the “China (Hainan)
Pilot Free Trade Zone General Plan” ((FEI(EFE)EHE SR BEEIE X)) (the “Plan”)
on 16 October 2018. The Plan required Hainan to give full play to the overall advantages of
the island-wide pilot program, focus on the construction of Comprehensive Deepening of
Reforms and Opening Up of Pilot Zones, the National Ecological Civilization Experimental
Zones, the International Tourism Consumption Center and the National Major Strategic
Service Support Zones, implement a more proactive opening up strategy, accelerate the
building of a new system of an open economy, promote a new pattern of all-round opening
up, and build Hainan into an important gateway for China’'s opening up to the Pacific and
Indian oceans.

2018107168 + A HAREKREXNE(FR(EH) BEHEFAREAEFTR) (KF
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Comprehensive Deepening of -

Reforms and Opening Up of ;
Pilot Zones o
T HAR R EREE SRR

Vigorously promote the spirit of the special zone of dare to break new
ground and try new things, dare to be a pioneer, work hard, take the
lead in reforming the economic system, innovating social governance,
etc. Adapt to the new situation of economic globalization, implement a
more proactive strategy of opening up, explore the establishment of a
new system of an open economy, and build Hainan into an important
gateway for China’s opening up to the Pacific and Indian oceans.
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National Ecological Civilization
Experimental Zones
— BIRAERRNEABRRE

Firmly establish and practice the concept of “green mountains and
clear water are our invaluable assets”, unswervingly follow the path
of civilized development with production development, prosperous
life and sound ecological environment, promote a new pattern of
modernization with harmonious development between human and
nature, and explore new experience in promoting ecological progress
throughout the country.

FEBZMBITAOKT LR ILRIINES - BE B ELESR
B EAER  LFRRHOXABRER ?Eibﬁ/}iz/\iﬁiﬁﬁ%ﬂ‘“%é
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International Tourism
Consumption Center
RIR B2 E & PO

Vigorously promote the open up of tourism consumption field, actively
foster new hot spots for tourism consumption, make great efforts to
improve the quality of services and the level of internationalization,
and build an international tourist destination with rich business forms,
brand clusters, comfortable environment and distinctive features.

RAHEREHE BR AR - BEEEREHEBHAR - TAR
NRFARGEAENFEBRKT TEXREE  REKE  BREEF
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National Major Strategic Service
_ Support Zones
K B RE R RIFRIE R

Fully integrate the major strategies such as building the “Marine
Power Construction” (8)¥3%8E), developing the “One Belt and One
Road” (—#—#) and developing the Civil-Military Integration, and
comprehensively strengthen the building of support and guarantee
ability. Effectively fulfill the important missions assigned by the CPC
central committee and enhance Hainan's position and function in
China's strategic landscape.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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The Company has been in compliance with all the rules prescribed by the CSRC and
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, as well as requirements of other regulatory bodies.
The Company has adopted a code on corporate governance practices on terms no
less exacting than the standard of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(the "CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, which came into
effect in January 2005 and has been amended from time to time and established a
series of corporate governance systems in accordance with relevant requirements
to continuously improve the corporate governance structure.

Pursuant to the code provision A.4.2 of the CG Code, every director, including those
appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years. According to the articles of association of the Company
(the “Articles of Association”), Directors and Supervisors shall hold term of office
of three years from the date of election, and may stand for re-election upon the
expiry of their term of office. The respective terms of office of Mr. Chan Nap Kee,
Joseph and Mr. Yan Xiang, the non-executive Directors, Mr. Fung Ching, Simon
and Mr. George F Meng, the independent non-executive Directors, and Mr. Zhang
Shusheng, the independent Supervisor, have expired on 29 December 2019. As
the nomination process of the Directors and Supervisors of the Company has not
been completed and successors of certain Directors and Supervisors are still under
consideration, the Company failed to complete the re-election/election before
the expiration of the terms of office of the above Directors and Supervisor. Such
Directors and Supervisor will continue to perform their duties until the re-election/
election is completed.

Save for the deviation disclosed above, during the year ended 31 December 2019,
the Company had complied with the CG Code and all governance and disclosure
requirements.

The Company is well aware that good corporate governance is an important
prerequisite for sustainable development, continuous improvement of the
Company's value and safeguarding shareholders’ rights and interests. In the future,
the Company will adhere to good and prudent governance style and continuously
enhance the corporate governance standards to achieve efficient management and
standardized operation.

46

RRR—AHANET P BEEESME BTN
BRE URHEMEEHRBRTE - ARRERN—E
TMERZZERF - AERREETRETH LEHR
RIS+ B (R EEIR B R TAD B EE AR
PRI ((REERTA))  WREBHEBERELT — X
FIRRERNIE - TE TS REERLEE -

RIBOEEATRSTAGXEA4 2GMRTE  BEE
E(BRHAREEHNER) ERRERE  E0E8=F
—R o REARFAAER) (((RRAER) DORTE
ESREFEEH-F(ERREEZARE)  THE
o ATAEEET - SETTERRUEEERKIL
£ BUFRTESBLEEERLEREE - UE
VESFRIEAERANEHER -_T-NAF+ A
THAHER ARARFNEEREFRLEF M
AREREMAEEREFTNBEARHETES - K
RAREELREEREEEHERA TREER, 8

MBI ERKER BRI ZEEEREFH
BEBITHERE -

BEiREEN  BE-Z-AF+-_A=+—B1H
FEEHE ARTEETLESATE  XRAER
MIETEHTE -

RATFRE > RIFWAT E%QTTﬁﬁﬁﬁ

%hﬂ ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁh%%ﬁ\ DR %X
AARBEERFERBEA/EER T%k%
APREAKE  LERSRERE - REBEE -

HAINAN MEILAN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED b-)- ANNUAL REPORT 2019



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

/\\//\—h—\

PEEBME

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE EREE

The committees under the Board are established in accordance with the relevant ZEFE FTEBZE2HRBLTHANRTERE &%
rules prescribed in the Listing Rules. Each of the chairmen of the committees is B & EEHRBIIERITE ST -

served by an independent non-executive Director.

Hainan Meilan International Airport
Company Limited

BREEWEREEBROERDH

Audit Remuneration Nomination Strategic
Committee Committee Committee Committee
EREEY FMEESE REZEY BEREEY

The Company’s corporate governance function is carried out by the Board pursuant A AR EEABERESSEROEEA %“EUE’J
to a set of written terms of reference adopted in compliance with Code Provision 5T B H‘*X%D NG —EZEBESEH T
D.3.1 of the CG Code which includes: REIE

(a)  to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate  (a) #IFE RS AA TN DEEAHENER
governance;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development (b)) BN ERERERZELSREEAENEIREES
of the Directors and senior management of the Company; HERRE

(c)  to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance  (¢) 1N RERAAREHEPLEERESHTIEN
with legal and regulatory requirements; B &%%ﬁ ;

(d)  to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual  (d) #IF - B RERANEERE NEE@EANERST
applicable to employees of the Group and the Directors; and ERIREHRFM: &

(e)  to review the Company's compliance with the CG Code and disclosure inthe  (e) @i ARTETAEE S TANBRRECEE
corporate governance report. JATRE AR EE o

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board has fulfilled the aforesaid #®HZE-ZE—HNE+-_A=+—BHIFE EESCE
corporate governance responsibility. The Board has reviewed the compliance 1T HIMMEEARE - EF 2RI AR AINREZE
with the CG Code of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2019 and this ZT—HAE+=-A=+—HIFEFEFLEEETEIH
corporate governance report. BRRARTEERRE -
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DIRECTOR’S SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions on terms no less exacting than the required standard set out in the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code"”). Having made specific enquiry of all the Directors, the Company confirmed
that, all the Directors have complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code and the code of conduct of the Company regarding directors’ securities
transactions during the year ended 31 December 2019.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The Board comprises eleven Directors, including five executive Directors
("Executive Directors”), two non-executive Directors (“Non-executive Directors”)
and four independent non-executive Directors (“Independent Non-executive
Directors”).

The Company has complied with the requirement of the Listing Rules for
comprising at least three Independent Non-executive Directors and that the number
of Independent Non-executive Directors accounts for at least one third of the
members of the Board and at least one of the Independent Non-executive Directors
shall have appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The members of the Board well acknowledge their responsibilities and obligations
and treat equally to all of the shareholders. In order to safeguard all of the investors’
interest, the Company ensures to provide the documents and information in
relation to the Company's operations to members of the Board in a timely manner.
Independent Non-executive Directors act on their duties in accordance with relevant
laws and regulations to safeguard the interest of the Company and shareholders as
a whole.
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As at 31 December 2019 and as of the date of this annual report, the Board

comprised eleven Directors:

Chairman
Mr. Wang Zhen
(duly appointed on 10 October 2018)

Executive Directors
Mr. Wang Zhen

(duly appointed on 10 October 2018)
Mr. Wang Hong

(duly appointed on 3 June 2019)
Mr. Wang Hexin

(duly appointed on 3 June 2019)
Mr. Xing Zhoujin

(duly appointed on 16 March 2018)
Mr. Yu Yan

(duly appointed on 3 December 2018)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chan Nap Kee, Joseph
(re-appointed on 30 December 2016)
Mr. Yan Xiang
(re-appointed on 30 December 2016)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Deng Tianlin
(re-appointed on 16 October 2017)
Mr. Fung Ching, Simon
(re-appointed on 30 December 2016)
Mr. George F Meng
(re-appointed on 30 December 2016)
Mr. He Linji
(re-appointed on 25 May 2018)

There is no relationship among the Directors that is disclosable.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2019.

The Board is responsible for presenting a clear and understandable assessment of
the Company’s performance in annual reports, interim reports and other financial
disclosures required by the Listing Rules. The senior management of the Company
has provided sufficient explanation and information to the Board as necessary to
enable the Board to carry out an informed assessment of the financial information
and position of the Company in order to put forward such information to the Board
for approval.

For the material uncertainties related to going concern, please refer to "Extract of
Independent Auditor's Report" on page 161 of this annual report.

PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT

The Board believes that regular assessment of the Board's performance is
important and beneficial for improving the operations. In 2019, the Board has
conducted assessment on its performance.
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BOARD MEETINGS EEE =
The Board had held 6 meetings during the year ended 31 December 2019, HEZZT-NWF+ZA=+—HILARAHXEH
including the first to the fifth session of the seventh congress of the Board, NAEFEEE  PESELESE KX - %tﬁ
and the one meeting held by the chairman of the Board with the Independent FRAREFELH  RESFSEFEBIIENT
Non-executive Directors without the presence of other Directors. ESRTN—RNLBEMESLENEE -
2. The attendance records of the Directors in the Board meetings and the 2. EBEZHFEZECCHNBRRSSEMNER
general meetings:
Number of Not attending
Board any meeting
meetings Attendance in person
they should by audio fortwo  Attendance
Independent attend  Attendance orvideo  Attendance consecutive of general
ornot  forthe year inperson  conferencing by proxy Absence times meeting
RBER R
BE  AEESh L] USCE B it WRARE LEYN-1
Name of Directors BEig BUEE  ETERY HERE HERE HRERH HERE SNER ighifeg:s
Wang Zhen SE g No & 6 6 0 0 0 No & 100%
Wang Hong (Note 1) () No & 3 3 0 0 0 No & 100%
Tu Haidong (former) (Note 1) /%/iﬁ( A1) (i EE1) No & 2 1 1 0 0 No & 100%
Wang Hexin (Note 2) TEMMF) No & 3 2 1 0 0 No & 100%
Liao Hongyu (former) (Note 2)  BX4T (A (HfzE2) No & 2 1 1 0 0 No & 100%
YuYan 5@ H No & 5 5 0 0 0 No & 100%
Xing Zhoujin A% NoZ& 5 5 0 0 0 No & 100%
Chan Nap Kee, Joseph BiE No & 5 3 2 0 0 No & 100%
Yan Xiang % 9 No & 5 5 0 0 0 No & 100%
Deng Tianlin BXH Yes & 6 5 1 0 0 No & 100%
Fung Ching, Simon & 1t Yes & 6 5 1 0 0 No & 100%
George F Meng LEE Yes & 6 5 1 0 0 No % 100%
He Linji RS Yes & 6 6 0 0 0 No & 100%
Notes: B5E -

Mr. Tu Haidong ceased to be an Executive Director on 3 June 2019. Mr. Wang Hong
took over the role of Mr. Tu Haidong as an Executive Director on 3 June 2019 and
attended for the third session of the seventh congress of the Board held on 18 August
2019 for the first time of attendance of the Board meeting.

Mr. Liao Hongyu ceased to be a Non-executive Director on 3 June 2019. Mr. Wang
Hexin was appointed as an Executive Director on 3 June 2019 and attended for the third
session of the seventh congress of the Board held on 18 August 2019 for the first time
of attendance of the Board meeting.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company provided monthly update
information to all the members of the Board in respect of the operation situation,
financial positions, major monthly events as well as the monthly disclosure of the
Company.

The Company encourages the Directors to participate in the continuous professional
development in order to develop and update their knowledge and skills. The
Company also actively organized relevant training in order to make sure that the
Directors make contribution to the Company with extensive information and
satisfaction.

The Company made out registration forms, training records and training certificates
to assist the Directors recording the courses they have participated in. For the year
ended 31 December 2019, the summarized training records of the Directors are as
follows:

EEEI

BE-$ At A=t BLER F2TAK
FERMABRKABALNEEEEER - HHMR
b fesiiaris g ploli

EAN/N T%‘iﬁ"fﬁb%%%éﬁiﬁﬁﬁi %ELA?&E’&I
B E AL © TJ‘TI%%%%E%WHEQ zll
L‘M&ﬁ%%&ﬂﬁ%@%%&fﬂ’a\ﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁ’ﬂ’\%ERT%%
ESHMEER

RRARREFMNEERR - BIREENIEIIEE R
PEFDBMMA2ENEIRE - BE_T—NF
TZA=T—RIEFE - EREXIEIIE S0
T

Integrity Grand
Major relevant responsibility compliance and
laws and requirements for comprehensive
regulations of Directors in Connected Corporate risk management
Hong Kong Listing Rules Transactions Governance of the airport
LR A RERUR
hHES BiE2E
TERHEN WS BRER
BREEER BERER BERS TEER =4
Executive Directors BiTEE
Wang Zhen T g v v V \ \
Wang Hong T % v v v V \
Wang Hexin TEH v v V V \
Yu Yan B = v v v \ \
Xing Zhoujin A v v V \ J
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Chan Nap Kee, Joseph B E v v N
Yan Xiang P v v \
Independent Non-executive BYFHITES
Directors
Deng Tianlin R v v v V \
Fung Ching, Simon B fE v v v V \
George F Meng LEBR v v v v \
He Linji BEa v v v v J

(Note: The above trainings were organized by the office of the Board, together with the Hong
Kong legal advisor of the Company and PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian LLP. The
trainings were held at Multi-function Hall A, Haikou Meilan Airport Hotel, Haikou, Hainan
Province on 18 August 2019, with a total of ten courses. The training courses aim at
strengthening the understanding of the Directors, Supervisors and senior management
of the Company to the concept and practice of laws and regulations and corporate
governance of Hong Kong, in order to improve the standardization of operations,
enhance the level of corporate governance and internal control.)
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DUTIES OF THE BOARD AND THE MANAGEMENT

Details of terms of reference of the Board and the management and the respective
areas to exercise their authority are set out in the Articles of Association:

The Board is accountable to the general meeting and shall exercise the following
duties and powers:

1.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

to be responsible for convening general meetings and report on its work to
the meeting;

to implement the resolutions of the general meetings;

to decide on the business and investment plans;

to formulate the Company’s proposed annual financial budget and final
accounts;

to formulate the Company's proposals for distribution of profits and recovery
of losses;

to formulate proposals for the increase or reduction of the Company’s
registered capital, the issue of corporate bonds and other securities, and

listing;

to prepare plans for the merger, division, dissolution or change in corporate
form of the Company;

to decide on the Company's internal management structure;

to appoint or dismiss the Company's general manager and the secretary to
the Board, and based on the general manager’s recommendation, to appoint
or dismiss deputy general manager and other senior management personnel
of the Company, and to decide on their remuneration;

to formulate the Company’s basic management system;

to formulate the plan to amend the Articles of Association;

to prepare the Company's plans for major acquisition or disposal;

to evaluate and determine the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to
take in achieving the Company’s strategic objectives;

to ensure the establishment and maintenance of appropriate and effective
risk management and internal control systems;

to oversee management in the design, implementation and monitoring of the
risk management and internal control systems;
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16. to make proposals to the general meeting on the appointment,

re-appointment or dismissal of accounting firms undertaking the audit of the
Company; and

other powers conferred by the Articles of Association and the general
meeting.

The Board has established the audit committee, nomination committee,
remuneration committee and strategic committee. Each of these committees has
established its own written terms of reference and operates effectively on the set
procedures.

The management of the Company can decide the following matters:

1.

10.

preside over the Company’s management work in production and operation
and to organize and implement Board resolutions;

organize and implement the Company's annual operational plan and
investment strategy;

formulate the Company’s plan for installing internal management structure;

formulate the Company’s basic management system;

formulate the Company’s basic regulations;

offer suggestion to hire or dismiss deputy general managers and other senior
management personnel of the Company (including the chief financial officer);

design, implement and monitor the risk management and internal control
systems;

provide a confirmation to the Board on the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems;

hire and dismiss management staff who fall outside the scope of the Board's
hiring and dismissal powers; and

exercise other powers conferred by the Articles of Association and the Board.

Both the Board and the management act in strict compliance with relevant
requirements of the Company Law of the PRC (the "Company Law"), the Articles of
Association and the Listing Rules.
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CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD AND PRESIDENT

The chairman of the Company is responsible for development direction and
effective running of the Board, and ensuring the Board to act in the best interests of
the Company.

The president of the Company is accountable to the Board, and is delegated with
the responsibility for running the Company’s business and implementing the
resolutions of the Board.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the position of chairman of the Company
was held by Mr. Wang Zhen, an Executive Director, and the position of president
was held by Mr. Tu Haidong (from 1 January 2019 to 24 March 2019) and Mr.
Wang Hong (from 25 March 2019 to the date of this annual report) successively,
both being the Executive Directors. The division of their duties was set out clearly
in the Articles of Association. Their terms of reference are clean and there is
no relationship in relation to finance, business and kinship between them. The
governance structure of the Company established well and clear.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

As of 31 December 2019, the Company had two Non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Chan Nap Kee, Joseph and Mr. Yan Xiang, and four Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Deng Tianlin, Mr. Fung Ching, Simon, Mr. George F Meng
and Mr. He Linji.

Mr. Chan Nap Kee, Joseph's current term of appointment is from 30 December
2016 to 29 December 2019;

Mr. Yan Xiang's current term of appointment is from 30 December 2016 to 29
December 2019;

Mr. Deng Tianlin's current term of appointment is from 16 October 2017 to 15
October 2020;

Mr. Fung Ching, Simon's current term of appointment is from 30 December 2016 to
29 December 2019;

Mr. George F Meng's current term of appointment is from 30 December 2016 to 29
December 2019; and

Mr. He Linji's current term of appointment is from 25 May 2018 to 24 May 2021.
Each of the Non-executive Directors, Independent Non-executive Directors and

Supervisors has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company with a term
of three years.
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The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence from each
of the Independent Non-executive Directors according to the Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company considers that each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors is still independent.

Mr. Fung Ching, Simon currently has served more than fifteen years as an
Independent Non-executive Director in the Company and Mr. George F Meng has
served more than twelve years as an Independent Non-executive Director in the
Company. The Company confirms that Mr. Fung Ching, Simon and Mr. George F
Meng still meet the independence requirements set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and have a deep understanding of the Group’s operation. Based on such,
the Company believes that Mr. Fung Ching, Simon and Mr. George F Meng are still
independent of the Group and will continue to make contribution to the Company.

COMPANY SECRETARY

All the Directors have the access to the advice and services of the company
secretary of the Company (Mr. Xing Zhoujin). The company secretary shall report
to the chairman on the corporate governance of the Board and shall be responsible
for ensuring the compliance with relevant Board procedures and facilitating the
communication among the Directors, shareholders and the management. For the
year ended 31 December 2019, the company secretary has received over 15 hours
of professional training for skill and knowledge updates.

INSURANCE ARRANGEMENT

According to the Code Provision A.1.8 of the CG Code, an issuer should arrange
appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal action against its directors. The
Company has arranged the liability insurance for the Directors, the Supervisors and
other senior management.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Company's risk management and internal control systems are featured with a
defined management structure with limits of authority and well-rounded policies and
procedures, and are designed to facilitate effective and efficient operations, ensure
reliability of financial reporting and comply with applicable laws and regulations, to
identify and manage potential risks, and to safeguard the assets of the Company.

Such systems are designed to manage, rather than eliminate, the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board is responsible for assessing and determining the nature and extent of
the acceptable risks to take when pursuing strategic goals, and shall assure the
establishment and maintenance of a suitable and effective risk management and
internal control system. Moreover, the Board shall oversee the process of design,
implementation and inspection of such system carried out by the management,
while the management shall give feedback to the Board as to whether the system
works. The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee") will conduct
annual examination on the system on behalf of the Board.
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To ensure the work is carried out effectively, the Company has built a risk
management and internal control work team, which is organized by the
compliance and legal department of the Company to conduct the review of the risk
management and internal control processes for the year of 2019.

Risk Management

To maintain the efficiency of the risk management and internal control system,
under the supervision and guidance of the Board, the Company has established the
framework of risk management as below:
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The Company has formulated the "Risk Management Operation Manual of Hainan
Meilan International Airport Company Limited" (/& & 3 8 BIFR 2= B R% (0 AR A 7 &
% & IR EFM)), making clear that the following four steps shall be carried out for
risk assessment:

Step 1: Project initiation — the management of the Company initiates the risk
assessment project and prepares to carry out risk assessment activities.

Step 2: Risk recognition — recognize the risks confronting the Company and its
subsidiaries.

Step 3: Risk analysis — carry out risk analysis from the aspect of the influence
degree and possibility of occurrence, assess current risk management measures
and decide whether to take further measures to make risk management acceptable.

Step 4: Risk report — summarize the result of risk assessment and analysis, and
make plans.

In 2019, the Company continuously implemented the “Special Project on Risk
Management and Internal Control System” (“Special Project”) and will implement
the Special Project every year regularly in the future, in a bid to build a regulatory
environment of risk control and standardized operation for the Company.

For the purpose of continuous improvements on the existing risk management
and internal control system of the Company, including but not limited to business
operations, financial affairs and legal compliance. In December 2019, based on the
existing risk management database, the Company decided on the range of risk-
screening for 2019 through comprehensive consideration of the overall performance
of each department. In the light of the scientific analysis of the recognized risks,
questionnaires and workshops in relation to risk management and internal control
were targeted at the senior management and business executives to help with the
understanding in the probability and degree of those risks so that the critical risks at
company level may be identified.

The work group of risk management and internal control assists the management of
the Company in making the risk-oriented self-report study, guide senior managers
to carry out self-assessment and collect the result of the assessment. The
management of the Company reviews the self-assessment of senior management;
makes a general assessment of the effectiveness of the Company's internal control
system; and submits the written confirmation to the Audit Committee and the
Board on behalf of the senior management team of the Company.
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Process for Inside Information Handling and Disclosing

and Internal Control Measures

In handling inside information, the Company adheres to the Guidelines on Disclosure
of Inside Information published by the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong
Kong and strictly prohibits the unauthorized use of confidential or inside information.

The Company has adopted the “Management Procedures for Information Insider
Registration” ((RAHZEABEAELEEHIE)) to identify the definition and scope
of the inside information and information insider of the Company. In the meantime,
stringent requirements on confidentiality management are put forward to protect
the inside information of the Company. The management procedure for insider
registration is adopted wherein its accountabilities are defined.

In order to publicize and carry out the inside information management procedure
of the Company and enable the Company to timely identify, evaluate and raise the
attention of the Board to the major event influencing the Company's stock price, as
well as to make a right decision on the information disclosures, trainings on inside
information handling were organized by the Company for the Directors, Supervisors,
senior management and other employers may access to inside information.

Internal Control System

In addition, to further strengthen the standardized corporate governance under the
Listing Rules, the Company is fully aware that review on internal control process
("Internal Control Review") is necessary to satisfy the compliance requirements
for optimizing and improve its own risk management and internal control system,
enhancing the Company’s operational level, providing a reasonable basis for the
future business growth and reach for consolidated the foundation of the Company's
long term strategic goals.

The Company developed the internal control mode in accordance with COSO
(The Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission),
which includes five elements, i.e. control environment, risk assessment, control
process, information and communication as well as supervision process. Under
this mode, the management of the Company designs, implements and facilities
the effectiveness of internal control policies while the Board and the Audit
Committee are responsible for determining the suitability of the internal control and
risk management policies designed by the management as well as supervise the
effective implementation of such policy.

The workgroup of risk management and internal control conducted review on
internal control procedures in 2019, reviewed the procedures for corporate risk
management, including business secure procedure, engineering construction
procedure, human resource management procedure, and then submitted special
working reports to the Audit Committee.

Internal Audit

In order to meet such requirements for risk management and internal control as
stipulated in the CG Code, the Company has established the special internal audit
function independently to ensure that the Company’s governance is in conformity
with requirements in the CG Code, and thus realize a continuous improvement in
risk management and internal control.

AL At N ==l
TEERWME

BRERBHAREENEFMABELE

oy
ARRARBEABARBENEBRIETEBES L
HEEBERZERMO (BB WERSD @ &
R REFEERBERARHES -

ARAREHETAABREEMBEABLEESE) -
AT ARRARES NEESMBEANTEENLE
o A HARBARESNRTEEZMT BB
B RANBEEENBEAERBREEENELAHHE
TEEERABER -

RE—FEEARFTAREERRERF  £RRESR
REFEE - AL RFEFS T EMA MRS ARE
BREEERZENBERL  ERMIFHEASTERED
RE - ARFIREE EF SRAEBAEREMEA
AR EEARESNABRRARESE -

REPEIR ARG

PEE EmMRBEREREABRRNE—FME - AR
AEHINFEREYAMZEHRENEN(RZEEMA))
KB RBEB FORERE R R APEZERSARE
BREFR - BARNEZKFORTTARRKESIE

RRHESERE  AERAQANKEBRKBERIT TR
BER -

AAREIRECOSO (The Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission * £ &
ERVBHREZESTEMNERAZES)RAGFIER
esmE R AR AEITE - EIEIRE - BB -
BT FREER  URERIE- - FIEFR
AT AREEEAERR BN NEeEizn
AR mMEFEREREZECAREEEREER
T AREERERRAREREREERETEE  URE
BIEEIERBBIT

R EIRBAFERETHEARR T - AFEARI
ZHIRIENENTHE  HARRERERRETERD
MR IERERRE  ANEREERBETTE
Bl WK EPFINTIERE2EREREZES -

R BB e
ARAEMLEEATHANRBREERAHER
MBS - ARTRERIBPIBION BRI EE
EEEFATARRLEEATUERRS - THiR
AR AEBREIE & P BREE R A R -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Al AR N/
TEERME

Reviewing Effectiveness of Risk Management and

Internal Control Systems

In 2019, the Board and the Audit Committee reviewed the effectiveness of the
year’s risk management and internal control systems twice, including the finance
control, operation control and compliance control.

The Board believed that the resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Company's accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting functions are adequate.

Based on the provisions on risk management and internal control in the CG Code,
the Board is of the view that the risk management and internal control systems
were effective and adequate during the year ended 31 December 2019.

Please refer to the “Report from the Board"” in this annual report for details of
operating deficiencies or potential risks found by the Company for the year ended
31 December 2019 and countermeasures therefor.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Directors’ remuneration policy for 2019 (after-tax): allowance for Executive
Directors, Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors are
RMB70,000, RMB50,000 and RMB100,000 per person, respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the remuneration of the senior management
of the Company by rank is set out below:
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A OB IEEITE H02 R AR 100,0007T, A ©

BE_Z-NE+_A=1T—"HLFE BEL&IH
MWARRRRERAEFHHERTINAT

Number of
Remuneration rank (RMB) Individuals
FMERARY) A
0-400,000 9
400,001-450,000 0
450,001-500,000 1
500,001-550,000 2
550,001-600,000 0
600,001-650,000 2
650,001-700,000 0
700,001-750,000 1

The Company held the annual general meeting on 3 June 2019, where the
resolution in relation to the remuneration packages for the Directors and
Supervisors of the Company in 2019 was considered and approved. Proposed by
the Directors and Supervisors recommended by the Parent Company, the Directors
and Supervisors nominated by the Parent Company would not enjoy allowance for
holding the position. However, they were entitled to receive respective salaries
according to their respective positions taken in the Company.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

A remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee"”) has been set up by
the Company, which is a subcommittee under the Board.

As of the date of this annual report, composition of the Remuneration Committee
was: Mr. Deng Tianlin, an Independent Non-executive Director, is the chairman, and
other members consisted of Mr. Fung Ching, Simon, an Independent Non-executive
Director, and Mr. Yu Yan, an Executive Director. Mr. Yu Yan was appointed as a
member of the Remuneration Committee on 12 March 2019.

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make recommendations
to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for all Directors’ and
senior management’'s remuneration, to review and approve the management'’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the Board's corporate goals and
objectives and to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual Executive Directors and senior management, etc.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Remuneration Committee held one
meeting on 25 March 2019, assessed the performance of the Executive Directors,
discussed the Directors' remuneration for 2019 and made recommendations to
the Board. The remuneration of the Directors is determined with reference to the
Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance.

Meeting Attendance of the Remuneration Committee:

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the year. The attendance
of the meeting held by the Remuneration Committee during the year ended 31
December 2019 is as follows:

Mz

ES

AN

P EERWMSE

B /O F

YHEES
ARFRTTHHER S (RHERR)  HHERS
BEFRTRH -

BEAFHAY  FHZESMARR - BIIFNT
EEMAMEEREER  BUFNTEFBLEEL
£ HITEEBSALEREZE - BEEAR-T—
NE=ZA+-_REZERFMHEZEGKE -

FHEZE NI ERERAARRESNSREEA
EmM2REHFHBRREABREESREESE  BEE
=R BRI K BRI KA E TR E 70 % BN
BE NEESRSENTEERSRERAENEH

8% -

BE_T-NE+A=1T—HL FHEESK=
Z-NFZA-FTHABRA—REH  FAETHTE
ENRE AW T T NEFENEEHETRES
BRHES -EEMHN2REZRE  BERRR
BT -

FHEEESRTR
FHERRRERNRIT—REE UTAFMEER
REZEZT-NE+ZA=+—BILEERTOHM
ZEERNDE -

Attendance of meeting held by
the Remuneration Committee for
the year ended 31 December 2019
BE-Z-hF+=-H=+—H

LtEERTHNIFNZES
Member of the Remuneration Committee FMEEERE SRHESR
Deng Tianlin B R AR 100%
Fung Ching, Simon B E 100%
Yu Yan (Note) B 5D 100%

Note: Mr. Yu Yan was appointed as the member of the Remuneration Committee on 12 March
2019.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

A nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) has been established by
the Company, which is a sub-committee under the Board.

As of the date of this annual report, composition of the Nomination Committee was:
Mr. He Linji, an Independent Non-executive Director, is the chairman, and other
members consisted of Mr. Deng Tianlin, an Independent Non-executive Director,
and Mr. Wang Zhen, an Executive Director.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the structure, size
and composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at
least annually and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy, to access the independence of
Independent Non-executive Directors, etc.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Nomination Committee held one
meeting on 25 March 2019, reviewed the structure, size and composition of the
Board and nominated Mr. Wang Hong as the president and an Executive Director
and Mr. Wang Hexin as an Executive Director according to the Company's director
nomination policies.

Nomination Policy and Diversity Policy

The procedures for the appointment, re-election and removal of Directors are set out
in the Articles of Association. The Nomination Committee will identify candidates
through different channels under the requirements made by the Company to the
Directors. Subject to the approval of the Nomination Committee, the candidates will
be recommended to the Board and proposed to the general meeting for approval
after passing the examination of the Board.

The Company has adopted the board diversity policy. The nomination of the
Directors shall be made in accordance with the nomination policy of the Company
and against the objective criteria, with due regard for the benefits of diversity
(including without limitation, gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service) and shall
also take into account their respective contributions to the Board and their firm
commitment to their roles.
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Meeting Attendance of the Nomination Committee:

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year. The attendance
of the meeting held by the Nomination Committee during the year ended 31
December 2019 is as follows:

Ml A N/
TEEEME

REZEGEETH
REZRENENBRT—REH U TARREEE
RBE-B—AF+-A=+—AILERBTHRES

QS T

Attendance of meetings held by
the Nomination Committee for
the year ended 31 December 2019
BE-Z-hF+=HA=t+—H

LEERTHREZES
Member of the Nomination Committee REZEEHE gRHER
He Linji ARE 100%
Deng Tianlin B R AR 100%
Wang Zhen T B 100%

REMUNERATION OF AUDITORS

The remuneration of auditors for the year ended 31 December 2019 was
RMB2,312,000. The breakdown is set out as follows:

R =
HE-T-NE+-A=+—BILEE  HHBHH
2 /ARE2,312,0007T - BHAFHIIET :

Amount (RMB)

SHEARY)
Services fee related to annual audit of financial statements MR FERTHORGE 1,296,000
Services fee related to interim review of financial statements W R P AR B RS B 716,000
Reporting accountant service fee for certain capital market transaction A&EARTIHER S @ tEAHRE AN RIS E 300,000
Total a5t 2,312,000

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has been set up by the Company, which is a subcommittee
under the Board.

As of the date of this annual report, composition of the Audit Committee was: Mr.
Deng Tianlin, an Independent Non-executive Director, is the chairman, and other
members consisted of Mr. Fung Ching, Simon, an Independent Non-executive
Director, and Mr. George F Meng, an Independent Non-executive Director.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board in fulfilling its
responsibilities by supervision of financial reporting and by providing an independent
view on the effectiveness of the internal controls of the Group and the adequacy of
the external and internal audits, to assure that appropriate accounting principles and
reporting practices are followed by the Company, etc.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Audit Committee held two meetings.

EREES
ARTRTTERERS  BREAGAEERTR
it -

BEAFEHAY  BRZESMARR - BIIFNT
EERMAMACEETER  BUFRTESHLAE
HERLERERE -

EVZEENTIEREREEMBME  RRAKE
ZNERER AR EE  IMNER B AR ZBRE B AR
EFERNBLER  UHPEFSERERME - 5#
FRARBDETEENG AR ERELS -

RBEEZE_T-NFTA=+—RHILFE  E%EE8
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EHERMAEE
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During the first meeting of the Audit Committee in 2019, the Audit Committee
reviewed the 2018 annual report, the auditors’ report of 2018, the risk management
and internal control report of 2018, the internal control review report of 2018 and
considered the re-appointment of auditors for the year of 2019 and reviewed the
working report of the Audit Committee for the year of 2018.

During the second meeting of the Audit Committee in 2019, the Audit Committee
reviewed the 2019 interim report, and interim report of auditors of 2019 and interim
working report of the Audit Committee for 2019.

The Audit Committee suggested the re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers
Zhong Tian LLP as the auditor of the Company in 2020.

During the above meetings, the Audit Committee also reviewed the Company's
risk management and internal control systems, including finance control, operation
control and compliance control, and considered that the Company's risk management
and internal control systems and internal audit functions were effective.

Meeting Attendance of the Audit Committee:

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year. The attendance of the
meetings held by the Audit Committee during the year ended 31 December 2019 is
as follows:

—NEEREZEEE @mqﬂ EREZEEE
F;ETZIK Al =T — /\E@#ﬁ —N\FE RN
% IR N\FERAE AE.ES'E&W*B@*? TiEHE - =

)\EVWjM HEHRE  BE_Z-NEFER

%&Efﬁﬁ’l RN \FEERZEGIERSE -

FﬁTZlK
quEfﬁ#&i&;T ﬂiﬁfﬂﬁﬁ ZEZEgTIERE -
EREZESRE T THFBEZTALEKETRE
FHEN ST AT (SR E B A B) FBEA R R ERAD -

ERZEGE LA ERT RN TARRMEREE

RABEERS  BEPREMBELE  EEEERE
REE  UTRRARFNEREERANMEZE R

KRR E I EE =B R

BEREEGGHRICE
EREERRFEABTMARE  ATABKEER
HE-T-AF+- A=t - ALEEBTHELE

BEE@

Attendance of meetings held by
the Audit Committee for
the year ended 31 December 2019

BE-_Z-h&+=-A=+—H

LEERITHEREZES

Member of the Audit Committee ERZEENE BELER
Deng Tianlin BRI 100%
Fung Ching, Simon B E 100%
George F Meng HEE 100%

SHAREHOLDING INTERESTS OF SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

During the year, none of the senior management of the Company held any
shareholding interests in the Company.

AMENDMENTS OF THE ARTICLES OF
ASSOCIATION

During the year, the Articles of Association was amended twice.
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The first amendment was mainly for the change of the Company’s Chinese and
English names on the advice of the Company’s management team to be in line
with the Company's future development plan to further expand domestic and
foreign businesses and position itself as a global leading service provider of airport
investment, operation and management. Such amendment was approved by the

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 10 October 2019.
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IExRE #&E:

F-RERTEERRTREARARRNERRE - E—
TEE%W&?ﬁl\ﬁi&iﬂﬁé%}T%}i%%ﬁ%?ﬁﬁ‘]ﬁ\é%
REELEERAREE  £4ARQ i‘“éﬁﬁﬁl%@
TEEAR T#@iﬁ(%%ﬁ c MRBEDEARTR-F
—hF+A+TEARNRREIARSIE -

The specific amendments are as follows: BggfEsunT -
Amended
articles The original Article The amended Article
BRI R EITARE BITERE
Article 2 Company's registered name in Chinese: I/ Bl #i55%E  Company's registered name in Chinese: 7578 55 Bl Bl B¢
Bk R BIRAF EERROBABERAT
Company's name in English: Regal International Airport Company’'s name in English: Hainan Meilan
Group Company Limited International Airport Group Company Limited
RAPGEMATE - nERRESRE RN BRAF] NEFXGEMEE  SEEREREERGERAT
ARIHE X%  Regal International Airport Group Company ‘A R]# X %% : Hainan Meilan International Airport
Limited Group Company Limited
Article 3 Registered address: Complex Building of Meilan Airport, Registered address: Complex Building of Meilan Airport,
E=1 Haikou, Hainan, PRC. Haikou, Hainan, PRC.
Postal code: 571126 Postal code: 571126
Telephone number: (86-898) 6576 2009 Telephone number: (86-898) 6996 6999
Facsimile number: (86-898) 6576 2010 Facsimile number: (86-898) 6996 8999
NEMEFRT : REARAMBUGEABOMEREISEEE NAMERT : FEARAFBEEREEOMERRSEE
AR - 571126 BEBARNS - 571126
ERESRIS ¢ (86-898) 6576 2009 ERESRES © (86-898) 6996 6999
{E SRS : (86-898) 6576 2010 AT - (86-898) 6996 8999
Article 93 The Company shall have a board of directors consisting  The Company shall have a board of directors consisting
ER+=1% of eleven directors, including one chairman and two vice  of eleven directors, which shall include one chairman

chairman.

The board should have over half (1/2) (including half (1/2))
outside directors (the directors which are not working in
the company), and over one-third (1/3) independent non-
executive directors (the directors which are independent to
the shareholders and not working in the company).

ARAIREZE  EFEH T RESEN - Hbh - RE=F
A BIESEEMA -

BEeRE-— D2 02E=DZ—(12)ALEHIINBES
ETNEARAMBERNES)  XERETMER=02—01/3)
AERBZIERITEREEBLNATRRETERR A
EROESE) -

and may include one or two vice chairman.

The board should have over half (1/2) (including half
(1/2)) outside directors (the directors which are not
working in the company), and over one-third (1/3)
independent non-executive directors (the directors
which are independent to the shareholders and not
working in the company).

ARAREEE BT REFMAN - B - &
E?E A AREIESER-—EMA -

BEREERA_NDZ—/2(E=52Z2—1/2) A L#OIME
EEETEQRANTIRNES)  XRENMER=S
Z—RIA LB FFRITEREFB LN RMRRED
ERRAFMEBNES)
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The second amendment is mainly to make amendment to certain articles of
the Articles of Association in accordance with the Reply of the State Council on
the Adjustment of the Notice Period of the General Meeting and Other Matters
Applicable to the Overseas Listed Companies (Guo Han [2019] No. 97) (KB FHE
HRERI ET AR ARRRERSBAIRSEEIERTEAORE)) (BK[2019]1975F)
and the Company Law (2018 Amendment). Such amendment was approved by the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 21 February 2020.

BEZRBEHXERRB(ARARBRAEREIINLTA
AIEHRRASBANAR S EE R THOIE) (B K
[2019]1975%) AR RLEN (ZZE— NFER]) X EK -
HCARER) B RFGEITIER] - RREEBLEARR
ARZZE-EF A=+ HAHEMBRREN RS
/E"

The specific amendments are as follows: BREMRNT -
Amended
articles The original Article The Article after amendment
& RT R X EEEIRES BRIERE
Article 29 When reducing its registered capital, the Company shall ~ When reducing its registered capital, the Company shall
- Jmly R 3 prepare the balance sheet and the inventory of assets. prepare the balance sheet and the inventory of assets.

Within ten (10) days from passing the resolution on the
reduction of registered capital, the Company shall notify its
creditors, and shall publish announcements at least three
times in the newspapers within thirty (30) days. Creditors
have the right to request the Company to repay its debts
or provide guarantee for repayment within thirty (30) days
from receiving the notice of capital reduction, or within
ninety (90) days from the first announcement published for
those creditors not receiving such a notice.

The amount of the Company's registered capital after
reduction shall not be lower than the minimum of the legal
requirement.

REBAEMEARSR - BARNEERBRMYES

RAEEBIEHRAEMEAREZ AL T(10)A NBAE
BA - IR=1TCORARERK LELDNE=ZQ)R - BEREA
BEIBMEZHLE=TQRA  AMEIBMNENEE—
RAEZBBEATQOAR - BERERABFEBEHLER
HAREAEEER

REBAEAROEMER - MHEREE R REREE

Within ten (10) days from passing the resolution on
the reduction of registered capital, the Company shall
notify its creditors, and shall publish announcements
in the newspapers within thirty (30) days. Creditors
have the right to request the Company to repay its
debts or provide guarantee within thirty (30) days
from receiving the notice of capital reduction, or within
forty-five (45) days from the date of announcement
published for those creditors not receiving such a
notice.

The amount of the Company’s registered capital after

reduction shall not be lower than the minimum of the
legal requirement.

ARAOEMERR  BARHEEBERNVES

185 b

RAEE BFEHRDEMEANRZEZ BRT(10)HARE
HMERA - UR=TCQOHANERELAE - BRAE
REBAMEZHE=TEBOHARN  REINBAENEA
HE2AEEtTHE5)BA - ERERARFEGBBHE
RAMENER -

RABLERENEMES  TRENEENRER
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Amended

articles The original Article The Article after amendment

BRI R EEEIRES CHEES

Article 30 The Company may repurchase its issued shares, after ~ The Company may repurchase its issued shares, after
E=11% passing the procedures as stipulated in the Articles of  passing the procedures as stipulated in the Articles of

Association and receiving the approval of the relevant
supervisory authorities of the State Council, under the
following conditions:

(1) Reducing the Company's capital;

(2)  Merging with other companies which hold the
Company's shares;

(3)  Awarding its staff with the Company's shares;

(4)  Acquiring shares held by shareholders with a different
vies in respect of resolutions regarding merger or
division adopted in a general meeting; and

(5)  Other conditions permitted by laws and administrative.

REETIERT - IAERARZERRENEFRBE  HE
Bl BT ERBE  BRERTEI AR,

(=) BRIRBEA:
(Z) BEFARARBRENEMRBEGH
(=) BROBEEBHEAAFBT

(M) BREAHBREASELNITAH  DLRARKE
o ERARWEERNDS &

() VAR TTHORBRFF AR EAMER -

Association and receiving the approval of the relevant
supervisory authorities of the State Council, under the
following conditions:

(1) Reducing the Company’s registered capital,

(2) Merging with other companies which hold the
Company's shares;

(3) Using the shares in employee shares
ownership plans or equity incentives;

(4)  Acquiring shares held by shareholders with a
different vies in respect of resolutions regarding
merger or division adopted in a general meeting;

(5) Using the shares for converting company-
issued corporate bonds convertible into
shares;

(6) Being necessary to maintain the value of the
Company and the rights and interests of its
shareholders; and

(7)  Other conditions permitted by laws and administrative.

REETIERT  JAEARERRENETFRS -
HEBEA BT ERBIE - BREZTEIIRD

(—) BRI AREMEA
(D) BEFAEARATRGOEMGABESH
(Z) BROAREIFRAREREND

(M) BREHBRRASELNRREH - DIRER
R ERARWEERNE

(H) BBROBREBRATRTHITEHEARENATE
%

(N) RARREFQARNEERRRESZHALE K

(B) &R TTHOERFF AR EAMER
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Amended

articles The original Article The Article after amendment

BRI R EEEIRES CHEES

Article 31 After receiving the approval of the relevant supervisory  After receiving the approval of the relevant supervisory
E=1+—1& authorities in the State Council, the Company may  authorities in the State Council, the Company may

repurchase its shares by one of the following methods:

(1) Offering repurchase tenders to all shareholders on a
pro-rata basis;

(2) Repurchasing shares in the open market; or

(3) Repurchasing shares by agreement outside the stock
exchange.

ATSEBR AT ERBIOEBERG - WU TR
— 77

(—) AEBRERIRRAR LG HERZL
(D) EEFRZMBEEARRSZHAEE &

(=) EEFXZANAGHE T AER -

repurchase its shares by one of the following methods:

(1) Offering repurchase tenders to all shareholders
on a pro-rata basis;

(2) Repurchasing shares in the open market;

(3) Repurchasing shares by agreement outside the
stock exchange; or

(4) Others means stipulated by laws or
administrative regulations.

However, if the Company acquires its shares under
the circumstances as stipulated in Items (3), (5)
and (6) of Article 30 of the Articles of Association,

it shall be conducted by way of open centralized
transaction.

ATSABREEESHBIEBERG - AT
Rz — T -

(—) AEERERIERARLIHERELY

(D) ERFXZMEBARKXSHTABME :

(Z) HERBHFRZAIMNARE D AER - R

(m) ZE - TBUERAENHEHMSR -
BRAERE=THRE(Z)E - F(@E - FCVER

ENBEHERBRLTARGH  EEEBBAMNEDIRS
FREAT ©
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Amended

articles The original Article The Article after amendment

BRI R EEEIRES CHEES

Article 32 The acquisition of the Company’s shares for reason as  The acquisition of the Company’s shares under the
B=1+=1 stipulated from Item (1) to Item (3) of Article 30 of the  circumstances as stipulated in Item (1) and Item

Articles of Association or the repurchase of shares by
agreement outside the stock exchange shall be first
approved by shareholders in the general meeting according
to the rules of the Articles of Association. After getting
approved by the same procedures in the shareholders’
general meeting, the Company may cancel or amend the
agreement reached by the method afore-mentioned, or give
up any right in the contract.

The afore-mentioned agreement on the repurchase of
shares includes, but not limited to, agreements on taking
the responsibility to repurchase shares and receiving the
right of share repurchase.

The Company shall not transfer the contracts on the
repurchase of its shares and any right set out thereunder.
For the right of repurchasing redeemable shares under this
article, the repurchase price shall not exceed the limitation
of the highest price in the event that such repurchase is
not through the market or through bidding. In the event
of repurchase through bidding, bidding shall be proposed
equally to all the shareholders.

ARAFAAZEREE=THEBEEZE_ENRARBEARFR
MEORERRERLFRZAINARE T ABE RO - EE
EEBBRRRGRATNERNRELAE - EERAGURE—
FRELAE - RB A AR RE LR AT X ATZH
e - HEREEAR P EEMERN -

AR AR @A) BV 13 - BIE (BT A B AEE @A
10 B FE IS MBS IR [ A RO R 9 155 58 o

REAMSERBOEROWARKE S R P RE N ERE
F o AR ARBLABRRNMS - WIELTIHRIAR
BHABE  HERTSEAR —RSERRE - WAHR
HABE - BER2ERE - RECRELBRRE -

(2) of Article 30 of the Articles of Association or the
repurchase of shares by agreement outside the stock
exchange shall be first approved by shareholders in the
general meeting according to the rules of the Articles
of Association. After getting approved by the same
procedures in the shareholders’ general meeting, the
Company may cancel or amend the agreement reached
by the method afore-mentioned, or give up any right
in the contract. Where the Company acquires its
shares under the circumstances as stipulated in
Items (3), (5) and (6) of Article 30 of the Articles of
Association, it shall be made as prescribed by the
Articles of Association or under the authorization
by the general meeting and approved by way of
a resolution at the board meeting attended by
more than two thirds (2/3) of the directors of the
Company.

The afore-mentioned agreement on the repurchase
of shares includes, but not limited to, agreements
on taking the responsibility to repurchase shares and
receiving the right of share repurchase.

The Company shall not transfer the contracts on
the repurchase of its shares and any right set out
thereunder. For the right of repurchasing redeemable
shares under this article, the repurchase price shall
not exceed the limitation of the highest price in the
event that such repurchase is not through the market
or through bidding. In the event of repurchase through
bidding, bidding shall be proposed equally to all the
shareholders.

AAEAERSE = TIHE ()R - B(O)AAENER
WA DR S E R BIEREFR S IMARETT =
BOROE  BEELERRRGRARERNBRTEL
fE o BERAG AR — A FLHE - DB A AR
ERBEMATABITINHE  AEREEARD
EEAERN - AREXAERE=THE(Z)E  £(&)
B BONERENBERRBRQTRME » 7T BUKER
AERNEERERRAGHNERE  8=22=(2/3) 4
LESHENESSSRRE -

AIRPTIE B R ARt M e - BRE BRIV RAEARERE
[B] F 7 &9 2% 7% A0 R 1S58 (2] B 1) B0 RE R O i

RETFEEBELERNOOE REESRPRENER
R - AGERERBLAERROME @ LTS
FAREFAER - HER T SRBE —&aBRBR
o WARESRED - AEREEBRER RRCREY
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Amended

articles The original Article The Article after amendment

BRI R EEEIRES CHEES

Article 33 After repurchasing shares in accordance with the relevant  After repurchasing shares in accordance with the
EB=1T=% laws and regulations, the Company shall transfer or relevant laws and regulations, the Company shall

cancel such shares within ten (10) days from the date of
acquisition for circumstances under Item (1) of Article 30
of the Articles of Association, or within six (6) days from
the date of acquisition for circumstances under Item (2)
and ltem (4) of Article 30 of the Articles of Association.
The book value of the cancelled shares shall be deducted
from the Company's registered capital and the Company
shall apply to the department in charge of such company
registration to register the change in its registered capital
according to the law.

The Company's shares acquired by the Company in
accordance with Item (3) of Article 30 of the Articles of
Association shall not be more than five percent (5%) of the
Company's total number of issued shares. Funds used in
acquiring the shares shall be disbursed from the Company's
after-tax profits. The acquired shares shall be transferred to
its staff within one (1) year.

AFREBERG % - BRATRE= HEE BB
EEEWRI Y AT B RS  BREIE - SOBETH
RS R A PSR SRR o WEERSARID Y AR AL B
AFMFMER PR - AABGOEN R 7B P 558
BHMAAEEER -

REMRRABERE = HEF=ZBRERBN A QR D -
BEAARFERTRNBBENE S ZH : ARNEBNHNES
EEVEARMBTEIMBER I : IRENROEEE—FR
EEART -

transfer or cancel such shares within ten (10) days
from the date of acquisition for circumstances under
Item (1) of Article 30 of the Articles of Association, or
within six (6) months from the date of acquisition for
circumstances under Item (2) and ltem (4) of Article 30
of the Articles of Association. The book value of the
cancelled shares shall be deducted from the Company's
registered capital and the Company shall apply to the
department in charge of such company registration to
register the change in its registered capital according to
the law.

After the Company repurchases shares in accordance
with the relevant laws and regulations, for
circumstances under ltems (3), (5) and (6) of Article 30 of
the Article of Association, the total number of shares of
the Company held by the Company shall not be more
than ten percent (10%) of the Company'’s total number
of issued shares and shall be transferred or cancelled
within three (3) years.

AROEERRNE - BRAZERFE=HHE ()RS
BH > EEEWEZAET0HANER  BRED)
B F(EBEBER - BEENEARBRENRGEE %
HEBRMOZERERELARNEMERRLR - &
ARECERADRIBLEARFREETMERNEESR -

RAKEBERGE  BREAZEEE=1THE(Z)HE -
FB(H)E - BCREEEN  RRASHEENELR
ROBFREBEARARACHRITROLENES Z T
(10%)  YEREE=Q)FABRERNELH -
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Amended

articles The original Article The Article after amendment

BRI R EEEIRES CHEES

Article 45 Within thirty (30) days of the convening of the shareholders’  Within twenty (20) days of the convening of the
B+ HE general meeting, or five (5) days prior to the book close shareholders’ general meeting, or five (5) days prior

closing date for distribution of dividends, no registration is to the book close closing date for distribution of

permitted in the register of shareholders for any change to dividends, no registration is permitted in the register

the register as a result of share transfer. of shareholders for any change to the register as a
result of share transfer. However, if there is any

BEAXEEBHAAN=TCBORANXEQRTREDERFIAEZLE  other provision in relation to the registration of

HATRG EHA @ NMIETABRMEEMEENIRELME  changes of the Company’s register of shareholders

FEERL - stipulated by the law or the listing rules of the
place where the Company’s shares are listed, such
provision shall prevail.

M A & A BRI = 1(20) B A sk 2 BURE £ B A &Y
HAEENRGI AR - MMSHETE R, S m & £ R
FZMOEEER - BR - FEFAQXAREL TN ED
RABARRREMBERLSEREN  RERE -
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articles The original Article The Article after amendment

BRI R EEEIRES CHEES

Article 59 Shareholders’ general meetings can be classified into Shareholders’ general meetings can be classified
EE iR annual general meetings and extraordinary general into annual general meetings (also referred to as

meetings. Shareholders’ general meetings are convened
by the board of directors. Annual general meetings are held
once a year and shall be held within six (6) months after the
end of the previous financial year.

Extraordinary shareholders’ general meetings are required
to be held within two months after the occurrence of any of
the following events:

(1) The number of directors is less than the number
provided for in the “Company Law"” or less than two
thirds (2/3) of the number specified in the Company's
Articles of Association;

(2)  The aggregate losses of the Company which are not
made up reach one third (1/3) of the Company's total
share capital,

(3) A request in writing by shareholders singly or jointly
holding ten percent (10%) (containing ten percent
(10%)) or more of the Company's voting rights;

(4)  When deemed necessary by the board of directors or
requested by the supervisory committee; or

(5)  When requested by two or more independent non-
executive directors.

AR ’\"Eﬁxﬁi’\ﬂ&uﬁﬂxiﬁ
B -RRFEEGFEM R LERL—F
BHIN(6)E A 2 MERTT -

- REARMEF
HEERGEY

BETIER 2/ EERREEMQEA NG FHERER
RRE:

(=) BEBBAHBTE(RRE)RERAEGE D
EXMEEN =D 2 Z(2/3)5 ;

RAFIERR

(Z) ARRBREEBEERTAEN=22—(1/3) ;

(Z) BEBKAEFEERARBITEIINNBRIENRG G D
ZT0%)AE(EESZT(10%)MEBRRAEEHER
BRI R A SR

(M) EFEeRAEVBRELESSIREAME @ =

() MEBEALEMB)BILFRTEERHBHE -

“shareholders’ annual general meetings”) and
extraordinary general meetings. Shareholders’ general
meetings are convened by the board of directors.
Annual general meetings are held once a year and
shall be held within six (6) months after the end of the
previous financial year.

Extraordinary shareholders’ general meetings are
required to be held within two months after the
occurrence of any of the following events:

(1) The number of directors is less than the number
provided for the “Company Law” or less than
two thirds (2/3) of the number required by the
Articles of Association;

(2)  The aggregate losses of the Company which
are not made up reach one third (1/3) of the
Company's total paid-up share capital;

(3) A request in writing by shareholders singly or
jointly holding ten percent (10%) (containing ten
percent (10%)) or more of the Company's voting
rights;

(4)  When deemed necessary by the board of

directors or requested by the supervisory
committee; or

(5)  When requested by two or more independent
non-executive directors.

BERAEDAEFERRAE(RBIRRBEFAE] - R

REGDMBERBRAE - KRAGHEFSEE - F
ERRAEFFAR X RN LS FETHEZ
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Amended

articles The original Article The Article after amendment

BRI R EEEIRES CHEES

Article 60 A written notice of the shareholders’ general meeting, When the Company convenes an annual general
EARTE stating the matters to be considered at the meeting and meeting, it shall notify all the shareholders twenty

the venue and date of the meeting,shall be given to all
shareholders in the register forty-five (45) days before the
meeting convened by the Company. Shareholders wishing
to attend are required to give to the Company their written
replies of attendance twenty (20) days prior to the meeting.

RAARBRRAE  BENRSZEMUTHURABEHE
ESEA - BERREENEEALF SN B BN SMAT
BEMBIR - SHERRAGOEER  BEREZAR T
(200H AT - HHESRNERLEREDLR -

(20) business days before the meeting (exclusive
of the date of the meeting) by means of public
announcement stating the time, venue of and
matters to be considered at the meeting. When
the Company convenes an extraordinary general
meeting, it shall notify all the shareholders fifteen
(15) days or ten (10) business days (whichever is
longer) before the meeting (exclusive of the date of
the meeting) by means of public announcement.

The business day referred to in the Articles of
Association shall mean a day on which the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange is open for business for
dealing in securities.

AFIEHEERRAS  EEKSIZHNERH - 2
MEBFNSEREEREH-_T0ELE A (FTEESY
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articles The original Article The Article after amendment

BRI R EEEIRES CHEES

Article 61 When the Company convenes the annual general meeting, When the Company convenes the general meeting,
ERT—1& shareholders singly or jointly holding three percent (3%) or  shareholders singly or jointly holding three percent

more of the Company’s total shares with voting rights are
entitled to propose in writing to the Company any interim
resolutions to be considered at that meeting and submit
to the convener ten (10) days before the meeting. The
convener of the shareholders’ general meeting shall make a
supplementary notice to other shareholders within two (2)
days upon the receipt of the resolutions and the resolutions,
if within the powers of the shareholders’ general meeting,
are required to be added to the agenda of that meeting for
consideration by shareholders in the general meeting.

AABHBRRAEFE  EHERAABERARERRENR
NEBEBED Z=B%RIAL(EBED Z=B%) MR - BREE
BERAEEMTI0RAMNREER AR BREERRERIL
ERXAREA BRRAEAKAREERIERER (2R
BEHERASHITRY  BANEMKRER - WigRED B
RASBAEBEANER  JIARKEZNRERZIMEAKR
e

(3%) or more of the Company's total shares with voting
rights are entitled to propose in writing to the Company
any interim resolutions to be considered at that meeting
and submit to the convener of the general meeting
ten (10) days before the meeting. The contents of the
proposal shall be within the scope of the functions
and powers of the general meeting, and have
definite topics and specific matters for resolution.
The convener of the general meeting shall make a
supplementary notice within two (2) days upon the
receipt of such proposal and such proposal, if within
the powers of the shareholders’ general meeting, are
required to be added to the agenda of that meeting for
consideration by shareholders in the general meeting,
and ensure to announce the contents of the
proposal ten (10) business days before the general
meeting.

RAARRRAE  BEXAAFERARNERAENOK
MBEEDZ=CRIAL(EEDZ=CRNHIR - &
REBRRAS AR T10)BAFIASEE A B AR R
BREVESBRRAGEEA  GRERNABEER
RERRASRELSE YEHRBENARRESE -
BRRAEBEAREERIZHEFRREA (2B AHY
BRRASHABEN  TRZERFRETBENRFEASE
BEHEANSEE JAZRSANFRERBRAGHE
o URRERRASEMT(10)EEXAADEmE
RENRE -
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The Article after amendment

BITRAR

Article 62
EARTZK

Article 63
EXRT=H%

Based on the written replies received twenty (20) days prior
to the meeting, the Company can calculate the number of
shares with voting rights represented by the shareholders
attending the meeting. If the number of shares with voting
rights represented by the attending shareholders reach half
(1/2) or above of the total number of shares with voting
rights of the Company, the shareholders’ general meeting
can be convened. If not, the Company shall within five (5)
days from the last day for receipt of the replies notify the
shareholders again by public announcement the matters
to be considered, and the date and place of the meeting.
The Company may then convene the shareholders’ general
meeting.

An extraordinary general meeting may not announce any
items not included in the agenda.

RERBERRAGEHA =20 BRKEIHEMEEE - 5
EREEEBNRRARENERRAENRGOE - HEEE
%W%%%ﬁ%%ﬁ%%%%%@%%ﬂ@ﬂﬁ%%%m%
PEB D2 —(1/2ALH » RAIAIABRAKRERE : ET
I AREEEAGBAKEERBERNEE ﬁA
A B AR SRR BIOBARE - EAERA - AR
AFRRERE -
BRI R G MIREBERHAMNEIE -

A notice of the shareholders’ meeting shall meet the
following requirements:

(3)  Specify the date of registration of shares held by
shareholders entitled to attend the shareholders’
general meeting;

=z

RREENBAEETES TIIER

(=) ARHFEBRRASERNBESLR

A shareholders’ general meeting shall not decide
on any matter not stated in the notice of the
shareholders’ general meeting.

BRRAEFEHRRAAGEAN PRI BHBEAER
2.

A notice of the shareholders’ meeting shall meet the
following requirements:

(3)  Specify the date of registration of shares held by
shareholders entitled to attend the shareholders’
general meeting; the interval between the
shares registration date and the date of the
meeting shall be subject to the requirements
by listing rules of the place where the
Company’s shares are listed;

REBHBAEENATIER:
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articles The original Article The Article after amendment

BRI R EEEIRES CHEES

Article 64 Notices of shareholders’ general meetings shall be delivered Notices of shareholders’ general meetings shall be
EbaenlilrY by special delivery or by postal mail (whether or not the delivered by special delivery or by postal mail (whether

shareholders have the voting rights in the meetings).
Notices shall be mailed according to the addresses in the
register of shareholders. For shareholders of domestic
shares, notices of shareholders’ general meetings can also
be made by public announcement. As for shareholders of
overseas listed foreign shares, notices of shareholders’
general meetings can also be delivered or made through
the Company’s website or methods as stipulated by the
Listing Rules from time to time, provided that the laws,
administrative regulations and the listing rules of the stock
exchange where the Company’s shares are listed are
observed.

The announcement mentioned above shall be made within
forty-five (45) to fifty (50) days prior to the date of the
shareholders’ general meeting, published in one or several
of the national newspapers designated by the institution in
charge of securities supervision and administration in the
State Council. After the announcement, shareholders of
domestic shares are deemed to have received the notice of
the shareholders’ general meeting.

BRERRSBEANEEMRR(THRERRAE LREARAE)
AEANE AT E BB AR - i At AR R &
i E Mt B2 - HRNBERER - RERAXGEA LA LA
RNETNET - ARFEI EWHERBR - BRAGBAE
MRER - TTBUER - AREIRD ETHRE SRS W
B ERET - HAEBA R BN & LR BT R AR EH
FABRRIRM

RIFRFITE A S - BENESHA MM+ (45 A =R 1(50)
HOHEA  ERBRESFIERBREEN —RAEZRE

BMEHRT EFE - —ENE - BRAERNERKREKES
FABCR S FEBAN o

or not the shareholders have the voting rights in
the meetings). Notices shall be mailed according
to the addresses in the register of shareholders.
For shareholders of domestic shares, notices of
shareholders’ general meetings can also be made by
public announcement. As for shareholders of overseas
listed foreign shares, notices of shareholders’ general
meetings can also be delivered or made through the
Company's website or methods as stipulated by the
Listing Rules from time to time, provided that the laws,
administrative regulations and the listing rules of the
stock exchange where the Company's shares are listed
are observed.

The announcement mentioned above shall be
published in one or more newspaper(s) designated
by the securities regulatory authorities under the
State Council. After the announcement , shareholders
of domestic shares are deemed to have received the
notice of the shareholders’ general meeting.

BEASBAEE MR (THRERRAG LREEX
RE)AE XL ABE B BIR L - WAL
A PARR R 2 B RR A M A R - WA B RARER - IR K
BB AR RE T FUETT o BRIRI LW INE BT
RBRRARGBAERRER  1TBOER - AR ERN
ETHBEHRZ A ETRNNEET - RABEAR
B & BT R BT R AR E H977 SBSR iR
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articles The original Article The Article after amendment

BRI R EEEIRES CHEES

Article 90 When convening a class shareholders’ meeting, a written When convening a class shareholders’ meeting, the
ENTE notice, containing agenda, date and venue of the meeting, Company shall issue an announcement or written

shall be given to all class shareholders in the register of
shareholders forty-five (45) days prior to the meeting.
Shareholders wishing to attend the meeting shall return to
the Company a written reply to confirm their attendance
twenty (20) days prior to the meeting.

When the voting rights represented by shareholders
attending the meeting reach half (1/2) or more of the
total, the Company may convene the class shareholders’
meeting. If not, the Company shall within five (5) days
notify its shareholders the agenda, date and place by means
of announcement. After such announcement, the Company
may convene the class shareholders’ meeting.

AR BRERRRES  EEXRSHARE T 0456 A AT
HEMBA  SeRfRANEEURMAE RN EN
FrBZBERI R AR - HEFERNEER - BERE
FAM-TRORR  BHEEENEEREXERF -

BEEGSINBRAAERNEZSE LERAENROE
ERNEZEE LERRENZERNBR N RE =0 2 —(1/2)A
EH) . RRAABFRERIRREE o ETEN 0 AREEE
T AR EHRREZNTR B ARMEIEARELR
BIRBAR - fAERA - RRAAGRERNRE S -

notice to notify all the registered shareholders of
the said class of the matters to be considered at the
meeting, and the date and venue of the meeting
twenty (20) business days (applicable to a class
shareholders’ meeting being convened at the same
time as the annual general meeting)(exclusive of
the date of meeting), fifteen (15) days or ten (10)
business days (whichever is longer)(applicable to
a class shareholders’ meeting not being convened
at the same time as the annual general meeting)
(exclusive of the date of meeting).

If there is any special provision in the listing rules
of the place where the Company’s shares are listed,
such provision shall prevail.

NAARERBRREE  BEXSZAM=T(20EE
XHCEARREFERRASEADEHNERRREE)
A(TEEEEAMERX) - TR BERT(10)EEXH
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BRI R EEEIRES CHEES

Article 98 The board of directors shall meet at least twice (2) a year. The board of directors shall meet at least twice (2) a
=R AN 3 The chairman convenes the meeting and shall notify all year. The chairman convenes the meeting and shall

directors and supervisors ten (10) days before the meeting.

Shareholders representing ten percent (10%) or more of
the voting rights, more than one-third (1/3) of the directors,
the supervisory committee, two (2) or more independent
non-executive directors, or the general manager may
propose for convening an extraordinary meeting of the
board of directors. The chairman of the board of directors
shall convene and preside over the meeting within ten (10)
days upon the receipt of such proposal.

EXeBFELARAMQQRER% EFCRESRAESE
REEARATO0OBMBMNERESMES -

RETHDZ—N0OREETDZ—(1/10) FRAERHRE -
=RZ—(IRALEESE - BEEg MANLE(EMAB)HNEL
IFMITEE C ARAKE  JNRECHEBHESe R -
BEEREEEIREZZTOI0BRNBENTIEREESS S
B

notify all directors and supervisors ten (10) days before
the meeting.

Shareholders representing ten percent (10%) or more
of the voting rights, more than one-third (1/3) of the
directors, the supervisory committee, two (2) or more
independent non-executive directors, or the general
manager may propose for convening an extraordinary
meeting of the board of directors. The chairman of the
board of directors shall convene and preside over the
meeting within ten (10) days upon the receipt of such
proposal.

If there is any special provision in the listing rules
of the place where the Company’s shares are listed,
such provision shall prevail.

EFZeEFELAMMQAREE - EFTREFERA
& REFARTOOBRIMBMNERESMES -

RE+D 210 EE+TDZ2—(1/10) TR
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ik ETees SFREAEIESETOI0AR
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articles The original Article The Article after amendment

BRI R EEEIRES CHEES

Article 99 Notices for the convening of regular or extraordinary Notices for the convening of regular or extraordinary

ENTNE meeting of the board of directors can be delivered by the ~ meeting of the board of directors can be delivered by
following methods: the following methods:

2) If the board has not fixed the time and venue for  (2) If the board has not fixed the time and venue for
the regular meeting, the chairman shall instruct the the regular meeting, the chairman shall instruct
secretary for the board to serve notice of the time the secretary for the board to serve notice of the
and venue of the board meeting by cable, telegraph, time and venue of the board meeting by cable,
fax, special delivery, registered mail, electronic mail telegraph, fax, special delivery, registered mail,
or by person to all directors and supervisors ten (10) electronic mail or by person to all directors and
days prior to the meeting; supervisors ten (10) days prior to the meeting;

...... If there is any special provision in the listing

rules of the place where the Company’s
EEgkBERESTEERNBRKR TR BE shares are listed, such provision shall prevail;
() MREZFEVSRFLATESTSGRARTHRRN SFeRBENESTSRNERKTIHEM
e FEEREARAANESEWERAT10B - .
HESgERRFEAMNEASE R #E  FR
%ﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁ~%¥ﬁﬁ&W$A MEREEM (O NREFSVEARFLIRTESFTERRTHOR
% M2 EFREERABESTFWERA
...... +1ma HEZgERREMMHPEE &
R EE  FRBRESNEFEST  SFEMSLK
ﬁALﬂi@%$ﬂw$ MARBRE LT
ETRBBERAREN  RERE
Article 182 Add Article 182, the former Article 182 and Article 183 If the provisions of the Article of Association
EF-BENT=H% renumbered sequentially are inconsistent with the applicable laws,

eSS

BATZ& R—ANAtZFE  —A A+ =FIRLT

administrative regulations, or the listing rules of the
place where the Company’s shares are listed, the
laws, administrative regulations or the listing rules
of the place where the Company’s shares are listed
shall prevail.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has placed emphasis on the communication with shareholders.
Shareholders can be updated with the operations of the Company and market
trends through means of website, email and phone enquiries. The information of
the Company is delivered to the shareholders by the following methods:

1. to publish annual reports, interim reports, annual and interim results
announcements and other information disclosure on the websites of the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the Company;

2. organizing shareholders’ general meeting, which is also one of the effective
channels to communicate with the shareholders;

3. the Company continues to strengthen communication with shareholders by
means including:

(1) arranging designated staff to meet with shareholders and answer their
enquiries;

(2) arranging on-site visit to the Company for shareholders to understand
the operation and the latest development of the Company in a timely
manner; and

(3) providing relevant financial and operation information on the Company's
website timely.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To ensure better protection of shareholders’ interests, the Articles of Association
sets out the requirements for shareholders to request an extraordinary general
meeting to be convened: when two or more shareholders holding in aggregate
more than ten percent (10%) (including the ten percent (10%)) of the Company's
shares entitling their holders to vote in the proposed general meeting request, by
signing one or more copies of a written request in the same form and submit to the
Board to convene an extraordinary general meeting with an agenda of the meeting.
An extraordinary general meeting is required to be held as soon as practicable upon
receipt by the Board of such written request.

The Articles of Association stipulated that where the Company convenes a general
meeting, shareholders who individually or collectively hold more than three percent
(3%) (inclusive) of the total number of voting shares of the Company are entitled to
make and submit an interim proposal to the Company in writing ten (10) days before
the general meeting. The content of the interim proposal shall be within the scope
of power of the general meeting and have clear issues and specific resolutions.
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Shareholders or investors may inquire and give opinions to the Company in the

following ways:

Telephone:
Mailing address:

0898-6996 6021
Office of the Board, Office Building of Meilan International
Airport, Meilan District, Haikou City, Hainan Province

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board did not receive any request from
shareholders to convene an extraordinary general meeting.

INVESTORS’ RELATIONS

1.

Details of the classes of the Company’s shareholders and particulars on
shareholding in aggregate are set out in the “Report from the Board"” in this
annual report;

As at 31 December 2019, 226,913,000 H shares of the Company were held
by the public; and

The Company has maintained active communications with a professional
financial public relations firm and established daily communication channel
between the Company and the investors and fund managers and securities
analyst and media. The Company will publish the key operation information
on a weekly and monthly basis and report the Company's latest development
in relevant media and at the Company's website by means of press releases
and announcements in a timely manner.

By order of the Board
Wang Zhen
Chairman

Hainan Province, the PRC
30 March 2020
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ABOUT THIS REPORT
Reporting Period

The time scope of the report ranges from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019.

Release Cycle
This report is an annual report. The previous report was released in April 2019.

Reporting Scope
The contents of this Report cover Hainan Meilan International Airport Company
Limited and its subsidiaries.

Compilation Conformance

This report is compiled in accordance with the Environmental,
Governance Reporting Guide (HK-ESG) issued by the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “"Hong Kong Stock Exchange”), and refers to the Global Reporting
Initiative (GRI), Sustainability Reporting Standards (GRI Standards), Guidance on
Social Responsibility Reporting (GB/T36001) and ISO 26000: Guidance on Social
Responsibility issued by International Organization for Standardization, etc.

Social and

Data Source and Reliability Assurance

Sources of data used in this report include internal related statistical statements,
administrative files and reports, and interviews with third parties. The report is
released after being reviewed by the Board to ensure that no fictitious record,
misleading statement, or material omission are included in this report.

Reference

For the convenience of presentation and reading, “Hainan Meilan International
Airport Company Limited”
Company” or “we".

in this report may be referred as “Meilan Airport”, “the
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY MANAGEMENT

Meilan Airport attaches great importance to social responsibility management. By
establishing a social responsibility management organization system, identifying and
determining substantive topics, and integrating economic, social and environmental
responsibilities into the organization’s business activities, the Company’s social
responsibility management standards are further improved.

Social Responsibility Management Organization System
The social responsibility work organization system composed of the Board, the
Office of the Board, and the Brand Management Center, coordinate related work
on social responsibility management, and further improve the Company's social
responsibility management level.

Board: The highest decision-making body for social responsibility management,
responsible for reviewing and approving the Company's environmental, social and
annual governance report.

Office of the Board: Ensuring that the Company establishes appropriate and
effective social responsibility risk management and internal control systems,
conducts preliminary review of environmental, social and governance report and
submits it to the Company’s Board for review.

Brand Management Center: Responsible for analyzing and identifying risks and
opportunities related to social responsibility, establishing social responsibility
management policies and implementation paths, and leading the preparation of the
Company'’s environmental, social and governance report.

Social Responsibility Post: Responsible for establishing social responsibility
indicator systems and promoting the various departments implementing and
improving social responsibility management, implementing annual work in
accordance with social responsibility management goals, and participating in the
preparation of the Company’s environmental, social and governance report.

Office of the Board
EESRAE

Brand Management
Center
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Substantive Topic Management

In order to further understand the expectations and needs of stakeholders,
and improve the relevance and responsiveness of the report, we carried out
the substantive topic identification. Through analysis of the Company's internal
information and the concerns of external stakeholders, key substantive topics were

identified and key disclosures were made in the report.

3saybiy
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Impact on the Company’s Sustainable Development
RAIFERELEE

Service quality improvement

Safe operation

Targeted poverty alleviation
3"5 Tackling climate change
ALy
E Waste emissions reduction
= Bird protection Employee training
Charitable activities EARERE
RERE REEE
DEER BEHE
EHRRS
B BRI
BT
§
|
2 Energy conservation Governing Enterprises
75- and emission by Law
722 reduction Anti-corruption
;I Volunteer service Protecting employees’
B R rights
HRRRT =
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RESTRER
3>
High Highest
= HES
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Stakeholders Communication

The Company identifies key stakeholders, listens to the true voices through the
internal and external stakeholders in various channels, deeply understands and
responds to the expectations and demands of all parties, and strives to improve its

corporate social responsibility management capabilities.

Stakeholders Communication

RIE - HE@MERBHRS
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Government o Implementing national strategy ° Promoting targeted poverty alleviation
o Operation by laws ° Pay taxes according to law
° Stop corruption and bribery
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o HBESHETR
Investors ° Corporate governance improvement ° Corporate governance structure improvement
o Strengthened risk management and control ° Disclosing the Company’s information on a
regular basis
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Passengers o Service quality improvement ° Properly handle customer complaints
o Legal rights protection ° Constant passenger service improvement
° Customer privacy protection
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Stakeholders Communication

FlzE A 5 BB B R
Stakeholders Expectations and demands Our responds
AR HAE B ERR R E
Suppliers o Win-win cooperation o Fair, just and open supplier selection
o Training provision
fitpEms . afEim o D RIE - AREZEEMER
o RAE
Employees o Basic rights protection o Talent training system build-up
o Smooth access to career development o Caring for female employees and employees
o Work-life balance with difficulties
BT . RIS E AR o BEATIEIIER
. BaREERRBE . BMELZHET - £ ERHET
o FEITEERAR
Environment o Ecological environmental protection o Introduction of energy saving and
o Resource consumption reduction environmental protection technology
° Carbon footprint management
R . REERZIRIG o EREIR IR BT B A
. WA EREFE . R EE
Community o Supporting community development o Pairing assistance
o Volunteer service ° Volunteer activities
HE . SR ER o HmEEK
o EREE RS o EREERD
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Responsibility Honors

RIE - e MEEWRSE

BEXR

T

List of Awards Won by Meilan Airport in 2019 (partial)
CE-NFEFHERERE-BX(H5)

Level Awards
£33 BIFHER
International 1. On 6 March 2019, Meilan Airport was awarded the “Best Airport in the Asia-Pacific Region in 2018

National 1.

ﬁ
3
=

N = oo

(15-25 Million Passengers)” by ACI.

On 6 March 2019, Meilan Airport was awarded the "Best Airport in terms of Environment and
Atmosphere in the World in 2018 (15-25 Million Passengers)” by ACI.

On 6 March 2019, Meilan Airport was awarded the “Best Airport in terms of Infrastructure and
Convenience in the World in 2018 (15-25 Million Passengers)” by ACI.

On 28 March 2019, Meilan Airport successfully passed the review and was re-elected as SKYTRAX
five-star Airport.

On 28 March 2019, Meilan Airport was awarded the 2019 “Best Airport in China” by SKYTRAX.

On 29 November 2019, Meilan Airport was awarded the Bronze Award of ARC Awards.
ZTE-NEZARA - REACHEN —T— N\FE AR RKERS(1,500-2,5008 R EAH) | -
TE-NAF=ZARH  REACIREN T \FEEHRERELFEZERS (1,500-2,5008 4
ReE) ] -

TE-AF=ARE  REACIREN T \FEEHREERRE S REN#%(1,600-2,5008
RARAR) | -

ZZE-NAE=ZAZ+TN\B - BBSKYTRAXAE#ISEE - BFEH SKYTRAXE 215 -
ZE-NE=ZAZTNB - BT AESKYTRAXT Bl R (=R 5 #1552
ZE-NFT—RAZTNB - KEARCE AT IE N4 o

On 15 January 2019, Meilan Airport was awarded the “Best CSR Practice Award in 2018" by the 8th
China Charity Festival.
On 29 May 2019, Meilan Airport was awarded the “Five-star Parking Service Airport” in the 2018~
2019 Seminar on Airport Parking Intelligence and Operation Management Trends.
On 29 May 2019, Meilan Airport was awarded the “Top 10 Airports for Smart Parking” in the 2018~
2019 Seminar on Airport Parking Intelligence and Operation Management Trends.
On 16 August 2019, Meilan Airport was awarded the “TOP3 Ranking of National Airport Weibo
Influence in the First Half of 2019"” in the Air Transport Institutions New Media Operations
Conference.
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AIRPORT SECURITY

With the core concept of “zero tolerance for safety hazards”, the Company has
layered on safety responsibilities, further consolidated the Company’s safety
operation management foundation, promoted the improvement of safety service
quality, and effectively secured the safety bottom line.

Safety Management

The Company continuously improved the safety management system, and has set
up the Safety Management Committee and 9 secondary committees, including
Runway Safety Management Committee, FOD (Foreign Object Debris) Prevention
Committee and Fire Prevention Safety Committee, to coordinate the safety
management work of the Company. In 2019, the Company successfully passed the
ISO9001 quality control system certification audit, and the safety capital investment
was about RMB19 million, mainly used for the purchase of automobile protection
accessories, maintenance of outfield navigation light system, and the purchase of
emergency vehicles, etc.

Meilan Airport
ES ) 2

Safety Management
Committee
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(I) Improved safety management and control system. Focus on solving the
core problems of Meilan Airport in wildlife prevention, damaged aircraft removal,
pavement management, etc.; establish the SMS-DG system for the safety
management of dangerous goods transportation, systematically comb the links of
dangerous goods transportation in a full-chain manner, and promote the effective
implementation of the system by establishing the dangerous goods safety
management program manual, improving the hazard source database, carrying out
the supervision and internal audit of the system, etc.; establish an air defense safety
assessment system, obtain the index score value through the form of checklist
scoring, determine the air defense security level of the airport, and provide a basis
for security audit work.

(I1) Prevented and resolved major security risks. Identify the Company's TOP3
core safety risks, regularly review, evaluate and update the hazard pool; set up
a working group with the president of the Company as the core to carry out the
special renovation of apron operation; strengthen FOD prevention management
and realize the in-depth transformation of FOD prevention from “post-disposal”
to “source prevention”; In view of the prominent risk of bird strike, experts and
scholars from China Academy of Civil Aviation Science and Technology, China
Civil Aviation Hainan Safety Supervision Administration Bureau and Sun Yat-Sen
University were invited to hold a special seminar on bird attack prevention and
control, so as to promote the establishment of a dimensional and refined bird attack
prevention and control system.

() Strengthened long-term management of hidden dangers. \We established
a working procedure and a list of potential risks for long-term control, improved
the quality supervision and review mechanism, incorporated all problems found
in safety hidden projects, inspections and investigations, and implemented a
closed-loop management system with dedicated personnel; we carried out special
hidden danger control works, such as dangerous goods storage, FOD prevention
management, and bird attack prevention and control, and checked more than 600
safety hidden dangers; we carried out internal self-inspection and implemented
rectification of 65 self-inspection issues.
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(IV) Enhanced emergency rescue capabilities. \We established quick checklists
for emergency plans at all levels and incorporated them into the dynamic and
standardized management of the workbook. Regular emergency drills, trainings,
and business competitions were conducted; we docked with the audio and video
system of the Hainan Provincial Emergency Rescue Center, and established
regional emergency rescue resource centers and emergency rescue training bases;
we established a professional militia team at the airport and actively completed
various training and exercises.

Safety Culture

Taking safety production month events as the starting point, we coordinately carried
out a series of activities such as safety education and training, promoted safety
knowledge to employees and passengers, and created a cultural atmosphere where
everyone values safety.

(I) Organized the “Safe Production Month” event. \We have carried out a series
of activities such as safety education, business skills improvement, hidden dangers
investigation, analysis of safety situation, and emergency drills. Relying on solid and
effective work safety achievements and outstanding performance in the national
“Safety Production Month” event, highly recognized by the CAAC, Meilan Airport
was awarded the title of “National Advanced Unit of Safe Production Month"” in the
civil aviation system for the first time in 2019.

(I1) Encouraged active reporting of potential safety hazards. \We encouraged all
units to take the initiative to report through channels such as security supervision
platforms, WeChat, email and telephone. 3,881 proactive reports were received
throughout the year, and the effective rate of reports exceeded 90%.

(Ill) Safety culture promotion. \We produced and broadcast a short video animation
of aviation dangerous goods, held the activity of “Liquid Goods Propaganda Day”,
popularized the knowledge of security check-in, and called on passengers to actively
cooperate with the security check.
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Emergency Dirill for Public
Safety Incidents

FRRBEARLZE2EMESRR

Aircraft Emergency Drills in 2019
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QUALITY SERVICE PROVISION

Sincere service is the essential requirement of civil aviation as a service industry.
The Company attaches great importance to protecting the rights and interests of
customers, strives to improve the quality of customer service, properly solves
the hot issues concerned by customers, and creates a warm and beautiful travel
experience for customers.

Customer Privacy Protection

We strictly protect the passenger information from disclosure, and require the
information reporting and receiving personnel at all levels to strictly keep the
passengers’ information confidential during the transmission, and shall not forward
the passenger information or disclose the information to irrelevant personnel. If the
information is leaked due to personal reasons, the Company will strictly punish the
relevant person according to the relevant regulations.

Customer Service Quality Improvement
Through the formulation and issue of guarantee scheme, we constantly improve the
service quality control system and focus on improving service quality.

(I) Good guarantee of flight delay. \We provide information of flight dynamics,
boarding information and flight delay timely when providing the service of ticket
purchase and inquiry to passengers through the terminal broadcast and other
ways; According to the “Special Emergency Plan for Large-area Flight Delays of
the Terminal Management Department” (< [& & 12 50 K T M E AR BIE FE
2J82€)) and the quick checklist, we verify the early warning levels, information
reporting, resource coordination and disposal procedures, and timely updated the
emergency plan to ensure the effective emergency response.

() Transfer guarantee provision. During the rush hour of the flight, two
international terminal shuttle buses were put into operation to ensure fast
passenger transfers and shorten passenger waiting time.

(lll) Business environment improvement. \We carry out special inspection on
commodity safety to ensure that the marked price, quality, price tag and selling
price of commodities are in line with the reporting status; special inspections were
carried out for 7 times, and merchants’ monthly coordination meeting was held for
11 times.
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Handle Customer Complaints Properly

We have made complaints management a focus of our efforts to address the high
concentration and intensity of complaints from passengers. In 2019, the Company
received a total of 854 complaints and Suggestions from citizens’ complaint hotline
12345, consumers’ complaint hotline 315, civil aviation administration’s complaint
system, complaint reporting system, official Weibo account and Wechat public
account of Meilan Airport and other channels, with a decrease of 0.024% (10,000
complaints rate) compared with 2018.

(I) Complaint management mechanism improvement. We launched 12326
civil aviation supervision telephone service, to ensure that the passengers can find
the way, find the people and find the answer, established a “customer-centric”
service management system, formulated and issued the “ Meilan Airport Complaint
Management Measures” (CERHISIZFEIRPIE)), the “Business Notices on
Regulation of Handling and Review of Complaints in the Meilan Airport” (B 1R &8
EWHISIFIDREIEEM A EIEEBE)) and the “Business Notice on Clarification
of Passenger Complaints against Merchants” (B BBHEIRE IR EF PRI ¥R
iBE)) and the operation department’s specific procedures of compliant handling,
implementing the complaint management from the system level.

(Il) Complaint management mode adjustment. \We have set up three levels of
management agencies, namely, complaint management and supervision agencies,
complaint acceptance and distribution agencies and complaint handling agencies to
clarify the specific functions of each agency; reorganized the complaint management
program, and clarified the handling process of complaints in various channels such
as on-site complaints, telephone complaints, the CAAC complaints and media
complaints; made more specific requirements for the soothing, replying and filing
of complaints; strengthened closed-loop management through methods such as
return visits, account books and sampling supervision; accelerated the construction
of complaint management platform and the passenger service visualization system
at Meilan Airport on the basis of the docking of the Civil Aviation Consumer Affairs
Center System, and optimized the complaint handling process and improved the
handling efficiency through scientific and technological means.

MEMEBREERNBERAR P —E—NFFR
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() Complaint performance management promotion. Combining passenger
throughput and historical complaint data, scientifically set complaint management
and control indicators, decompose them into responsible departments, conduct
monthly statistical reports, open complaint channels, and strengthen management
and control efforts; through the brief analysis of weekly reports and in-depth
analysis of monthly reports, the specific complaint handling is transformed
into process control, which plays a role in strengthening complaint analysis,
implementing improvement measures, and transforming from passive processing
to active prevention; we formulate measures for issuing service performance
assessments, incorporate complaint management into daily service performance
assessments, and publish assessments on a monthly and quarterly basis, and the
human resources administration department of the Company will uniformly deliver
performance.

(IV) Strengthened the construction of complaint handling talent team.
Dynamically track and control complaint handlers from personnel qualifications,
professional training, inspection and evaluation, etc., and adopt “outbound +
internal training” to ensure that complaint handlers receive professional training;
we integrate service complaint training resources, compile typical case sets of
complaint management, and continuously summarize complaint management to
improve the ability of Meilan Airport’s complaint management.

ECOSYSTEM PROTECTION

Meilan Airport adheres to the concept of green development, strictly abides by
the "Environmental Protection Law of the PRC" ({3 AR L MEIRB(Ri#E
7£)) and other laws and regulations, continuously improves the construction
of environmental management systems, strengthens energy conservation and
consumption reduction, and improves pollution prevention capabilities. At the same
time, we work with stakeholders to create a new benchmark for the industry’s
green airport.

Meanwhile, the Company formulated and released the “Haikou Meilan International
Airport Energy Management Manual” ({8 Q<@ B #I580REZEFM)), which
includes energy system operation management, energy use management, energy
metering management, energy analysis management, energy management and
control and energy performance assessment, etc., to systematically improve the
Company's energy management level to provide guidance for energy conservation
and emission reduction.
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Emissions Management By g

()  Greenhouse Gas and Exhaust Emissions (—) RERE - BERHERK
We strictly abide by the “laws and regulations such as the Law of the PRC on BMEBEF(REARIMERR SRR A
the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution” ({Fr%E A R H A E AR VEY C ARRIFRDIBITEIET D) EXAER - T
S5 AA)) and the “Air Pollution Prevention and Control Action Plan” ({X HeE B EREMEIEREE B0 B®
SIS AN ARTTEIEHE), constantly improve the management of greenhouse BREIRBNEAZE -

gas and exhaust emissions, and take more measures to reduce the impact on
the environment.

Types and Quantity of Greenhouse Gases and Exhaust Gas Emissions

BERE BRHXEERYE

Index Unit 2019 2018
ko i —g-hf —2-N\F
Total greenhouse gas emissions tons 34,988.88 31,210.25
BERBHREE iz
Emission of greenhouse gases
(Scope 1: direct emissions) tons 500.06 567.42
REREHR(EE—  EEER iz
kg/person 0.0020 0.0023
T/ AR
Emission of greenhouse gases
(Scope 2: indirect emissions) tons 34,488.82 30,642.83
RERBEHERERE = B i
kg/person 1.42 1.27
T/ AR
Meilan Airport actively promoted the work of protecting natural health EERISEITHETT REXREHR T RiBE
protection, introduces new energy vehicles and plans to build charging WM EIEE - SlEFRERERM KRR ER
facilities through the vehicle “oil-to-electricity” project to reduce the BERHE R AEORAEFE - BBAPU(Auxiliary
consumption of gasoline and diesel; through the APU (Auxiliary Power Power Unit - RIKEEEBIE) HEB) B R R HEE
Unit) replacement facility project, we improve the utilization rate of ground B RetEERNEAE  ROREEREA
power supply and reduce the use of aviation kerosene in the field and FRAMERES  ROEZEBRERELEN - R
direct greenhouse gas emissions. Meanwhile, we introduced the energy- SlfER REAMEEEITRGRLEDEZ R LR -
saving control system of central air-conditioning and LED green lamps, and 1T— R EgeEaE B E B - RO EE
carried out a series of energy-saving renovation projects to reduce power BE RN o

consumption and indirect greenhouse gas emissions.

BEEMEBREERGARAT o —E-nsFE IO
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(I) Waste Management

(=)

We strictly abide by the relevant provisions of the “Measures for the
Administration of Dangerous Wastes” ((fEEEZEYEIZPE)) and the “Law
of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of Environment Pollution Caused by
Solid Wastes"” ((fF#E A R F1E [E 83 RE 405 IR IBHT/AE)), strictly control
the key links of waste management and the hazardous waste disposal rate is
100%.

Types and Quantity of Hazardous Waste Generated in the Past Three Years

BERYMERE
RPBEET(ERERNERIE) - (RE
ARSI E 8 R 155 RIRHETAR) 105 A
T ARSI E R WERE - BREE R
100% °

A=FELEZEEYELREYE

Hazardous waste types Unit 2018 2017
BFEBREYER B —E-hF —E-N\F —E—+tF
Used engine oll Liter 18,400 17,280
JEE 1 Ft

Tires Individual 1,353 1,208
WA &

In strict accordance with the requirements of the “State’s the Measures for
the Administration of Dangerous Wastes” ({fEMREEZE W E B HEE)), we will
hand over scrap tires to qualified companies of third parties for hazardous
waste treatment. To reduce the generation of hazardous waste, the Company
takes the following measures:

° The Company uses retreaded tires on the rear wheels to ensure safe
production, reducing tire scrap;

° We strengthen the daily inspection of vehicles, timely discover
abnormal tire, and repair them in time to avoid accelerated tire wear;
and

° We check tires from time to time, and turn over the tires according to

the wear of the tires to extend the life of the tires.

Non-hazardous Waste Emissions in the Past Three Years

RABKRERAR(EREENERIE) S
Sk RERIR TGRS S A AENA TR
BEE - BROBEHENMEL - 2RI
TEE

. REAEBRRZE2EEBAT  REEDH
Himhs - B winmES
. MAREFAFRE  REERHHETR

R RREE  BRBREBNR: &

. TEMERR - RERKERBL Y
WIGETRIE - ER&REAS -

ZFEZEEYHALEE

Type of non-hazardous waste Unit 2019 2018 2017
EEREYPER B —E-hEF —E-N\F —E—+tF
Solid waste tons 126.45 149.90 119.06
E R REEY) 1]

Domestic garbage in airport public areas tons 7,100 6,520 5,500
T35 N Hh [ de A JE B 3 L7
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Strictly abiding by the relevant contents of laws and regulations such as
the “Solid Waste Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the PRC" ({(FZE
AR B E GEREY))5 R ERE DI /A5)), we collect solid waste and entrust
professional third-party manufacturers for incineration and disposal, and
determine the effectiveness of treatment methods to achieve reduction,
harmlessness and reclamation as well as to improve the environment.
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Use of Resources

(

Energy Management

We strictly abide by the relevant requirements of laws and regulations such
as the “Promotion Law of the PRC on Cleaner Production” ({F % A R
MEEZEEREL)), and put more efforts in the management of energy
conservation and emission reduction through the improvement of energy
utilization efficiency, and contribute to the construction and operation of an
environmental Meilan Airport.

Type and Quantity of Energy Consumption in the Past Two Years

AMFREFEAEER Y E

RIE - e MEEWRSE

BiREA
(—) BEREE

HPEBETF(RE ARAMBE R EERE
EYVEERERABHAT  BBEITRIRERK
B OMREHERHERENE - RERRISHEH
GERMELERNE -

Type of energy Unit 2019 2018
RRER B —E-hF —Z—)\F
Direct energy consumption tons (standard coal) 242.48 275.71
HERRER A (R L)
kg (standard coal)/person 0.01 0.01
Fr(REE) AR
Indirect energy consumption tons (standard coal) 6,947.51 6,172.76
RSB RS A (R L)
kg (standard coal)/person 0.29 0.25
Fr(REE) AR

Meilan Airport attaches great importance to the construction of a low-carbon
and energy-efficient green airport. In 2018, it passed the level 1 certification
of Airport Carbon Accreditation of ACI. It strived to minimize energy
consumption by introducing advanced technology, replacing old equipment
and taking other measures to improve energy efficiency. During the “13th
Five-Year”, Meilan Airport invested approximately RMB43 million in over 10
energy conservation retrofit projects including bridge-mounted equipment
and ground energy equipment in replace of aircraft APU, green lighting LED
transformation, central air-conditioning energy-saving management and
control system transformation, high-efficiency wind cabinet transformation,
photovoltaic power stations, etc., which have reduced carbon dioxide
emissions by 21,000 tons, achieved annual power savings of more than 10
million kWh, and water savings of more than 400,000 tons.

In the future, Meilan Airport will continue to promote green lighting, optimize
the monitoring and control system of mechanical and electrical facilities and
the central air-conditioning energy-saving management and control system,
vehicle “oil-to-electricity” projects, accelerate the application of decentralized
photovoltaic power generation, and expand water-saving systems and
other energy-saving and emission reduction projects, optimize the “Energy
Performance Management Regulations” ({BEJRAEMEEFEE)), and under
the guideline of building a green airport, continue to promote sustainable
development strategies, strengthen energy demand management, and strive
to build an ecological green airport that is “energy-saving, environmentally
friendly, technological and humane”.

B

KHBERZERNDARA

ETHRSSEERERDENEEKBER -
RZZE-N\FBBEEBE#EEHE2ACA(Airport
Carbon Accreditation » #3585 HEMGERE) —RR
F o mES| AL FREERESEE
BAREREER  RaeRAAE - [+=51]
HARE - EEEE REHE AN ARYE4,3008 LA
B B AR 4 S b T B2 OF ﬁfﬁﬁf{ﬂﬁé*%APU‘ “
EREALEDHGE « HRZEREBEEIE RFBGE -
B EMENRE R BIE 10 E L MEE
BB -EmEe 1 8B BRTESHY
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(I) Water Resources Management

We strictly abide by the “Water Resources Protection Law” (K& RIR#E
%)) and other related requirements, strengthen sewage treatment capacity
during operation, strengthen the use of loop water technology, and minimize
the impact of sewage discharge on the environment. Meanwhile, we strictly
comply with relevant laws and regulations such as the “Water Pollution
Prevention Law of the PRC” ({2 A R FEMBIKIFEBIIAED) and the
“Standards for Comprehensive Wastewater Discharge” ({57/K4R & HEUiZ
4E)). Upon the sewage of Meilan Airport having been treated and meeting
the “Standards for Urban \Wastewater Reuse and Urban Miscellaneous Water
Quality” (G T/EKEBAEF R THAKKEZFLE)), all of it is reused for
greening and road spraying, etc., to reduce pollutant emissions.

Statistics of Water Resources Utilization in the Past Three Years

= FKERFIFIERZ &

(=) KERE®E

BPEEETORERREL)SEBRT - M
9838 % B 5 KEEIREE ) - SR b B R AKILIT &
A xREERESKERNERBENTE - [
BF - BPIBRAS BT (R AR EAMBIKSRBE
EY  CEKERAHERUEE) SRR - Tl
3555 KA R I E B (B T 5 /K B AE B A Th 3 A
FOKEIZRE) B2 BEBRE( - BERERES -
DTS R HERR o

Indicators Unit 2019 2018 2017
R B —2-NF — N\ — %
Total water consumption 0,000 tons 301.85 199.61 222.45
HFEX S

Water consumption per capita ton/capita 0.12 0.08 0.10
AFFFEK e, AR

Reclaimed water 0,000 tons 43.39 56.36 51.481
FRoKEHK S

We strengthened the management of water resource utilization. During the
construction of Meilan Airport, we adopted a reclaimed water treatment
system to reuse the reclaimed water that has reached the national first-level
discharge standard for airport green irrigation, landscape water systems, and
clean washing water. In 2019, a total of 433,900 tons of water resources
were saved.

As the Company undertakes the operation and management of Meilan
Airport, no packaging materials used in the product are involved.

Environment and Natural Resources

We attach great importance to the impact of the construction and operation of the
airport on the environment and natural resources. During the take-off of the aircraft,
it will have a certain impact on the living environment of birds. To this end, the
Company has taken a series of measures to reduce the impact on the ecological
environment.

Bird protection: In order to ensure the safety of civil aviation, it will inevitably
have a certain impact on the birds in the airport. Under the premise of ensuring
flights safety, a balance between civil aviation safety and ecological protection
is to be sought to reduce the damage to birds. In 2019, the Company continued
to promote cooperation with Hainan Academy of Forestry, Hainan Libo Animal
Protection Center, and Haikou Swan Lake Animal Base to jointly carry out research
on cherishing bird rescue and research on endemic birds unique to Hainan Island. A
total of 7 national second-level protected birds were rescued throughout the year.
In 2020, Meilan Airport will continue to uphold the concept of eco-friendly airport,
actively protect the airport and surrounding environment, and contribute to the
construction of Haikou Wetland City on the basis of ensuring safe operation.
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ANTI-CORRUPTION AND BRIBERY

The Company has compiled and published the management manual of the
disciplinary inspection and supervision department to establish and improve the
accountability for discipline inspection and supervision, and the supervision organ
organizes and coordinates the leadership system and working mechanism that
closely cooperated by relevant department for discipline inspection and supervision.
In 2019, the Company launched a special activity of “punishing corruption, digging
, and completed annual major
political, capital, and production safety project supervision.

maggots, and maintaining corporate property safety”

As of 31 December 2019, the disciplinary inspection and supervision department
has accepted and initiated 9 incident investigations, processed 6 offenders, and
proposed 20 investigation recommendations.

SUPPORTING EMPLOYEES’ DEVELOPMENT

Talent is the driving force for the sustainable development of the Company.
Adhering to the “people-oriented” philosophy of talent management, the Company
effectively protects the basic rights and interests of employees, help to realize
their own life value and creates a warm and inclusive environment to ensure
“development in career, happiness at work and quality of life for the employees”.

Protection of Basic Rights

According to the requirements of “Hainan adhering to recruiting the talents from
all corners of the world”, we will recruit in an all-rounded manner and introduce
through multiple channels, making full use of various talent introduction policies
in Hainan Province to attract and retain them. The Company recruits employees
through various channels such as school special recruitment, talent exchange
meetings and online promotion, and selects the best candidates based on several
conditions, for instance, the applicant’s educational background, foreign language
level, work experience, interview and written test performance as well as job
requirements.

((¥#%)), the "Labor Contract Law”
(¥ E)A[RJE)) and relevant laws and regulations, adhere to openness, equality,
competition, merit selection, and do not discriminate against religion, gender,
nationality, ethnicity, age, disability, marital status, etc., and resolutely forbid to hire
and use child labour and resist all forms of forced and compulsory labor. If illegal

We strictly abide by the “Labour Law”

employment is discovered, the labour relationship will be immediately terminated
and necessary measures including health inspection and financial assistance will be
taken. In 2019, there was no use of child labour or forced labour of Meilan Airport.
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The Company has always been committed to providing employees with a
safe working environment, protecting employees from occupational hazards,
strengthening the implementation of enterprise employee care according to
actual conditions, protecting employee benefits and reducing employee concerns.
According to national laws and regulations, it formulated a standardized system in
terms of overtime, attendance, vacation, social insurance, provident fund, etc., and
handled “seven social insurance and one housing fund” for employees, including
five social insurance (endowment insurance, unemployment insurance, work injury
insurance, medical insurance and maternity insurance), commercial supplementary
medical insurance, employer liability insurance and housing provident fund;
combined with the Company's actual implementation of employee care, it provided
paid annual leave which is better than that as stipulated by state regulations,
and other humanized multiple leave benefits. And employees are also entitled to
physical examination, mutual aid funds, holiday fees, birthday congratulations, sick
leave visits, wedding payment and many other special benefits. According to the
“Labor Law” ((#&);%)) and the “Interim Measures of the Implementation of Civil
Aviation about the Flexible Working Hour System and Comprehensive Calculation
Working Time System” (the Min Hang Ren Fa Document [1996] No. 81) {RME
TAER TER MG ST E TR TESE 705 (RMAZ1996]1815%)) issued
by the CAAC, in combination with the actual production and operation needs of
the Company, a working hour system combining standard working hours and
comprehensive working hours is implemented.

Employee Overview

As of 31 December 2019, Meilan Airport had a total of 1,010 employees, including
432 female employees, accounting for 42.77%, a labor contract signing rate of
100%, and a staff turnover rate of 16.14%.

We investigate the reasons for employee turnover through questionnaires and
interviews. The main reasons for leaving employees include their personal career
plans, family reasons, retirement at the legal retirement age, salary and benefits.
In order to reduce the turnover rate, we have made efforts in employee career
development, salary and welfare, employee care, etc., and formulated the “Dual
Channel Management Measures for Employee Career Development” (8 T B % %
RE@EEIR L)) and the "Employee Care Management System” (B THE &
EH|[Z)), etc., to improve employee happiness and value recognition.

Statistics of Employees in the Past Three Years
FL=FETIEREBERTF

ARE—EHRARABETIRELZE2NIERE  RES
THEBEELEES  REEENAZELXETH
B REEIRATRIBREETEECZE - REH
SOREERR e Y FHREB - HeRRBR A
BeEg&rmelcReElsE  AEITHEtR—
) BEIBHSRBR(EERR XERR - ITE
R BERR - £5RB)  BAEHTEZRR -
BEECREFEAES  SAARBEREEETH
BRHERERRENTHFRE - UAREMAMNE
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BEE - £BUE BREE  LEESEZEBREG
BF - RIBCEEE) REMB TEN(RMET AT
B TYESI MR AR E TR TERIETHE) (R AZ
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TR MEE TRKBAESHITRGE -

BETHE

HE-_Z-NAF+-A=+—"H ZEEHESEHEEET
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BHMRAEE  FTHREVAYETIHRBREETH
L IZHBRAREETEARELERS  RE
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BTHESIEET TSN tIE(BETRERRYER
BERIE) (BEIHEERHREE RAEIER
RAMBEBRE -

Name of indicators 2019 2018 2017
ERETR e —T-N\F —F—f
Total number of employees (individual) 1,010 892 933
ST HE(AN)

Total number of female employees (individual) 432 534 389
BT HE(N)

Percentage of female employees in management 28.41% 28.81% 32.41%
ERER LB T

Turnover rate 16.14% 16.54% 3.11%
BIRAR

Number of employees with disabilities (individual) 4 0 0
R AERAZA)

New job offers position (individual) 155 71 268

FEE OBl S Az (18)

100
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Employees by age in 2019
—E-NFEIFRDH

3.66% 1-29%

12.38%

10.89%

14.85%

. Aged 35 or below . Aged 36-40 Aged 41-45 Aged 46-50 Aged 51-55 . Aged 56-60
355 LT 36-408% 41-458% 46-505% 51-558% 56-605%

Employees by education background in 2019
“E-hEEIBESH

3.96%

Technical secondary Senior high . College . Bachelor’s Master’s degree
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Employees by position in 2019
—E-NWFEIBNSH

0.99% 3.66%

Senior management

BREERE PREERE EEEEE

Occupational Health

We have always attached great importance to the physical and mental health of
employees. In strict accordance with laws and regulations such as the “Safety
Production Law of the PRC" ({(fh & A R H MBI % 2 £ EJ%)) and the “ Occupational
Diseases Prevention Law of the PRC" ({fF#E A RZLMBIEZRIEE)), we
organize medical examinations, open health classes and training in preventing
occupational diseases for employees to strengthen their emotion management
and mental health. In 2019, there were 0 employees who were died or injured
due to work, and no working days lost due to work-related injuries. The medical
examination coverage rate of employees was 100%.

Promote Vocational Development

In strict accordance with the “Labor Contract Law of the PRC” ((FpZE A R HE A4
g4 [E%)), Meilan Airport formulated a “management + technology” dual-channel
promotion system for employee development, strengthened faculty training through
perfect training management system and advanced a series of measures including
curriculum design to build a diverse platform for development of employees.

102

4.06%

Middle management . Junior management . Staff at grass-roots level
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Improve training

management system

Strengthen faculty
training

IR E IR

Promote curriculum
design

The “Training System Management and Control Model” ({IZ3I8 ZE#E)), the “Training
Management Manual” ((353IIE 2 F)), the “Guidelines for Training in 2019" (=Z— A FEFIT
{E48E 5 §)) were formulated and the “Meilan Airport Post Training Outline” ((ZEE#35 m iz 555K
#47)) was revised to continuously improve the training system.

The new employee induction training management mechanism was improved to clarify and
standardize the new employee induction training management process, and strengthen the
integration of new employee into the corporate culture and environment.
FIECGEIIBREFERNX)  GEIIERFM)  (CE2E-NFHIITEERBER) -
iE‘EJ‘\K%H>> - RNER T E I E R

FEEE T ABIET B IR - Eﬂﬁﬁifﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁlkﬂﬁiﬂHAIE/ME SREETE TR EBIRFIA ©
The “Meilan Airport Lecturer Management Measures” ((EEI#I5 5B I PD%)) was developed
and a closed-loop management system of “selection, employment and training with evaluation” was

ERT RIS M

established to conduct all-round management of lecturers from five dimensions, i.e. lecturer selection
and employment, duties and responsibilities, faculty training, incentive development, and assessment
improvement.

The training, selection and recruitment of preparatory, junior and intermediate lecturers was
conducted to implement the classified management of lecturers.

The professional training for lecturers was conducted to improve their professional qualities and
training skills in all aspects.

HIECEMESRAMERINE) BUERFRTIFREEGNE
B HBEE  BROCESEREHAMETEIUEE

CHEGEREIE  BRERT - AIELE

MRIEER - V& - PRGBS RIEE - BB HERE -
RSB E R RIEIN - 2R HEERE RIFIIREE -

The “Course Development and Management Regulations” ({(ZRF2 532 E2E 12 M8 F )) was formulated
to clarify curriculum development standards and procedures, and establish resource sharing
mechanisms for internal curriculum.

19 “One Belt and One Road” (—# —#&) foreign aid training programs were developed, and 24
lecturers participated in foreign aid programs.

HIECGRIEFEMEERET) - PREAEABRERRE  BYANBREERLZHS

BRI —F— B RINSIITH B RIZ19PT - 242 B H TIRINEB R ©

Meilan Airport Management
Innovation Project Training

REWIS E IR AR B 5
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Group LeaderTraining at the Airport
W5 [RAE7SEE] PHA RS

Types and Information of Employee Training Indicators of the Company in the Past Three Years

H=FRABTEINIEREEANEE

Training indicators 2019 2018 2017
B —ZE-hEF —ZT-N\F —E—LF
Training rate of senior management (%) 100 100 100
SREREEIE(%)
Training rate of middle management (%) 100 100 100
PAREREEIE(%)
Training rate of staff at grass-roots level (%) 100 100 100
AEEBTHEIIE(%)
Training hours of senior management (hours) 101.5 54 28.5
SREIE B2 () 10.15 hours/person 3.86 hours/person 4.75 hours/person
1015/ BF A 3.86/NE A 475/NEF A
Training hours of middle management (hours) 269.5 62.5 236.5
Fh AR TR JE 3 ) (1) 7.29 hours/person 1.49 hours/person 6.06 hours/person
7.29/NBE K 1.49/ Nk A 6.06/)\BF A
Training hours of staff at grass-roots level (hours) 3,755 1,479.5 3,562
EE B TR () 3.96 hours/person 2.80 hours/person 4.08 hours/person
3.96/M B A 2.80/\BF A 4.08/NE A
Enrich Employee Life EEETAE
We value the balance between work and life of employees and organize a variety of K f1E#H 8 T TIEEAE T - HEZ B (L XEE

cultural and sports activities. Besides, we take the initiative to help every employee
including female and disabled employees and employees in need, and strive to
“solving problems, doing practical things, and seeking for benefit” for employees,
creating a happy family with dreams of employment, glory of retirement, happiness
and difficulties to share, and having a happy and healthy time.

o ARRMEIDERSELE BR  RESHHKRE
ITHERNEHRET - BHREIREE  #HES RE
B BONMTEIABESE  RIKERE  EEAS
Z  REEHE  FRREXERINEBARE -
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Caring for young employees: organize cultural and sports activities, such as literary salon for young employees, skills competition,
basketball games, football games, calligraphy and painting competitions, and Hainan Civil Aviation Sport Event.

MESFET  MATFEIXEDE ALK  £NE  BRE ZEUE SERNEISEXREY -

Organize Sports Events

HBHRREDS

Caring for female employees: Meilan Airport has created mother-and-baby rooms in the domestic departure hall of the waiting room,
and has commissioned a professional company to carry out daily management, and regularly hold lectures on mother-to-child care
knowledge for female employees during the delivery period and tourists who are mothers to grasp infant childcare practices and to
better care for the healthy growth of infants and young children.

BELEET SRS ERBERANEEBRNARZTHEE  UEIFER THEERE THRPBGEERMBRE  FEHL
BIRRFISHEMEREELERRIERS  BH0BETRNRRRER -

Mother-and-baby Room
gr=
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o Caring for employees in need: the Company has set up a love foundation to provide assistance to employees who are seriously ill
or whose families suffered from accidents. Through the establishment of files of employees in difficulty, timely grasping the family of
employees in difficulty, and starting the employee assistance channels, we actively solve the urgent needs of employees in difficulty
and retired employees through insurance claims, mutual assistance funds, and internal donations. In 2019, the Company helped 8
employees in need through the Love Foundation platform, with a funding amount of RMB150,000. Besides, an initiative was proposed
within the Company and RMB25,424 was raised for a poor employee.

J BEREST  RAKUELESE  REERIEFREEIENNWRHAS TIRHERK - BRARYRHBETITHER  MBEERNHBEEIR
B WERREEE THERE  BRABRBIER EES  AXBREFALRMBERET  RBRAKRETIMAMBEZZ - =
T-NEE RFBARLESE TR HERHMETISE  ABMEBARKISET - AREARINIERLER RIBFREIEESE
HARIME25,4247T o

Visiting Employees in Difficulty
RFERES T
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SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

Meilan Airport has established a complete supplier management system. In strict
accordance with national laws and regulations, it continued to standardize ways of
procurement to improve risk prevention and control in the procurement process,
and established a mechanism of “strict access, quantitative assessment, and
dynamic management” to strengthen suppliers assessment. The suppliers’ ability
to perform duties are enhanced through various channels, and deep cooperative
relationships were established with partners to jointly build a responsible supply
chain.

Supplier Management

We have established a comprehensive supplier management system, and regularly
evaluate the overall performance of suppliers adopting supplier hierarchical
management, to constantly improve the supplier management standards of the
Company.

Improve supplier management system

TEHEHEERA miHEREE

Strengthen supplier management

RIE - HE@MERBHRS

HEEEE
XHRSBEETTENHEREERR  BEETH
FERER  FERABZERBEI  RERBRE
RBBIE B TIBEBAEAN  B1E%  PERER]
M IR EE R BB SRR HER
MEREN BB RENSERE  HXFEE
Ba AN ERE -

HEBERE
AMEIEENHEREERR  RARERS &
- E M R A BAUETIFE - TR A
IR SRR -

=

B
2

Drive suppliers to perform their duties
FEHESESE

° The “Supplier Management Process” e

((HEmEEMRE)) and the “Small
and Medium-sized Infrastructure
Project Supplier Management
Measures” ((F/NEVEETE B HFER
ERYPE)) were formulated to clarify
the supplier introduction and exit
mechanism.

HE(RERERRE) - (PAERE
BIRRHEREIEINE) - ARHEER
SRR B H]

A hierarchical management of e

suppliers was implemented.

The performances of suppliers are
regularly and objectively evaluated to
adjust their level.

EHEEORER -
S HEREURROTHNE
ABRHEESFE

Suppliers are required to provide
information on environmental
protection and social responsibility
of the enterprise, and meet the
standards and laws and regulations
of the Ministry of Environmental
Protection on water environmental
protection and atmospheric
environmental protection.

Bk R M ENRBREML
SEARFE  BREEFRRIER
IKEIRIRE « RERBRESIZERN
TERERR ©

Supplier Introduction and Exit Mechanism

HLAERS 5| A MR

We have established a sound supplier introduction and exit mechanism, and strictly
implement the “Supplier Management Process” (({[EREIZRFZ)). As of the end
of 2019, the Company had 75 suppliers, of which 69 were introduced in 2019 and
no suppliers exited.

BREMEREERBERDE B —E—NFFR

HPEZ 2N HERSIATEDES - BRRBTH
EETERE)  HIEF-T-NEFK  AFHERH
8758 - BT NEFS AHEH6ME R HE
0fE -
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Number of Suppliers Brought In and Out

R IERT 5| BLR 1 B 8 7«
Number
Indicator (individual)
BE HE (@)
Total number of suppliers 75
HIERE A
Suppliers introduced in 2019 69
ZE-NFSEMER
Exit suppliers in 2019 0
ZE-NFREHER
Suppliers by Geographical Region
RERHES MR
Number of
suppliers
Provinces/cites (individual)
&/ e E (f8)
Hainan 44
pisTeags)
Guangdong 7
BRE
Jilin 1
HHE
Sichuan 1
pllES
Beijing 7
bl aauil
Jiangsu 5
AR )
Shanghai 4
FigT™
Hong Kong, China 2
PEEE
Hubei 2
B
Zhejiang 1
ViR
Hebei 1
Y
Total 75
CE
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CONTRIBUTE TO DEVELOPMENT OF THE
COMMUNITY

The Company actively implemented the relevant national policies for precision
poverty alleviation, provided precision assistance and voluntary service, and
contributed to good life of people.

Targeted Poverty Alleviation

Taking pairing assistance activities as the starting point, we gave full play to
the vanguard role of the party branches and party members to advance poverty
alleviation. In 2019, the Company organized a “one-on-one"” poverty alleviation
project for party branches. Twelve party branches went to poor households to carry
out poverty alleviation activities, and the accumulated poverty alleviation amount
was RMB36,000.

o Pairing and helping: We actively contacted the Wenchang City Poverty
Alleviation Office and formed a “one help one"” pairing with the Zhu Mu
family, a poor household in Ling Village, Wencheng Town, Wenchang City.
The party branch secretary and members of Meilan Airport visited the
site to know the difficulties of the families, formulated “precision poverty
alleviation” plan from financial and production aspects to focus on solving the
actual difficulties of poor households.

o Poverty alleviation by industry: \We actively mobilized company employees
to raise funds, bought chicks for poor households, and helped poor
households. We recommended poor households to set up chicken sheds and
organized them to engage in chicken farming industry to obtain additional
income.

o Ideological education: \We organized party branches and cadres to conduct
ideological guidance for poor households, to help them change their
concepts, overcome the “wait, rely, and demand” ideology, and get rid of
“mental poverty” and increase confidence in getting rich.

RIE - HE@MERBHRS

ERftEERE

EREHEERRBEREMAMBER  HREEE
% TRRBIE ARBAREFLIEBNE -

BEHKE

NEHEREHANT - RO BREXHBFARSME
BREREEER HEXRERE - —FT-NF
NEEMRAREE —H—REEE - 12@EE
FITERPRTHARDELRD  ZAPESRARE
36,0007T °

. EHEDK  THBBENEMKREM - U—F ]
BHFHEN  BXEMNBERNERP KRR
—RERERET  c SEREZHERL X8
SEED TRERERAHBE N - HIEARE
KAE - {80 AEFHEGIEMEERE 5
g BENERERFEERRE -

. EXHKE  BRPEQFEIEEED  RER
FRESE EPERPF  HEHPERPEES
W ABERPRERBESR  BERIMNIA -

. BREYE  HBEXHEHERPETER
5318 BERHEBZER RRI%E % ZEINE
8 BB ER] - EBRHERED -

BROBERAR rp ZT—NAEFER /I 09
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Volunteer Service R

The Company further developed the spirit of volunteer service, and offered various R B3 EEIGEBERGHEE - 2B A HELSBERS
volunteer services to facilitate passenger travel and actively cooperate with relevant T {F - B HFEREHIT - BB S BUFHERE TE -
government action. On 2 May 2019, the Company was honored “Haikou Youth Z—Z—AFHAZH  ArE_Z—N\FEEOML

SEERBRYIDTESHASTEREOTEESM

Volunteer Service Advanced Collective” issued by the Communist Youth League S

Haikou Committee and the Haikou Youth Volunteer Association at the 2018 Haikou O MEFEBEEREEMBERNFOMS EEEMR
Advanced Youth Collective Commendation Event. TS R RS | 42IE -

o Serve passenger travel. The Company set up volunteer counters and mobile e
inquirer to help travellers; conducted warm winter operations during the
Spring Festival in consideration of the needs of passengers, including cooking
brown sugar and ginger water for tourists to drive out the cold; organizing
activities on important holidays such as New Year, Valentine's Day, Women's
Day, to create a festive atmosphere.

o Cooperate with relevant government action. In compliance with the e
“Administrative Regulations on Smoking and Smoke Control in Meilan
Airport Terminal” (CGERSHE IS UNELEEITIEEIEIRTE)), we are responsible
for stopping smoking in non-smoking areas, discouraging and educating
smokers to enhance the image of Meilan Airport; in accordance with the
patriotic health promotion requirements of Haikou, to ensure the health of
our employees and passengers during the Epidemic, eight volunteers were
selected to assist the relevant departments to measure the temperature of
incoming passengers.

o Organize public welfare activities. \We organized volunteers to safeguard .
the unpaid blood donation activity carried out by the Company’s party
committee, maintained order on the spot, and assisted medical staff in blood
donation.

ad Al L R ]

RBHREFHIT - RUSHEEELBHAHRE -
RETHREREED  TERERFR  FEH
BFRELTE  RIRERBAMBEK  BEXR
BENE  BAH  RLHTE2HRKRA - H
WARERS  EEMARS -

BABAEEIE - TRHCGEHRSMINERE
ZEEERE)  ARGIEELEE SN RET
R HREEETEE  BE  BAEERSE
AR BREEsOmEREETFEEESER &£
ZESR £ FPREEIREAKRE S ERE
B i#IK8% HRAE 1 B AE B AR PI B IR

TTRERIBOR

ARBARED - HUTHERERATDEZHARED
BERED - #KIUEKF - BBEBARR
FRRA I TAE -

Meilan Airport was honored
“Haikou Youth Volunteer
Service Advanced Collective”
EHMISEE BOME
ERERIS R | 1E

/‘ " O HAINAN MEILAN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED »)- ANNUAL REPORT 2019



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RIE - L@ MELHRS

Case: Public Welfare Flash Mob Activity for Down’s Children

On the eve of the 29th Disabled Day in the country, Meilan Airport organized the “Public Welfare Flash Mob Activity for Down's Children”
(Down'’s Children, refers to children with down’s syndrome) in conjunction with Haikou City Federation of the Disabled, Haikou Association
of Persons with Intellectual Disability and their Relatives, International Education Institute and Music Institute of Hainan Normal University.
The Company volunteers and over 30 Down'’s Children performed the sign language song “The Same as You”, calling on people to respect
the differences in life, and calling on society to understand and caring for vulnerable groups, eliminating social discrimination against Down's
Children and enabling more people to care for the physical and mental development and future growth of Down's Children.

=Pl MEERGAERERIED

E2RE20EBEBERAY - EHERISHMAEATRAABAE BATENBEARREGE  ERMNEA2EEHE 2R - S%2R
EEM - HASNEFEREAGRNIED(FE - BEBERGAEMNRE) - RFEREH0BEFERETERECNE—H) - WEAM
BEE4w E’J%fﬁ\ FAMGREITRYREDDHE BELSHEENRNFERE RESNABEFENENT LEFURARKE -

“Public Welfare
Flash Mob Activity
for Down'’s Children”

[EEREQRRA] EH
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ESG CONTENT INDEX

ESGEEZE|

Environmental
RiE
Aspect Number of contents Contents Location
Em| EEESR EERE FERENE
A1 Emissions General Disclosure Relating to exhaust gas and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges P95-P96; P98
into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous
waste:
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with requirements of relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer.
A1 The types of emissions and respective emission data. P95
A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and direct resource (Scope 2) greenhouse gas P95
emissions in total (in tons) and where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per
unit of production volume, per facility).
A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tons) and where appropriate, P96
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tons) and where P96
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).
A1.5 Description the emissions targets set and the steps taken to reach N/A
them.
A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are P96
handled, and targets set to reduce these wastes and measures
taken to reach them.
A1 B —RIE BHERIMORERBHN  MAKETHEET  EERESEEY PI5-PI6; PI8
WEEE
(@B &
() ETFTHEITABERZZNEBEEZRIROINER -
A1.1 HERUIE KR K AR A HE B - P95
A1.2 EE@E) kEZEER(EE)RERBAZNE CANEETE) (0 PS5
BR)TEWAEESEN - BIEREHE) °
A1.3 FEEAEREENEECANAE) R(MER)BEE(MASEEE PI6
i - BIHRMAE) o
Al.4 FEEEEFEZEMASCABARE) R(WER)EE (WL EEEE P%
iz ~ BIHRMEAE) o
A1.5 HALPTET S BENE B IR R RERE L B IR EREREV T 8R - TiE A
A1.6 HEBEERBEEEYN L - REMRATLABIEE R RS PG

ERE L BRI PR -

W /I 2 HAINAN MEILAN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED >-)- ANNUAL REPORT 2019



ENVIRONMENTAL,

IRIE -

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
HeEMEBRE

Environmental

RE

Aspect Number of contents Contents Location

=) ERmER EERE FERSEVLE

A2 Use of Resources  General Disclosure Policies on efficient use of resources including energy, water and P97-P98
other raw materials.

A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, P97
gas or oil) in total (kWh in '000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).

A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of production P98
volume, per facility).

A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives, targets set and P97
measures taken to achieve these targets.

A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is P98
fit for purpose, water efficiency as well as targets set and measures
taken to achieve these targets.

A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tons), and if N/A
applicable, with reference to per unit produced.

A2 EREM —RIRE BEREREIR(BIERR - K REAM RV B EGE P97-P98

A2.1 RENESMEER SBEERWE - f3h) @EECATET P97
RETE) REE(WMAGESEN - FERMEAE) -

A2.2 ﬁ@ﬁmi&?ﬂﬁwtém”u BIERMEAHE Po8

A2.3 BERE A MR LB B iR A R RERE L B IS FTERENA 5 P97

A2.4 I SKEGE R AR LAl BE AR - A RFAKR G AT L6 P98
BRI R AEDE L B EATERER A P8R -

A2.5 HBREAAaEMHNEE UBAE) RER)BEEEUGE - TEMA

A3 The Environment  General Disclosure Policies on minimizing significant impact of issuer’s operation on the P98
and Natural Resources environment and natural resources.

A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment P98
and natural resources and the actions taken to manage them.

BERRXRER —MRHER BIRBEITALHRIBERAAEREKEAZEHBUE - P98

A3.1 HEBTHHBRREAARERNEACERECKNERGHATE P8
BITTED ©

A4 Climate Change General Disclosure Policies related to mitigation measures on the significant issues N/A
related to climate that have and may impact the issuer identified

A4 Description of major climate related matters that have or may N/A
impact the issuer and actions thereof

Ad RIREZ — MR FRIREHEE RS HBTAEEAFENERARRABBREEN TEA
REARE B ERBEE o

AT HARERAERHBTAELVENEARBHENES - RIE TEH

HETTH -
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Social
HE
Aspect
Em

Number of contents Contents

ERAR

Location

FEHENE

B1 Employment

General Disclosure

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
significant impact on the issuer on compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination and other benefits and
welfare.

P99-P100; P102

B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (i.e. full-time or part- P101-P102
time), age group and geographical region.
B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical P100
region.
B1 {&{& —MRHER ERFHM L RE  BEREA  TERE - &Y FE#HE - 2T PI9-P100; P102
b+ RIEAR LA B B A 158 AR T &Y
(@ : &
(OBFHETABERTENEMERE IRV ER -
B1.1 ZIER - EEEL (BI2BGRE) FRAEN KR ESHNESHE P101-P102
o
B1.2 RIS - FRAERN R EEIDEEERAKLLE - P100
B2 Health and Safety General Disclosure Information on: P102
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
significant impact on issuer on providing a safe working environment
and protecting employees from occupational hazards.
B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities in the past three years P102
(including the reporting year).
B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. P102
B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, P102
how they are implemented and monitored.
B2 BERHEZ2 —RIE EEARELZE2THERBELRERESHEBEMRBEN P102
(@l% + &
() ETHEITABEAZEZNHBEEZRROINER -
B2.1 BE=F(BEERFE)BFAITHRMABKELE - P102
B2.2 AT EBATIERH - P102
B2.3 F Al PR AN R B SE M R B e 245 B - PARARRARIT MBS T - P102
B3 Development and  General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for P102-P103
Training discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.
B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee P104
category (e.g. senior management, middle management, etc.).
B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and P104
employee category.
B3 #EEEII — R BEEAREE BT IIEBE R AH R MR - fatE3ES - P102-P103
B3.1 ZMRIREERN(NERERE  FREEEZ) EHAS>NXIEE P104
B e
B3.2 BRMRIREEEMNED  BHREETKEIINFIIRE - P104
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Social
HE
Aspect Number of contents Contents Location
=) ERmER EERE FERENE
B4 Labour Standards General Disclosure Information on: P99

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have

significant impact on the issuer on preventing child or forced labour.

B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid P99
child and forced labour.

B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when P99
discovered.

B4 % T %8| — R EE R = TR 45 TH) - P99
()5 &
(o) B =PI BT NAE ERZ LR EE KR DIHERL o
B4.1 iR BB E AR AR R E T RogslS T - P99
B4.2 HE B TE RIS R B A ISR FTEREE 25 - P99
B5 Supply Chain General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of supply chain. P107
Management B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. P108

B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of P107
suppliers where the practices are being implemented, how they are
implemented and monitored.

B5.3 Description of practices relating to identifying environmental and N/A
social risks of each process of supply chain, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

B5.4 Description of practices of procuring the use of environmental N/A
products and services in selecting suppliers, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

B5 ftFERE EE — R EIRHIER M IRIE Rt FEMRBUR o P107

B5.1 iR S NHEEHRA - P108

B5.2 HERAEREEENIED  MERTEBEANHREREE - LA P107
AT REER A o

B5.3 R BEEMNFEERESERSNREREGRROED - AREE TEAR
BITRERTE -

B5.4 HEREHERRRES ARREMIRENED - ARBHAR TEA

TTREERNE »




ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

m g | NN e
R - LgMERMS
Social
HE
Aspect Number of contents Contents Location
=) ERmER EERE FERENE
B6 Product General Disclosure Information on: P88-P90
Responsibility (a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
significant impact on the issuer on health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters relating to products and services
provided and methods of redress.
B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for N/A
safety and health reasons.
B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received and P93-P94
how they are dealt with.
B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting N/A
intellectual property rights.
B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures. N/A
B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how P92
they are implemented and monitored.
B6 EmEE — R ERMEHERMRENERERS BE  ERERLRILEBEEUR P88-P0
HROTER
()R
(o) B=FE 1T AN B ERZENHBERE MR PIHERL
B6.1 EENEEXEMEHTRAL 2 BEFRIEAMARKH BDLL i A
B6.2 BN E M M RIGEIRFE B LA MBS 7% - P93-P94
B6.3 i EEERRENBEEG@ANED i A
B6.4 F S 245 E BIR R EmBIWE T ° TiE A
B6.5 HIUEEEERMRE RALBEER - ARMBERITRERA - P92
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Social
HE
Aspect Number of contents Contents Location
=) ERmER EERE FERENE
B7 Anti-corruption General Disclosure Information on: P99
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with laws and regulations that have significant impact
of the issuer on bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices P99
brought against the issuer or its employees during the reporting
period and the outcomes of the cases.
B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing P99
procedures, how they are implemented and monitored.
B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training offered to directors and P99
employees.
B7 RE’S — BRI E BRI IEFE - BR - BEFRERER - P99
(@l% + &
(o) BTH 1T ANA ERZENEBER MR PR E R -
B7.1 EAlii&HﬁW%'ﬁ’éfﬁ/\Ekﬁ RBERBEVEEENESHARENEE P9
PENES
B7.2 faa P e e i R R WAR T - AR T RER X - P99
B7.3 HilmEERE TRENREFHFI - P99
B8 Community General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the community’s P109
Investment needs where it operates and to ensure its activities take into
consideration communities’ interests.
B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns, P109-P111
labour needs, health, culture, sport).
B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area. P109
B8 HERE — BRI E FRANMELERTHREEMCHLEFTENRREXBEHEERE P109
HERFEHBUR -
B8.1 LIERBEBEWHE  REFHE SIFF - RBE- XL 8 P109-PIN
B) -
B8.2 EHEIHEMBAERNEELERH) - P109




Navigable
Cities
BRI T

) routes
/  IEAAR

Meilan Airport operates a total of 297 originating routes, of
which include 261 domestic routes, 32 international routes
and 4 regional routes, and a total of 76 new routes, which
include 67 domestic routes, 9 international routes in 2019.

2019F EFHOS IR M 2071% - ERBEIR2611E -~ B
E@"TZ HEA4E ; FBEMERT6ME  EFREA6TH
ROk o
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A total of 149 navigable cities, which include 114
domestic navigable cities, 31 international navigable
cities and 4 regional navigable cities. Compared with the
corresponding period of last year, there were 19 new
navigable cities, which include 10 domestic navigable cities
and 9 international navigable cities.
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domestic navigable cities
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Guangzhou, Beijing, Xi‘an, Changsha, Zhengzhou, Shenzhen,
Wuhan, Tianjin, Chongqing, Harbin, Shanghai, Nanchang,
Shenyang, Nanjing, Hangzhou, Taiyuan, Changchun, Jinan,
Nanning, Guiyang, Lanzhou, Kunming, Shijiazhuang, Hohhot,
Xiamen, Shantou, Guilin, Chengdu, Zhuhai, Urumgi, Qingdao,
Dalian, Yinchuan, Hefei, Wenzhou, Fuzhou, Ningbo, Mianyang,
Xining, Zhanjiang, Liuzhou, Jinjiang, Yantai, Xuzhou, Zunyi,
Jinggangshan, Sansha, Yichun, Nantong, Ganzhou, Maotai,
Wanzhou, Yichang, Meizhou, Linyi, Anging, Nanyang,
Changzhou, Jining, Shaoyang, Shiyan, Foshan, Bijie,
Fuyang, Huaian, Hengyang, Baotou, Luoyang, Beihai, Hailar,
Luzhou, Changzhi, Yingkou, Huangshan, Changde, Yulin,
Handan, Lianyungang, Linfen, Anshun, Zhangjiajie, Huaihua,
Quzhou, Xiangfan, Xinzhou, Longnan, Lvliang, Xichang,
Baise, Jingdezhen, Huizhou, Qianjiang, Dazhou, Yueyang,
Yangzhou, Tangshan, Yuncheng, Yancheng, Datong, Yan'an,
Yongzhou, Wuhai, Rizhao, Xingyi, Ordos, Hanzhong, Qingyang,
Zhangjiakou, Xinyang, Liupanshui, Ulanhot, Mudanjiang,
Erenhot, Qinhuangdao
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| international navigable cities
) | BEEEESRT
Almaty, Pattaya, Osaka, Busan, Kuching, Hanoi, Ho Chi Minh City,
Kyiv, Kuala Lumpur, Phnom Penh, Luang Prabang, Rome, Manila,
Mandalay, Bangkok, Moscow, Melbourne, Perth, Cheongju,
St. Petersburg, Seoul, Bandar Seri Begawan, Surabaya, Vientiane,

Sihanoukville, Sydney, Siem Reap, Singapore, Johor Bahru, Nha
Trang, Jakarta
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z_" regional navigable cities
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Hong Kong, Taipei, Macau, Kaohsiung
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wang Zhen, aged 57, graduated in software engineering from Dalian University
of Technology (Ki#IE T K&) in December 2009. He is currently the chairman
and the Executive Director of the Company. From July 1983 to October 1992,
he worked for Xinjiang Airlines Aircraft Repair Plant (¥1iEf1 2 A &7 RIEEE )
consecutively as the mechanic staff, the machinist, the maintenance leader, and
the deputy workshop director. From March 1993 to December 2002, he worked for
Hainan Airlines Co., Ltd. (8EM D BRAF]) consecutively as the mechanic
staff, the vice captain of the engineering department, the manager, the assistant
to the department general manager and the branch department manager of the
maintenance department, the vice general manager of the human resources
department,the chief of the production operation center,vice executive president
and the assistant of the executive president. From December 2002 to May 2003,
he served as the president of Sanya Phoenix International Airport Co., Ltd. (=52 /8l
B BB #35 R & L2 B]). From March 2003 to November 2006, he consecutively
served as the chief executive officer and the general manager of the Company.
From November 2006 to January 2007, he served as the vice executive president
of HNA Airport Group Limited (Bf#% B AR 2 F]). From January 2007 to
September 2008, he served as the vice executive president of HNA Airport Group
Holdings Limited (B SIEREE AR A a]). From September 2008 to July
2012, he worked for Sanya Phoenix International Airport Co., Ltd. (= 3z /B2 BIER
5 B R & LA B)) consecutively as the president, the deputy commander of the
construction management department, the executive chairman of the board and the
chairman of the board. From July 2012 to May 2013, he served as the deputy leader
of the Meilan Airport aviation industrial park project promotion group of the airport
management division of HNA Industry Holdings (Group) Co., Ltd. (8 & 2% (%
E)ABR A R]). He served as the vice chairman of the Company from May 2013 to
May 2014 and as the chairman of the Company from May 2014 to January 2018.
And he also served as the leader of Xinjiang modern logistics preparation group of
HNA Modern Logistics Group Co., Ltd. (BIRARYREBER Q&) from January
2018 to March 2018. He served as the vice chairman of the board of Hong Kong Air
Cargo Carrier Limited (B8 &EMZH R A 7)) from March 2018 to August 2018. He
has served as an Executive Director, the chairman and a member of the Nomination
Committee and the Strategic Committee of the Company since October 2018.
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Mr. Wang Hong, aged 52, graduated from Central China Normal University (3£ £
# K E) in human resources. From August 1985 to January 2003, he successively
worked as a wireless correspondent at Yichang Station of Civil Aviation (R E &
k), the project leader of construction headquarters of Yichang Sanxia Airport (H &
= gk 1552 SR $51E 5F), the deputy director and then the director of the command
center of Yichang Sanxia Airport Co., Ltd. (B & = k#1551 1)), the manager of
Ground Service Branch of Yichang Sanxia Airport Co., Ltd. (S Z IS ERE T
NAEME) RIS /A ) and the director of the command center of Yichang Sanxia
Airport Co., Ltd. (E& ZIK#IZ B R E(T A RI1EIEF L)), He also successively held
various positions in Yichang Sanxia Airport Co., Ltd. (EE& = K#IS5HR ST F),
as the assistant to the general manager, the deputy general manager, the general
manager and then the chairman of the board from January 2003 to July 2017. From
July 2017 to March 2018, he successively served as the president of Sanya Phoenix
International Airport Co., Ltd. (ZZ: B EIBIR#ZH R E£72 7)) and the deputy
head of the South China Sea modern logistics preparation working group of HNA
Modern Logistics Group Co., Ltd. (8M IR ¥REEBRR A F]). He worked as the
deputy general manager of the Parent Company from March 2018 to July 2019,
and has served as the general manager of the Parent Company since July 2019. He
has worked as the president of the Company since March 2019 and an Executive
Director since June 2019.

Mr. Wang Hexin, aged 47, graduated from Renmin University of China (FE A R X
&) in information management. From July 2003 to January 2008, he successively
worked as the deputy general manager, the general manager, the vice chairman
and then the chairman of Hainan Xinglong Hot Spring Kangle Garden Co., Ltd. (/&
#EE RFLEARAF), and the assistant to executive president of HNA Group
Co., Ltd. (M EE AR A F]). From January 2008 to July 2009, he successively
served as the vice chairman and president, and then the chairman of HNA Property
Holding (Group) Co., Ltd.(8#1 & ¥ 1Z% (£ @) B R 2 7)), and concurrently served as
the general manager of infrastructure management department of HNA Group Co.,
Ltd.(B A EE AR A A]). From July 2009 to April 2013, he successively worked as
the executive chairman of HNA Retailing Holding Co., Ltd. (M 2R AR A7),
the executive vice president and then the chief executive officer of HNA Industry
Group Co., Ltd. (B E % E£E AR A A]), and the senior vice president and then the
vice president of finance investment department of HNA Industry Holdings (Group)
Co., Ltd. (EME EIZRR(EE) AR F)). From April 2013 to June 2015, he served
as the vice president of finance investment department of HNA Property Holding
(Group) Co., Ltd. (B & ZZ& (5 E) B R 2 E)) and then the vice president of HNA
Property Holding (Group) Co., Ltd. (& & 2% % (5 B) B R 2 &).From June 2015 to
May 2018, he has served as the vice president of Hainan Air Travel Transportation
Service Co., Ltd. (BFEMIKZBARFEER A ). He has served as the venture
investment president of the Company since May 2018 and an Executive Director
since June 2019.
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Mr. Yu Yan, aged 38, graduated from Huagiao University (B3 EE X&)
in Quanzhou City, the PRC, with a bachelor’'s degree majoring in business
administration in July 2005. He is currently the Executive Director and chief financial
officer of the Company. Mr. Yu served as the director and the manager of cash flow
management center of the financial planning department in Hainan Airlines Co., Ltd.
(BRIM =D AR A A]) from July 2007 to April 2008 and from April 2008 to July
2013, respectively. From August 2013 to May 2016, he served as the vice president
and chief financial officer of Baoji Market Co., Ltd. (BZ 5B R A F)). From May
2016 to June 2017, he served as the president of Shanghai Jiadeli Supermarket
Co., Ltd. (E/BREFEBH AR 2 A)). From June 2017 to August 2017, he served as
the general manager of Shanghai Branch of Kupu Trading Co., Ltd. (Et$EZ AR
A= EESAT]). Mr. Yu also served as the chief financial officer of Sanya Phoenix
International Airport Co., Ltd. (= 25 Bl E\BI B 5 B R & £ 7)) from August 2017
to August 2018. He has served as the chief financial officer of the Company since
August 2018, an Executive Director since December 2018 and a member of the
Remuneration Committee and Strategic Committee since March 2019.

Mr. Xing Zhouijin, aged 54, has served as the company secretary of the Company
since 25 August 2009, and has served as an Executive Director since 16 March
2018. Mr. Xing graduated from the Anhui Normal University (ZZ# A &8 K2, in
Wuhu, Anhui Province, the PRC, majoring in financial management. He also has a
bachelor degree in laws and a title of economist. Mr. Xing served as the section
chief of personnnel division and office director of Sanya Phoenix International
Airport (=588 B\ B #£15) and Haikou Meilan International Airport (/& [ 3= 8 B R 1
#%). He has been engaged in the management and operation of the Company since
2002 and fully participated in the listing of H shares of the Company and worked
as the secretary to the board of directors of the Parent Company. He has also been
responsible for handling the results disclosure and daily operation of the Board after
the listing of the Company.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Nap Kee, Joseph, aged 59, was re-appointed as a Non-executive Director
in December 2016. Mr. Chan has over 30 years of experience in commercial and
investment banking, and asset management. From 1994 to now, Mr. Chan has
been a founding partner of Oriental Patron Financial Group (R % ¢ g% &) where
he is also an executive director of Oriental Patron Asia Limited (BRZEZ5MNAER A
Al) and a non-executive director of Oriental Patron Securities Limited (5 2 35 )i &
A AR A F]). Mr. Chan was appointed as an executive director of Kaisun Holdings
Limited (s\IIB¥EA% A BRE A &]), which is listed on GEM of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 8203.HK), in September 2008. He is currently the chairman
and executive director, member of remuneration committee and nomination and
corporate governance committee of Kaisun Holdings Limited (SlIB#5i A BR A 7).
He is also as a non-executive director of North Asia Strategic Holdings Limited (1b g8
HREEIEAL B BR A B)), which is listed on GEM of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (Stock
Code: 8080.HK), from February 2013 until 4 March 2016, and re-designated as an
independent non-executive director and further appointed as an additional member
of each of audit committee, remuneration committee, and nomination committee
of North Asia Strategic Holdings Limited (1t en SR E&IEAL AR A F)). On social
services, Mr. Chan is a member of the 12th Committee of the People’s Political
Consultative Conference of Hubei Province, the Chairman of Silk Road Economic
Development Research Centre, the Chairman of Hong Kong Energy, Mining and
Commodities Association Limited, vice chairman of China Hong Kong Economic
Trading International Association, vice president of Federation of Hong Kong Hubei
Associations, chairman of Banking, Finance & Securities Committee of Hong Kong
Macau and Myanmar Chamber of Commerce & Industry, honorary advisor of
Xinjiang Association of Hong Kong and executive vice president of the Hong Kong
Poverty Alleviation Association Limited.

He received his MSc in international marketing from the University of Strathclyde,
BSc in aviation management from Coventry University and a diploma in China
investment and trade from Peking University.

He holds licenses respectively of Type 1 (dealing in securities), Type 4 (advising on
securities), Type 6 (advising on corporate finance), and Type 9 (asset management)
under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") (cap. 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong).
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Mr. Yan Xiang, aged 56, was re-appointed as a Non-executive Director in
December 2016. Mr. Yan graduated from Peking University, where he received a
bachelor’s degree in economics and a master’s degree in economics. From January
1988 to August 1991, he served as a teaching assistant and lecturer in Economics
School at Peking University. Since August 1991, he has been a research fellow with
the Research Center of the People’'s Government of Hainan Province (%4 BT
T gT A L), the general manager of Hainan Securities Exchange Center (8 REH R
S0 and the president of Hainan Securities Company Limited (8R4 &5 A a)).
He had concurrently been a director of Henan Zhongfu Industrial Co., Ltd. (ji] @9
FEERMH AR AR, which is listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange(Stock Code:
600595.SH), and an independent director of China United Travel Company Limited
(Bl HR & B 19 B BR A B]), which is listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange(Stock
Code: 600358.SH). Mr. Yan currently serves as the chairman of the China Region
of the Oriental Patron Financial Group (R & g5 ) and the president of the
Oriental Patron Resources Investment Limited (RE&ZJRIEEGR A A]). Mr. Yan
had concurrently been the executive director of Hainan Development Promotion
Association (SR FEE# ), the committee member of Experts Committee in
Research of National Debts and Futures (B - ISR EKRZ EE) and the
committee member of Credit Assessment Experts Committee of China Credit
Securities Assessment Limited (REISEE S BERATHEAAREREZER).

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Deng Tianlin, aged 71, was re-appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director in October 2017. He also acts as the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee, the chairman of the Audit Committee and members of the Nomination
Committee and Strategic Committee. Mr. Deng is a certified public accountant, a
senior member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a senior
accountant and was a guest professor of Hainan University (85 AZ). Mr. Deng
has extensive experience in the field of finance and accounting. He previously
served, among others, as the section chief in the personnel division of Hubei
Provincial Department of Finance (#i1t%4& BfExEE), a deputy director of Fang County
Tax Bureau in Hubei Province (#iit%& 5 %Fi7% /), the chief of the loan section of
the World Bank Group and a deputy director of the Department of Agricultural Tax
(BEBEE). Mr. Deng was appointed by the Organization Department of the CPC
Central Committee (PR 40%%3F) to Hainan Provincial Department of Finance (/87
K BIERER) as a director of the accounting department and the secretary general of
Hainan Provincial Institute of Certified Public Accountants (B8R4 s M &t HE)
in 1990. Mr. Deng had been an independent director of Hainan Airlines Holding Co.,
Ltd. (SR ZEIE RIS A BR A A)), which is listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
(Stock Code: 600221.SH; HNA B Shares: 900945), from April 2012 to October 2019.
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Mr. Fung Ching, Simon, aged 51, was re-appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director in December 2016. He has also served as the chairman of the
strategic committee and members of the Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee. Mr. Fung graduated from the Queensland University of Technology in
Australia with a bachelor's degree, majoring in accountancy. Mr. Fung is a Hong
Kong resident. He is a fellow member of the CPA Australia and a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Fung worked in
PricewaterhouseCoopers from 1994 to 2004, and he served as the chief financial
officer and secretary to the board of directors of Baoye Group Company Limited
(BEEBERMH AR AR, which is listed on the main board of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 2355.HK), from 2004 to 2010. Mr. Fung has served
in Greentown China Holdings Limited (4% # BI3Z % AR A 7)), which is listed
on the main board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 3900.HK), as
the chief financial officer and company secretary from August 2010 to December
2019. Mr. Fung has served as the chief financial officer of Logan Property Holdings
Company Limited (€ ¥ E1E AR B R A &), which is listed on the main board of the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 3380.HK), since January 2020. Mr. Fung
has over 15 years of experience in managing finance and accounting functions,
mergers and acquisitions, fund raising and investor relations for PRC companies
listed in Hong Kong, and has over 10 years of experience in auditing, accounting
and business advisory with “Big-4” international accounting firms. Mr. Fung is
also a non-executive director of Baoye Group Company Limited currently, and he
has served as an independent non-executive director of China Logistics Property
Holdings Co., Ltd (FFBI¥i% & E1E IR AR 2 7), which is listed on the main board of
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 1589.HK), since July 2016.

Mr. George F Meng, aged 76, was re-appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director in December 2016. He has also served as a member of the Audit
Committee. Mr. Meng graduated from Civil Aviation University of China (F B R
EB3) in 1966, majoring in radio communication and English language. In 1972, he
entered into Tianjin Foreign Studies University (X3EZ4MNZEAZ) for further study
in English language. From 1984 to 1991, he studied the FAA Aircraft Dispatcher
Training Courses in Aviation Training School, Long Island, New York, the United
States, the Advanced Training in Aviation Course with Ansett Airlines, and MBA
course at Oklahoma City University. From 1966 to 1988, Mr. Meng served various
positions including the radio station master of communication department of CAAC
Chengdu Administration (B R EEE ), the dean of the technical English
department of Civil Aviation University of China (F B R EZFz), and the deputy
director of CAAC Training Center (FBIRMFI#RF 1), Since 1991, he has been a
director and the general manager of China Resource Ltd., USA (R E#IEBR AR
(3H)). Since 2000, Mr. Meng has been the president of Soaring Eagle Industrial
LLC., USA (EERE T %2 7]). Since September 2010, he has been the principal
of Northern New Jersey Huaxia Chinese School (3B # E fR XX 2R 4E 355 %) (non-
profit organization). He has served as the general manager (United States) and
certified senior translator of Hua Ling Consultant Inc. (22332 &) in Toronto,
Canada, since January 2012.
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Mr. He Linji, aged 63, was re-appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company in May 2018, and served as the chairman of the Nomination
Committee and a member of the Strategic Committee. Mr. He graduated
from Hainan University (8® AX£) in economic law (undergraduate course) in
December 1999 and graduated from Wuhan University (E/ZAXZ%) in economic
law (postgraduate course) in December 2000. He is a third-grade senior judge (=
HEMPEE) recognized by the Supreme People’'s Court of China in September
2006 and was awarded “Meritorious Service Medals in Fairness” by the Supreme
People’s Court of China on 22 April 2016. Mr. He has extensive experience in the
field of law. He served successively as the vice president and the president of
Haikou Military Court of Guangzhou Military Area (BN E &8 0 F £ABT) from
January 1992 to August 1998. He also successively held the positions of the
deputy chief of discipline inspection Group, the director of supervisory office and
the presiding judge of case filing chamber and member of judicial committee of
Haikou Intermediate People’s Court (& O A 4% A RJEBT) from September 1998 to
February 2004. Mr. He was the president of the People’s Court of Longhua District,
Haikou (/& 0 M 8E & [& A R JABR) from March 2004 to August 2010. Subsequently, he
served as a minister-level judge (IEEZ 422 #] &) and a member of judicial committee
of Haikou Intermediate People's Court (&AM H H A RERE) from August 2010 to
September 2013. Mr. He has been full time member of judicial committee of Haikou
Intermediate People's Court (8 A1 & A RJEBT) since October 2013.

SUPERVISORS

Mr. Liao Hongyu, aged 41, obtained a bachelor’s degree majoring in economic law
from Southwest University of Political Science & Law (P8 BUAAZ) in Chongging
City, the PRC. Mr. Liao successively served as various roles in HNA Group Co., Ltd.
(B EE AR A R]). He served as a legal assistant from October 2001 to May 2004,
as a senior legal counsel from May 2004 to October 2007 and as the legal manager
from October 2007 to October 2009. He also served as the deputy general manager
of comprehensive management department and the deputy general manager of
risk control department of HNA Tourism Management Holding Co., Ltd. (/8 fiik %z
BRI B R AF]) from October 2009 to January 2010 and from January 2010 to
August 2010, respectively. From July 2010 to April 2012, Mr. Liao served as the
deputy general manager of compliance department of Hainan Airlines Holding Co.,
Ltd. (R Z=iE RIS BB A A)), which is listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
(stock code: 600221.SH). Mr. Liao successively held various positions in HNA
Tourism Group Co., Ltd. (Bfiik#E & B B R A F]), including as the assistant to
president from April 2012 to April 2015, as the chief risk control officer from April
2015 to December 2015 and as the risk control director from December 2015 to
January 2016. Mr. Liao also worked as the president of HNA Innovation Co., Ltd. (/&
Al # %15 AR A 7)), which is listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code:
600555.SH), from January 2016 to February 2017 and as the chairman of the board
and the president of Sanya Phoenix International Airport Co., Ltd. (=37 Bl /2 Bl B 1
HHMREEAF]) from February 2017 to April 2017. He also served as the chairman
of the board and the president of HNA Airport Group Co., Ltd. (&5 E B AR A
Al) from April 2017 to January 2018. Mr. Liao served as the chairman of the Board,
an Executive Director and a member of the Nomination Committee from January
2018 to October 2018. He also served as a member of the strategic committee of
the Company from January 2018 to March 2019, the vice chairman of the Company
from October 2018 to March 2019, and a Non-executive Director from October
2018 to June 2019. He has served as an independent representative Supervisor and
the chairman of the Supervisory Committee since June 2019.

126

A/RELRE 635 — T \FHABENZERA
REVBUFRITES  UEFRDBEZEGIFEREE
ZEGZE - AEAR-NNANF+TZARERER
REBEEEZEXEARMRB)ER 22T F+ - AFX
REEABREZZEXEFRERE) - FR-ZFERX
FAARTEERARERBE=ASPETES
RZZE-—RENAZ+ZH BFEES ARERE
FTRERVRE - (RENERRZBLELR - &
R—ANZF—AZ—-ANANF)\AHME - EREE
EMNEREOFERERBRERERER - R—LUNF
NAZ-ZZTMF - AHM - SRBEEEATHHRA
RiEREBARAR BEREFXIE UREERLEE
HEEEZE - MEAR_ZZENF=AZ_Z2—-%
FANASMEEEOTEERAREREKE R - RZF
—EFENAZ-Z-=FAAHREREOTHHA
RERLEMEANE BEHZEEZE -B-_F—=
FHAREEEOTHARAREREHLZEGERE

B o

EEXEeRs

BIIF&E 4155 RPREEMAREEKZEE
BEN  FELEEL  BARESABEDINERS
BATANTRABA - KA —ZE—F+AZ-_ZSTWME
FAEMEIEYE B_STNFRAE_ZTLF+
BASHEEE  UERB - ZT+F+AE-_TTHE
+ABEKER - BB _ETNF+AZE=ZE—F

—ARB_Z—ZEF—RAE_Z—TF)\ AN RIELE
MIRBEE IR IR B IR A ARG B IR0 KRR 12 5 2P Bl 48
KB Q- -TELAZ_FT-_—FNH B4
TEEMEEBRRHERAR (R LR EM - BER
5 : 600221.SH) &R IPEIBLIE - BRELERIEM
IREEEERARMERZERY  BEA-_2— =40
RE-Z—hFNAETEEE BT —AFNA
EEZ-RFT+-_RAEFREE UEKBZZT—AF
+Z AR RF—AETRERE - BRETREZ
T RNF-ARE-ZT—tF - ARTEMEFTRNER
AR (A ERFT ET - IRZERES © 600555.5H) 2 B
B-E+tH - Az T +ENAET=5EEEE
BEERETAREERIEY B2 —+FMARE
ZE-N\F-AEAEMESEEERAREERER
H BZZE-\F—AZE-_Z—)\FtAEIEER"
BTESERIREEEENE - BN /\F—AZ
—E-NFZAEEERRAREKEZEEKE R2F—
NE+AZZZ—NFZAETARARESE ¥ H
—E- N\F+AEE-NFANAREIENTEE - B
TE-NFEANABREABURREERERSERFE -

HAINAN MEILAN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED b-)- ANNUAL REPORT 2019



DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

4+

]

Mr. Zhang Shusheng, aged 83, is a senior reporter. He was re-appointed as an
independent representative Supervisor in December 2016. He graduated from the
department of Chinese, Lan Zhou University (B X22) majoring in Han literature.
He served as the officer at Youth League Committee of Gansu Province (& & B H
AT Z) and concurrently a reporter at Gansu Youth Daily (H &8 & F#4t). He
once worked as a newspaper editor and a reporter for Gansu Daily (H & H #+t) and
as the chief reporter stationed at Gansu Province for People’s Daily (AR H#R#t).
In June 1994, he was re-designated to China Civil Aviation News ({7 B R #isR) )
working as the chief editor and Party branch secretary and was responsible for the
management of China Civil Aviation News. During the term of office, he had been
the vice chairman of Gansu Province Journalist Association (HEB& B L& HE
(REE W), the president of the Association for Resident Correspondent in Gansu
Province (P REZEEFEE HERLEHEE), the managing director of China Press
Cultural Advancement Association (1 BI#TE S {2 # &) and a deputy chairman of
the Association of China Industrial Newspapers (F1 Bl ZE 2 1% &), etc.

Ms. Liu Guiling, aged 52, graduated from the Party School of C.P.C. of Hainan
Province (FF /8R4 E/) in Hainan Province, the PRC, majoring in economic
administration, and currently serves as the general manager of freight department
of the Company. Ms. Liu served as an employee of passenger traffic section of
operation department of Air China Limited (BB i ZE f& 15 B R A R]), which is
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 601111.SH), from July 1989
to April 1992. She also served as an employee of ticket office and the deputy
head of freight office of transportation department in the Hainan Bureau of Civil
Aviation Administration of China (Bl FAfnZE /@84 B) from April 1992 to April
1996 and from April 1996 to February 1998, respectively. From February 1998 to
March 1999, she served as the deputy head of business dispatch office of Haikou
Dayingshan Airport (& 0K [I#15). Ms. Liu successively held various positions
in the Parent Company, including as the deputy head of business dispatch office
of the terminal management company from March 1999 to May 2000, as the head
of passenger service department of the terminal management company from
May 2000 to November 2000 and as the manager of passenger service office of
ground service department from November 2000 to August 2002. She also served
various roles in the Company, including as the manager of business office of ground
service department from August 2002 to February 2004, as the deputy general
manager of ground service department from February 2004 to August 2004, as
the manager of business office from August 2004 to May 2007, as the general
manager of service department from May 2007 to October 2008, as the general
manager of ground service department from October 2008 to September 2010,
as the general manager of freight department from September 2010 to July 2012
and as the general manager of security check department from July 2012 to March
2014. From April 2014 to February 2015, Ms. Liu served as the general manager
of Tangshan Sannvhe Airport Management Co., Ltd. (FIL =2 A5 EREHE R
7)) and from February 2015 to January 2016, she served as the general manager
of freight department of Sanya Phoenix International Airport Co., Ltd. (= 3z/El /Bl
BI5E R E LA R]). Ms. Liu also served as the general manager of terminal area
management department of the Company from January 2016 to September 2016
and has been the general manager of freight department of the Company since
September 2016.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Wang Hong, aged 52, graduated from Central China Normal University (27l
& KE) in human resources. From August 1985 to January 2003, he successively
worked as a wireless correspondent at Yichang Station of Civil Aviation (R E & u4),
the project leader of construction headquarters of Yichang Sanxia Airport (E & =
WIS R FEIEED), the deputy director and then the director of the command center
of Yichang Sanxia Airport Co., Ltd. (B & =&k 3538387 ), the manager of Ground
Service Branch of Yichang Sanxia Airport Co., Ltd. (B & = Ik#15 B[R & A 8l
AR5 72 7)) and the director of the command center of Yichang Sanxia Airport
Co., Ltd. (& =B I5ER & LA ). He also successively held various positions
in Yichang Sanxia Airport Co., Ltd. (& = KI5 E R EEAA]), as the assistant
to the general manager, the deputy general manager, the general manager and
then the chairman of the board from January 2003 to July 2017. From July 2017 to
March 2018, he successively served as the president of Sanya Phoenix International
Airport Co., Ltd. (= 35 Bl EIEI B #35 B R & £ 2 &) and the deputy head of the South
China Sea modern logistics preparation working group of HNA Modern Logistics
Group Co., Ltd. (BMIRAYREEBR Q). He worked as the deputy general
manager of the Parent Company from March 2018 to July 2019, and has served as
the general manager of the Parent Company since July 2019. He has worked as the
president of the Company since March 2019 and an Executive Director since June
2019.

Mr. Wang Hexin, aged 47, graduated from Renmin University of China (f B A R X
&) in information management. From July 2003 to January 2008, he successively
worked as the deputy general manager, the general manager, the vice chairman
and then the chairman of Hainan Xinglong Hot Spring Kangle Garden Co., Ltd. (&
MR8 RELEAR AT, and the assistant to executive president of HNA Group
Co., Ltd. (BMEE AR A F]). From January 2008 to July 2009, he successively
served as the vice chairman and president, and then the chairman of HNA Property
Holding (Group) Co., Ltd.(8#1 & ¥ 1Z% (£ E) AR 2 7)), and concurrently served as
the general manager of infrastructure management department of HNA Group Co.,
Ltd.(B A EBE AR A F]). From July 2009 to April 2013, he successively worked as
the executive chairman of HNA Retailing Holding Co., Ltd. (Bfn e G R A 5),
the executive vice president and then the chief executive officer of HNA Industry
Group Co., Ltd. (B E X £ EHFBR 2 A)), and the senior vice president and then the
vice president of finance investment department of HNA Industry Holdings (Group)
Co., Ltd. (B E X R(EE) AR A F]). From April 2013 to June 2015, he served
as the vice president of finance investment department of HNA Property Holding
(Group) Co., Ltd. (B E ZEZ&X (£ E) B R A ) and then the vice president of HNA
Property Holding (Group) Co., Ltd. (& & %% (5 B) AR 2 &).From June 2015 to
May 2018, he has served as the vice president of Hainan Air Travel Transportation
Service Co., Ltd. (BFEM KR BARFE B2 A]). He has served as the venture
investment president of the Company since May 2018 and an Executive Director
since June 2019.
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Mr. Yu Yan, aged 38, graduated from Huagiao University (B3 EE X&)
in Quanzhou City, the PRC, with a bachelor’'s degree majoring in business
administration in July 2005. He is currently the Executive Director and chief financial
officer of the Company. Mr. Yu served as the director and the manager of cash flow
management center of the financial planning department in Hainan Airlines Co., Ltd.
(BRI Z=ID AR A A]) from July 2007 to April 2008 and from April 2008 to July
2013, respectively. From August 2013 to May 2016, he served as the vice president
and chief financial officer of Baoji Market Co., Ltd. (BZ 5B R A F)). From May
2016 to June 2017, he served as the president of Shanghai Jiadeli Supermarket
Co., Ltd. (E/BREFEBH AR 2 A)). From June 2017 to August 2017, he served as
the general manager of Shanghai Branch of Kupu Trading Co., Ltd. (Et$EZ AR
A= EESAT]). Mr. Yu also served as the chief financial officer of Sanya Phoenix
International Airport Co., Ltd. (= 25 Bl E\BI B 5 B R & £ 7)) from August 2017
to August 2018. He has served as an Executive Director since December 2018 and
a member of the Remuneration Committee and Strategic Committee since March
2019.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Xing Zhouijin, aged 54, has served as the company secretary of the Company
since 25 August 2009, and has served as an Executive Director since 16 March
2018. Mr. Xing graduated from the Anhui Normal University (Z# A& A2, in
Wuhu, Anhui Province, the PRC, majoring in financial management. He also has a
bachelor degree in laws and a title of economist. Mr. Xing served as the section
chief of personnel division and office director of Sanya Phoenix International Airport
(=2 BB BB #15) and Haikou Meilan International Airport (/& 0 355 BB #415).
He has been engaged in the management and operation of the Company since
2002 and fully participated in the listing of H shares of the Company and worked
as the secretary to the board of directors of the Parent Company. He has also been
responsible for handling the results disclosure and daily operation of the Board after
the listing of the Company.
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In 2019, the aviation and tourism industries in Hainan Province has embraced new development opportunities supported by policies
such as the construction of China (Hainan) Pilot Free Trade Zone (Port). Focusing on the strategy of building a regional hub airport and
serving the nation’s “One Belt and One Road” (—#—#&) initiatives, and adhering to the deployment of key tasks such as enhancing the
internationalization of Hainan International Tourism Island, the Group sized up the trend of events, expanded the coverage of route network
and enhanced accessibility, which made the international aviation market show a sound development momentum.
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| Market Policy
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In 2020, Hainan Province will boost the construction of an air traffic hub with full
coverage reaching “North-South and East-West". By cooperating with relevant
departments, the Hainan Provincial Department of Transportation will fight tooth
and nail to increase the route from Hainan to Beijing Daxing International Airport,
formulate air cargo subsidy measures, seek for the development of related
industries such as drone logistics, and explore the construction of a global general
aviation network, for the sake of strengthening the coordinated development
of general aviation and transportation aviation, improving air traffic capacity and
expanding the development spaces of civil aviation.
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~ Off-shore Duty-free Policy
DIk N7 Pavaw
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According to the spirit of the Provincial Business Work Conference in 2020
convened by Hainan Provincial Department of Commerce, Hainan will expand the

off-shore duty-free policies and promote tourism consumption, building Hainan
into an international consumption center city.
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Civil Aviation Policy
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In 2019, the CAAC issued the “Implementation Opinions on Accelerating
the Development of Hainan’s Civil Aviation Industry to Support Hainan’s
Comprehensive Deepening Reform and Opening Up" (BRI GRRATEESE
EXHEmEE M ERBMEREZR)) (the “Implementation Opinions”),
aiming to comprehensively facilitate the high-quality development of Hainan's
civil aviation industry from multiple fields such as airlines, infrastructure
construction, policy, funding, and talent training, and support Hainan to build an
aviation regional gateway hub for the Pacific and Indian Ocean. The execution
of the Implementation Opinions speeded up the construction of Hainan's civil
aviation infrastructure, boosted the opening of airlines and flights, and reduced
the operating costs of airlines and charter companies, thus contributing to break
the bottleneck of Hainan’s civil aviation development and reform, and pushing
forward to further expand the aviation business of Meilan Airport.

With the approval of the CAAC, since the implementation of the “Hainan Area
Airspace Adjustment Plan” (CBFE[E Z=HFAEFE)) from 00:00 on 27
February 2020, the airspace of Hainan Province will be constructed from a single
channel model into two parallel routes, realizing the improvement of civil aviation
operations in Hainan Province with three aspects of “safety, efficiency, and
capacity”. The airspace adjustment can ensure the smooth continuous rise and
fall of inbound and outbound flights, increase the airspace carrying capacity of
Hainan region, thus further improving the flight normality of Meilan Airport.
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Plan for Tourism Development
2 R

i b 3% R AR 2
On 19 December 2019, the General Office of the Hainan Provincial Government
released the “Implementation Plan for the Improvement of Consumption System
and Mechanism in Hainan Province” ((BRETEEREHBESIKSIERES
%)) (the “Implementation Plan"), designed to take maximum advantage of the
role of consumption in the construction of the China (Hainan) Pilot Free Trade
Zone (Port) and further promote the construction of an international tourism
consumption center. ; o
According to the Implementation Plan, Hainan will further loosen up market o ")
access in the service consumption sector.
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REPORT FROM THE BOARD
s R WRE

The annual report together with the audited financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2019 has been approved for issue by the Board.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in both aviation and non-aviation businesses. Its
aviation business mainly consists of provision of terminal facilities, ground handling
services and passenger services, and its non-aviation business mainly includes
leasing of the commercial and retail outlets at Meilan Airport, franchising of the
airport-related business, leasing of the advertising spaces and parking lots, provision
of cargo handling services and sales of consumable goods.

At the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group conducted its business within
one business segment, i.e. the operation of an airport and an ancillary hotel and
provision of related services in the PRC. The Group also operated within one
geographical segment and its revenues were primarily generated from its assets
located in the PRC, therefor no geographical segment information is presented.

In 2019, the Group’s total revenue amounted to RMB1,576,371,078, representing a
decrease of 7.48% as compared to 2018, among which the revenue from aviation
business amounted to RMB709,389,882, representing a decrease of 22.48%
as compared to 2018, and the revenue from non-aviation business amounted to
RMB866,981,196, representing an increase of 9.92% as compared to 2018.

During 2019, Meilan Airport recorded passenger throughput in aggregate of 24.2166
million, flight take off and landing for transportation of 164,786 times and cargo
and mail volume of 322,357.50 tons, representing a year-on-year growth of 0.39%,
-0.24% and -0.72%, respectively.

In non-aeronautical business, the franchise income accumulated to
RMB412,800,059, representing a year-on-year decrease of 1.05%; freight and
packaging income reached RMB102,646,801, representing a year-on-year increase
of 5.63%; hotel income amounted to RMB101,253,309, representing a year-on-
year increase of 227.07%; VIP room income reached RMB75,664,796, representing
a year-on-year increase of 83.84%; rental income reached RMB74,783,568,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 16.17%; car parking income reached
RMB14,598,056, representing a year-on-year decrease of 45.53%.
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OPERATING RESULTS AND FINANCIAL
POSITION

The Group's operating results for the year ended 31 December 2019 were prepared
in accordance with the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises, relevant
applicable disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the
listing rule of Hong Kong Stock Exchange, and the financial positions of the Group
and the Company as at 31 December 2019 are set out in page 172 to page 184 of
this annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 is set out
in page 30 to page 36 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

During 2019, the Group launched the “Green Airport” project in full swing to put the
sustainable and low-carbon strategy into practice. For detailed measures and efforts
in respect of environmental protection of the Group during 2019, please refer to the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” set out in page 82 to page 117 of
this annual report.

As of 31 December 2019, the Group conducted its business operations in
compliance with the relevant environmental laws and regulations.

MAJOR OPERATION RISKS

In 2019, the Company made a scientific analysis into, and classification of, the
deficiencies or potential risks found in the business operations and identified
such key risks that may affect the Company’s operations in the future. Risks that
may affect the normal operations of the Company and the measures taken by the
Company to alleviate/eliminate such risks were as follows:
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REPORT FROM THE BOARD

EEEgWmE

Risks
[BL % & 7B

Descriptions

B B 3t

Responses

FEH

Operation risk —
Major safety risks

EEmE -
BB ZRR

The major safety risks the airport facing are
mainly bird strike risk, aircraft damage risk
and flight zone construction management
risk. Assume that failure to effectively drive
birds away may result in collisions with
aircraft, damage to aircraft, and even the risk
of aircraft damage. Assume that during the
flight operation guarantee process, damage to
the aircraft due to improper human operation
may cause economic loss, flight delay or
even cancellation. Failure to effectively
manage relevant personnel, vehicles and
related materials during the construction and
maintenance work in the flight area of Meilan
Airport may increase the risks associated with
foreign objects and flight area intrusion.

REEERLR2ARERARERAR - iz
BERARRRTEBT AR - B
BB - RSN RSB R R
RAZSEEE  BEEERBACOES | B
REMBFRREBET - AAARIETY
SRE - HRERERIAL 43 B
Ak - MUBEREEROHOME | (5 EEHM
BT TR P71 T (E R T T (EAyiBTE
B ORECAMUBEIERAR - SWAERNE
PR EIER -+ B A MM A BT
B A AR -

(1)

(2)

(1

(3)

The bird control is listed as one of the Company’s 12 major
safety risks, and it is included in the special monitoring plan
to check the implementation and effectiveness of various bird
damage prevention measures in the flight area. Meanwhile,
efforts are enhanced on information management and
statistics of bird strikes, with timely communication with the
CAAC, to bring the number of responsible bird strikes under
control, and issue safety warnings in time for migratory bird
migration or high incidence of bird strikes;

Improve staff management and vehicle management through
team management, routine and regular check of vehicles,
and implementation of vehicle maintenance plan. Regularly
carry out training skills such as driving skills, vehicle basic
knowledge, industry road traffic regulations (the CAAC Order
No. 191 and Order No. 170), strengthen FOD prevention
publicity, improve driver safety responsibility, and prevent
fatigue driving; and

Ensure that the communication between the construction unit
and the apron tower during the construction period is smooth,
strict control of the construction scope and construction
time, and strict prevention of the risk of illegal intrusion of
the runway; system revision to adjust the on-site regulatory
mode, further clarify responsible units and on-site regulatory
responsibilities, regulate information reporting procedures,
staff training requirements, construction approval process,
so as to ensure stable operation of the flight areas; improve
the construction assessment system for flight areas and
strengthen the supervision and assessment of construction
supervision units and construction units.
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Risks
[BL % & 7B

Descriptions

B e

REPORT FROM THE BOARD
EELWE

Responses

i IgEy

Operation risk —
Risk regarding
punctuality rate of
flight release

EeEk-
MBERRAT
EFREAR

Reduced normal rate of flight release or flight
on time rate due to any reason attributable to
the airlines (including aircraft maintenance,
mechanical failure, flight dispatching, etc.)
or any reason not attributable to the airlines
factors (such as weather conditions, air
traffic control, ground facility breakdown,
passenger, etc.) may result in a reduction of
the flight number or a restriction upon the
increase in the flight number of Meilan Airport
by the CAAC, which may reduce or prevent
the passenger traffic volume from growing,
thus significantly and adversely affecting the
economic benefit of the Company.

HAMZEAR A S RE(BREEREE - BWR
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DEMBSOMMEE - LERGIMESHE
R BYFRETRAFBRLER  EMELQ
AIMEBENGELBRTINZE -

(1)

2)

Arrange the work of front-line staff in a rational way,
increase the support force during the peak period, and set
up functional channels to meet the demand, guide the rapid
inspection of the urgency. Improve security inspection
efficiency through promoting optimization of whole process of
security assurance and introducing new technical equipment,
such as dual-prospective security inspection machines;

Integrate the airline, and air traffic control and airport-
stationed units into a comprehensive platform for flight on-
time performance management, to jointly push forward
the flight on-time performance management efforts and to
regularly summarise and analyse the sound experiences
developed, and the weakness identified, during the fight
supporting process; and

Advance the construction of the A-CDM system, complete
the functional planning and layout of both PC terminal and
APP terminal for the system, and complete the connection in
respect of the sharing platform for operational information of
the CAAC operation monitoring center.

MEARZE—KRETHE SEMRNRENE  FER
EVRMRERERES S SSEREBR  MBRERR
2R EALIE B K3 A IR A % RS 5T R R B
ME

Az 2 A S B ARMARMEREERH K
TECBMBETREESEEEIE  THEAKELS TR
HREBRPZRNESFERNFENEE : &

HEE 5 1 FUREA-COM R SR » TR R FPCIHFAPPIR
ERERBEMRE - WK BRMBETERTLETH
BRAZTFAMEE -

138

B

EMEARZERBERAA P —F-NFFH



REPORT FROM THE BOARD
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Risks Descriptions Responses
e St L B 4 3 B EE
Operation risk — During the extension and renovation of the (1) Maintain strict control over project construction (such as
Project airport, any absence of strict control over regular reporting on construction progress, and whether the
construction risk  project expenses, quality or duration may construction is in a good status, engagement of supervision
lead to an increase of project costs or delay unit to supervise the construction site);

in project duration, or even impact project

quality. (2) Select and apply construction units within the framework
agreement for tendering, to effectively control project costs;
and

(3)  Strictly regulate acceptance for completion of projects,
and urge timely rectification of those not in line with the
acceptance requirements by the construction unit.

EemEm - ERSEZNBH TES  ARHRTEX (1) HEBETERETEREZMERERE TER - ETH
TREERR B TiRESE THIEETBREER - 7] RRBRI - THEBEERIRS)
SEEEHIIERA L ETHER  EE%
ZTREE - (2) EAERBZEANETEMETRIZE - BRAES TIEK
AN

(B EBMRBEARTIBYORE  BRBITELHITEREE
SRE R S R BE B o

In the future, the Company will establish a long-term risk management and internal R » N2 B #2 7 KW R b2 & 12 o A 20 T1E#
working system, by which the Company would, on one hand, inspect the overall &l + — S HBREA —FEEBRIOBLLERIS
rectification of the weakness identified during the previous year, and, on the other ' Z—HHE @ KEREEF TESHERAERAE
hand, update timely the key business process and the risk database for internal B HEBEREREARE - BRERKELE - BARAFH
review in accordance with latest operation progress during the current year, 315 & EE TIEMNFRE Y BE SRR ARG
ensuring the Company is keeping pace with the times and building a strong risk

firewall to safeguard the implementation of the ordinary operations and such key

tasks of the Company.
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EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

Since the outbreak of the Epidemic in January 2020, various emergency public
health measures and other actions have been taken in the PRC and all around the
world to contain the spread of the Epidemic, including having certain control on
crowd movement and transportation, and implementing restriction on the date of
returning to work after the Chinese Lunar New Year vacation. The airline industry
has also been severely affected by the Epidemic.

Affected by the Epidemic, the Company plans to formulate supportive measures,
including a preferential scheme for the take-off and landing fees of airlines and a
reduction of rents for commercial tenants, to mitigate the operational pressure
of the Epidemic on airlines and commercial tenants. For the two months ended
29 February 2020, the Group's revenue from aviation business and non-aviation
business recorded a decrease of 40% and 22 %, respectively, as compared with the
same period of 2019. In March 2020, the routes of Meilan Airport were gradually
resumed, and the Group recorded a gradual recovery in passenger throughput,
cargo throughput and aircraft take-off and landing.

The Company will take various measures actively in response to the adverse impact
of the Epidemic on the Company’s business volume, and will continuously pay
attention to the development of the Epidemic and closely monitor the risks and
uncertainties faced by the Group.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

In 2019, Meilan Airport supported 8 impoverished employees with a funding
of RMBO0.15 million via the Charity Foundation, which helped the employees in
precarious situations, and raised RMB25,424 for one exceptionally impoverished
employee by way of internal advocating.

In addition, the Company also vigorously carried forward the traditional virtues
of assisting the impoverished, actively participated in social poverty alleviation
cause, and organized volunteer blood donations which were participated by 235
employees, donating 60,600ml of blood in total. The Company organized “one-to-
one” poverty alleviation project by the Party Branch Committee. 12 Party Branch
Committees visited the impoverished households to help them relieve poverty with
a poverty alleviation fund of RMB36,000. The Company organized charitable flash
activities for children with Down’s syndrome (“Downy’s Children”, & 52 E) by
performing a song named “The Same as You" ({(F1fR—1%)) with gesture language
jointly by the Downy's Children, volunteers and our employees in the airport lounge
to raise people’s awareness on the growth of the Downy’s Children by way of close
interactions with them, to perform our social responsibilities.
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REPORT FROM THE BOARD
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FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

Aviation Business

In 2020, the Company will make unified arrangements for aviation market
development by focusing on the two core indicators of improving flight execution
rate and passenger load factor, and achieving a continual increase in passenger
throughput to lay a good and solid foundation for the completion of the annual
production tasks. We will continue to promote the expansion of time and reasonable
use of work, to solve the development bottleneck constraints, continue to promote
the fine management of flights and promote the incremental development of the
transformation. Furthermore, we will actively develop overseas air lines, expand
the scope of the check-in machine port and increase the construction of the
international transit hub.

Non-aviation Business

In 2020, the Company will be proactively “identifying passengers and expanding
throughput”, with the goal of creating a normalized brand marketing promotion,
data-oriented development, accurate marketing, strengthening market research,
clarifying passenger consumption needs, and establishing a daily marketing
mechanism for marketing activities, fully improving the revenue from the non-
aviation business of Meilan Airport.

In the meantime, the Company will also carry out brand promotion efforts to
improve the service quality of Meilan Airport; optimize the financial structure to
ensure a balanced funding; strengthen the safety management and control to
smoothly realize the 22nd safety operation year of Meilan Airport; push forward
the infrastructure construction with all strength, ensuring the steady progress of
every infrastructure project under construction at Meilan Airport, and the vigorous
development of the Phase Il Expansion Project, in an attempt to turn Meilan Airport
into a comprehensive three-dimensional transportation center based in northern
Hainan, covering the whole Hainan Province and linking Southeast Asia, in 2020.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board expected that, in 2020, the Company has a large capital demand, mainly
for the construction of the Phase Il Expansion Project, the investment in safety
of Meilan Airport and the reconstruction of existing equipments. Meanwhile, the
Epidemic may lead to a decline in profits of the Company. In view of the actual
needs of the Company’s future development capital, the Board did not recommend
the payment of final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019.

During the year, there was no arrangement under which any shareholders of the
Company has waived or agreed to waive any dividend.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Articles of Association permit the Company to distribute dividends or make
other distributions according to an ordinary resolution of the shareholders, and
prevent the Company from distributing dividends or bonuses without first making
up for losses and making all tax and other payments required by law. Under the
Articles of Association, the Company may, in addition to final dividend, distribute
interim or special dividends in the form of cash or shares. In accordance with the
Articles of Association, the distributable profits available to the Company for the
purpose of profit distribution will be deemed to be the lesser of:

1. the net income determined in accordance with PRC accounting standards and
regulations; and

2. the net income determined in accordance with International Accounting
Standards.

However, prior to payment of dividends, profits of the Company are subject to
deductions such as allocations to the statutory common reserve and the statutory
public welfare fund. The Company's outstanding credit facilities do not impose any
restrictions on its ability to pay dividends.

Subject to the foregoing, the Company intends to make interim dividend payments
in or around October of each year and final dividend payments in or around June
of each year. The distribution of dividend payment will be dependent upon the
Company's earnings, financial conditions, cash requirements and availability, the
provisions of the Company Law and other factors. There is no assurance as to
whether the dividend distribution will occur as intended, the amount of dividend
payment or the timing of such payment.

The Articles of Association required that cash dividends of H Shares will be
declared in Renminbi and paid in Hong Kong dollars to H Shareholders. Conversion
of Renminbi into Hong Kong dollars will be subject to the relevant PRC foreign
exchange regulations and will be calculated at an exchange rate which will be the
average of the PBOC Exchange Rate one calendar week preceding the date of
declaration of dividends. If the Company does not have sufficient foreign exchange
reserves to pay its Hong Kong dollars dividends, it intends to exchange its RMB
funds into the required Hong Kong dollars from authorised banks or through other
approved means. There is no assurance that the Company will be able to obtain
Hong Kong dollar funds as needed.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Company’s register of members will be closed from Saturday, 2 May 2020
to Friday, 22 May 2020 (both days inclusive), during which no transfer of shares
will be registered. In order to be qualified for attending and vote at the annual
general meeting of the Company, all share transfer instruments, accompanied
by the relevant share certificates and forms of transfer, shall be lodged with the
Company's share registrar and transfer office, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, no later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 29 April
2020.
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SYNDICATED LOAN

Details of the Syndicated Loan are set out in Note 4(21) to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The Group holds the Terminal Complex Project (Haikou Meilan Airport
comprehensive transportation hub GTC phase 1) located in Meilan District, Haikou
City, Hainan Province, the PRC for the year ended 31 December 2019, the location
of which is No. 3, Hang'an first street, Meilan District, Haikou City, Hainan Province,
the PRC. The commercial building and parking building of the project are investment
properties of the Company, which are used for commercial and parking purposes.
The usage period of such buildings is from May 2017 to September 2049.

Details of the property, plant and equipment as at 31 December 2019 and the
changes in the property, plant and equipment of the Group and the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in Note 4(7), Note 4(8) and Note 4(9)
to the financial statements.

TAXATION

Details of taxation of the Group and the Company (including all tax preferences) for
the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in Note 3 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of changes in reserves of the Group and the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2019 are set out in Note 4(26) and Note 4(27) to the financial
statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2019, the balance of capital surplus and statutory surplus
reserve of the Company amounted to approximately RMB819,661,947 and
approximately RMB246,394,231 respectively, which were determined in
accordance with the Company Law and China’s accounting standards and
regulations. In addition, pursuant to the Articles of Association, the retained profits
available for dividend distribution of the Company amounted to approximately
RMB3,628,640,972.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company's subsidiaries as at 31 December 2019 are set out in Note
6(1) to the financial statements.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The largest customer and the top five largest customers of the Group represented
18.95% and 57.51% of the total sales of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2019 respectively.

The largest supplier and the top five largest suppliers of the Group represented
13.25% and 26.45% of the total operating costs of the Group respectively for the
year ended 31 December 2019.

The Group and its customers and suppliers have maintained close co-operations
based on the principle of fairness, transparency and friendliness for a couple of
years. The Group believes that as our business scope and business volume expand,
the Group will cultivate strong relationship with more customers and suppliers in
accordance with compliant procurement and audit systems.

At any time during the year ended 31 December 2019, none of the Directors,
Supervisors, their close associates or, to the knowledge of the Directors, any
shareholder holding more than 5% of the issued shares of the Company was
interested in any of the top five largest customers or suppliers of the Group.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES

The Group maintains a sound relationship with its employees through meticulous
staff caring initiatives and various social welfare campaigns. Please refer to the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on page 82 to 117 in this annual
report of the Company for details.

SHARE CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2019, the total number of issued share capital of the Company
was 473,213,000, of which:
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[§ #a Rz 4 e 1

Domestic shares NE R 246,300,000 52%
H shares HA 226,913,000 48%
Total e 473,213,000 100%

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES

As at 31 December 2019, so far as known to the Directors, Supervisors and chief
executive of the Company, the following persons (other than a Director, Supervisor
or chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company which were required to be recorded in the
register to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.
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DOMESTIC SHARES NE R
Percentage of Percentage of
Number of domestic total issued
Name of Shareholders Capacity Class of shares ordinary shares shares issued share capital
HE#T HE &7
REREB 51 IR %8 51 ERRHE RNERB D BRABDL
Haikou Meilan International Beneficial owner Corporate 237,500,000(L) 96.43% 50.19%
Airport Company Limited
(Note 1)
BOXHBEBRESEREELNR BERBEAA §1=E 3
(PF3E1)
H SHARES HAx

Percentage of

Number of Percentage of total issued
Name of Shareholders Type of interest ordinary shares  H shares issued share capital
HERT HE T
REREB fESER ZRREE HR Bt BRABDL
Aero Infrastructure Fund L.P. (Note 2) Interest of controlled 200,000,000(L) 88.14% 42.26%
corporations
Aero Infrastructure Fund L.P. (Fff5£2) ek | VNG
HOPU USD Master Fund Ill Management Interest of controlled 200,000,000(L) 88.14% 42.26%
Holding Co. Ltd. (Note 2) corporations
HOPU USD Master Fund Ill Management e | VNI 2
Holding Co.Ltd. (Kf&2)
Cheyne Walk Investment Pte. Ltd. (Note 2) Interest of controlled 200,000,000(L) 88.14% 42.26%
corporations
Cheyne Walk Investment Pte. Ltd. (HF5£2) SR A RS
GIC Infra Holdings Pte. Ltd. (Note 2) Interest of controlled 200,000,000(L) 88.14% 42.26%
corporations
GIC Infra Holdings Pte. Ltd. (Fff5£2) SRR RS
GIC (Ventures) Pte. Ltd. (Note 2) Interest of controlled 200,000,000(L) 88.14% 42.26%
corporations
GIC (Ventures) Pte. Ltd. (Mi3¥2) ek | VNI
GIC Special Investments Private Limited Investment manager 200,000,000(L) 88.14% 42.26%

(Note 2)
GIC Special Investments Private Limited

(Fi5E2)
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Percentage of

Number of Percentage of total issued
Name of Shareholders Type of interest ordinary shares  H shares issued share capital
HE BT HE BT
RREAHE fERER ZBEREE HRB DL BRABDL
GIC Private Limited (Note 2) Interest of controlled 200,000,000(L) 88.14% 42.26%
corporations
GIC Private Limited (Ff7£2) o NCIL
Soaring Eagle Industrial Limited (Note 3) Beneficial owner 50,920,650(L) 22.44% 10.76%
Soaring Eagle Industrial Limited (Fff7£3) EnEFA
Liang Yiming (Note 3) Interest of controlled 50,920,650(L) 22.44% 10.76%
corporations
Liang Yiming (Ffi5£3) s NCIL 2
Zhang Gaobo (Note 4) Interest of controlled 42,647,350(L) 18.79% 9.01%
corporations
R =R (M 5E4) e INCIE: £
Zhang Zhiping (Note 4) Interest of controlled 42,647,350(L) 18.79% 9.01%
corporations
REF (FsEa) e INCIE: £
Oriental Patron Financial Services Group Interest of controlled 42,647,350(L) 18.79% 9.01%
Limited (Note 4) corporations
Oriental Patron Financial Services Group | NI
Limited (Fi54)
Oriental Patron Financial Group Limited Interest of controlled 42,647,350(L) 18.79% 9.01%
(Note 4) corporations
Oriental Patron Financial Group Limited S INCIE: £
(PH7E4)
Oriental Patron Resources Investment Limited Beneficial owner 42,647,350(L) 18.79% 9.01%
(Note 4)
Oriental Patron Resources Investment Limited B 5 A A
(PH5E4)
UBS Group AG (Note b5) Security interest in shares 31,331,012(L) 13.81% 6.62%

UBS Group AG (fft#+5)

and interest of controlled

corporations
HROFEREER R

PRGN E R

EWEREERHVERAA P —T—NFER /I 43
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Percentage of

Number of Percentage of total issued
Name of Shareholders Type of interest ordinary shares  H shares issued share capital
HE BT HE BT
RREAHE = ER ZBEREE HRB DL BRABDL
UBS AG (Note 6) Beneficial owner, security 27,174,400(L) 11.98% 5.74%
interest in shares and 15,000(S) 0.01% 0.00%
interest of controlled
corporations
UBS AG (Hf{zt6) EmBAA  HROBARE
e MR AR R
ARC Capital Holdings Limited (Note 7) Interest of controlled 32,788,500(L) 14.45% 6.93%
corporations
ARC Capital Holdings Limited (F{3t7) SR A RS
ARC Capital Partners Limited (Note 7) Investment manager 32,788,500(L) 14.45% 6.93%
ARC Capital Partners Limited (Ff5£7) BRI
Pacific Alliance Asia Opportunity Fund L.P. Interest of controlled 32,788,500(L) 14.45% 6.93%
(Note 7) corporations
Pacific Alliance Asia Opportunity Fund L.P. | NI
(Fi5%7)
Pacific Alliance Equity Partners Limited (Note 7) Interest of controlled 32,788,500(L) 14.45% 6.93%
corporations
Pacific Alliance Equity Partners Limited (Fi5£7) =326 A Al
Pacific Alliance Group Asset Management Investment manager 32,788,500(L) 14.45% 6.93%
Limited (Note 7)
Pacific Alliance Group Asset Management WEKE
Limited (Fif5%7)
PAG Holdings Limited (Note 7) Interest of controlled 32,788,500(L) 14.45% 6.93%
corporations
PAG Holdings Limited (K#7) St o NCIL s 35
Pacific Alliance Group Limited (Note 7) Interest of controlled 32,788,500(L) 14.45% 6.93%
corporations
Pacific Alliance Group Limited (Ff3%7) | NI
Pacific Alliance Investment Management Interest of controlled 32,788,500(L) 14.45% 6.93%
Limited (Note 7) corporations
Pacific Alliance Investment Management e INCIE £
Limited (Fif&E7)
Walden Ventures Limited (Note 7) Beneficial owner 32,788,500(L) 14.45% 6.93%

Walden Ventures Limited (Fff5£7)
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Name of Shareholders

Type of interest

Number of
ordinary shares
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Percentage of
Percentage of total issued

H shares issued share capital

Exchange, Aero Infrastructure Fund L.P. was deemed to hold 200,000,000 shares
through its interest in Aero Infrastructure Holding Company Limited. The completion of
subscription of 200,000,000 H shares by Aero Infrastructure Holding Company Limited
shall be subject to certain conditions precedent as set out in the circular of the Company
dated 7 January 2020. Upon completion of the subscription, Aero Infrastructure Holding
Company Limited would be interested in approximately 46.85% of the total issued H
Shares as enlarged by the subscription. Aero Infrastructure Fund L.P. was a limited
partnership acting through Aero Infrastructure Fund GP Limited as its general partner.
Cheyne Walk Investment Pte. Ltd. was the only limited partner who held more than 1/3
limited partnership interest in Aero Infrastructure Fund L.P. Aero Infrastructure Fund GP
Limited was held as to 100% by HOPU USD Master Fund Ill Management Holding Co.
Ltd. Cheyne Walk Investment Pte. Ltd. was held as to 100% by GIC Infra Holdings Pte.
Ltd., which was in turn held as to 100% by GIC (Ventures) Pte. Ltd., which was in turn
held as to 100% by GIC Special Investments Private Limited, which was in turn held as
to 100% by GIC Private Limited.

BEEMEREERNERAA P —T—NFFR

HE BT HE BT
RREAHE fERER ZBEREE HRB DL BRABDL
JP Morgan Chase & Co. (Note 8) Beneficial owner and 13,607,488(L) 5.99% 2.88%
custodian corporation/
approved lending agent
JP Morgan Chase & Co. (H{5%8) BRBEEARTE LR,
ZEBHREA
Greenwoods Asset Management Limited Interest of controlled 13,549,000(L) 5.97% 2.86%
(Note 9) corporations
Greenwoods Asset Management Limited | NI
(Ff15%9)
Unique Element Corp. (Note 9) Interest of controlled 13,549,000(L) 5.97% 2.86%
corporations
Unique Element Corp. (Ff5+9) | NI
Jiang Jinzhi (Note 9) Interest of controlled 13,549,000(L) 5.97% 2.86%
corporations
Jiang Jinzhi (Ff7£9) SRR A A s
Greenwoods Asset Management Holdings Interest of controlled 13,549,000(L) 5.97% 2.86%
Limited (Note 9) corporations
Greenwoods Asset Management Holdings e NG
Limited (FiF5F9)
Notes: B &
1. Haikou Meilan International Airport Company Limited is a Company established in the 1. HAOEHBERRISERETARERBRIENKY - AR
PRC and is the controlling shareholder of the Company. NEZERRAR -
2. According to the disclosure of interest on the website of the Hong Kong Stock 2. BREREEBIAMBULNH 2 EZEE - Aero

Infrastructure Fund L.P.3 B AEBERAero
Infrastructure Holding Company Limited 2 ## #
/200,000,000R% %17 ° Aero Infrastructure Holding
Company Limited¥200,000,000 HA% 2 R & E 1B
HERKERARARARBRAZZS-_ZEF—-—HAtHA
ZRHFEONETERAGH REZFTETKE -
Aero Infrastructure Holding Company Limited§ i &
REFEERNZEBITHRRMDAE Z2446.85%F
#HE R © Aero Infrastructure Fund L.P.&i&E#BAero
Infrastructure Fund GP Limited {EAEEBAE AT
EMARAE ° Cheyne Walk Investment Pte. Ltd. A M
—3#55 Aero Infrastructure Fund L.P.#8iB1/38 R A B
=2 BBRAFA ° Aero Infrastructure Fund GP Limited
FBHOPU USD Master Fund Il Management Holding
Co. Ltd. #E100%# 25 ° Cheyne Walk Investment Pte.
Ltd.fGIC Infra Holdings Pte. Ltd.35B100% % »
MGIC Infra Holdings Pte. Ltd.AGIC (Ventures) Pte.
Ltd.#58100%# = * GIC (Ventures) Pte. Ltd.AGIC
Special Investments Private Limited# 78 100%#x5
GIC Special Investments Private LimitedfAGIC Private
Limited# 5 100% # 2 °
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According to the disclosure of interest filed on the website of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, Liang Yiming held 100% interest in Soaring Eagle Industrial Limited.

According to the disclosure of interest filed on the website of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, Zhang Gaobo and Zhang Zhiping held 49% and 51% interest in Oriental
Patron Financial Group Limited, respectively. Oriental Patron Financial Group Limited
held 95% interest in Oriental Patron Financial Services Group Limited. Oriental Patron
Resources Investment Limited was wholly-owned by Oriental Patron Financial Services
Group Limited.

According to the disclosure of interest filed by UBS Group AG on the website of
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, UBS Group AG was deemed to hold 13,393,812
shares through its security interest and hold 17,937,200 shares through the interest
of a controlled corporation. UBS Asset Management (Hong Kong) Ltd, UBS Asset
Management (Singapore) Ltd, UBS Fund Management (Luxembourg) S.A. and UBS AG
were wholly-owned by UBS Group AG. UBS Group AG was deemed to hold interests in
the Company through owning the above-mentioned companies pursuant to Part XV of
the SFO and were beneficially holding 440,000, 660,300, 16,749,100 and 87,800 long
position shares in the Company, respectively.

According to the disclosure of interest filed by UBS AG on the website of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange, among the 27,174,400 shares in the Company, UBS AG was deemed
to hold 8,896,000 shares through security interest, and 18,263,400 shares through
interests of a controlled corporation and 15,000 long position shares and 15,000 short
position shares as beneficial owner. UBS Fund Services (Luxembourg) SA, UBS Global
Asset Management (Hong Kong) Ltd and UBS Global Asset Management (Singapore) Ltd
were wholly-owned by UBS AG. UBS AG was deemed hold interests in the Company
through owning the above-mentioned companies pursuant to Part XV of the SFO and
were beneficially holding 14,194,100 shares, 1,905,000 shares and 2,164,300 shares in
the Company, respectively.

According to the disclosure of interest filed on the website of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, PAG Holdings Limited held 99.17% interest in Pacific Alliance Group Limited,
which in turn held 90% interest in Pacific Alliance Investment Management Limited.
Pacific Alliance Investment Management Limited held 52.53% interest in Pacific
Alliance Equity Partners Limited. Pacific Alliance Equity Partners Limited held 100%
interest in ARC Capital Partners Limited. ARC Capital Partners Limited was deemed to
be interested in 32,788,500 shares in its capacity as investment manager. ARC Capital
Holdings Limited is a corporation controlled by ARC Capital Partners Limited pursuant
to Part XV of the SFO. ARC Capital Holdings Limited held 46.67% interest in Walden
Ventures Limited which in turn held 14.45% interest in the H shares of the Company.
Pacific Alliance Investment Management Limited held 100% interest in Pacific Alliance
Group Asset Management Limited. Pacific Alliance Group Asset Management Limited
was deemed to be interested in 32,788,500 shares in its capacity as investment
manager. Pacific Alliance Asia Opportunity Fund L.P. is a corporation controlled by Pacific
Alliance Group Asset Management Limited pursuant to Part XV of the SFO. Pacific
Alliance Asia Opportunity Fund L.P. held 36.67% interest in Walden Ventures Limited
which in turn held 14.45% interest in the H shares of the Company.

According to the disclosure of interest filed by JP Morgan Chase & Co. on the website
of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, among the 13,607,488 shares in the Company, JP
Morgan Chase & Co. was deemed to hold 12,963,588 shares as custodian corporation/
approved lending agent and held 643,900 shares as beneficial owner.
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9. According to the disclosure of interest filed on the website of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, Greenwoods Asset Management Limited was wholly owned by Greenwoods
Asset Management Holdings Limited. 81% interest of Greenwoods Assets Management
Holdings Limited were held by Unique Element Corp., which in turn was wholly owned
by Jiang Jinzhi. Greenwoods Asset Management Limited held 13,549,000 shares
through its interest in a controlled corporation.

10. (L) and (S) represent long position and short position respectively.

Save as disclosed above, as of 31 December 2019, so far as known to the Directors,
Supervisors and chief executive of the Company, no other person (not being the
Directors, Supervisors or chief executive of the Company) had interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which were required
to be recorded in the register to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the
SFO.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS
AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2019, no Directors, Supervisors or chief executive of the
Company had any interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which would be required to be recorded in the
register to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or required
to be notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

THE CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Parent Company is the controlling shareholder of the Company as it holds
50.19% interest in the Company, and accordingly is a connected person of the
Company. Details of connected transactions between the Parent Company and the
Company are set below:

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS FOR THE YEAR

1. Airport Composite Services by the Parent Company
The Company and the parent company entered into an airport composite
services agreement (“Service Agreement”) on 25 August 2016, and an
airport composite services agreement (“Renewed Service Agreement”) on
18 August 2019, details of which are as follows:

Date of the agreement: (i) Service Agreement: 25 August 2016;

(i) Renewed Service Agreement: 18 August 2019

Parties: the Company and the Parent Company

A=
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Subject matters: pursuant to the Service Agreement, the Parent Company has
agreed to provide or procure any third party if necessary with the Company's
consent to provide to the Company the following services: (a) security guard
service; (b) cleaning and environment maintenance; (c) sewage and refuse
processing; (d) power and energy supply and equipment maintenance; (e)
passengers and luggage security inspection; and (f) other services required by
the Company.

Price and payment: charges as to the service in items (a) to (c) above will be
determined in accordance with the cost incurred by the Parent Company in
providing such services plus a 5% management fee; charges as to the service
in item (d) above will be determined in accordance with the cost incurred by
the Parent Company in providing such service plus a 256% management fee;
charges as to the service in item (e) above shall be calculated in accordance
with the standards prescribed by the CAAC and collected by the Company on
behalf of the Parent Company from the relevant airlines; and charges as to
other services in item (f) above shall be calculated by reference to the pricing
standards prescribed by the relevant PRC government authorities (if any),
or, in the absence of the same, the industry pricing standards or a cost plus
mark-up fee basis. The service fee shall be paid either on a quarterly or an
annual basis and will be determined by the parties to the Service Agreement
depending on the type of services to be provided by the Parent Company and
in accordance with normal business practices.

According to the announcement of the Company dated 25 August 2016,
the annual cap for transactions under the Service Agreement in 2019
was RMB52,800,000. For the year ended 31 December 2019, the actual
transaction amount for the year 2019 was RMB30,354,548, which did not
exceed the annual cap for the year.

Term: (i) Service Agreement: three years from 1 January 2017 to 31

December 2019;

(i) Renewed Service Agreement: three years from1 January 2020 to 31
December 2022.

For details of the Service Agreement and Renewed Service Agreement,
please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 25 August 2016
and 18 August 2019.
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2.

New Cargo Terminal Lease Agreement

On 12 March 2018, Haikou Meilan International Airport Freight Co., Ltd.
("Meilan Freight"”), a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and the
Parent Company entered into the new cargo terminal lease agreement (the
"0Old Lease Agreement”), the details of which are set out as follows:

Date: 12 March 2018
Parties:

(i) the Parent Company
(i) Meilan Freight

Term: The term is from 12 March 2018 to 11 March 2019 (both days
inclusive)

Subject matter: the leased assets, comprising of:

(i) the land use rights of the new cargo terminal with a total area of
approximately 128,540 sq.m.;

(ii) the property of the new cargo terminal with a total gross floor area of
approximately 26,600 sg.m.; and

(i) the equipment, including, among others, storehouses, low-voltage
power distribution boxes ({XEAEfE), high-voltage power distribution
boxes (=EAELE4E), air conditioners, luggage carousels and cameras.

Rental and payment: The annual rental of the leased assets payable by
Meilan Freight to the Parent Company under the Old Lease Agreement shall
be RMB8,000,000 in aggregation (including the annual rental of the land use
rights of approximately RMB3,569,000, the annual rental of the property
of approximately RMB2,659,000 and the annual rental of the equipment of
approximately RMB1,772,000), which is determined based on arm’s length
negotiations between the two parties with reference to (i) the total area of
the new cargo terminal under the land use rights and the total gross floor
area of the property; (ii) the prevailing market rental for the land use rights or
properties located at similar locations i.e. approximately RMB28 per sq.m. per
year for the land use rights and approximately RMB100 per sg.m. per year for
the property; and (iii) the depreciation of the equipment.
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On 12 March 2019, Meilan Freight entered into the new cargo terminal lease
agreement (the “Lease Agreement”) with the Parent Company, the details
of which are set out as follows:

Date: 12 March 2019

Parties:

(i

(ii)

the Parent Company

Meilan Freight

Term: The term is from 12 March 2019 to 11 March 2021 (both days
inclusive)

Subject matter: the leased assets, composing of:

(i

(ii)

(iii)

the land use rights of the new cargo terminal with a total area of
approximately 128,540 sg.m.;

the property of the new cargo terminal with a total gross floor area of
approximately 25,980 sg.m.; and

the equipment, including, among others, storehouses, low-voltage
power distribution boxes ({KEEECFEE), high-voltage power distribution
boxes (=EAELE &), air conditioners, luggage carousels and cameras.

Rental and payment: The annual rental of the leased assets payable by
Meilan Freight to the Parent Company under the Lease Agreement shall be
RMB10,000,000 in aggregation (including the annual rental of the land use
rights of approximately RMB4,500,000, the annual rental of the property
of approximately RMB3,200,000 and the annual rental of the equipment of
approximately RMB2,300,000), which is determined based on arm'’s length
negotiations between the two parties with reference to (i) the total area of
the new cargo terminal under the land use rights and the total gross floor
area of the property; (ii) the prevailing market rental for the land use rights or
properties located at similar locations, i.e. approximately RMB35 per sq.m.
per year for the land use rights and approximately RMB125 per sq.m. per
year for the property; and (iii) the depreciation of the equipment.

The amount of right-of-use assets of the above leased assets was
RMB19,043,478.

For details of the Old Lease Agreement and the Lease Agreement, please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 12 March 2018 and 12
March 2019.
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PREVIOUS CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

1.

Terminal Expansion Project Investment and
Construction Agreement (the “Expansion Project

Investment and Construction Agreement”)

On 12 December 2012, the Company and the Parent Company entered into
the Expansion Project Investment and Construction Agreement, details of
which are set out below.

Date: 12 December 2012
Parties: the Company and the Parent Company

Subject matters: pursuant to the Expansion Project Investment and
Construction Agreement, the Parent Company shall continue to complete the
construction of the terminal expansion project (the “Project”) carried out by
the Parent Company according to the original schedule previous agreed by
the Company and the Parent Company, unless the schedule of the Project
is adjusted due to the reasons beyond the control of the Company and the
Parent Company.

The funds provided by the Company to the Parent Company under the
Expansion Project Investment and Construction Agreement could be used to
pay for the consideration for the transfer of the Project as agreed between
the parties in the future. The Parent Company and the Company agree
that the actual construction cost of the Project as audited by a competent
independent auditor upon completion of the construction of the Project shall
not exceed 110% of the estimated construction cost of RMB876,500,000.

Consideration: under the Expansion Project Investment and Construction
Agreement, the Company will provide funds to the Parent Company
according to the progress of the construction of the Project based on the
estimated construction cost of the Project in the amount of RMB876,500,000
and the land use right in the amount of RMB150,180,000, which in total is
RMB1,026,680,000. The amount of RMB439,000,000 which has already been
paid by the Company to the Parent Company according to the acquisition
agreement (entered between the Company and the Parent Company dated
26 August 2011) prior to the termination of such agreement shall be used
to offset the total investment under the Expansion Project Investment
and Construction Agreement. The accumulated Project construction fee
payments made by the Company to the Parent Company as of 31 December
2019 amounted to RMB733,361,200 (31 December 2018: RMB733,361,200).

For details of the Expansion Project Investment and Construction Agreement,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 12 December 2012.
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Investment and Construction Agreement for the
Airport Project of the Phase Il Expansion Project
(the “Phase Il Expansion Investment and

Construction Agreement”)

On 21 August 2015, the Company and the Parent Company entered into the
Phase Il Expansion Investment and Construction Agreement, details of which
are set out below.

Date: 21 August 2015
Parties: the Company and the Parent Company

Subject matters: pursuant to the Phase Il Expansion Investment and
Construction Agreement, the Company has agreed to provide funds
to construct the Company’s construction project, with the amount of
approximately RMB7.158 billion. The Parent Company will act as the
project representative of the airport project, responsible for organizing and
supervising the implementation of construction plan of the airport project
and the funds raising for the Parent Company’s construction project until its
completion and acceptance.

Unless otherwise agreed between the Company and the Parent Company,
the Parent Company has agreed to register the ownership of the relevant
asset constituting the Company's construction project under the name of
the Company upon the completion and acceptance of the airport project,
including but not limited to the land use rights and property ownership of the
buildings. The ownership of assets of the Parent Company’s construction
project will be held by the Parent Company.

The Parent Company has irrevocably agreed, undertaken and confirmed that
the Company has the right to occupy, utilize and benefit from and dispose
of assets comprising the Company’s construction project without making
any payment to the Parent Company to the extent permitted by applicable
PRC laws before the registration of ownership of the assets comprising the
Company's construction project under the name of the Company.

Consideration: Pursuant to the Phase Il Expansion Investment and
Construction Agreement, the Company will provide all the funding covering
the construction of the Company's construction project, and the estimated
total amount is about RMB7.158 billion. Subject to the project completion
and settlement report of the airport project to be approved by the relevant
authorities (if required) and the assets invested by and registered under the
name of the Company upon the completion and acceptance of the airport
project, such estimated maximum amount of investment shall be further
adjusted. The Company will seek approval from the shareholders and make
additional disclosure pursuant to the applicable compliance requirements
under the Listing Rules if and when the aggregate investment amount for the
construction of the Company’s construction project is expected to exceed
RMB7.158 billion due to any unforeseeable reasons that may be beyond the
control of the Company.
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Expected date of completion: it is expected to complete and to pass the
acceptance by relevant authorities by the end of 2020.

For details of the Phase Il Expansion Investment and Construction
Agreement, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 21
August 2015 and the circular of the Company dated 7 October 2015.

Parent Company Domestic Shares Subscription
Agreement (the “Parent Company Domestic Shares

Subscription Agreement”)

On 30 December 2016, the Company and the Parent Company entered into
the Parent Company Domestic Shares Subscription Agreement, details of
which are set below:

Date: 30 December 2016
Parties: the Company and the Parent Company

Pursuant to the Parent Company Domestic Shares Subscription Agreement,
the Parent Company agreed to subscribe, which include: (i) not more than
190,463,284 new domestic shares as consideration for the transfer of the
Phase | runway assets by the Parent Company to the Company; and (ii)
not more than 250,626,566 new domestic shares by cash at an aggregate
subscription price of not more than RMB2,000,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$2,232,641,000). The cash subscription price for
subscription shares shall be paid by the Parent Company to the bank
account of the Company within fifteen (15) business days (or otherwise as
agreed between the Parent Company and the Company in writing) upon
the satisfaction of the conditions precedent set out in the Parent Company
Domestic Shares Subscription Agreement. Subscription shares will be allotted
and issued at no less than RMB7.98 per share.

For details of the Parent Company Domestic Shares Subscription Agreement,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 30 December 2016.

The Supplement 1 to the Parent Company Domestic

Shares Subscription Agreement

On 27 April 2017, the Company and the Parent Company entered into
the Supplement 1 to the Parent Company Domestic Shares Subscription
Agreement, details of which are set below:

Date: 27 April 2017

Parties: the Company and the Parent Company
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Pursuant to the Supplement 1 to the Parent Company Domestic Shares
Subscription Agreement, the Parent Company agreed to subscribe, which
include: 189,987,125 new domestic shares as consideration for the transfer of
the Phase | runway assets to the Company; and 250,000,000 new domestic
shares by cash at an aggregate subscription price of RMB2,000,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$2,232,641.215). Subscription price per
subscription share is RMB8.00 (equivalent to approximately HK$8.93).This
agreement has been approved by the shareholders at the extraordinary
general meeting and class meetings held on 26 June 2017.

For details of the Supplement 1 to the Parent Company Domestic Shares
Subscription Agreement, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 27 April 2017.

The Supplement 2 to the Parent Company Domestic

Shares Subscription Agreement

On 21 December 2018, the Company and the Parent Company entered into
the Supplement 2 to the Parent Company Domestic Shares Subscription
Agreement, details of which are set below:

Date: 21 December 2018
Parties: the Company and the Parent Company

Pursuant to the Supplement 2 to the Parent Company Domestic Shares
Subscription Agreement, the Parent Company agreed to subscribe, which
include: 189,987,125 new domestic shares as consideration for the transfer
of the Phase | runway assets to the Company; and 12,500,000 new domestic
shares by cash at an aggregate subscription price of RMB100,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$111,632,061). Subscription price per
subscription share is RMB8.00 (equivalent to approximately HK$8.93). This
agreement has been approved by the shareholders at the annual general
meeting and class meetings held on 3 June 2019.

For details of the Supplement 2 to the Parent Company Domestic Shares
Subscription Agreement, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 21 December 2018.

For details and fulfillment of conditions precedent to the Parent Company
Subscription under the Parent Company Domestic Shares Subscription
Agreement, the Supplement 1 to the Parent Company Domestic Shares
Subscription Agreement and the Supplement 2 to the Parent Company
Domestic Shares Subscription Agreement, please refer to Appendix Il of the
circular of the Company dated 7 January 2020.
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RMB Fund Syndicated Loan Agreement for Phase |l

Expansion Project (the “Loan Agreement”)

On 1 February 2018, the Company, the Parent Company and lenders (including
China Development Bank, ICBC Hainan Branch and ABC Hainan Branch)
entered into the Loan Agreement, details of which are set out below:

Date: 1 February 2018
Parties:
(1) Lenders:

(i) China Development Bank as the mandated lead manager and
agent bank; and

(ii) ICBC Hainan Branch and ABC Hainan Branch as participant
banks; and

(2)  Borrowers: The Parent Company and the Company, on a joint and
several basis whereby each of the Parent Company and the Company
is also liable for the indebtedness incurred by the other party under the
loan.

Subject matters: According to the Loan Agreement, the Lenders agreed
to grant the loans to the Company and the Parent Company on a joint and
several basis. The principal amount was RMB7.8 billion for a period of 20
years and could only be used for the construction of airport projects.

For details of the Loan Agreement, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 1 February 2018 and the circular of the Company dated 6
March 2018.
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7. Loan Allocation Agreement for RMB Fund Syndicated
Loan Agreement for Phase Il Expansion Project (the

“Loan Allocation Agreement”)

On 1 February 2018, the Company and the Parent Company entered into the
Loan Allocation Agreement to specify the allocation of loans between the
parties, details of which are set out below:

Date: 1 February 2018
Parties: the Company and the Parent Company

Subject matters: According to the Loan Allocation Agreement, the Company
agreed to be allocated RMB3.9 billion (50% of the loan) and the Parent
Company agreed to be allocated RMB3.9 billion (50% of the loan).

For details of the Loan Allocation Agreement, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 1 February 2018 and the circular of the
Company dated 6 March 2018.

CONFIRMATION FROM INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND AUDITOR

With respect to the continuing connected transactions of the Company, the
Independent Non-executive Directors, having reviewed the aforesaid transactions,
are of the opinion that such transactions were entered into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(2)  on normal commercial terms or better; and

(3)  according to the agreements governing them on terms which were fair and
reasonable and in the interest of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.

The Company’s auditor PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian LLP was engaged to
report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing its findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed by the
Group on page 147 in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy
of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange.
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Except for those disclosed in this section headed “The Connected Transactions”,
other related party transactions as disclosed in Note 8 to the consolidated financial
statements do not fall under the definition of connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions within the meaning of the Listing Rules or are exempt
from compliance with reporting, announcement, annual review and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements and the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS

The Directors and Supervisors as at the date of this report are as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Wang Zhen

(duly appointed on 10 October 2018)
Mr. Wang Hong

(duly appointed on 3 June 2019)
Mr. Wang Hexin

(duly appointed on 3 June 2019)
Mr. Yu Yan

(duly appointed on 3 December 2018)
Mr. Xing Zhoujin

(duly appointed on 16 March 2018)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chan Nap Kee, Joseph
(re-appointed on 30 December 2016)
Mr. Yan Xiang
(re-appointed on 30 December 2016)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Deng Tianlin
(re-appointed on 16 October 2017)
Mr. Fung Ching, Simon
(re-appointed on 30 December 2016)
Mr. George F Meng
(re-appointed on 30 December 2016)
Mr. He Linji
(re-appointed on 25 May 2018)

Supervisors
Mr. Liao Hongyu
(duly appointed on 3 June 2019)
Mr. Zhang Shusheng
(re-appointed on 30 December 2016)
Ms. Liu Guiling
(duly appointed on 11 December 2017)
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The Directors and Supervisors who have resigned during the financial year and as at
the date of this report are as follows:

Mr. Tu Haidong
(duly resigned on 3 June 2019 as an Executive Director)
Mr. Liao Hongyu
(duly resigned on 3 June 2019 as a Non-executive Director)
Mr. Yang Xiao
(duly resigned on 3 June 2019 as an independent representative Supervisor)

Brief biographical details of the Directors and Supervisors are set out on page 120
to page 129 of this annual report. There is no relationship among the Directors that
is required to be disclosed under the Listing Rules.

Each of the Directors and Supervisors had entered into a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years. None of the Directors or the Supervisors had
entered into any service contract with the Company which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

THE RIGHTS OF DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

During the year ended 31 December 2019, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries had entered into any arrangement to enable the Directors or
Supervisors to acquire any benefit by means of acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate, and none of the Directors
or Supervisors or their respective spouses or children under the age of 18 has been
granted any rights to subscribe for shares in or debentures of the Company or any
other body corporate or have exercised any of such rights.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS
IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there was no other transaction, arrangement
or contract of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party, and in which a Director or Supervisor or an entity connected with a Director
or Supervisor is or was materially interested, either directly or indirectly, subsisted
during or at the end of the year ended 31 December 2019.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS' INTERESTS
IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors or Supervisors holds any interests in any competing
businesses against the Company or any of its jointly controlled entities or
subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2019.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged the liability insurance for the Directors, Supervisors
and other senior management. The coverage of liability insurance includes but not
limited to indemnity for Company’s securities, indemnity for supervisory crisis,
indemnity for Company’s improper employment, indemnity for the loss of key
personnel and indemnity for the intellectual property, etc.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Pursuant to the service contracts entered into between the Company and the
Directors and Supervisors and the resolution passed at the annual general meeting,
the allowance (after tax) paid to the Executive Directors, Non-executive Directors
and Independent Non-executive Directors in 2019 was RMB70,000, RMB50,000
and RMB100,000 per person, respectively; and the allowance (after tax) paid to
the Supervisors was RMB20,000 per person. The allowances of the Directors and
Supervisors shall be approved by the shareholders at the general meeting of the
Company, and other remuneration shall be determined by the Board with reference
to their duties, responsibilities and performance.

The Directors and Supervisors as recommended by the Parent Company proposed
that the Directors and Supervisors nominated by the Parent Company would
not enjoy allowance for holding the position. But they were entitled to receive
respective salaries according to their respective positions taken in the Company.
Details of remuneration packages for the Directors, Supervisors and chief executive
of the Company were set out in Note 8(4)(j) to the financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, there was no other arrangement under which a Director or
a Supervisor has waived or agreed to waive any remuneration for the year ended 31
December 2019.

THE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The five highest paid individuals of the Group during the reporting period were either
Directors or senior management of the Company. Details of their remuneration are
set out in Note 8(4)(k) to the financial statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of any business of the Company were entered into by the Company
or subsisted during the year ended 31 December 2019.
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REPORT FROM THE BOARD
TEeHE

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “The Connected Transactions” in this
annual report, during the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company or any of its
subsidiaries did not enter into any other contract of significance with the controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries, nor had any other contract of significance
been entered into for the provision of services by the controlling shareholder or any
of its subsidiaries to the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision on pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association and
there is no similar restriction against such rights under the relevant PRC law that
is applicable to the Company as a joint stock limited Company incorporated in the
PRC. Therefore, the Company is not required to offer new shares, if any, to its
existing shareholders on a pro-rata basis.

TRANSACTIONS IN ITS SECURITIES AND
EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group did not issue any shares, nor
issue or grant any convertible securities, options, warrants or other similar rights.
The Group had no redeemable securities during the year ended 31 December 2019.

Save as the Parent Company Domestic Shares Subscription Agreement, the
Supplement 1 to the Parent Company Domestic Shares Subscription Agreement,
the Supplement 2 to the Parent Company Domestic Shares Subscription
Agreement (please refer to the details in page 153 to 154 in this annual report) and
the subscription agreement in relation to the HOPU Subscription entered into by
the Company and Aero Infrastructure Holding Company Limited on 29 September
2019 (please refer to the details in page 14 in this annual report), the Company did
not enter into any other equity-linked agreements for the year ended 31 December
2019, nor other equity-linked agreements subsisted at the end of the year.

ENTRUSTED DEPOSITS AND OVERDUE TIME
DEPOSITS

The Group had no entrusted deposits and overdue time deposits as of 31 December
2019.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

As the Company was established and conducts its business operations in Mainland
China and is also listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, our establishment and
business operation have to comply with the relevant laws and regulations in both
Mainland China and Hong Kong. For the year ended 31 December 2019 and up
to the date of this report, the Company has complied with the relevant laws and
regulations in Mainland China and Hong Kong.

MATERIAL LITIGATION OR ARBITRATION

The Group had no material litigation or arbitration for the year ended 31 December
2019.

AUDITOR

The financial statements of the Group have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
Zhong Tian LLP, who is willing to be re-appointed. A resolution will be
proposed by the Board at the forthcoming annual general meeting to re-appoint
PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian LLP as the auditor of the Company for a term
until the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established with terms of reference in accordance with
the CG Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The Audit Committee is
delegated by the Board to assess matters related to the financial statements and to
provide recommendations and advices thereon, including review of the relationship
with external auditors, the Company’s financial reporting, risk management and
internal control system. There was no disagreement between the Audit Committee
and the external auditors on the accounting policies adopted by the Company. The
Audit Committee has reviewed the annual results of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

EXTRACT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S
REPORT

The below sections set out an extract of the report by PricewaterhouseCoopers
Zhong Tian LLP, the auditor of the Company, regarding the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Our Opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated and company financial position of the Company as at
31 December 2019, and their financial performance and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with the requirements of the Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises.
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REPORT FROM THE BOARD
EEEgWmE

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw your attention to Note 2(1) to the consolidated financial statements, which
states that the Group's net current liabilities amounted to RMB3.11 billion as at 31
December 2019. The overdue of debts of the Company's Parent Company incurred
during the year ended 31 December 2019 has constituted a default event as
defined in the Syndicated Loan Agreement, resulting in the loan syndicate has the
right to suspend offering loan to the Company and request the Company to early
repay the Syndicated Loan drawn down by the Company amounting to RMB1.94
billion as at 31 December 2019 and the Syndicated Loan drawn down by the
Company's Parent Company amounting to RMB3.23 billion as at 31 December 2019
which the Company is jointly liable for repayment as a co-borrower. In addition, the
Group's capital commitment relating to the Phase Il Expansion Project amounted
to approximately RMB2.80 billion as at 31 December 2019, of which approximately
RMB1.83 billion is expected to be paid in 2020 according to the construction plan
of the project. These conditions, together with other matters set forth in Note
2(1) in the consolidated financial statements, indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty which may cast significant doubt over the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern. Our audit opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The operating results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial
years are set out on page 7 of this annual report.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of
this annual report, the Company was in compliance with the minimum public float
requirement under Rule 8.08 of the Listing Rules.

By order of the Board
Wang Zhen
Chairman

Hainan Province, the PRC
30 March 2020
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REPORT OF SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

To shareholders,

During 2019, the Supervisory Committee actively conducted supervision and
inspection pursuant to regulatory laws and regulations as well as the corporate
governance requirements, in the interests of the shareholders and the Company,
in accordance with the Company Law, the Listing Rules and the Articles of
Association. During 2019, all Supervisors performed their supervisory duties
conscientiously and effectively in the principle of good faith and diligence by
convening and attending meetings, listening to the management reports, and
attending regulation conferences. The Supervisory Committee successfully
completed its work plan for 2019, and continuously improved the governance
practices of the Company.

The major efforts made by the Supervisory Committee during 2019 were as follows:

1. Attending meetings of the Board and monitoring the compliance, legality and
scientificity of the decision making process of the Board;

2. Monitoring effectively, among others, the daily operation and management
of the chairman and other senior management, and providing relevant
constructive suggestions, by attending the working meetings held by the
chairman of the Board, and participating in major activities in the ordinary
course of business of the Company; and

3. Conducting review of the financial statements of the Company on a regular
basis and review of the vouchers and accounts, etc. of the Company on an
ad-hoc basis.

In consideration of above efforts, the Supervisory Committee believes that the
equity attributable to shareholders recorded a continuous growth in 2019, along
with stable profitability, fair dividend distribution policy, and healthy financial position
in general. We expressed our independent opinions with respect of the relevant
matters as follows:

1. LEGAL OPERATION OF BUSINESS

The Company conducted its business operation as required by the Company
Law and the Articles of Association, with the decision making procedure
being lawful and valid. During the reporting period, the members of the
Board, the general manager and other senior management performed their
duties in the principle of diligence and good faith and in the interests of
the shareholders and the Company. The Supervisory Committee was not
aware of any breach of laws, regulations or the Articles of Association or any
behavior detrimental to the interests of the shareholders and the Company
committed by any Director or senior management during performing their
duties.

BREMEREERBERDE B —E—NFFR

EEQHE

BRAIRR

TE-NFEAR BEERR(ARE) - ETRAK
(RAER)  RHEBRARREQATAMEHE - BRI
EEERMARREER  BRAREBRETI(E -
TE-AFEREBEEUSE  BHBRRA - BBEAR
FMMFEes BERERERSE 2NEESRES
X RBE - AUHETEERE  BEMTKRT ZF—
NFEEEEETFGFE - TEHEREL TZARFNE
BTk

“E-NEF BESTETFER:

1. JIREESSE  UEFSARNGRM A%
MRS EREE

2. JIFREERBLGHENZEATATBLLETNE
NEY HEERDEMGREEAEATEE
ERENHEMAMEE  WIRHERR RS
K&

3. EMBREARNHBRE  FTEREMARNNE
HEE  IRESER -

BRLIMRTE BEEERR/RA T -NFERRE
HEBRIFER  REARVENEE  REKERE
B2 MBRREERY - IREMERERNTE

MER

1. RATWRELERR
ARABEEDTELRRE)MCRARER)
HIRE  ARBEFEEAER - MEHRN  EFE
PRE - REEREMSREEABETHMHME
[RA B AR M A BN S REAR L EHE
TRE  REREE  SREEAEBRELRFR
BRAERBREARER (RABER)RBFERR
RARBIMEHITE °

Tod



REPORT OF SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE
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2. TRUTHFULNESS OF THE FINANCIAL
INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY

The financial report for the current year gives a true, objective, fair and
accurate view of the financial position and operating results of the Company.

3. ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF ASSETS

During the reporting period, the Supervisory Committee was not aware of
any acquisition or disposal of assets which could impair the shareholders’
interests or lead to loss of the Company’s assets or which was involved with
insider trading.

4. CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the reporting period, all the connected transactions of the Company
were entered into pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules and in
strict compliance with the principle of fairness. Such connected transactions
followed the legal decision-making procedure and provided compliant and
transparent information disclosure, and no behavior detrimental to the
interests of the Company was identified thereof.

In 2019, Meilan Airport boasted a continuous and steady improvement in term of
its security, operation, services and management. The business indicators of the
Company will show a large degree decline in 2020, and the Supervisory Committee
believes that the Company will take a variety of measures to actively deal with the
adverse impact of the Epidemic on the Company’s business volume. Meanwhile,
the Supervisory Committee will also focus on monitoring the Company’s fulfillment
of its commitments to shareholders by, as always, safeguarding the interests of the
shareholders and the Company and performing our duties diligently, and seek to
accomplish all our tasks.

By order of the Supervisory Committee
Liao Hongyu
Chairman of the Supervisory Committee

Hainan Province, the PRC
30 March 2020
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AUDITOR'S REPORT
=T RS

PwC ZT Shen Zi (2020) No. 15011 KB R T (202081501155
(Page 1 of 7) (B—8H  #£tH)

To the Shareholders of
Hainan Meilan International Airport Company Limited, BREEWEREEROGERATZERE :

1. OPINION — B ER
(1) What we have audited (—) BMBFTHRRE

We have audited the financial statements of Hainan Meilan International
Airport Company Limited (hereinafter “the Company”), which comprise: the
consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 December 2019, the
consolidated and company income statements for the year then ended, the
consolidated and company cash flow statements for the year then ended, the
consolidated and company statements of changes in shareholders’ equity for
the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the consolidated and company’s financial position of the
Company as at 31 December 2019, and their financial performance and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the requirements of
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises (“CASs").

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with China Standards on Auditing
("CSAs"). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the "Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements”
section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants of the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“CICPA Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the CICPA Code.
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PwC ZT Shen Zi (2020) No. 15011
(Page 2 of 7)

3. MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO

GOING CONCERN

We draw your attention to Note 2(1) to the consolidated financial statements,

which states that the Group’s net current liabilities amounted to RMB3.11

billion as at 31 December 2019. The overdue of debts of the Company’s

Parent Company incurred during the year ended 31 December 2019 has

resulted in the loan syndicate has the right to suspend offering loan to the

Company and request, at any time, the Company to early repay the principal

and interest of the Syndicated Loan drawn down by the Company amounting
to RMB1.94 billion as at 31 December 2019 and the principal and interest
of the Syndicated Loan drawn down by the Company’s Parent Company
amounting to RMB3.23 billion as at 31 December 2019 which the Company
is jointly liable for repayment as a co-borrower. In addition, the Group’s capital

commitment amounted to approximately RMB2.80 billion as at 31 December

2019, of which approximately RMB1.83 billion is expected to be paid in

2020 according to the construction plan of the project. These conditions,

together with other matters set forth in Note 2(1) in the consolidated financial

statements, indicate the existence of a material uncertainty which may cast

significant doubt over the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. Our

audit opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

4. KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,

were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is measurement of capitalised costs

and expenses of the construction in progress — Phase |l Expansion Project.
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Key Audit Matter

The measurement of capitalised costs and expenses related to major
construction in progress — Phase Il Expansion Project

Please refer to Note 4(9) “Construction in progress” of the financial statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, in respect of the Group's construction in
progress — Phase Il Expansion Project, the increases of construction and installation
costs and other costs eligible for capitalisation and necessary to bring the
construction in progress ready for its intended use totalled to RMB1,776,397,602.

The Company and its parent company have entered into an investment and
construction agreement on 20 August 2015, pursuant to which the two parties
agreed to jointly develop the Phase Il Expansion Project and allocate the sub-
projects being responsible by the two parties respectively and confirm the Company
and its parent company are entitled to ownership of the assets of their respective
sub-projects. The Company and its parent company should jointly review and
monitor the construction cost incurred, payments of construction costs and raise
of external funding of the Phase Il Expansion Project, and confirm the allocation of
assets and liabilities between the Company and its parent company.

Construction in progress — Phase Il Expansion Project is measured at actual cost
that are allocated to the Company. Actual cost comprises construction costs,
installation costs, borrowing costs that are eligible for capitalisation and other costs
necessary to bring the construction in progress ready for its intended use, including
expenditures on engineering design, supervision and consulting costs.

We focus on this area in our audit as the Phase Il Expansion Project is a large-
scale and complex construction project, whose capitalised construction costs and
expenses are significant.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
We understood and evaluated the internal control process related to the

construction in progress — Phase |l Expansion Project, and tested the relevant key
internal control.
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Key Audit Matter
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

For the capitalised construction costs and expenses, we performed the following
audit procedures:

- We have reviewed the investment and construction agreement, and checked -

the construction projects recognised in the books and records of the
Company to the details of allocation in construction projects in the investment
and construction agreement;

We selected samples of construction and installation costs incurred during
the year, traced to the construction progress reports jointly confirmed by the
constructors, third party construction supervision companies, construction
cost consulting firms and project managers. We inspected the relevant
construction contracts, agreed the payment amounts to the invoices and
payments vouchers;

We selected certain sub-projects of the Phase |l Expansion Project and
performed on-site visit in order to evaluate the actual construction progress;

We checked, on a sample basis, the service contracts with third party
professional institutions in relation to construction design, construction
supervision and construction costs consultation, inquired of management
about the progress of the services rendered, agreed the amounts of
capitalised expenses to the invoices issued by the third party professional
institutions;

We recalculated the interests on the loans eligible for capitalisation during the
year according to the terms of the loan contracts.

Based on the procedures performed, the increases for the current year of
capitalised costs and expenses of the Phase Il Expansion Project we have tested on
a sample basis were properly supported by the audit evidences obtained.
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5.

OTHER INFORMATION

Management of the Company is responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all of the information included in 2019 annual
report of the Company other than the financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility
is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management of the Company is responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of these financial statements in accordance with the CASs, and
for design, execution and maintaining of such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing these financial statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Company'’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR'S REPORT
TR RS

KB R T (2020051501155
(BRE #£+t8)

7 -HMEEER

\l,
7

Hﬂ_/—\—

S fﬂl}S‘iF

EREHEMES

LA (5 2
NAI2019F FE3REH LZI‘E‘E’J%%
FIEmERMBPINZARE -

M cm
A
of
o

1

PIEHBERRBERNEFELTREEME
A TEEMESBEREMTANERS

o

+ A
®a

HAMER - FUBiET - ZRE I

I T RENER - RAINEEEMHE

EERTEY

BREIBMEETBRET TRINELFEE
AP —BHEUFFEERER - ERHMEL

T T MREMBTEMBES

FHEEARHE

o BMEEREZFE - £EHE - HAEE
MEEFERS -

.

& M A

%%E’JEJEE

JE ¥ Bt %5 )

ERAEEEARRRAESHERNR TR
E?H‘%&i’% CEEERAARE - WRE - BT
HENEOANEES  AEMBRR T FEHRR

FEM R SRR B B AR -

ERET B HmRE

b

)

R - WERERIEL
CWERRELERR  RIFEEEEE

BEEARFEEQRNE

LR ERE

HERA  RILEERFER MR B EE -

REEAEEEEARNMBRERE -

B AR A A )-)-73

NEFH

169



AUDITOR'S REPORT
E R

PwC ZT Shen Zi (2020) No. 15011
(Page 6 of 7)

7. AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether these

financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes

our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not

a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with CSAs will always

detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from

fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,

they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of

users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with CSAs, we exercise professional

judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We

also:

(1)

170

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in these financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.
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(5) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

(6)  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Company to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian LLP

Shanghai, the PRC
30 March 2020
Signing CPA Chen Yuntao (Engagement Partner)

Signing CPA Liu Jiahong
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CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY BALANCE SHEETS
etk ARIEERMER

As at 31 December 2019 20194 12H31H

(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B % 5t BA5) + & BEE (7 BA R ¥IT)

31 December

31 December

31 December

31 December

2019 2018 2019 2018
20195 2018%F 20195 20184
12A31H 12A31H 12A31H 12A31H
Note Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
ASSETS BE (i3 &t & B NG| NS
Current assets RBEE
Cash at bank and on hand ERES 4(1) (1) 1,511,749,849 81,958,509  1,486,351,560 69,630,991
Accounts receivable FEMER K 4(2) 19(2) 490,502,979 371,857,289 485,348,940 394,264,433
Prepayments B FIE 4(3) 8(3) 7,611,309 10,140,900 6,672,814 10,098,697
Other receivables HAb UK 4(4), 15(1)
M)~ +401) 13,857,129 13,042,752 42,721,021 28,744,419
Inventories wE 696,083 615,299 318,843 329,951
Other current assets Hip R & E 4(5) P (5) 9,459,706 9,398,072 - -
Total current assets REEEA 2,033,877,055 487,012,821 2,021,413,178 503,068,491
Non-current assets ERBEE
Long-term equity investments REIRERE 4(6), 15(2)
me) - +#HE)  1,402,716,902  1,396,571,910  1,420,916,902  1,414,771,910
Investment properties KB R E 4(7) P1(7) 1,217,722,262 1,254,387,683 1,217,722,262 1,254,387,683
Fixed assets EEEE 4(8) 1(8) 2,237,698,184  2,459,476,620  2,223,666,245  2,443,237,903
Construction in progress EEITR 4(9) PH(9) 3,247,884,622 1,471,487,020 3,247,884,622 1,471,487,020
Right-of-use assets EREEE 4(10) H(10) 116,963,234 = 105,061,060 =
Intangible assets B EE 4(11) PH(11) 157,207,967 160,944,155 156,912,431 160,608,438
Long-term prepaid expenses ROFEER 7,092,273 7,608,487 6,603,264 7,475,193
Deferred tax assets BEFEHEE 4(12) M(12) 14,734,598 6,520,866 14,713,892 6,520,866
Other non-current assets HiEmE & E 4(13) TH(13) 1,020,265,841 1,622,131,422  1,019,265,841 1,621,131,422
Total non-current assets FRBEEST 9,422,285,883  8,379,128,163  9,412,746,519  8,379,620,435
Total assets BEEMAL 11,456,162,938  8,866,140,984  11,434,159,697  8,882,688,926
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CONSOLIDATED AND COI\/IPANY BALANCE SHEETS

R ARIEERAER

As at 31 December 2019 2019412 H31H
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B % 5zt 85} + & BB E 1 BA RKT)

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018
20195 2018%F 20194 20184
12A31H 12A31H 12A31H 12A31H
Note Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY BERER (i &t & B NG| NS
Current liabilities REBEE
Short-term borrowings SRR 4(14) FH(14) 902,665,000 379,450,000 902,665,000 379,450,000
Accounts payable RN 4(15) PH(15) 310,339,099 191,749,674 232,250,078 139,167,056
Advances from customers TBWRIE 4(17) (17) 131,599,610 63,868,312 112,005,498 =
Contract liabilities ERAE 4(16) 1U(16) 638,204 14,134,576 638,204 61,024,309
Employee benefits payable R 11 58 T 387 B 4(18), 15(3)
m(18) ~ +H(3) 30,324,318 26,760,811 18,695,332 15,187,940
Taxes payable EXHE 4(19) PH(19) 491,065,149 317,157,645 488,351,183 313,705,665
Other payables H A FERT R 4(20) H(20) 1,229,632,236 770,652,096  1,177,585,675 725,135,885
Non-current liabilities —FREERERE
due within one year BE 4(21) PH(21) 2,050,929,447  1,899,553,213  2,035,956,384  1,889,543,213
Total current liabilities REBEEST 5,147,193,063  3,663,326,227  4,968,147,354  3,523,214,068
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Lease liabilities HEAE 4(22) mM(22) 2,480,339 = - =
Long-term payables REAERR 4(23), 15(4)
mM(23) ~ +H(4) 904,340,770 384,015,088  1,196,963,573 637,787,335
Deferred revenue IEIE W e 52,225,556 = 52,225,556 =
Long-term employee benefits £ PE AT BR T B 4(18), 15(3)
payable m(18) ~ +Hh(3) 58,498 82,704 58,498 82,704
Deferred tax liabilities EREFEHAR 4(12) m(12) 278,925 = - =
Other non-current liabilities Hi3ERBEE 4(24) 19(24) 196,995,053 246,777,344 68,379,053 140,339,683
Total non-current liabilities FRBEESH 1,156,379,141 630,875,136 1,317,626,680 778,209,722
Total liabilities aEast 6,303,572,204  4,294,201,363  6,285,774,034  4,301,423,790
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CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY BALANCE SHEETS

etk rRIEERER

As at 31 December 2019 20194 12H31H

(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B 5 55t 8651 + & #EE (L BARKITT)

31 December

31 December

31 December

31 December

2019 2018 2019 2018
20195 2018%F 20194 20184
12A31H 12A31H 12A31H 12A31H
Note Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY BERER (i &t & B NG| NS
Shareholders’ equity R RER
Share capital [LEN 4(25) PH(25) 473,213,000 473,213,000 473,213,000 473,213,000
Capital surplus BARNE 4(26) H(26) 819,661,947 813,135,400 819,661,947 813,135,400
Surplus reserve BRAE 4(27) 1H(27) 246,394,231 246,394,231 246,394,231 246,394,231
Other comprehensive income Hibfr e Y (19,524,487) (12,284,296) (19,524,487) (12,284,296)
Retained earnings R BL I 4(28) 4(28) 3,589,087,273  3,013,674,728  3,628,640,972  3,060,806,801
Total equity attributable to FEREATRRE
shareholders of the Company EREE 5,108,831,964 4,534,133,063 5,148,385,663 4,581,265,136
Minority interests DR FE S 4(29) m(29) 43,758,770 37,806,558 - =
Total equity EEAE 5,152,590,734  4,571,939,621 5,148,385,663  4,581,265,136
Total liabilities and equity BERERET 11,456,162,938  8,866,140,984  11,434,159,697  8,882,688,926

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Legal representative:
PEEEA -

Wang Zhen

=]
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Principal in charge of accounting:
FESHTIERMBRA -

Yu Yan
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Head of accounting department:

DIEEREA -
Tian Qingquan
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CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY INCOME STATEMENTS
Gl NEIRUNEES

For the year ended 31 December 2019 20194 /Z
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B % 5zt 855} + & BB E i BA RKT)

2019 2018 2019 2018
20195 2018FE 20195 E 20185
Note Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
ltem ER st L Gl A A
1. Revenue - BERA 4(30), 15(5)
TH(30) * +3(5) 1,576,371,078 1,703,824,329 1,354,492,955 1,547,449,010
Less: Cost of sales W BERAR 4(30), 15(5)
79(30) * +(5) (720,860,400) (714,627,074) (546,886,696) (559,107,351)
Taxes and surcharges Big Rt 4(31) T(31) (30,492,845) (32,020,817) (29,684,377) (31,096,955)
Selling and distribution expenses HEER 4(30), 15(5)
T(30) - +(5) (6,108,775) (6,232,814 - -
General and administrative EEER 4(30), 15(5)
expenses T(30) * () (72,193,227) (65,805,806) (48,153,741) (47,873,653)
Financial incomey(expenses) — net BBMA/(BR)-FE 432 mE2) 14,041,631 (120,021,798) 14,751,998 (119,597,819)
Credit impairment loss ERRAERE (2,197,79) 305,698 (1,968,987) 305,698
Add: Investment income e REYE 4(33) Mm(33) 6,858,636 52,590,634 6,858,636 58,307,330
Including: Share of profit of He o HE A ENRE
associates Wizs 6,858,636 52,590,634 6,858,636 52,590,634
Gains/(Losses) on disposals of BERENE/(BX)  4(34) mE4)
assets 3,404,673 (381,809) 3,401,013 (384,894)
Other income Hipas 4(35) TM(35) 3,151,142 5,285,873 2,205,198 5,253,872
2. Operating profit = BERE 771,974,117 822,916,416 755,015,999 853,255,238
Add: Non-operating income o EEMRA 4(36) M(36) 112,744 3,411,038 110,000 3,144,557
Less: Non-operating expenses W BEMT (35,592) (30,822) - (24,914)
3. Total profit = FB4E 772,051,269 826,296,632 755,125,999 856,374,881
Less: Income tax expenses A EHER 4(37) I(37) (190,686,512) (197,896,142) (187,291,828) (193,435,893)
4. Net profit M FRE 581,364,757 628,400,490 567,834,171 662,938,988
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CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY INCOME STATEMENTS

GRS NEIRUNEES

For the year ended 31 December 2019 20194 /&
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B 5 55t 8651 + & #EEE (L BARKIT)

2019 2018 2019 2018
20195 20185 % 20195 E 20185
Note Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
Item st L Gl A A
Classified by continuity of operations BEEREESE
Net profit from continuing operations BEREETE 581,364,757 628,400,490 567,834,171 662,938,988
Net profit from discontinued operations RIS FF - - - -
Classified by ownership of the equity EFERGBNE
Attributable to shareholders of BENTRTRENFFHE
the Company 575,412,545 622,041,325 567,834,171 662,938,988
Minority interests DURRER 5,952,212 6,359,165 - -
5. Other comprehensive income, Httlr e s nHia 3 4(6) T(6)
net of tax (7,240,191) (13,015,000) (7,240,191) (13,015,000
Attributable to shareholders of SERASAARRMAMES
the Company, net of tax WaEnH%EE (7,240,191) (13,015,000) (7,240,191) (13,015,000)
Other comprehensive income BENREBENAMSE
which will be reclassified to profit Wiz
or loss (7,240,191) (13,015,000) (7,240,191) (13,015,000)
Other comprehensive income that s PR BEENEMD
can be transferred to profit or loss FelE
under the equity method (7,240,191) (13,015,000) (7,240,191) (13,015,000)
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CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY INCOME STATEMENTS

AR ATFAR
XSG/ | Ve
For the year ended 31 December 2019 20194 /Z
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B~ 1555t 8051 » & #EE 7 BA R K IT)

2019 2018 2019 2018

201958 2018F & 201958 2018 &

Note Consolidated Consolidated Company Company

Item EH B sk X =i AF AF
6. Total comprehensive income N RERZAE 574,124,566 615,385,490 560,593,980 649,923,988

Attributable to shareholders of BERERAREN
the Company BANGE 568,172,354 609,026,325 560,593,980 649,923,988
Attributable to minority interests BERDEREN
AhReE 5,952,212 6,359,165 - -
7. Earnings per share t Shkzi
Basic earnings per share (RMB Yuan) ERgRkE(ARET) 4(38) H(38) 122 131 Not applicable Not applicable
TEHA TER
Diluted earnings per share (RMB Yuan) BHESRRE(ARET) 4(38) M(38) 1.22 131 Not applicable Not applicable
TEHA TER
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements. BB BA TS SRR M T R B TS SRR BV AR BT 5 ©
Legal representative: Principal in charge of accounting: Head of accounting department:
PEEEA - FEETIIEHBEEA - BIBIEREA
Wang Zhen Yu Yan Tian Qingquan
E=] BE HER
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CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY CASH FLOW STATEMENTS

FRRARIEERER

For rhe year ended 31 December 2019 2019 /&
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B 5 55t 8651 + & #EEE (L BARKIT)

2019 2018 2019 2018
20195 K 2018F % 20195 2018F %
Note Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
Bzt & A5 AT AT
1. Cash flows from operating activities — + REZTHELNEELRE
Cash received from sales of goods HERM - RESHKE
or rendering of services MRS 1,737,553,979 2,012,905,978 1,511,490,326 1,797,296,546
Cash received relating to other WEIHth R R B A
operating activities FRe 206,510,154 331,411,961 200,002,962 496,622,570
Sub-total of cash inflows from BRETHRSAA NG
operating activities 1,944,064,133 2,344,317,939 1,711,493,288 2,293,919,116
Cash paid for goods and services BERG  BXBHEMN
o (344,109,527)  (319,875,014)  (268,281,204)  (277,584,318)
Cash paid to and on behalf of SREBINRABIZMN
employees HRE (229,826,194) (269,799,631) (141,607,833) (225,574,797)
Payments of taxes and surcharges YHHEERE (114,086,413) (40,965,098) (106,905,274) (38,170,745)
Cash paid relating to other operating YA EEE RS AR
activities Bk (424,763,963) (488,568,167) (386,368,798) (463,589,504)
Sub-total of cash outflows from SETFHRS R
operating activities (1,112,786,097)  (1,119,207,910) (903,163,109)  (1,004,919,364)
Net cash flows from operating RETHELNESRE 4(40)(a)
activities k] 79(40)(a) 831,278,036 1,225,110,029 808,330,179 1,288,999,752
2. Cash flows from investing activites =+ REZHELENRESHKE
Cash received from returns on DEREKEMKERRE
investments - - - 5,716,696
Net cash received from disposals RERTEAEREMNES
of fixed assets FE 3,274,479 128,291 3,235,535 110,799
Cash received relating to other WEI At BB EESHE
investing activities iobrkes 629,422,357 124,443,773 629,422,357 124,443,773
Sub-total of cash inflows from RETHRSFA DG
investing activities 632,696,836 124,572,064 632,657,892 130,271,268
Cash paid to acquire fixed assets BEETEENEARE
and other long-term assets BEIANAL (1,319,680,247)  (1,438,247,120)  (1,317,507,282)  (1,432,831,822)
Net cash outflow on acquisition of DBFRAIZANASFE
the subsidiary - - - (3,000,000)
Cash paid relating to other investing SREMAEEESEH
activities iobire - (1,000,000) - -
Sub-total of cash outflows from REFHRESRE D
investing activities (1,319,680,247)  (1,439,247,120)  (1,317,507,282)  (1,435,831,822)
Net cash flows from investing RETBHEENEER
activities it (686,983,411)  (1,314,675,056) (684,849,390)  (1,305,560,554)
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CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY CASH FLOW STATEMENTS
& Tiﬁi//lbii%

For the year ended 31 December 2019 20194 /Z
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B % 5zt 855} + & BB E i BA RKT)

2019 2018 2019 2018
20195 K 2018F % 20195 2018F %
Note Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
Bzt & A5 AT NG|
3. Cash flows from financing activities = - EBEZBHELNREHE
Cash received from borrowings DEERKINAS 2,840,485,000 379,450,000  2,840,485,000 379,450,000
Cash received relating to other WEEEEEESFE
financing activities MRS 842,862,125 170,273,302 842,862,125 92,208,811
Sub-total of cash inflows from EETHRSFANG
financing activities 3,683,347,125 549,723,302 3,683,347,125 471,658,811
Cash repayments of borrowings BEELS 'Tﬁﬁfié (2,199,450,000)  (675,003,253)  (2,199,450,000)  (675,003,253)
Cash payments for interest expenses AERF - FIEREHF S
and distribution of dividends XfTHRE
or profits (168,508,858) (291,602,533) (168,508,857) (291,602,533)
Cash payments relating to other SRENREEEDEH
financing activities iobirkes (50,381,256) (84,549,759) (42,638,192) (84,549,759)
Sub-total of cash outflows from E5EHRLRE G
financing activities (2,418,340,114)  (1,051,155,545)  (2,410,597,049)  (1,051,155,545)
Net cash flows from financing EETHELNESRE
activities k] 1,265,007,011 (501,432,243) 1,272,750,076 (579,496,734)
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CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY CASH FLOW STATEMENTS
BEHEAFRIRERAER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 20194 /&
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B 5 55t 8651 + & #EEE (L BARKIT)

2019 2018 2019 2018
20195 K 2018F % 20195 2018F %
Note Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
Bzt aff aff AT A7
4. Effect of foreign exchange M EXEHHBIRELE
rate changes on cash and BNnNEE
cash equivalents 20,489,704 (12,536) 20,489,704 (12,536)
5. Net increase/(decrease) in cash I ReRRSEENT 4(40)(b)
and cash equivalents #n/ (HD) 8 749(40)(b) 1,429,791,340 (591,009,806) 1,416,720,569 (596,070,072)
Add: Cash and cash equivalents at m: EPReRReE
the beginning of the year BYHE 81,958,509 672,968,315 69,630,991 665,701,063
6. Cash and cash equivalents at N ERBERESEENHE
the end of the year 1,511,749,849 81,958,509 1,486,351,560 69,630,991
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements. BB BA TS SRR M T R B TS SRR BV AR BT & ©
Legal representative: Principal in charge of accounting: Head of accounting department:
PEEEA - FESIIIEWBEEA - DEHEEBEEA -
Wang Zhen Yu Yan Tian Qingquan
EN=) BE HER
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY
2 B R TR 18 25 2

For the year ended 31 December 2019 20194 /Z
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B % 5zt 855} + & BB E i BA RKT)

Equity attributable to shareholders of the Company

FERALANRRES

B 2}

Other Total
Share Capital Surplus  comprehensive  Undistributed Minority shareholders’
Note capital surplus reserve income profits interests equity
Item EH ik B VYN BRLE Eftsaka FARME  DERFER RRERAH
Balance at 1 January 2018 018F1B1REIBE 473213000 82972209 246,394,231 730,704 2,504,993,353 36,939,905 4,091,993,288
Movements for the yearended 20185 EEHLHE
31 December 2018
Total comprehensive income GRYRER
Net profit ezl - - - - 622,041,325 6,359,165 628,400,490
Other comprehensive income EfuirAla - - - (13,015,000 = = (13,015,000
Total comprehensive income GRNEREAT - - = (130150000 622,041,325 6,359,165 615,385,490
Profit distribution HMEAE
Profit distribution to HRROHR 4(28) IH(28)
shareholders - - - - (113,359,950) (5,492,512) (118,852,462)
Changes in other capital suplus ~ EHBARTEEE 4(26) 1(26) - (16,586,69) - - - - (16,586,695)
Balance at 31 December 2018 018E12ANAERBE 473213000 813,135,400 246,394,231 (12,284,296)  3,013,674,728 37,806,558 4,571,939,621
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS  EQUITY
2 GHRR B BB

For the year ended 31 December 2019 20194 /&
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B 5 55t 8651 + & #EEE (L BARKIT)

Equity attributable to shareholders of the Company

BERALANRRER
Other Total
Share Capital Surplus  comprehensive  Undistributed Minority ~ shareholders’
Note capital surplus reserve income profits interests equity
Item EH i e N AN | AfpiRE FABAE  HURFER RRERAEE
Balance at 1 January 2019 0191 AR EIBE 473,213,000 813,135,400 246,394,231 (12,284,296)  3,013,674,728 37,806,558 4,571,939,621
Movements for the yearended 20195 EEHLHE
31 December 2019
Total comprehensive income GRYRER
Net profit i)l - - - - 575412545 5,952,212 581,364,757
Other comprehensive income EfuirAla 4(6) T(6) - - - (7,240,191) - - (7,240,191)
Total comprehensive income Felagsa - - - (7.240191) 575,412,545 5,952,212 574,124,566
Profit distribution HMEAE
Profit distribution to HRROAE 4(28) IH(28)
shareholders - - - - - - -
Changes in other capital suplus ~ EHBARTEEE 4(26) 1(26) - 6,526,547 - - - - 6,526,547
Balance at 31 December 2019 20195 12A31R ERHE 473213000 819,661,947 246,394,231 (19524,487)  3589,087273 43758770  5,152,590,734

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Legal representative:
PEEFA -

Wang Zhen

E-1

Principal in charge of accounting:

FEESHIEWERA -
Yu Yan
BE

RIS IR E R B MR OB D ©
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Head of accounting department:
BHBHAEA

Tian Qingquan
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

. ingin

NRIIRRIERE

=B K

For the year ended 31 December 2019 20194 Z

(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B~ 1555t 8051 » & #EE 7 BA R K IT)
Other Total
Share Capital Surplus  comprehensive Undistributed shareholders’
Note capital surplus reserve income profits equity
Item &R liE3 B EADHE BHOHE Etirala ROEHE BRERAE
Balance at 1 January 2018 20185 1B 1R ENEE 473213000 829722095 246,394,231 730,704 2511227763  4,061,287,793
Movements for the year ended 0185 ERREHE
31 December 2018
Total comprehensive income GAlEEE
Net profit EHE - - - - 662,938,988 662,938,988
Other comprehensive income HEipza ks - - - (13,015,000) - (13,015,000)
Total comprehensive income malEgEast - - = (13,015,000} 662,938,988 649,923,988
Profit distribution FESE
Profit distribution to shareholders HRRAARE 4(28) I (28) - - - - (113,359,950) (113,359,950)
Changes in other capital surplus EEALEED 4(26) 18(26) - (16,586,695 - - - (16,586,695)
Balance at 31 December 2018 2018 128N B ERBE 473213000 813135400 246,394,231 (12,284,29)  3,060,806,801 4,581,265,136
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COI\/IPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

N R R Em B E KR

For rhe year ended 31 December 2019 20194 /&

(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B % 5zt BA5) + & BEE (7 BA R ¥IT)

Other Total
Share Capital Surplus  comprehensive  Undistributed shareholders’
Note capital surplus reserve income profits equity
ltem &R i S ERNE BHAR HftREWE KRABFE RRERET
Balance at 1 January 2019 2019F1 B1BENHE 473,213,000 813,135,400 246,394,231 (12,284,296) 3,060,806,801 4,581,265,136
Movements for the year ended 0195 ERREHE
31 December 2019
Total comprehensive income GAlEEE
Net profit EHE - - - - 567,834,171 567,834,171
Other comprehensive income HEipza ks 4(6) T(6) - - - (7,240,191) - (7,240,191)
Total comprehensive income malimeEas - - - (7,240,191) 567,834,171 560,593,980
Profit distribution FESE
Profit distribution to shareholders HRRAARE 4(28) 14(28) - - - - - -
Changes in other capital surplus EEALEED 4(26) 75 (26) - 6,526,547 - - - 6,526,547
Balance at 31 December 2019 20195128 AEREE 473,213,000 819,661,947 246,394,231 (19524,487)  3,628,640972  5,148,385,663

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Legal representative:
PEEEA -

Wang Zhen

-

Principal in charge of accounting:
FERTIIEMEEA -

Yu Yan

BE

Head of accounting department:

BiEEREA -
Tian Qingquan
HER
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 755 ¥ 5% B oE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 20194 /Z

(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B % 5t 85) - % BB BARBT)

GENERAL INFORMATION

Hainan Meilan International Airport Company Limited (formerly known as
“Regal International Airport Group Company Limited"”) (the “Company”) was
established as a joint stock company with limited liability in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC") on 28 December 2000. The registered address
and the headquarters of the Company is at Haikou City, Hainan Province,
the PRC. The Company’s shares were listed on the main board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 18 November 2002. The Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group"”) are mainly engaged in the operation
of the Meilan Airport at Haikou City, Hainan Province, the PRC (the “Meilan
Airport"”) and certain ancillary commercial businesses. The parent company
of the Company is Haikou Meilan Airport Co., Ltd. (“Haikou Meilan"”), an
enterprise established in the PRC with limited liability.

These financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board on 30
March 2020.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Basis of preparation

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Accounting
Standard for Business Enterprises — Basic Standard, and the specific
accounting standards and other relevant regulations issued by the Ministry
of Finance of the PRC on 15 February 2006 and in subsequent periods
(hereinafter collectively referred to as “the Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises” or “CAS"). The new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
was effective on 3 March 2014. Certain notes to the financial statements of
the Group have been supplemented in accordance with the requirements of
the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group recorded net current liabilities of
RMB3.11 billion (31 December 2018: net current liabilities of RMB3.18
billion), including short-term borrowings of RMBO0.9 billion and non-current
liabilities due within one year of RMB2.05 billion.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 ¥Rk MY ot

For the year ended 31 December 2019 20194 &
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B ¥ Bl 85) - & BB 87 BA R T)

2

186

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The Company and Haikou Meilan are jointly constructing Meilan Airport
Phase Il Expansion Project (the “Phase Il Expansion Project”) as stated in
note 8(6)(d). Haikou Meilan (as the borrower) and the Company (as the co-
borrower) have obtained a syndicated loan (the “Syndicated Loan") specific
for the construction of the Phase Il Expansion Project with total facility of
RMB7.8 billion and maturity of 20 years. Pursuant to the Syndicated Loan
Agreement, the Company and Haikou Meilan are jointly liable for repayment
of the Syndicated Loan. During the year ended 31 December 2019, the
overdue of debts of Haikou Meilan has constituted a default event as defined
in the Syndicated Loan Agreement, resulting in the loan syndicate has the
right to suspend loan offering to the Company and request the Company to
early repay the Syndicated Loan drawn down by the Company amounting to
RMB1.94 billion as at 31 December 2019 and the Syndicated Loan drawn
down by Haikou Meilan amounting to RMB3.23 billion as at 31 December
2019 which the Company is jointly liable for repayment as the co-borrower.
Up to the date of this announcement, the Company and Haikou Meilan
have not obtained the written waiver from the loan syndicate, nor have they
received any notice from the loan syndicate to take any measures mentioned
above.

The capital expenditure of the Phase || Expansion Project which the Company
being responsible for is estimated to be approximately RMB7.16 billion. As
at 31 December 2019, the construction fee payable of the Company relating
to the Phase Il Expansion Project amounted to RMBO0.54 billion which is to
be paid in 2020, the Company’s capital commitment relating to the Phase
Il Expansion Project amounted to approximately RMB2.80 billion, of which
approximately RMB1.83 billion is expected to be paid in 2020 according to
the construction plan of the project.

Following the outbreak of pneumonia epidemic (the "“Epidemic”) caused by
the novel coronavirus in January 2020, a series of strict control measures
including alert of emergency public healthy event and travel restrictions have
been implemented by China and other countries in the world in response
to the spread of the virus, which would be of an adverse impact to Group's
revenue and operating cash inflow for 2020. For the two months ended 29
February 2020, the Group's revenue from aeronautical and non-aeronautical
businesses decreased by 40% and 22%, respectively, as compared to the
corresponding period of 2019.

HAINAN MEILAN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED b-)- ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 ¥Rk M ot

For the year ended 31 December 2019 20194 £

(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B % 5t 85) - % BB BARBT)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The above events or circumstances indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty which may cast significant doubt over the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern.

The Board has cautiously taken into account the Group's future working
capital, operation results and available sources of financing to assess whether
the Group has sufficient working capital to meet its current requirement and
continue as a going concern for at least of 12 months from 31 December
2019. The Group and Haikou Meilan is trying to take certain measures to
improve its financial position and cash flow status, including but not limited
to:

1) Haikou Meilan and the Company are in negotiation with the loan
syndicate to obtain written confirmation from the loan syndicate for not
exercising its right to require Haikou Meilan and the Company to repay
the principal and interest of their respective Syndicated Loans within
a time limit or to require the Company, as a co-borrower, to repay the
Syndicated Loan drawn down by Haikou Meilan;

2) Haikou Meilan and the Company continue to coordinate with the
government of Hainan Province, Haikou Meilan’'s shareholders
and the loan syndicate to seek continuance funding of the Phase
Il Expansion Project, including but not limited to issuance of local
government bonds. The Company has drawn down the Syndicated
Loan of RMB1.94 billion in December 2019, and will continue to seek
loan syndicate’s agreement to release the facilities according to the
Syndicated Loan Agreement;

3) The Company is pursuing the approval from the China Securities
Regulatory Commission (the “CSRC") on the Subscription by Haikou
Meilan and New H Shares Issue, which is expected to be completed in
2020, the gross proceeds are estimated at RMB0.94 billion;
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 ¥Rk MY ot

For the year ended 31 December 2019 20194 /&
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B ¥ Bl 85) - & BB 87 BA R T)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING =

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(1) Basis of preparation (Continued) (1)

4) In respect of the loans other than the Syndicated Loan, the Company
will negotiate with relevant banks or lenders to renew or extend loan
contracts before the maturity. In addition, the Company will continue to
seek other external funding such as bond issuance; and

5) The Group has timely taken a number of measures to mitigate
the adverse impact of the Epidemic, including but not limited to
a) implement staff rotation and working schedule adjustments to
reduce the utilities expenses and labor costs; b) apply subsidies
from government and financial institutions according to preference
policies, including the circulars issued by The People’s Bank of China in
February 2020 and the Civil Aviation Administration of China in March
2020, respectively. With the control of the Epidemic in China, since
March 2020, the routes operated in Meilan Airport have been gradually
resumed, and the Group has recorded a gradual recovery in passenger
throughput, cargo throughput and aircraft takeoff and landing.

The Board has reviewed the Group’s cash flow forecast for the 12 months
from the date of these financial statements prepared by the management
of the Company. The Board is of the view that the Group will have sufficient
working capital to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due
within the next 12 months from 31 December 2019. Accordingly, the Board is
of view that it is appropriate to prepare these financial statements on a going
concern basis.
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(2)

(3)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (& % 5zt 895)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Notwithstanding, significant uncertainty exists as to whether the Group is
able to achieve its plans and measures as described above. Whether the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern would depend upon the
following:

1) Haikou Meilan and the Company would be able to successfully obtain
written confirmation from the loan syndicate for not to require Haikou
Meilan and the Company to repay the principal and interest of their
respective Syndicated Loans within a time limit and not to require the
Company, as a co-borrower, to repay the Syndicated Loan drawn down
by Haikou Meilan;

2) The remaining capital injections of the Phrase |l Expansion Project
would be timely received and the loan syndicate would continue to
release the unutilized facilities in accordance with the Syndicated Loan
Agreement;

3) Approval of the Subscription by Haikou Meilan and New H Shares Issue
would be granted by the CSRC; and

4) The Group would be able to renew or extend the loans on or before
they are matured and obtain new facility lines to repay the loans and to
support its future operations when necessary.

Should the Group be unable to operate as a going concern, adjustments
would have to be made to reduce the carrying values of the Group’s assets
to their recoverable amounts, to provide for further liabilities which might
arise, and to reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities as current
assets and current liabilities, respectively. The effect of these adjustments
has not been reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

Statement of compliance with the Accounting

Standards for Business Enterprises

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2019 are in compliance with the Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises, and truly and completely present the consolidated and the
Company’s financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2019 and
their financial performance, cash flows and other information for the year
then ended.

Accounting year
The Company's accounting year starts on 1 January and ends on 31
December.

(1)

BEEMEREERGERAT ¥ —F

B 75 ¥Rk M ot

For the year ended 31 December 2019 20194 £
C BB BARKET)

FESHBENSFHET @

MEBRNVERER @

EENY  AEEEREELTEE R EIRE
WEESATRETEFE - AR THELE
BRRPA -

1) BAXMEARBEEKIHRGREER
AT@ﬁLLL%$ﬁxI@D%%X$

RERMEERRCEREFTAR  RE
RARBERKBBERARESTEES

EHREN SR

2) %%%%_%%LEHME%§$%EK
BEALRI - REEXR FAIEZR
ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁmﬁmﬁmgmi

3 AREEOEHERBESHEMFHKRETZE
BEEMINEESREEESIE &

4)  AEEERBRHEKREERTT %ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁfw‘clﬂ
BEEERBRANEGERITIIEER
Hibph Bt BT HE - UWEEDY f;a““l/ﬁi

BRREEFRK -

WEARRBRAEBELEET - BIAELRE -
EBARBEEE REEERABZHAIEIKEHE
HATRREEN P BB EHREE - ULEFERD
BERFERBEBESNENSBEARDEE LR
HEE SRR FEWRRMERTBRE
==l

BRETESTHENNER

RAR2019FEMBREFTELEGTEAD
Zk - BEE - TEMKRBTARAF2019F12A4
3TEME R AR BARRIAR2019FEMHE
HRAREEKRNEMBESRESHBES °

BHHEE
SHFERAB1AIBRE12ABLL -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 ¥Rk MY ot

For the year ended 31 December 2019 20194 &
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B ¥ Bl 85) - & BB 87 BA R T)

2

(5)
(a)

190

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

Recording currency

The Company's recording currency is Renminbi (RMB). Subsidiaries of
the Company determine their recording currencies according to the major
economic environment in which they operate. The financial statements are
presented in RMB.

Business combinations
Business combinations involving enterprises under

common control

The consideration paid and net assets obtained by the combining party in a
business combination are measured at the carrying amount. If the combined
party is acquired from a third party by the ultimate controlling party in a
prior year, the consideration paid and net assets obtained by the combining
party are measured based on the carrying amounts of the combined party’s
assets and liabilities (including the goodwill arising from the acquisition
of the combined party by the ultimate controlling party) presented in the
consolidated financial statements of the ultimate controlling party. The
difference between the carrying amount of the net assets obtained from
the combination and the carrying amount of the consideration paid for the
combination is treated as an adjustment to capital surplus (share premium). If
the capital surplus (share premium) is not sufficient to absorb the difference,
the remaining balance is adjusted against retained earnings. Costs directly
attributable to the combination are included in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

Business combinations involving enterprises not under

common control

The cost of combination and identifiable net assets obtained by the acquirer
in a business combination are measured at fair value at the acquisition date.
Where the cost of the combination exceeds the acquirer’s interest in the fair
value of the acquiree's identifiable net assets, the difference is recognised as
goodwill; where the cost of combination is lower than the acquirer’s interest
in the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets, the difference is
recognised in profit or loss for the current period. Costs directly attributable to
the combination are included in profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

Preparation of consolidated financial statements
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of
the Company and all of its subsidiaries.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control and are de-consolidated from the date that such control ceases. For
a subsidiary that is acquired in a business combination involving enterprises
under common control, it is included in the consolidated financial statements
from the date when it, together with the Company, comes under common
control of the ultimate controlling party. The portion of the net profits realised
before the combination date is presented separately in the consolidated
income statement.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, where the accounting
policies and the accounting periods of the Company and subsidiaries are
inconsistent, the financial statements of the subsidiaries are adjusted in
accordance with the accounting policies and the accounting period of the
Company. For subsidiaries acquired from business combinations involving
enterprises not under common control, the individual financial statements of
the subsidiaries are adjusted based on the fair value of the identifiable net
assets at the acquisition date.

All significant intra-group balances, transactions and unrealised profits are
eliminated in the consolidated financial statements. The portion of subsidiaries’
owners' equity and the portion of subsidiaries’ net profits and losses and
comprehensive incomes for the period not attributable to the Company are
recognised as minority interests, net profit attributed to minority interests
and total comprehensive incomes attributed to minority interests, and
presented separately in the consolidated financial statements under owners’
equity, net profits and total comprehensive income respectively. Unrealised
profits and losses resulting from the sale of assets by the Company to its
subsidiaries are fully eliminated against net profit attributable to owners of
the parent. Unrealised profits and losses resulting from the sale of assets
by a subsidiary to the Company are eliminated and allocated between net
profit attributable to owners of the parent and net profit attributed to minority
interests in accordance with the allocation proportion of the parent in the
subsidiary. Unrealised profits and losses resulting from the sale of assets
by one subsidiary to another are eliminated and allocated between net profit
attributable to owners of the parent and net profit attributed to minority
interests in accordance with the allocation proportion of the parent in the
subsidiary.

If the accounting treatment of a transaction is inconsistent in the financial
statements at the Group level and at the Company or its subsidiary level,
adjustment will be made from the perspective of the Group.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits that can be
readily drawn on demand, and short-term and highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Foreign currency translation
Foreign currency transactions are translated into recording currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

At the balance sheet date, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are translated into recording currency using the spot exchange rates on the
balance sheet date. Exchange differences arising from these translations are
recognised in profit or loss for the current period, except for those attributable
to foreign currency borrowings that have been taken out specifically for
acquisition or construction of qualifying assets, which are capitalised as part
of the cost of those assets. Non-monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies that are measured at historical costs are translated at the balance
sheet date using the spot exchange rates at the date of the transactions. The
effect of exchange rate changes on cash is presented separately in the cash
flow statement.

Financial instruments

Financial assets

Classification and measurement

Based on the business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets, financial assets
are classified as: (1) financial assets at amortised cost; (2) financial assets
at fair value through other comprehensive income; (3) financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss. The Group's financial assets are mainly measured
at amortised cost.

The financial assets are measured at fair value at initial recognition. Related
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets
are included in the initially recognised amounts, except for the financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, the related transaction costs of which are
recognised directly in profit or loss for the current period. Accounts receivable
or notes receivable arising from sales of products or rendering of services
(excluding or without regard to significant financing components) are initially
recognised at the consideration that is entitled to be charged by the Group as
expected.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments

The debt instruments held by the Group refer to the instruments that are
consistent with the definition of financial liabilities from the perspective of
the issuer, and the financial instruments currently held by the Group are
measured at amortized cost.

Measured at amortised cost:

The objective of the Group's business model is to hold the financial
assets to collect the contractual cash flows, and the contractual cash flow
characteristics are consistent with a basic lending arrangement, which gives
rise on specified dates to the contractual cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. The interest
income of such financial assets is recognised using the effective interest
method. The financial assets include cash at bank and on hand, accounts
receivable and other receivables.

Impairment
The Group confirms the loss provision based on expected credit losses for
financial assets measured at amortised cost.

Giving consideration to reasonable and supportable information on past
events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions, as
well as the default risk weight, the Group recognises the expected credit
loss (“ECL") as the probability-weighted amount of the present value of the
difference between the cash flows receivable from the contract and the cash
flows expected to collect.

For the financial instruments with lower credit risk on the balance sheet date,
the Group assumes there is no significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition and recognises the 12-month ECL provision.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment (Continued)

For accounts receivable, regardless of whether exists the significant financing
component, the Group measures the loss provision according to the expected
credit losses during the entire duration.
Grouping of accounts receivables Third parties customers
Grouping of accounts receivables Related parties customers

Grouping of other receivables Advances

With consideration to historical credit loss experience, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions, the Group prepares the cross-
reference between the number of overdue days of accounts receivable and
the lifetime expected credit loss rate, and calculates the expected credit
losses of accounts receivable that are classified into groupings.

The Group, on the basis of the exposure at default and the 12-month/
lifetime ECL rate, calculates the ECL of other receivables that are classified
into groupings with consideration to historical credit losses experience, the
current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

The Group recognises the loss provision made or reversed into profit or loss
for the current period.

Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised when: (1) the contractual rights to the
cash flows from the financial asset expire; (2) the financial asset has been
transferred and the Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset to the transferee; or (3) the financial asset
has been transferred and the Group has not retained control of the financial
asset, although the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as financial liabilities at amortised cost and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss at initial recognition.

The financial liabilities of the Group mainly are financial liabilities measured
at amortized cost, including accounts payable, other payables, short-term
borrowings, debentures payable and long-term payables, etc. Such financial
liabilities are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred,
and subsequently measured using the effective interest method. Financial
liabilities that are due within one year (inclusive) are classified as current
liabilities; those with maturities over one year but are due within one year
(inclusive) as from the balance sheet date are classified as current portion of
non-current liabilities. Others are classified as non-current liabilities.

A financial liability is derecognised or partly derecognised when the underlying
present obligation is discharged or partly discharged. The difference between
the carrying amount of the derecognised part of the financial liability and the
consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss for the current period.

Determination of fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of a financial instrument that is traded in an active market
is determined at the quoted price in the active market. The fair value of a
financial instrument that is not traded in an active market is determined
by using a valuation technique. In valuation, the Group adopts valuation
techniques applicable in the current situation and supported by adequate
available data and other information, selects inputs with the same
characteristics as those of assets or liabilities considered in relevant
transactions of assets or liabilities by market participants, and gives priority to
the use of relevant observable inputs. When relevant observable inputs are
not available or feasible, unobservable inputs are adopted.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(10) Inventories

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Classification
Inventories include food and spare parts, etc., and are measured at the lower
of cost and net realisable value.

Costing of inventories
Cost is determined using first in first out method when issued.

Basis for determining net realisable values of inventories
and method for making provision for decline in the value
of inventories

Provision for decline in the value of inventories is determined at the excess
amount of the carrying amounts of the inventories over their net realisable
value. Net realisable value is determined based on the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale and related taxes.

The Group adopts the perpetual inventory system.

(11) Long-term equity investments

196

Long-term equity investments comprise the Company’s long-term equity
investments in its subsidiaries and the Group's long-term equity investments
in its associates.

Subsidiaries are the investees over which the Company is able to exercise
control. An associate is the investee over which the Group has significant
influence by participating in the financial and operating policy decisions.

Investments in subsidiaries are measured using the cost method in the
Company'’s financial statements, and adjusted by using the equity method
when preparing the consolidated financial statements. Investments in
associates are accounted for using the equity method.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(11) Long-term equity investments (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Determination of investment cost
For long-term equity investment acquired by payment in cash, the initial
investment cost shall be the purchase price actually paid.

Subsequent measurement and recognition of profit or loss
Long-term equity investments accounted for using the cost method are
measured at initial investment cost. Cash dividend or profit distribution
declared by the investees is recognised as investment income in profit or loss
for the current period.

For long-term equity investments that are accounted for using the equity
method, where the initial investment cost exceeds the Company’s share
of the fair value of the investee's identifiable net assets at the time of
acquisition, the investment is initially measured at cost. Where the initial
investment cost is less than the Company’s share of the fair value of the
investee's identifiable net assets at the time of acquisition, the difference is
included in profit or loss for the current period and the cost of the long-term
equity investment is adjusted upwards accordingly.

Under the equity method, the Group recognises the investment income
according to its share of net profit or loss of the investee. The Group does not
recognise further losses when the carrying amounts of the long-term equity
investment together with any long-term interests that, in substance, form part
of the Group's net investment in investees are reduced to zero. However, if
the Group has obligations for additional losses and the criteria with respect to
recognition of provisions are satisfied, the Group continues recognising the
investment losses and the provisions at the amount it expects to undertake.
The Group's share of the changes in investee’s owner's equity other than
those arising from the net profit or loss, other comprehensive income and
profit distribution is recognised in capital surplus with a corresponding
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the long-term equity investment. The
carrying amount of the investment is reduced by the Group’s share of the
profit distribution or cash dividends declared by the investees. The unrealised
profits or losses arising from the transaction between the Group and its
investees are eliminated in proportion to the Group’s equity interest in the
investees, based on which the investment gain or losses are recognised.
Any losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its investees,
which are attributable to asset impairment losses are not eliminated.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(11) Long-term equity investments (Continued)

(c) Basis for determining existence of control and significant
influence over investees
Control refers to the power over the investee, exposure, or rights, to variable
returns from involvement with the investee, and the ability to use its power
over the investee to affect the amount of the investor's returns.
Significant influence is the power to participate in making the decisions on
financial and operating policies of the investee, but is not control or joint
control over making those policies.

(d) Impairment of long-term equity investments

For the long-term equity investment in the subsidiary and associated
enterprises, when its recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount is reduced to the recoverable amount (Note 2(18)).

(12) Investment properties

Investment properties, including land use rights that have already been
leased out, buildings that are held for the purpose of leasing and buildings
that are being constructed or developed for future use for leasing, are
measured initially at cost. Subsequent expenditures incurred in relation to an
investment property are included in the cost of the investment property when
it is probable that the associated economic benefits will flow to the Group
and their costs can be reliably measured; otherwise, the expenditures are
recognised in profit or loss for the period in which they are incurred.

The Group adopts the cost model for subsequent measurement of
investment properties. Buildings and land use rights are depreciated or
amortised to their estimated net residual values over their estimated useful
lives. The estimated useful lives, the estimated net residual values that are
expressed as a percentage of cost and the annual depreciation (amortisation)
rates of investment properties are as follows:

FESFTBEMS L@

(1) RERERE@®

(c)

(d)

BEHWREBEVAREFIREAR

ERIRIE

PR IR R S AT A BT M) - B S R
BEFNEMEDMEZAAREE L AALE

ERUBRAT RNV EAERSHE -

BEAXEREBHRREBUNMBNELERRA
SERENES - BT RESE D SE EE M
— R RS L BER A BIE -

REBRERERE
HTARMBACENRIRERS  EEAK
BeBEREEMEERS  RREERSEAK
El& 2 (HE=(18)) °

(12) REMFEHMHE

REMEHESRED HHEN T 0EREMALE
5B RHEEYIA R IEARERFAERET A
MNHHEMZEY - ARANETIRETE - BRE
HEMERBNKRES L - EHEBNSENRR
AREM AR B B E AR R] Se ) FT B8 - 5T
ABRBUEEMERAN « BRI RBEERGTAZH

B -

REBUMEREEEERAR AR ETR
Bt RARERASH FRERHREY
Mz MEEHRITESETTHEE - REUE M
ENTE RS  FRERRFNE @) %
SR

Estimated Estimated net Annual depreciation

useful lives residual values (amortisation) rates

EEERASS FEERERER FHE () =

Buildings 32 years 3% 3.03%
BB KRS 324

Land use rights 47 years - 2.13%
b A 47
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(12) Investment properties (Continued)

The estimated useful life and the estimated net residual value of an
investment property and the depreciation (amortisation) method applied to
the property are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate at each year-end.

The carrying amount of an investment property is reduced to the recoverable
amount if the recoverable amount is below the carrying amount (Note 2(18)).

An investment property is derecognised on disposal or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposal. The net amount of proceeds from sale,
transfer, retirement or damage of an investment property after its carrying
amount and related taxes and expenses is recognised in profit or loss for the
current period.

(13) Fixed assets

(a)

Recognition and initial measurement of fixed assets
Fixed assets comprise buildings, machinery and equipment, motor vehicles,
office equipment and others.

Fixed assets are recognised when it is probable that the related economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the costs can be reliably measured. Fixed
assets purchased or constructed by the Group are initially measured at cost
at the time of acquisition.

Subsequent expenditures incurred for a fixed asset are included in the cost of
the fixed asset when it is probable that the associated economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the related cost can be reliably measured. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All the other subsequent
expenditures are recognised in profit or loss for the period in which they are
incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 ¥Rk MY ot

For the year ended 31 December 2019 20194 &
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B ¥ Bl 85) - & BB 87 BA R T)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

FESFTBEMS s ETTw

(13) Fixed assets (Continued) (13) BEE E @)
(b) Depreciation methods of fixed assets (b) BEEEMINERE
Fixed assets are depreciated using the straight-line method to allocate the EEBENMEXAFRIEEEWIZEAREER
cost of the assets to their estimated net residual values over their estimated EHFHFRAREENEASZH AR - ¥R
useful lives. For the fixed assets that have been provided for impairment loss, TREEENETEEE - BIERKARIZIOBRRR
the related depreciation charge is prospectively determined based upon the B2EEE ) BRE B (A RAAKER & P BRI
adjusted carrying amounts over their remaining useful lives. ERE o
The estimated useful lives, the estimated net residual values expressed as BEEENETFERASD FREAXMFINER
a percentage of cost and the annual depreciation rates of fixed assets are as FIREOR ¢
follows:
Estimated Estimated net Annual
useful lives residual values depreciation rates
B EAE® FEERER FHEEX
Buildings 15-40 years 3% 6.5%-2.4%
FENZEEY 16-40%F
Machinery and equipment 14 years 3% 6.9%
b 145
Motor vehicles 10 years 3% 9.7%
BEITA 106
Office equipment and others 6-15 years 3% 16.2%-6.5%
WRRR A R A 6-15%F
The estimated useful life and the estimated net residual value of a fixed asset HEFTAENE GRS B FEENNE
and the depreciation method applied to the asset are reviewed, and adjusted FERGFFERTETEBRZILEES FHE -
as appropriate at each year-end.
(c) The carrying amount of fixed assets is reduced to the recoverable amount  (¢) EETEZEEMATWESERNEFEEEBER B
when the recoverable amount is below the carrying amount (Note 2(18)). EEERLETKRESEFFE=(18) -
(d) Disposal of fixed assets (d) BEEEENERE

A fixed asset is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The amount of proceeds from
disposals on sale, transfer, retirement or damage of a fixed asset net of its
carrying amount and related taxes and expenses is recognised in profit or loss
for the current period.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(14) Construction in progress

Construction in progress is measured at actual cost. Actual cost comprises
construction costs, installation costs, borrowing costs that are eligible for
capitalisation and other costs necessary to bring the fixed assets ready for
their intended use, including expenditures on engineering design, supervision
and cost consulting. Construction in progress is transferred to fixed assets
when the assets are ready for their intended use, and depreciation is charged
starting from the following month. The carrying amount of construction in
progress is reduced to the recoverable amount when the recoverable amount
is below its carrying amount (Note 2(18)).

(15) Borrowing costs

The borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition and
construction of an asset that needs a substantially long period of time for its
intended use commence to be capitalised and recorded as part of the cost of
the asset when expenditures for the asset and borrowing costs have been
incurred, and the activities relating to the acquisition and construction that are
necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use have commenced. The
capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when the asset under acquisition
or construction becomes ready for its intended use and the borrowing costs
incurred thereafter are recognised in profit or loss for the current period.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended during periods in which the
acquisition or construction of an asset is interrupted abnormally and the
interruption lasts for more than 3 months, until the acquisition or construction
is resumed.

For the specific borrowings obtained for the acquisition or construction of a
fixed asset qualifying for capitalisation, the amount of borrowing costs eligible
for capitalisation is determined by deducting any interest income earned from
depositing the unused specific borrowings in the banks or any investment
income arising on the temporary investment of those borrowings during the
capitalisation period.

For the general borrowings obtained for the acquisition and construction of a
fixed asset qualifying for capitalisation, the capitalised amount of the general
borrowings is determined by applying the weighted average effective interest
rate of general borrowings, to the weighted average of the excess amount of
cumulative expenditures on the asset over the amount of specific borrowings.
The effective interest rate is the interest rate at which the estimated future
cash flows during the period remaining deposit period or a shorter applicable
period are discounted into the initial recognised amount of the borrowings.

5
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING = FEerBEMNErEstw@

207

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(16) Intangible assets

Intangible assets include land use rights and are measured at cost. Land use
rights are amortised on the straight-line basis over their average approved use
period.

For an intangible asset with a finite useful life, review of its useful life and
amortisation method is performed at each year-end, with adjustment made
as appropriate.

The carrying amount of intangible assets is reduced to the recoverable
amount when the recoverable amount is below the carrying amount (Note
2(18)).

(17) Long-term prepaid expenses

Long-term prepaid expenses include the expenditure for improvements to
fixed assets held under operating leases, and other expenditures that have
been incurred but should be recognised as expenses over more than one
year in the current and subsequent periods. Long-term prepaid expenses are
amortised on the straight-line basis over the expected beneficial period and
are presented at actual expenditure net of accumulated amortisation.

(18) Impairment of long-term assets

Fixed assets, construction in progress, right-of-use assets, intangible
assets with finite useful lives, investment properties and long-term equity
investments in subsidiaries and associates are tested for impairment if there
is any indication that the assets may be impaired at the balance sheet date.
If the result of the impairment test indicates that the recoverable amount of
an asset is less than its carrying amount, a provision for impairment and an
impairment loss are recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and the present value of the
future cash flows expected to be derived from the asset. Provision for asset
impairment is determined and recognised on the individual asset basis. If it
is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the recoverable amount of a group of assets to which the asset belongs is
determined. A group of assets is the smallest group of assets that is able to
generate independent cash inflows.

Once the above asset impairment loss is recognised, it will not be reversed
for the value recovered in the subsequent periods.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(19) Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

Employee benefits refer to all forms of consideration or compensation
given by the Group in exchange for service rendered by employees or for
termination of employment relationship, which include short-term employee
benefits, post-employment benefits, termination benefits and other long-term
employee benefits.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits include wages or salaries, bonus, allowances
and subsidies, staff welfare, premiums or contributions on medical insurance,
work injury insurance and maternity insurance, housing funds, union running
costs and employee education costs, short-term paid absences, etc. The
short-term employee benefits actually occurred are recognised as a liability
in the accounting period in which the service is rendered by the employees,
with a corresponding charge to the profit or loss for the current period or the
cost of relevant assets. Non-monetary benefits are measured at fair value.

Post-employment benefits

The Group classifies post-employment benefit plans as either defined
contribution plans or defined benefit plans. Defined contribution plans
are post-employment benefit plans under which the Group pays fixed
contributions into a separate fund and will have no obligation to pay further
contributions; and defined benefit plans are post-employment benefit plans
other than defined contribution plans. During the reporting period, the Group's
post-employment benefits mainly include the premiums or contributions
on basic pensions and unemployment insurance, both of which belong to
defined contribution plans.

Basic pensions

The Group’s employees participate in the basic pension plan set up and
administered by local authorities of Ministry of Human Resource and
Social Security. Monthly payments of premiums on the basic pensions are
calculated according to the bases and percentage prescribed by the relevant
local authorities. When employees retire, the relevant local authorities are
obliged to pay the basic pensions to them. The amounts based on the above
calculations are recognised as liabilities in the accounting period in which the
service has been rendered by the employees, with a corresponding charge to
the profit or loss for the current period or the cost of relevant assets.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(19) Employee benefits (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Termination benefits

The Group provides compensation for terminating the employment
relationship with employees before the end of the employment contracts or
as an offer to encourage employees to accept voluntary redundancy before
the end of the employment contracts. The Group recognises a liability arising
from compensation for termination of the employment relationship with
employees, with a corresponding charge to profit or loss for the current
period at the earlier of the following dates: 1) when the Group cannot
unilaterally withdraw an employment termination plan or a curtailment
proposal; 2) when the Group recognises costs or expenses for a restructuring
that involves the payment of termination benefits.

Early retirement benefits

The Group offers early retirement benefits to those employees who accept
early retirement arrangements. The early retirement benefits refer to the
salaries and social security contributions to be paid to and for the employees
who accept voluntary retirement before the normal retirement date
prescribed by the State, as approved by the management. The Group pays
early retirement benefits to those early retired employees from the early
retirement date until the normal retirement date. The Group accounts for the
early retirement benefits in accordance with the treatment for termination
benefits, in which the salaries and social security contributions to be paid
to and for the early retired employees from the off-duty date to the normal
retirement date are recognised as liabilities with a corresponding charge
to the profit or loss for the current period. The differences arising from the
changes in the respective actuarial assumptions of the early retirement
benefits and the adjustments of benefit standards are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they occur.

The termination benefits expected to be settled within one year since the
balance sheet date are classified as current liabilities.

(20) Dividend distribution

Cash dividend is recognised as a liability for the period in which the dividend
is approved by the shareholders’ meeting.

(19)
(c)

(d)

(20)
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(21) Revenue

(a)

(b)

The Group recognises revenue based on the amount of consideration that
it is expected to receive when the customer obtains control of the relevant
goods or services.

Sales of goods
The Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and

rewards of ownership of the goods;

The Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control over
the goods sold;

It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will likely flow to the Group;

The relevant amount of revenue and cost can be measured reliably.

Rendering of services

The Group provides service to external parties. The related revenue is
recognised within a certain period based on the completion stage of the
service which is determined by the proportion of costs incurred in estimated
total costs. The Group re-estimates the completion stage of the service on
the balance sheet date, so that it can reflect changes in compliance.

When the Group recognises revenue according to the completion stage of
the service, the part of unconditional collection right obtained is recognised
as accounts receivable, and losses provision for accounts receivable shall be
recognised on the basis of expected credit losses (Note 2(9)); if the contract
price received or receivable exceeds the completed service, the excess will
be recognised as the contract liability. Contract assets and contract liabilities
under the same contract are presented on a net basis.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(21) Revenue (Continued)

(b)

(c)

206

Rendering of services (Continued)

Contract costs include contract performance costs and contract acquisition
costs. The costs incurred by the Group for the provision of services are
recognised as contract performance costs. The recognised revenue is
carried forward to the cost of the main operations based on the completion
stage. The incremental costs incurred by the Group for the acquisition of
service contract are recognised as the contract acquisition costs. For the
contract acquisition costs with the amortisation period of less than one year,
it is included in the current profit and loss when it occurs; For the contract
acquisition costs with the amortisation period of more than one year, the
Group recognises it into profit or loss pursuant to the based amortisation that
is relevant to the service income under the related contract. If the carrying
amount of the contract costs is higher than the remaining consideration
expected to be obtained by rendering of the service net of the estimated
cost to be incurred, the Group makes provision for impairment on the excess
portion and recognises it as asset impairment losses.

Transfer of asset use rights
Interest income is determined by using the effective interest method, based
on the length of time for which the Group’s cash is used by others.

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease. VIP room income is recognised based on specified fixed rent
guarantees.

Parking income is recognised by the charge rate of an hour or a day when the
customers using the parking lot.

FESFTBEMS L@

(21) WA @

(b)

(c)
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING = FEerBEMNErEstw@
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(21) Revenue (Continued) (21) W A ()

(d) Airport fee (d) #EFBBEBWA
Airport fee represents Civil Aviation Development Funds (the “Airport Fee") WISEABHEESRNTREZEMBEREES
which is recognised when the related services are rendered to the outbound (ATEBMESE]) - ERBEREIRELBEAR
passengers departing from airport. The charge rates of the Airport Fee are S HABIRERERRA - BELFHIEFERA
regulated by Civil Aviation of Administration of China (the”CAAC"). Revenue MER(TEMBNEE - WARRIRIEFEBENZ
is recognised according to the authorised charge rates attributable to the IS B 338 B 1 A B 1) o B ik B A S ER FY 35
Group collected from outbound passengers. BT ©
According to the Notice of the Ministry of Finance on Abolition of the Policy RIE A BB K EF A 2018F 5 4298 T 8B
of Recognition of Refund of the Civil Aviation Development Fund to the Three AR ERMERESARBSEKBEE=R
Listed Airports including the Capital Airport as Revenue (Cai Jian [2018] No. IS REERERAREBRABA) (B2
238) promulgated by the Ministry of Finance of the People’s Republic of [2018]2385%) * ARRIRBHE(IREMERESHE
China on 29 May 2018, the policy previously adopted by the Company to Wi AE B EITHE) SHRBEEER M
recognise the refund of the Civil Aviation Development Fund as the revenue EMBERESBREEARNAFEERAERENIK
of the Company in accordance with relevant regulations and documents KM 2018%11 298 FABUH ° At BR B
of Interim Measures for the Administration of Special Funds for Energy SEHEHR - AR B RIRMERESEEST
Conservation and Emission Reduction in Civil Aviation was cancelled on 29 BEREERANRRE -

November 2018. After the abolition of the above policy, the Company should
not recognise the refund of the Civil Aviation Development Fund, if any, as

revenue.

(e) Franchise income (e) HFFLEREWA
The Company grants the right to certain operators to operate retail, catering RRAREEETEETRNBOZHBESEET
and advertising business in Haikou Meilan Airport and charges them for BB BEEEEBWME BRI #
franchise fee. The franchise fee is charged at the higher of certain percentage B B ERBENRETKE T HERN—F
of sales generated by franchisee or on a specified minimum amount on a B AL AERIRIE €52 e i A WEE R
monthly basis and is recognised as franchise income accordingly. RIS -
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING = FEerBEMNErEstw@

208

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(22) Government grants

Government grants refer to the monetary or non-monetary assets obtained by
the Group from the government, including tax return, financial subsidy, etc.

Government grants are recognised when the grants can be received and
the Group can comply with all attached conditions. If a government grant is
a monetary asset, it will be measured at the amount received or receivable.
If a government grant is a non-monetary asset, it will be measured at its fair
value. If it is unable to obtain its fair value reliably, it will be measured at its
nominal amount.

Government grants related to assets refer to government grants which
are obtained by the Group for the purposes of purchase, construction or
acquisition of the long-term assets. Government grants related to income
refer to the government grants other than those related to assets.

Government grants related to assets are either deducted against the carrying
amount of the assets, or recorded as deferred income and recognised in
profit or loss on a reasonable and systemic basis over the useful lives of the
assets. Government grants related to income that compensate the future
costs, expenses or losses are recorded as deferred income and recognised
in profit or loss, or deducted against related costs, expenses or losses in
reporting the related expenses; government grants related to income that
compensate the incurred costs, expenses or losses are recognised in profit or
loss, or deducted against related costs, expenses or losses directly in current
period. The Group applies the presentation method consistently to the similar
government grants in the financial statements.

Government grants that are related to ordinary activities are included in
operating profit, otherwise, they are recorded in non-operating income or
expenses.

HAINAN MEILAN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED >-)- ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(23) Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are calculated and recognised
based on the differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts (temporary differences). Deferred tax
asset is recognised for the deductible losses that can be carried forward
to subsequent years for deduction of the taxable profit in accordance with
the tax laws. No deferred tax asset or deferred tax liability is recognised for
the temporary differences resulting from the initial recognition of assets
or liabilities due to a transaction other than a business combination, which
affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (or deductible loss). At
the balance sheet date, deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are only recognised for deductible temporary differences,
deductible losses and tax credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available in the future against which the deductible temporary
differences, deductible losses and tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group is able to
control the timing of reversal of the temporary difference, and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
When it is probable that the temporary differences arising from investments
in subsidiaries and associates will be reversed in the foreseeable future
and that the taxable profit will be available in the future against which the
temporary differences can be utilised, the corresponding deferred tax assets
are recognised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities that satisfy all of the following conditions,
are presented in the net value after offset:

° the deferred taxes are related to the same tax payer within the Group

and the same taxation authority; and

° that tax payer within the Group has a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities.

B
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING = FEerBEMNErEstw@
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(24) Leases (24) HE
A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to HE - BiEE—CTHER BHEABEENFER
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for WEREAE A VERSEBNAR -

consideration.

The Group as the Lessee AEBEEREAEA

At the commencement date, the Group shall recognise the right-of-use asset AEBREERFARBEREAEEE - WKW
and measure the lease liability at the present value of the outstanding lease A BEENRENRERREESE - HE
payments. Lease payments include fixed payments, the exercise price of a NHRERREEENRE  URESE®RTERITE
purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option, EERERES S FEEREENB A TR T8
and payments of penalties for terminating the lease if the lessee exercises HIBE - REEBRN—ELAIREN A EHST
an option to terminate the lease. Variable lease payments in proportion to MARENFE  EEREERTAS AR -
sales are excluded from lease payments and recognised in profit or loss as rEEHEEERBERAR—FRNE—F) XM
incurred. Lease liabilities that are due within one year (inclusive) as from the MEEEE JWRA—FANEHBAERBEE -

balance sheet date are included in the current portion of non-current liabilities.

Right-of-use assets of the Group comprise the leased buildings, machinery AEBMNFERAEREERREANEEREEY -
and equipment, motor vehicles, office equipment, etc. Right-of-use assets HERRE  BERTAMNARES - FRAEEE
are measured initially at cost which comprises the amount of the initial BB ETVIRGTE - ZKABREHEARDN
measurement of lease liabilities, any lease payments made at or before the TpstEemE  HEHFABBAZAE XA
commencement date and any initial direct costs, less any lease incentives ENNE VHREZERS - WHREKIIMA
received. If there is reasonable certainty that the Group will obtain ownership ERE - AEBEREHSERETEHERERRFRG
of the underlying asset by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated THEEEMEEN CTHELAEFRERSS

over its remaining useful life; otherwise the asset is depreciated over the FHRTE  EEACERTHEHERRE SR
shorter of the lease term and its remaining useful life. The carrying amount WESTHEEEMAHE AIEHEREAEEE
of the right-of-use asset is reduced to the recoverable amount when the FepFASmMENENRERGTIRITE - &7
recoverable amount is below the carrying amount (Note 2(18)). WKl BENEAEEENRAGBER  ~5E

BEEEEERLET R BERE=(18) -

For short-term leases with a term of 12 months or less and leases of HRAEHTERI2EAANEHEENEIRE
an individual asset (when new) of low value, the Group may, instead EXFBEERENEKEEERENRE  ~NEEE
of recognising right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, include the lease BTHRACHREENHEAE  SHEEHeX
payments in the cost of the underlying assets or in the profit or loss for the HERERANSEAREERRES AT AL HiER
current period on a straight-line basis over the lease term. HAEEEENA -

2/| O HAINAN MEILAN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED b-)- ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(24) Leases (Continued)

The Group as the Lessor

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset. An operating
lease is a lease other than a finance lease.

Operating leases

Where the Group leases out self-owned buildings, machinery and equipment,
and motor vehicles under operating leases, rental income therefrom is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Variable rental that
is linked to a certain percentage of sales is recognised in rental income as
incurred.

(25) Segment information

The Group identifies operating segments based on the internal organisation
structure, management requirements and internal reporting system, and
discloses segment information of reportable segments which is determined
on the basis of operating segments.

An operating segment is a component of the Group that satisfies all of the
following conditions: (1) the component is able to earn revenues and incur
expenses from its ordinary activities; (2) whose operating results are regularly
reviewed by the Group’s management to make decisions about resources
to be allocated to the segment and to assess its performance; and (3) for
which the information on financial position, operating results and cash flows
is available to the Group. Two or more operating segments that have similar
economic characteristics and satisfy certain conditions can be aggregated
into one single operating segment.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(26) Critical accounting estimates and judgements

(a)

(i)

(i)

212

The Group continually evaluates the critical accounting estimates and
key judgements applied based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

Critical judgements in applying the accounting policies

The critical accounting estimates and key assumptions that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next accounting year are outlined below:

Income tax

There are some transactions and events for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Significant
judgement is required from the Group in determining the provision for
income taxes in each of these jurisdictions. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made.

Fixed assets and investment properties

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives and related
depreciation expenses for its fixed assets and investment properties. This
estimate is made based on management’s experience in operating airport and
the conditions of the relevant assets. It could change significantly as a result
of actual use and improvements. Management will increase the depreciation
expenses where useful lives are shorter than previously estimated lives.

Management determines the residual values of fixed assets and investment
properties based on all relevant factors (including the use of the current scrap
value in current market as a reference value) at the end of each financial
period.

FESHBENSFHET @

(26) EE S &l 5HA M &

(a)

(i)

(if)
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(27) Significant changes in accounting policies

(a)

(i)

The Ministry of Finance released the revised Accounting Standard for
Business Enterprises No. 21 — Lease (hereinafter referred to “new lease
standard”) in 2018 and released the Circular on the Amendment to the
Formats of Corporate Financial Statements for the Year of 2019 (Cai Kuai
[2019] No.6) in 2019. The financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2019 are prepared in accordance with the above standards and
circular, and the impacts are as follows:

Leases

The Group adopted the new lease standard on 1 January 2019. According to
regulations, the Group would not reassess the contracts that have already
existed prior to the date of adoption. The Group recognized the cumulative
effect of the standard as an adjustment to the retained earnings as at
1 January 2019 and relevant line items in the financial statements. The
comparatives for the year ended 31 December 2018 were not restated.

The nature and the reasons of the changes in accounting policies

FESFTBEMS s ETTw

(27) EESTHREE

(a)

(i)

BABER 201 8 MM TIE ST R MK E & 7T 48
2155 - ME)ATHBIFHAE L)) » ¥R
2019F B M T KBS ETEN 8 2019F [E — & 1>
EPBHERNRBA) (T £12019165%) © &%
B B R A L 2R FE AR 8201 9F £ B 75 3R
= HEAEERADRRENFEIIRAT

HE

REERAATR2019F1 818 ERAITHE
EAA - REBEBBERT  ARERARRENE
RPTERNEFENAREETBENNG -
REBRAARENZERNNREF EHFE
2019F FPBFRE U R BRFABBEEES
#2018 EA LRI BMERAET -

B BEREONERRE

The line The amounts affected
items affected FESHE
1 January 2019
FHENRKRER 2019F1H1A
The Group The Company
AEE FNE|
Increase/(decrease) Increase/(decrease)
#mn, (R) #®in, (Rd)
Due to the adoption of the new lease standard, the Group and  Right-of-use assets 119,968,145 119,968,145
the Company reclassified finance leases originally included (£ & E
in fixed assets into the right-of-use assets, and finance lease Fixed assets (119,968,145) (119,968,145)
payable which were originally included in long-term payables & E & &
were reclassified to lease liabilities Long-term payables (65,294,938) (65,294,938)
E#THEEER - AEERARAFBRAABEEEDN R
MEEARTEESESNHREAREEER - YHRAA Lease liabilities 65,294,938 65,294,938

EHENROENRERESNEDHEMEEEE - HERRE

As at 1 January 2019, the Group and the Company adopted the same
discount rate for lease contracts with similar characteristics to account for
lease liabilities. The weighted average of incremental borrowing rates adopted
was 5.77%.

B

B

R2019F 1818 » AKBERAAGEFEHE
AEN  HRESRUSBNHEESRKAR—
PIRE  FRARGEERF RN NEFSES
5.77% o
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING = FEerBEMNErEstw@

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(27) Significant changes in accounting policies (Continued) (27) EESHBREE@

(a)
(ii)

Leases (Continued)
As at 1 January 2019, the Group and the Company reconciled the outstanding (i)  72019F 1818 » AEE R AR A FREE%E
minimum operating lease payments disclosed under the old lease standard to AT H B M AT RELCEHENRBEHE
lease liabilities under the new lease standard as follows: ™

(a) *H.;Ei (%)

RIAEEL T RERRANHE BN FHRN

The Group The Company

rEE b NN
Future minimum operating lease payments 20184128318 ?ﬁ?ﬂiﬂi
disclosed as at 31 December 2018 SELEHEERNK - -
Present value of the above minimum operating I8 S fE A Y?ﬁfﬁa ;';E’JJ:L
lease payments discounted using SELEHENKENRE
the incremental borrowing rate - -
Add: Finance lease payable as at 31 December 2018 il : 2018512 A31HEMNBEHER 65,294,938 65,294,938
Less: Present value of payments for leases with B ER1I2EANEESR
a term less than 12 months REERIRE - -
Present value of lease payments for BIEAEEESFREAREKN
an individual asset (when new) of low value HEERNMNHENIRE - -
Lease liabilities recognised as at 1 January 2019 R2019F 1 A1EERNEEAE
(including current portion of non-current liabilities) —FRIBNERSDEE
(Note 2(27)(a)(i) (Bt &£ = (27)(a)(i)) 65,294,938 65,294,938

2/‘ 4 HAINAN MEILAN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED >-)- ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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BiIE

(1) The main categories and rates of taxes applicableto (1) XEEEANETEBREREH RS
the Group are set out below: by 11 N

Category Tax base Tax rate

HE B E BiE

Enterprise income tax (a) Taxable income 25%

EFBF(a) FEMMTLFTISEE 25%

Value-added tax (“VAT") (b)

BEBD)

City maintenance and construction tax
YR T A R R R

Educational surcharge

Taxable value-added amount (Tax payable is calculated
using the taxable sales amount multiplied by

3%, 5%, 6%, 9%,
10%, 13% or 16%

the applicable tax rate less deductible VAT input of

the current period)

JRE AR5 1 (B 2R (I8 A T4 BR 22 B A 754 86 65 RE R DAL AR 9 2
kR E A A ERMAE AR R R BREERT B

Taxable amounts of VAT

BaEIEER T

Taxable amounts of VAT

B BH A E IS AT TR
Local educational surcharge Taxable amounts of VAT
Hh 75 20E B KN AR IS AT TR
(a) Pursuant to the Notice of the State Administration of Taxation on the Relevant (a)

Enterprise Income Tax Policies for the Deduction of Equipment and Instruments
(Cai Shui [2018] No. 54) and the relevant regulations issued by the State
Administration of Taxation. From 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2020, new
equipment purchased by the Group of less than RMB5 million are allowed to
be one-off recognised as costs or expenses for deduction in the calculation of
taxable income, instead of being depreciated annually.

(b) Pursuant to the Announcement on Relevant Policies for Deepening the Value- (b)
Added Tax Reform and related regulations issued by the Ministry of Finance,
the State Administration of Taxation and the General Administration of Customs
([2019] No. 39), since 1 April 2019, the VAT rate of the Group's tangible movable
property rental income and labour income has been adjusted from 16% to 13%;
the VAT rate of real estate rental income, service income and franchise income

has been adjusted from 10% to 9%.

In 2019, the Group's revenue from warehouse service and stevedoring services
use a simplified method for calculating the tax payable with VAT rate of 3%.

3

B

EWEREERHVERAA P —T-NLEFFR

3%, 5%, 6%, 9%,
10%, 13%3416%

5% or 7%
5%37%

3%
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2%
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RE@AREHEEANE2019F F395) MIHRIAR
T H2019F4A18#  AEENERBEMR
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4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS
(1) Cash at bank and on hand

M SOFMISIRRIER M

(1) EBES

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

20194 20184

12A31H 12H31H

Cash on hand BFHE 46,050 53,108
Cash at bank (Note (a)) RITER (i 3E () 1,511,703,799 81,905,401
Cash and cash equivalents HekBeEEY 1,511,749,849 81,958,509

(a) As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s deposit in HNA Group Finance Co., Ltd.
("HNA Group Finance”) was RMB170,878,427 (Note 8(5)(a)) (31 December 2018:
RMB34,464,594). HNA Group Finance is a non-bank financial institution.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group's deposit in the China Development Bank
was RMB1,240,292,537, of which the usage is restricted for Phase Il Expansion
Project (Note 8(6)(d)).

(2) Accounts receivable

@@ 2019128318 @ AEBEFHA B S
SEVBERAR(DEMMFDWIRITERABA
R#170,878,427 7T (M7 /\(5)(a)) (20185F 12 A
318 : AR¥34,464,6947T) © % AR AIERIT
R20195F12A318 + AEBFHNBIRMAZ R

THERITER A ARY1,240,292,637 T © B8
AR ZH#EEE A (HE/\(6)d) °

(2) BEWERRX

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

20195 20184

12A31H 12A31H

Accounts receivable by nature FEUBR IR M E & >

- from aeronautical services - RE R R A 249,321,479 215,956,061
- from non-aeronautical services - RERIEMEMRA 243,813,128 157,074,923
493,134,607 373,030,984
Less: Provision for bad debts W EERER (2,631,628) (1,173,695)
490,502,979 371,857,289

2" 6 HAINAN MEILAN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED h)‘ ANNUAL REPORT 2019



4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (continued)
(2) Accounts receivable (Continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R 5% B o

For the year ended 31 December 2019 20194 /Z
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B~ 1555t 805 + & BB B BA R K TT)

(2) FEWERI@®

31 December

M SHMBHRRERNEw®

31 December

2019 2018
20195 20184
12A31H 12H31H8

Accounts receivable by customers EREFIZEFE D
- from third parties -ERE=ZFERER 323,987,152 250,308,555
Less: Provision for bad debts W EAREH (2,631,628) (1,173,695)
321,355,524 249,134,860
- from related parties (Note 8(5)(b)) — FE U ER S 75 BR SR (P 5\ (B) (b)) 169,147,455 122,722,429
Less: Provision for bad debts B EAREMH - -
169,147,455 122,722,429
490,502,979 371,857,289

Credit terms granted to customers by the Group are with a general term

ranging from 1 to 3 months.

(a) The ageing of accounts receivable based on their recording dates is analysed

as follows:

AEEGETREZPNERSE R E3MEA -

FEUR BRI ELARR B RO RRER D AT LA TS

31 December

31 December

2019 2018

20195 20184

12A31H 12A31H

Within 90 days 90K AR 297,140,419 295,469,447
91-180 days 91T RE180K 52,692,116 26,526,638
181-365 days 181K E365K 47,025,547 47,606,079
Over 365 days 365K A 1 96,276,525 3,428,820
493,134,607 373,030,984

BEEWEBREBERBERAR » =
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4

(2)
(b)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Accounts receivable (Continued)

Provision for bad debts

For accounts receivable, regardless of whether there exists the significant
financing component, the Group measures the loss provision according to the
expected credit losses during the entire duration.

Accounts receivable that are subject to provision for bad debts on the
grouping basis are analysed as follows:

Grouping — Related parties customers:

Based on the financial condition and historical credit record of the related
party, the Group assesses the expected credit loss rate of the related party’s
balance. As the ratio is estimated to be very low, no provision for bad debts
was made for the groupings of receivables.

Grouping — Third parties customers:

(2)
(b)

(i)

Ending balance

S ERKRIEEHE @

JPE UK BR R ()
AR
RERHNEUES - BHEETEESARER

5 BREEEFEROESRERALT BAL
ff o

AT RERERNRBERR DT

WA - HHH RS

ERH BT R E S EARE - AEE
SRR RS SRR RAKE o &
Rzt R BHRIE - RS A U TR
SR -

HE-F=FEF :
31 December 2019

2019%12H31H
Provision for bad debts

Lifetime

expected
Amount credit loss rate Amount

BEEFED
2 FEHEREAE &8
Not overdue A 312,164,261 0.1% 312,164
Overdue within 1-90 days #HI1-90H 8,717,569 10% 871,757
Overdue within 91-275 days #1H391-275H 2,072,019 20% 414,404
Overdue over 275 days #HARRB275H 1,033,303 100% 1,033,303
323,987,152 2,631,628
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL M BHRER MEw
STATEMENTS (continued)

(2) Accounts receivable (Continued) (2) FEUWBRER (@)

(b) Provision for bad debts (Continued) (b) ZEREH @)

() Accounts receivable that are subject to provision for bad debts on the (i) #HATIREREGNRURZDTOT : (B)
grouping basis are analysed as follows: (Continued)
Grouping — Third parties customers: (Continued) HE-F=FEF : (&)

31 December 2018
2018F12831H

Ending balance Provision for bad debts
BREBRER AR
Lifetime
expected
Amount credit loss rate Amount
BETFEH
T TEHERELE k=)
Not overdue A 245,383,931 0.1% 245,384
Overdue within 1-90 days #HI1-90H 2,214,397 10% 221,440
Overdue within 91-275 days B HI91-275H 2,504,195 20% 500,839
Overdue over 275 days B HARE275H8 206,032 100% 206,032
250,308,555 1,173,695
(3) Advances to suppliers (3) FAMNIE
As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the ageing of advances to suppliers was M2019F %2018F 124318 » BN FIBHRER
within one year. BIE—FLAA -
(4) Other receivables (4) HfthFEWKFK
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
20195 20184
12A31H 12H31H
Luggage compensation paid on behalf of and ~ FEUWATZE A AL 1T B E R
due from airlines 11,226,173 9,612,082
Others Hfb 3,501,246 3,561,097
14,727,419 13,173,179
Less: Provision for bad debts A BEREE (870,290) (130,427)
13,857,129 13,042,752

BEEREBREERBERAD » ZT—AEFR 2/| 9
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4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (continued)

S ERKRIEEHE @

(5) Other current assets (6) HMEREBEE
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
20194 20184
12A31H 12H31H8
VAT to be deducted FEMBER 9,459,706 9,398,072
(6) Long-term equity investments (6) RERERE
Associates — Unlisted companies BeEhE-FELMmAT
Movement for the year
AERLRE
Share of net  Share of other Share of
profit/(loss) comprehensive Other
31 December  under equity  income under changes in 31 December
2018 method  equity method equity 2019
20186 RiEmE Hitkza s 20195
128318 #BEMFER Weas BB # 124318
(Note 4(33)) (Note (b)) (Note (c)
(P 3EP1(33)) (PrFE(b)) (P 3E(e)
Hainan Airlines Airport Holding EEEER(EE) AR
(Group) Company Limited ("HNA AR(DEMKHIER)
Airport Holdings") (Note (a)) GER) 1,364,610,308 6,847,978 (7,240,191) 6,526,547 1,370,744,642
Hainan Konggang Intelligence City BEEESENMEEES
Investment Operation Company BREEAA
Limited (“Hainan Konggang”) (grgz=]) 31,961,602 10,658 = - 31,972,260
1,396,571,910 6,858,636 (7,240,191) 6,526,547 1,402,716,902
(a) The place of incorporation and business of HNA Airport Holdings and its (a) EMAEISIER R E T AR S IEREE])
subsidiaries (the “HNA Airport Group”) are in the PRC, and there is no business B RE it R £ B A ERBIER - EBARE
transaction relationship between the Group and HNA Airport Group. BmEK ERER -
(b) Other comprehensive loss in 2019 of RMB7,240,191 (2018: RMB13,015,000) (b) 2019 EEMZEBERABARYT,240,1917C

220

represented mainly the share of the other comprehensive income of HNA Airport
Group under equity method, which derived mainly from share of changes in the
fair value of other equity instruments of associates of HNA Airport Group.

HAINAN MEILAN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED h)‘ ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Long-term equity investments (Continued)

Associates — Unlisted companies (Continued)
(c) Other changes in equity represented the shares of other capital reserve of HNA
Airport Group under equity method, please refer to Note 4(26) for details.

Investment properties

m St EmKREE MEw

(6) REARERE@m)
BeEtE-FELEHRAT@E
(c) HEEREHAER A T AEBESMESE
BREBEOEMBERARTEPLNGE  FHBRE
2Z K FE0U(26).

(7) REMFEHME

Buildings Land use rights Total
EEREY T {5 FAAE a5t
Cost R1E
31 December 2018 2018412 A31H 1,302,421,155 8,118,803 1,310,539,958
Increase in the current year AR IE NN 736,905 = 736,905
31 December 2019 2019%12H31H 1,303,158,060 8,118,803 1,311,276,863
Accumulated depreciation 2EiTE
31 December 2018 2018512 A31H (53,325,604) (2,826,671) (56,152,275)
Increase in the current year AN
Provision st (37,232,525) (169,801) (37,402,326)
31 December 2019 2019%12AH31H (90,558,129) (2,996,472) (93,554,601)
Carrying amount BREEEA
31 December 2019 2019%12H31H 1,212,599,931 5,122,331 1,217,722,262
31 December 2018 2018412 A31H 1,249,095,551 5,292,132 1,254,387,683

As at 31 December 2019, the investment properties of the Group were
mainly the mall and parking lot of the Terminal Complex Project. The
Company is in the process of applying for the property title certificates. The
management believes that the property without a title certificate will not have
a significant impact to the operating activities of the Group.

In 2019, borrowing costs capitalised in investment properties amounted
to RMB736,905 (2018: RMB5,790,931). The capitalisation rate used to
determine the capitalised costs is 6.70% per annum (2018: 7.58%).

M2019F12A31H ' AEBMREMEHETE
ZERUAREBIEERNESENEES  BERFEE
EREFZHTIEF AEEERERR/ZFRI
BRENEETEHASENEE TBHELEXR
R 2 o

2019F 8 - ERLEFAREREHEMNER
BHAARKET736,90570(2018F & : AR
5,790,9317T) - AREE AN &M ERLEH
BEFIFE.70%(2018FE : 7.58%) °



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 20194 /&
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B 5 55t 8651 + & #EEE (L BARKIT)

4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

S ERKRIEEHE @

(8) Fixed assets (8) BEEE
Machinery Office
and Motor equipment
Buildings equipment vehicles and others Total
BE WARE
REEY WeER e B®WIA R HEA &t
Cost R
31 December 2018 2018%12A31H 2,680,447,557 130,146,264 153,460,134 262,317,515 3,226,371,470
Changes in accounting policies &=t & - - (103,621,477)  (53,475,232) (157,096,709)
1 January 2019 2019F1H1H 2,680,447,557 130,146,264 49,838,657 208,842,283 3,069,274,761
Increase in the current year AR
Acquisition BE - 3,813,882 4,916,350 7,761,309 16,491,541
Decrease in the current year RERD
Disposal and other decrease BE K E R - (1,872,668) (1,169,562) (6,318,356) (9,360,586)
31 December 2019 2019F12H31H 2,680,447,557 132,087,478 53,585,445 210,285,236 3,076,405,716
Accumulated depreciation 2 E
31 December 2018 201812 A31H (514,546,875) (69,766,192) (64,247,765) (118,334,018) (766,894,850)
Changes in accounting policies &=t BK & = = 26,823,389 10,305,175 37,128,564
1 January 2019 20191818 (514,546,875) (69,766,192) (37,424,376) (108,028,843) (729,766,286)
Increase in the current year ANEIE N
Provision (Note (a)) e (KfeE(a) (70,801,638) (8,843,557 (4,192,524)  (31,736,308) (115,574,027
Decrease in the current year RER D
Disposal and other decrease BEREMED = 1,450,902 1,134,577 4,047,302 6,632,781
31 December 2019 2019F12831H (585,348,513) (77,158,847) (40,482,323) (135,717,849) (838,707,532)
Carrying amount BREEE
31 December 2019 2019%12831H 2,095,099,044 54,928,631 13,103,122 74,567,387 2,237,698,184
31 December 2018 2018%12A31H 2,165,900,682 60,380,072 89,212,369 143,983,497 2,459,476,620

222 HAINAN MEILAN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED »)‘ ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL M BHRER MEw
STATEMENTS (continued)

(8) Fixed assets (Continued) (8) BEIEEEm

(a) In the current year, the amounts of depreciation expenses charged to cost of (a) REEFHFAECEXNAREBRERANTE D B
sales and general and administrative expenses were RMB113,097,112 and BARM113,097,112t R AR#2,476,915
RMB2,476,915 (2018: the amounts of depreciation expenses charged to cost of TL(2018FfE : SFABERAE EEEA R
sales, general and administrative expenses, and selling and distribution expenses EERS R AARY138,752,4987T « ARK
were RMB138,752,498, RMB1,926,035 and RMB3,709) respectively. 1,926,0357T 2 A R#3,7097T) ©

(b) As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of international terminal building (b) M2019%12A318 » EBEMBEREETR
and its ancillary projects was RMB201,923,422 (31 December 2018: carrying MEERAEELSARE201,923,42270(2018
amount of RMB207,704,173). The property title certificates in respect of the F12A31H : (REEEAARY207,704,173
international terminal building are jointly held by the Company and Haikou Meilan. ) HEENEEERBSREOEHHLE -
As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of west gallery expansion project 2019612 A310 - ML EFEIERER TR
is RMB529,658,487 (31 December 2018: carrying amount of RMB546,809,356). M EERMEEEBAARES29,658,4877C(2018
The Company is in the process of applying for the property title certificates. F12A310 : lREEE A AR546,809,356
The management believes that there is no substantive obstacles to obtain ) EEEERERNERES  c AEEEREE
such property rights and the property without a title certificate will not have a REZSEESIHBEYETEHER 1Y
significant impact to the Group's operating activities. HAEENBELERBERTHTE -

(c) As at 31 December 2019, the building of carrying amount of RMB472,595,670 (c) M2019%12A318 - AR FIREAEBEAARE
(original cost of RMB787,665,008) has been pledged for the Group’s borrowings 472,595,6707T (R B AR #787,665,0087T) {9
(31 December 2018: carrying amount of RMB446,475,315, original cost of EEREYE P2 EFERQ2018F12A8318 -
RMB729,763,203). IREEEAARKL46,4753157T - REARE

729,763,2037T) °

(9) Construction in progress (9) EEIRE
Including:
Increase Accumulative Capitalised
in the capitalised borrowing
31 December current 31 December borrowing costsinthe  Capitalisation
2018 period 2019 costs  current period rate
L
ERER RHER RHER
2018% 20195 BX £A £H
12A318 AL 12A318 2iteE  ENeE N[
Phase Il Expansion Project (Note (a)) ZHRETEMEE) 1471487,020 1,776,397,602  3,247,884,622 195,567,068 81,837,977 6.70%
(a) Details of underlying security of Phase Il Expansion Project are set out in Note (a) ER_HREEIRERERBABLEMEN
8(6)(d). (6)(d) °
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4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL M BHRER MEw
STATEMENTS (continued)

(10) Right-of-use assets (10) FREEE
Machinery Office
and Motor equipment
Buildings equipment vehicles and others Total
EER WARE
EEY WEERtE EHTAH REM &5t
Cost R{E
31 December 2018 2018512 A31H - - - - -
Changes in accounting policies &itHEREE = - 103,621,477 53,475,232 157,096,709
1 January 2019 20191718 - - 103,621,477 53475232 157,096,709
Increase in the current period AN B 1
New lease contacts HBEHEESR 14,663,478 4,380,000 = = 19,043,478
31 December 2019 2019%12H31H 14,663,478 4,380,000 103,621,477 53,475,232 176,140,187
Accumulated depreciation REtiE
31 December 2018 2018%12A31H = = = = =
Changes in accounting policies E&TEUREE = - (26,823,389) (10,305,175) (37,128,564)
1 January 2019 201961718 - - (26,823,389) (10,305,175) (37,128,664)
Increase in the current period ~ ZNHA3E N
Provision FT1R (5,498,804)  (1,642,500) (10,664,672)  (4,242,413)  (22,048,389)
31 December 2019 2019%12H31H (5,498,804) (1,642,500) (37,488,061) (14,547,588) (59,176,953)
Carrying amount BREEE
31 December 2019 20194 12H31H 9,164,674 2,737,500 66,133,416 38,927,644 116,963,234

224 HAINAN MEILAN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED »)‘ ANNUAL REPORT 2019



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R 5% B o

For the year ended 31 December 2019 20194 /Z
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4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

S ERKRIEEHE @

(11) Intangible assets (M BEEE
Land use rights  Office software Total
T b fEFARE ARG &5t
Cost =B
31 December 2018 2018512 A31H 216,596,480 401,832 216,998,312
Increase in the current year IEFFIE - - -
31 December 2019 2019%F12H31H 216,596,480 401,832 216,998,312
Accumulated amortisation REHEH
31 December 2018 2018412 A31H (55,988,042) (66,115) (56,054,157)
Amortisation charged in the current year 7N 45 §4 (3,696,006) (40,182) (3,736,188)
31 December 2019 2019%F12H31H (59,684,048) (106,297) (59,790,345)
Net book value BREDF R
31 December 2019 2019%F12H31H 156,912,432 295,535 157,207,967
31 December 2018 2018412 A31H 160,608,438 335,717 160,944,155

(a)

(b)

In the current year, the amounts of amortisation of intangible assets
charged to cost of sales, and general and administrative expenses were
RMB3,696,006 and RMB40,182 respectively (2018: RMB3,696,006
was recognised in the cost of sales, RMB33,709 was recognised in
general and administrative expenses).

International terminal building and its ancillary projects were put into
use in 2013 (Note 4(8)(b)). As at 31 December 2019, land use rights of
relevant projects amounted to approximately RMB40,161,189 (original
cost of RMB45,078,000) (31 December 2018: carrying amount of
approximately RMB40,833,993, original cost of RMB45,078,000). The
land use right certificates are currently held by Haikou Meilan, while
not affect the Group using it.

(a)

BEEREBREERBERAD » ZT—AEFR

RNEFFAEERAMER B AN ER
BEEMEIESES B AARKES,696,006
TAR ARM40,1827L(20185F F = A
R#3,696,006 Tt AEERA - ARYE
33,709t ABEER) o

ETHERGEEMEEREEIEEEER
20135 & AR (32 (8) (b)) + 722019
F12A3B% I RABN L ARER
BEHAAREAL0,161,189 L (REAA
R#45,078,0007T) (20185128318 : &
EEBELN A AR40,833,9937T © RER
AR #45,078,0007T) + L FAREE M
BEOE#EEE  ETFERERFERZ
+ih o
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4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL M BHRER MEw
STATEMENTS (continued)

(11) Intangible assets (Continued) (M) BEEE@®
(c)  Land use rights by locations and approved land use periods are () THFREIRFIEERE RFERDTWOT :

analysed as follows:

31 December 31 December
2019 2018
20195 20184
12A31H 12H31H8
Inside Mainland China A B A
10-50 years 105|504 43,662,626 44,786,572
Over 50 years 50 A F 113,249,806 115,821,866
156,912,432 160,608,438
(d)  As at 31 December 2019, the land use rights of carrying amount of (d) M2019F12831H » ARRIE@EE
RMB51,186,240 (original cost of RMB70,062,261) has been pledged BEAARES1,186,240 L (REARKE
for the Group's borrowings (31 December 2018: carrying amount of 70,062,261 7T) &) 1 b 5 FA #E 2 9 12 3K 19
RMB42,966,542, original cost of RMB59,954,979). E1R(20185F12A31H ' REBEAAR
#£42,966,5427T * [R1B AR ¥59,954,979
JT) °
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4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL [0 & 46f8i#R*FI1EB M @
STATEMENTS (continued)

(12) Deferred tax assets (12) EEEFIEREE
(a) Deferred tax assets before offsetting (a) REEBEHELEFMBHEE
31 December 2019 31 December 2018
2019%12H31H 201812 H31H
Deductible Deductible
Deferred temporary Deferred temporary
tax assets  differences tax assets differences
EEFRE GIE: & BIEFTS g%
REE EHRMEER MEE HRUER
Government grants related to BB R AR A R A
fire equipment and GTC HE 41 B B 478 B 12,456,389 49,825,556 2,917,500 11,670,000
Accrued airlines subsidies TEIR A AR BB AL X 3,265,250 13,061,000 3,265,250 13,061,000
Provision of bad debts EARAER 875,479 3,501,918 293,424 1,173,695
Accrued termination benefits TRIRBHR AN 19,050 76,202 44,692 178,770
Lease liabilities HEAE 2,910,415 11,641,659 = =

19,526,583 78,106,335 6,520,866 26,083,465

Including: Hep o
Deferred tax assets to be recovered Bt 1FER(S16)EEH

within one year (one year inclusive) ool 6,400,440 3,632,852
Deferred tax assets to be recovered TR FEL BN

after one year 13,126,143 2,888,014

19,526,583 6,520,866
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4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL M BHRER MEw
STATEMENTS (continued)

(12) Deferred tax assets (Continued) (12) IEEEFR SR E E @®m)
(b) Deferred tax liabilities before offsetting (b) REEBEHELFMEBAEG
31 December 2019 31 December 2018
2019%12H831H 2018%12A31H
Taxable Taxable
Deferred temporary Deferred temporary
tax liabilities differences tax liabilities differences
FiEBias FRMER Frigfiiats ERMER
Accelerated depreciation of BEEEENRITE
fixed assets 2,095,366 8,381,463 - -
Right-of-use assets FREAE 2,975,544 11,902,174 = =
5,070,910 20,283,637 - -
Including: Hrh o
Deferred tax liability to be TR EAN(R1F)EE R
recovered within k|
one year (one year inclusive) 2,579,347 -
Deferred tax liability to be TR F R BRI S
recovered after one year 2,491,563 -

5,070,910 -

(c) Deductible temporary differences and deductible losses that are not  (C) ZAEBEKRERIBELERSHEENAEMEREE

recognised as deferred tax assets are analysed as follows: B RAMENEBES AT -
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
20194 20184
12831H 12A318
Deductible losses BIE:wit) o5 68,234,051 70,823,268
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4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL M BHRER MEw
STATEMENTS (continued)

(12) Deferred tax assets (Continued) (12) IEEEFR SR E E @®m)
(d) Deductible losses that are not recognised as deferred tax assets will be  (d) RIERETFEHEENATENEBERIATE
expired in following years: EEIE

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

20195 20184

12A31H 12A318

2022 20224 13,440,068 29,023,576

2023 20234 39,965,597 41,799,692

2024 20244 14,828,386 -

68,234,051 70,823,268

(e) The net balances of deferred tax assets and liabilities after offsetting are as ~ (€) EEMIETEFFEHEEMEIERESH A EFE

follows: TIREATE :
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
20194 20184
12H31H 12H31H
Deferred tax assets, net BEMBHEEFHE 14,734,598 6,520,866
Deferred tax liabilities, net BEMBHAEFE 278,925 =
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4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL SOt Rk IE B T w

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(13) Other non-current assets

(13) HvERBEE
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
20194 20184
12831H 12A318

Payments for land use rights of the Phase Il A — B3 T 12 + 1 3% (it 3 (a)

Expansion Project (Note (a)) 950,000,000 950,000,000
Advances for acquisition agreement (Note (b))  TE{ AR R B 7% (Fi3E (b)) - 570,000,000
Advances for the land deed tax SEENES 46,279,051 46,279,051
Advances for other projects and equipment HEm T TR RERER 22,986,790 54,852,371
Others H 1,000,000 1,000,000

1,020,265,841 1,622,131,422

(a) As at 31 December 2019, the Group had made payments totalling
RMB950,000,000 through Haikou Meilan to the government for the land in
relation to the Phase Il Expansion Project, the relevant land use right certificate
had not been completed. Details of Phase Il Expansion Project are set out in Note
8(6)(d).

(b) Details are set out in Note 8(6)(c).

(14) Short-term borrowings

(b)

HZE2019%12A318 - AEE R BBEOE
B B0 BRI 32 1+ A R #5950,000,0007T 1F — HA &2
BABMZF c ARR T AR R -
ZHIRETE B AR EER AL A6 .

FHAEREL R/ 6)C) °

(14) EHER

31 December 31 December
2019 2018
20195 2018%F
12A31H 12A318
Pledged borrowings (Note (a)) IR E R (P 3E @) 379,450,000 379,450,000
Unsecured borrowings (Note (b)) fZAER D) 523,215,000 =
902,665,000 379,450,000
(a) As at 31 December 2019, the pledged borrowings were secured by the lands of (a) M2019%F12A318  RITWFEREHED

Haikou Meilan (Note 8(4)(f)), the annual interest rate is 6%.

(b) In August 2019, the Company obtained an unsecured loan with principal of
USD75,000,000 from Aero Infrastructure Investment Company Limited, annual
interest rate of the loan is 10% (within four months after the withdrawal date)
and 15% (more than four months after the withdrawal date, within six months),
the expiry date is 29 February 2020.

(b)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R 5% B o

For the year ended 31 December 2019 20194 /Z
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B~ 1555t 805 + & BB B BA R K TT)

4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL M BHRER MEw

STATEMENTS (continued)
(15) Accounts payable

The ageing of accounts payable based on their recording dates is analysed as

(15) FEE{FERRX
EABREFIRE AR BHNERSTOT :

follows:

31 December

31 December

2019 2018
20195 20184
12A31H 12H31H8
Within 90 days 90K AR 50,118,416 114,311,262
91-180 days 91 RE180K 50,369,848 48,021,859
Over 180 days 180K A £ 209,850,835 29,416,453
310,339,099 191,749,574

(16) Contract liabilities (16) EREE
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
20195 2018%F
12A31H 12A318
Fees on aircraft takeoff and landing HEFE B 638,204 14,134,576

(17) Advances from customers

(17) EWERRX

31 December

31 December

2019 2018

20195 20184

12A31H 12H31H

Lease and franchise fees HERR T EERIE 131,599,610 63,868,312
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4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (continued)
(18) Employee benefits payable

(18) FE A3 B8 T 57 A

31 December

M SHMBHRRERNEw®

31 December

2019 2018

20195 20184

12A31H 12H31H8

Short-term employee benefits payable (Note (a)) FEA 5 EA T BN (BT 5% () 30,206,048 26,561,301
Defined contribution plans payable (Note (b)) FERT R E R AT 5t 21 (Bt 52 (b)) 100,566 103,444
Termination benefits payable (Note (c)) FEEERE R (M 5E () 17,704 96,066
30,324,318 26,760,811

(a) Short-term employee benefits

(a)

31 December

SRR

Increase in the Decrease in the

31 December

2018 current year current year 2019
2018%F 20194
12A318 ANEFHE N AR D 12A31A8
Wages and salaries, bonus, T8 - &g « EZRFFEL
allowances and subsidies 17,550,238 186,754,218 (186,748,153) 17,556,303
Staff welfare BTENE 1,056,495 5,938,172 (5,842,598) 1,152,069
Social security contributions HEREE 322,803 8,490,898 (8,498,862) 314,839
Including: Medical insurance Hep : BERRE 321,550 7,771,756 (7,779,939) 313,367
Work injury insurance TERERE 510 233,407 (233,108) 809
Maternity insurance EEREBE 743 485,735 (485,815) 663
Housing funds FEAES 187,547 9,346,039 (9,366,646) 166,940
Labour union funds and employee T &&KEMBIHELKE
education funds 7,444,218 4,855,180 (1,283,501) 11,015,897
26,561,301 215,384,507 (211,739,760) 30,206,048
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R 5% B o

For the year ended 31 December 2019 20194 /Z
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B~ 1555t 805 + & BB B BA R K TT)

4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL M BHRER MEw

STATEMENTS (continued)

(18) Employee benefits payable (Continued) (18) FEAEE T il )
(b) Defined contribution plans (b) FBERTFFTE
31 December 2019 31 December 2018
2019%12H31H 201812 A31H
Amount Ending Amount Ending
payable balance payable balance
ENLE FRGE Bt &% FRAEFE
Basic pensions EXEERRE 16,527,009 - 18,079,229 =
Unemployment insurance KERKRE 1,085,735 100,566 1,060,885 103,444
17,612,744 100,566 19,140,114 103,444

(c) Termination benefits payable

(c) EENEREF

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

20195 20184

12A31H 12A318

Early retirement benefits payable FET R B 76,202 178,770
Less: Termination benefits payable over B IR R B E T B T BN A

one year presented in long-term —F U LA AIREF)
employee benefits payable (58,498) (82,704)
17,704 96,066

BEEREBREERBERAD » ZT—AEFR 233



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R 5% BT o

For the year ended 31 December 2019 20194 /&

(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B % 5zt BA5) + & BEE (7 BA R ¥IT)

4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (continued)
(19) Taxes payable

M SHMBHRRERNEw®

(19) EXHE

31 December

31 December

2019 2018
20195 20184
12A31H 12H31H8
Enterprise income tax payable EREMEH 383,382,613 255,590,890
VAT payable FERIEER 86,847,703 52,377,814
Property tax payable EREEM 11,931,353 4,046,844
Individual income tax payable EREAREH 4,934,063 4,799,693
Others Hth 3,969,417 342,404
491,065,149 317,157,645
(20) Other payables (20) H At FES K

31 December 31 December
2019 2018
20195 2018%F
12A31H 12A318

Construction cost payable and quality BNREIEREIRERSE
guarantee deposit 1,023,497,683 522,779,118
Interest payable (Note (a)) PRI (F7E(a) 11,740,915 89,643,180
Guarantee deposits EAHSRES 98,194,747 85,557,230
Accrued airlines development subsidy TERMARF BRI 13,061,000 13,061,000
Dividends payable (Note (b)) FE AT AR A (B 3 (b)) 5,992,012 5,992,012
Others HAh 77,145,879 53,619,556
1,229,632,236 770,652,096
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STATEMENTS (continued)

(20) Other payables (Continued)
(a) Interests payable

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R 5% B o

For the year ended 31 December 2019 20194 /Z
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B~ 1555t 805 + & BB B BA R K TT)

4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL M BHRER MEw

(20) H A EA R @

(a)

RS

31 December

31 December

2019 2018

20195 20184

12A31H 12A318

Interests of borrowings &R FLE 11,740,915 4,187,100
Interests of corporate debentures NEIEHF S - 85,456,080
11,740,915 89,643,180

(b) Dividends payable

(b)

FEAS BRI

31 December

31 December

2019 2018
20195 20184
12A31H 12A318
Dividends payable of ordinary shares at the FARER T AR AR
beginning of the year 5,992,012 499,500
Add: Dividends payable of ordinary shares o AE EAT B AR AR
in current year - 124,569,159
Less: Dividends and withholding tax paid B AFIRERF KRN E
in current year - (119,076,647)
5,992,012 5,992,012
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4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

(21) Current portion of non-current liabilities

M SHMBHRRERNEw®

(21) —FREPNFERBEE

31 December 31 December

2019 2018
20195 20184
12A31H 12H31H8
Current portion of debentures payable —FREBNENES
(Note (a)) (P (a)) - 1,818,276,483
Current portion of long-term payables —FRE R BB R
(Note 4(23)) (PF3Emm(23)) 33,983,969 81,276,730
Current portion of lease liabilities —FRENEEAE
(Note 4(22)) (P 3£ (22)) 72,945,478 =
Syndicated Loan for the Phase |I ZHRETE B SIRREER
Expansion Project (Note 8(6)(d)) (BFEEN(B)(d)) 1,944,000,000 =
2,050,929,447 1,899,653,213
(@) In 2019, the Company repaid the Meilan debentures, Guohai private equity bonds (@)  2019%F ' ANEMEEERINHANERHE  BE

| and Guohai private equity bonds Il upon their maturities with principal amounts
totalling RMB1,820,000,000.

(22) Lease liabilities

AEEPE—HEFUREESLEERE_H
&% + At % A ARE1,820,000,0007T °

(22) HEEE

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

20195 2018%F

12A31H 12H31H

Lease liabilities (Note (a)) HESE Q) 75,425,817 -
Less: Current portion of lease liabilities B —FAREBNEEAE

(Note 4(21)) (B EEPT(21)) (72,945,478) =

2,480,339 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 20194 /Z
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B % 5zt 855} + & BB E i BA RKT)

4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL M BHRER MEw
STATEMENTS (continued)

(22) Lease liabilities (Continued) (22) HEEBE@®
(a)  Lease liabilities are the balance of the Group’s minimum lease payments after  (a) HEBBEAAEB KBS NRENGR KERF
deducting unrecognised finance charge. BB RERHEE -
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
20195 20184
12A31H 12H31H8
Payables to Dongyin Finance Leasing (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. JEffEREREMRE CKE)BRA A 48,747,172 =
Payables to Haikou Meilan AR S eS| 11,641,659 -
Payables to Jiangsu Finance Leasing Co., Ltd. IS REERR AR 14,826,011 -
Payables to Canon (China) Co., Ltd. FERERE(FRDBRAR 210,975 =
75,425,817 -
As at 31 December 2019, the unrecognised financing charge amounted to M2019F12A31H  RERNBEBRAKRER
RMB3,677,510. AR#3,677,5107C °
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(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B 5 55t 8651 + & #EEE (L BARKIT)

4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL M BHRER MEw

STATEMENTS (continued)
(23) Long-term payables (23) REAE(S K
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
20195 20184
12A31H 12H31H8
Payables to HNA Group Company Limited EEmMEBERAR(TEMER])

("HNA Group”) (Note (a)) (P (a)) 681,004,125 =
Payables to Haikou Meilan (Note (b)) e D3R (T D) 190,128,973 294,348,071
Payables for finance lease (Note (c)) R mERERFIEC) - 65,294,938
Payables for entrusted loans (Note (d)) ERETEREEW) 28,172,227 27,578,809
Deposit payable (Note (e)) RS (i) 39,019,414 78,070,000

938,324,739 465,291,818
Less: Current portion of entrusted loans A —FAREENETER
(Note 4(21)) (B EPE (21)) (28,172,227) (27,578,809)
Less: Current portion of finance lease payable & : —FAZHKEMBEHER
(Note 4(21)) (B EPE(21)) - (43,687,921)
Less: Current portion of deposit A —FAEIENEM RS
(Note 4(21)) (BFEEm(21)) (5,811,742) (10,010,000)
904,340,770 384,015,088
(a) As at 31 December 2019, the accounts payable by the Company to HNA Group (a) M2019%F12A318 ' X BEAEMEH ST

are the cash advances in nature (Note 8(5)(h)). These payables are interest free,
unsecured and repayable after 30 June 2021.

(b) As at 31 December 2019, the long-term payables are the payables to Haikou (b)
Meilan of RMB190,128,973 (Note 8(5)(h)). According to the agreement reached
between Haikou Meilan and the Company, these payables are interest-free,
unsecured, and repayable after 30 June 2021.
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M SHMBHRRERNEw®

4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (continued)
(23) Long-term payables (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Payable for finance lease represents the minimum lease payments for the
Group's fixed assets held under finance leases less unrecognised finance
charges.

Q&E%Eﬁm%

ENREEEFAASREREEABTEEDN
REHENRENGKAERRERRROK
e

31 December 31 December

2019 2018
20194 20184
12A31H 12A318

Payables to Dongyin Finance Leasing EMRIEMEARECKR)BRAA
(Tianjin) Co., Ltd. - 19,601,209
Payables to Jiangsu Finance Leasing Co., Ltd. BIHERHEAEERAR - 45,234,549
Payables to Canon (China) Co., Ltd. FERHERE (P ED BR A A - 459,180
- 65,294,938

As at 31 December 2018, the unrecognised financing charge amounted to
RMB5,420,791.

The entrusted loans payable are the balances of entrusted loans provided by
Dongyin Financial Leasing (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. to the Group in July and August 2017
respectively. The principal of entrusted loans amounted to RMB64,145,659,
guaranteed by Haikou Meilan and repayable by instalment every 3 months before
the due date of 31 August 2019. The effective interest rate was 6.05%. In 2019,
the Company entered into an extension agreement with Dongyin Financial
Leasing (Tianjin) Co., Ltd., stipulating that the unpaid part will be repaid on one
time due on 15 November 2020.

The amounts represent the deposit received for entering into the agreement
between the Company and an independent third party (the “Management
Company”) for lease of the parking lot of the Group to the Management
Company for a term of 10 years starting from 1 December 2018. According to the
agreement, the Group should return the deposits on a monthly basis during the
lease period.

(d)

(e)

75 7 2 B B BR 228 R

20185 12A31H  RERNHEBRMKRER
ANE#5,420,7917C °

ENETERARRRERE(RR)ARQ AR
2017F7AR8ADRMAEERENZTLER
PR - REERA S R ARY64,145,6597T
REOXEHRERE - NEIEAA201948A31H
AREE B BRIt - ERFEMNEAE.05% °
EA2019¢ RNA Téﬂﬁiﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂa‘*(%ﬁ)ﬁﬁﬁ

DEIETR Hﬁﬁ% ﬁifﬂ%‘ﬁ; 220204
11 A1BE — KM EE

ENREAAEERE-F=7RB(EESDFE
FEEBESAKREFEESHEETEESEK
e - ZEEHBRE2018F 121 HEFT10
FREBZAEERARNEENREAREY
WryRE -

219

SERAT ) —F-NEER



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R 5% BT o

For the year ended 31 December 2019 20194 /&

(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B % 5zt BA5) + & BEE (7 BA R ¥IT)

4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (continued)
(24) Other non-current liabilities

(24) HM3ERBEE

31 December

M SHMBHRRERNEw®

31 December

2019 2018
20195 20184
12A31H 12H31H8
Advances of parking lot rent TEEEISES 128,616,000 106,437,661
Advances of franchise fee TSR E B 56,098,891 91,506,039
Advances of VIP card fee TEWEERE - 20,336,672
Government grants BT ED - 14,170,000
Others HAh 12,280,162 14,326,972
196,995,053 246,777,344
(25) Share capital (25) B4
31 December 31 December
2019 and 2019 and
31 December 31 December
2018 2018
201912H31HK  2019F12A31A K
2018%12H31H 2018%12H31H
(Number of shares) (RMB)
(B 20) (AR¥T)
Shares held by domestic legal entities BREARFR

Haikou Meilan BOER 237,500,000 237,500,000
HNA Group B EE 3,512,500 3,512,500

Hainan Airlines Holding Company Limited EEMZEIERRNDERAF]
("HNA Holdings") (DM ]) 5,287,500 5,287,500
Foreign shares listed overseas BN ERIINE AR 226,913,000 226,913,000
473,213,000 473,213,000
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4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R 5% B o

For the year ended 31 December 2019 20194 /Z

(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (&% 5z 855}

M SOtMIRRELR Nt

C REBEBARET)

(26) Capital surplus (26) EARQTE
Increase Decrease
31 December in the in the 31 December
2018 current year current year 2019
20185 20194
12831H AREIE N KERD 12A31H
(Note 4(6)(c))
(BFEEY(6)(c))
Share premium &A@ (B 598,983,655 - - 598,983,655
Other capital surplus — Hih EARRE -
Share of changes in equity other REEIEZE MW IR E BB
than comprehensive income and FRE W A FE 2 B LA
profit distribution of investees B H i e B
under the equity method 113,650,746 6,526,547 - 120,177,293
Others Hb 100,500,999 - - 100,500,999
813,135,400 6,526,547 - 819,661,947
Increase Decrease
31 December in the inthe 31 December
2017 current year  current year 2018
20174 20184
12A31H8 AREHEN RER D 124318
Share premium AR (B 598,983,655 = - 598,983,655
Other capital surplus = HEtEARTE
Share of changes in equity other REEZE R WIRE B
than comprehensive income and “RE W E M AE D EAS
profit distribution of investees BWEMEREE
under the equity method 130,237,441 - (16,586,695) 113,650,746
Others Hi 100,500,999 = - 100,500,999
829,722,095 - (16,586,695) 813,135,400
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4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL M BHRER MEw
STATEMENTS (continued)

(27) Surplus reserve (27) B&a D&
31 December
2019 and
31 December
2018
20194
12A31H K
20184
12A31H
Statutory surplus reserve FEERBBAES 246,394,231
In accordance with the Company Law and the Company's Articles of RBE(PEAREMBEARE) RARGZERE -
Association, the Company should appropriate 10% of net profit for the year AARREEFAEMO%REVEERBATE
to the statutory surplus reserve, and the Company can cease appropriation & BHEZATRHBAES RTHENGZFMERY
when the statutory surplus reserve accumulated to more than 50% of the 50% ° JETE R NTES LB & AT 5 8 4 S
registered capital. The statutory surplus reserve can be used to make up for B LEEMBRAR - ARNEERBATES R
the loss or increase the paid-in capital after approval from the appropriate EEIAARGFMEARANS0% + ARRH2019
authorities. No statutory surplus reserve was appropriated in 2019 and 2018 FEK2018FEHURRIEERHBATES -
as the Company's statutory surplus reserve has accumulated to 50% of its
registered capital.
(28) Undistributed profits (28) & 2 B 178
2019 2018
20195 E 20185 F
Retained earnings at the beginning of the year & #]7 7 fc 1 )H 3,013,674,728 2,5604,993,353
Add: Net profit attributable to shareholders of Al : AN 53 B AN A 7 AL R 6% 758
the Company for the current year 575,412,545 622,041,325
Less: Ordinary share dividends payable W R RARAR R - (113,359,950)
Retained earnings at the end of the year FARRDBEFHE 3,589,087,273 3,013,674,728
Pursuant to the resolution of shareholders’ annual general meeting on 3 June BIE2019F6 ASHRRBEFRNSAE - AAA
2019, the Company did not distribute final cash dividend for 2018 (2018: final NIRFE2018F E KRR ST (2018F & - Ik E
cash dividend of RMB42,378,000 for 2017). Details are set out in Note 4(39). 20174 EAR IR & IR A E#42,378,0007T) -
B2 RMIEEM(39)
Pursuant to the resolution of shareholders’ annual general meeting on 10 BIE2019F 10 A 10 REAERFE - AQRTD
October 2019, the Company did not distribute interim dividend for 2019 (2018: IkEE2019F E R EIR @ R A(2018F 8 : k%
interim dividend of RMB70,981,950). Details are set out in Note 4(39). 20185 EH HiIR & IR T A E%70,981,9507T) -

F2RIFEN(39) ©

242 HAINAN MEILAN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED >-)- ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL M BHRER MEw
STATEMENTS (continued)

(29) Minority interests (29) LR R R
Equity attributable to minority shareholders of subsidiaries HFERSFRARILVEHRENLERR
FE %

Name of subsidiaries Minority shareholder 31 December 31 December
2019 2018
FLREB LEHBRRER 20194 20184
12A31H 12H31H

Haikou Meilan International Airport Cargo Co., Ltd. Slog Express Ltd.
("Meilan Freight”) 43,758,770 37,806,558

BEXHERREEEERATAR(EHEE]D BITEERRAT

(30) EXRWMANERAAE - HEBRAK

(30) Revenue, cost of sales, selling and distribution

expenses, and general and administrative expenses EEEH
2019 2018
Revenue BEWA 20195 E 20185
Aeronautical: AR -
Passenger service income IR AR & 349,874,021 345,919,512
Ground handling service income HOTE AR 7% B 226,584,824 190,501,947
Fees and related charges on aircraft takeoff R4 JEE B Kz AR A L B
and landing 132,931,037 128,267,182
Refund of Civil Aviation Development Fund RMERESRERE
(Note (a)) (Pt 5% (@) - 250,367,077
709,389,882 915,055,718
Non-aeronautical: FRTEM R -
Franchise income AP AR A 412,800,059 417,190,686
Freight and packaging income BEERBERA 102,646,801 97,174,931
Hotel income B JE WA 101,253,309 30,957,567
VIP room income BEEEWA 75,664,796 41,157,501
Rental income e A 74,783,568 89,213,598
Car parking income FEIZIA 14,598,056 26,801,790
Other income HEA 85,234,607 86,272,538
866,981,196 788,768,611

1,576,371,078

1,703,824,329

SEEMBEBEAERDERAT ¥ —F

F ]
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4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(30) Revenue, cost of sales, selling and distribution
expenses, and general and administrative expenses
(Continued)

Revenue (Continued)

(a) According to the Notice of the Ministry of Finance on Abolition of the Policy
of Recognition of Refund of the Civil Aviation Development Fund to the Three
Listed Airports including the Capital Airport as Revenue (Cai Jian [2018] No. 238)
promulgated by the Ministry of Finance of the People’s Republic of China on
29 May 2018, the policy previously adopted by the Company to recognise the
refund of the Civil Aviation Development Fund as the revenue of the Company in
accordance with relevant regulations and documents of Interim Measures for the
Administration of Special Funds for Energy Conservation and Emission Reduction
in Civil Aviation was cancelled on 29 November 2018. After the abolition of the
above policy, the Company should not recognise the refund of the Civil Aviation
Development Fund, if any, as revenue.

Cost of sales, selling and distribution expenses and general and administrative

m St EmKREE MEw

(30) EXWANEXRAS - HEBAR

EEEH®

EEWA @

(a)

R IR B B ER 2B A 201845 A 29 T # M BF R
HEAREERMBEEESCARBHHISEE =R
IS IREECERAREBRABA) (B
#[2018]238%%) * ARARIERB(RMERES
B fE B ERETIVE) S REERER RS
HRMEEECREERARNARZEERARRE
KRR SR 20184 11 A298 FUAEUE © ATZLIR
REUHZBRE - ARRBRIEMERES R
BRTBIEASERARE -

BERE  HEERAKEEERTIEMIATIER

expenses mainly include the following items: FERK
2019 2018
20195 & 20184 &
Sub-contracted labour costs BBIKEANBER 156,265,568 153,963,101
Employee salaries and benefit expenses ETITEREMNER 164,811,709 147,207,840
Depreciation expenses of fixed assets BEEEENEEA 115,574,027 140,682,242
Airport and logistic services fee WIS R INENAR A RIS B 68,763,354 63,557,328
Utilities IKEE 43,933,263 40,586,477
Depreciation of investment properties KEGEHEREER 37,402,326 35,714,558
Repairs and maintenance wisEH 32,951,983 42,885,826
VIP room costs EEEEBIL 22,870,838 15,928,312
Costs for depreciation of right-of-use assets  FAEEEHNEER 22,048,389 =
Security costs EEREBT L 14,586,155 18,660,881
Flight delays meal allowance MITRER LB & 9,179,379 10,090,139
Packaging materials HAE P A 9,751,721 8,373,813
Parking lot costs FEBEB I 8,084,692 7,554,443
Rental expenses HEZ - 5,699,586
Handling fees of CAAC Settlement Center RMBEHRLFEE 5,002,670 5,045,184
Amortisation of intangible assets mEESHEER 3,736,188 3,729,715
Audit fees ZatAh & A 2,312,000 2,799,759
— Audit and review service - Het REB RS 2,012,000 2,236,000
— Non-audit services - FEHET AR 300,000 563,759
Travelling expenses ERE 2,540,019 1,403,343
Others HAh 79,348,121 82,783,147
799,162,402 786,665,694

As stated in Note 2(24), the Group had no short-term lease or low-value lease

in 2019.

T FE = (24)Fril - ANEE2019FEEEHHEE

AEEERE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R 5% B o

For the year ended 31 December 2019 20194 /Z
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B % 5zt 855} + & BB E i BA RKT)

4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEM ENTS (Continued)

M SHMBHRRERNEw®

(31) Taxes and surcharges (31) & K hn
2019 2018
20195 E 20184 &
Property tax EER 22,475,170 28,883,452
Stamp tax ENFERL 219,432 483,126
Land use tax T AR 1,125,534 1,118,882
City maintenance and construction tax T MR R 3,704,921 743,765
Educational surcharge HE BN 2,817,111 640,937
Vehicle and vessel use tax B EAR 150,677 150,655
30,492,845 32,020,817
(32) Financial (income)/expenses — net (32) A (W), B A - B4
2019 2018
20195 & 2018F &
Interest expenses F B H 100,264,516 184,263,614
Including: Debentures payable He - ERES 41,059,437 138,512,724
Bank borrowings HRITER 51,527,607 39,794,681
Finance lease and entrusted loans MEHEREZTERK - 5,956,209
Lease liabilities and entrusted loans HERBERZFEX 7,677,472 =
Net exchange (gains)/losses P& 5% (e ss) 18k (14,309,704) 12,536
Less: Capitalised financial expenses W BERMEFLE (82,574,882) (48,411,321)
Less: Interest income o ALEWA (21,732,287) (16,822,932)
Others Hifb 4,310,726 979,901
(14,041,631) 120,021,798
(33) Investment income (33) ®E W=
2019 2018
20195 & 2018F &
Investment income from long-term equity EREZERNREFLETEATN
investment of unlisted companies under REARAER B =
equity method 6,858,636 52,590,634

There is no significant restriction on recovery of investment income of the

Group.

AEBNFARERGERNEARS

BEXMERZEROEARAT W —F-NFEH




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R 5% BT o

For the year ended 31 December 2019 20194 /&
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B 5 55t 8651 + & #EEE (L BARKIT)

4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL [0 & 46f8i#R*FI1EB M @
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(34) Gains/(Losses) on disposal of assets (34) BERBWE (BX)
2019 2018
20195 E 20184 &
Gains/(losses) on disposal of fixed assets EEEERERZ(BX) 3,404,673 (381,809)
(35) Other income (35) HAth Uz
Related to
2019 2018 assets/income
B EAARY
20195 & 20185 & EL 7 A A
Amortization of government SHI R - BARIE RARA 1,944,444 1,500,000 Assets related
subsidies of fire equipment, R IR A A BT B BEEEE
inspection building and GTC #5 (M3E(a)
(Note(a))
Subsidy for aeronautical transport — fii 2= iE & g A AL & B - 3,000,000 Income related
revenue B E A
Refund of individual income tax AR E 216,823 705,573 Income related
R 2545
Others HAith 989,875 80,300 Income related
HE A 7
3,151,142 5,285,873
(a) During the year, the Group received asset related government subsidies (a) AFEEHREAEMRBNBRNHBMESEAAR
amounting to RMB40,000,000. The above-mentioned asset-related government #40,000,0007T © |-l B2 & 2= QB Y BUT 5 Bh o3
subsidies are amortized over the estimated useful life of the asset within 15 REEETEHE R ERIGE ~ 405 MI0F R #
years, 40 years and 30 years, respectively. o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R 5% B o

For the year ended 31 December 2019 20194 /Z
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B % 5zt 855} + & BB E i BA RKT)

4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL [0 & 46f8i#R*FI1EB M @
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(36) Non-operating income (36) &EFEIHWKA
2019 2018
20195 E 20185 F
Government grants T #E BY - 3,200,000
Others HAith 112,744 211,038
112,744 3,411,038
(37) Income tax expenses (37) FIBEHER
2019 2018
20195 E 20185 F
Current income tax calculated based on BBEREBERETED
tax law and related regulations EHREH 198,621,319 197,371,896
Deferred income tax EREFTISH (7,934,807) 524,246
190,686,512 197,896,142
The reconciliation from income tax calculated based on the applicable tax HEREHMBROMNBEBREAERABEASE
rates and total profit presented in the consolidated income statement to the HPMEHHEANARMEHERNT :

income tax expenses is listed below:

2019 2018
20195 & 2018F &
Total profit FlEmE 772,051,269 826,296,632
Income tax expenses calculated at tax rates ~ ZAEBEABEHEBH RTEH
applicable for entities of the Group FrisHi 193,012,817 206,574,158
Effect of preferential tax treatments Rk EENSE - (7,036,651)
Income not subject to tax JEEANT UL A (1,714,659) (13,147,659)
Costs and expenses not deductible for TENBROKARER
tax purposes 35,658 1,056,371
Utilisation of previously unrecognised FABARERELEMSHEED
tax losses BIE::# ) o= (4,354,401) =
Tax losses for which no deferred tax asset EHARBRECHEHAEN
was recognised BIE::# ) o= 3,707,097 10,449,923
190,686,512 197,896,142
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1% i 7= M &

B 7% Tk M &

For the year ended 31 December 2019 20194 /&

(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B % 5zt BA5) + & BEE (7 BA R ¥IT)

4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)
(38) Earnings per share

(a) Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing consolidated net profit
attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average

N SO KRR EE M@

(38) B W
@ EEGKKHEABERNGADEBRRENE 6
SFABR AR D ARSNGB BT 9B

number of ordinary shares outstanding: FE
2019 2018
20195 E 20184 &
Consolidated net profit attributable to FBERE AR ERRER

ordinary shareholders of the Company EFENEARET)
(RMB Yuan) 575,412,545 622,041,325

Weighted average number of ordinary RN B EITEINE AR
shares outstanding (share) hniEFEHE(RR) 473,213,000 473,213,000
Basic earnings per share (RMB Yuan) EXFRKE(ARET) 1.22 1.31

(b) Diluted earnings per share are calculated by dividing consolidated net profit
attributable to ordinary shareholders of the parent company adjusted based
on the dilutive potential ordinary shares by the adjusted weighted average
number of outstanding ordinary shares of the Company. As there were
no dilutive potential ordinary shares in the current year (2018: Nil), diluted
earnings per share equalled to basic earnings per share.

(39) Dividends
As at 10 October 2019, the general meeting approved not to distribute 2019
interim cash dividend (2018 interim cash dividend: RMBO0.150 per share,
totalling RMB70,981,950).

As at 30 March 2020, the Board proposed not to distribute 2019 final cash
dividend (No distribution of final cash dividend in respect of the year 2018).

b) MESRESEAREBEBLELEBEGABRN
FENE QR EBRRROE FHFFIER AR
BEARBBRITHEINE BERAOINE TS BETHE -
RAFE  ARATFEAERBUEMNEEEL R
(20185 : &) - Hit - HEBERREEFNE
N

(39) IR &I
M20195F 108108 - R AN ERZETHIK2019
FREPIE S IR A (2018 F P HIR ST - BRA
R¥0.1507T - #5H A AR 70,981,9507T) °

20203 A30H ' EEEEETHIK2019FE
KREIB S B EM(2018FEE KRB EBA : &
EERFZTDIR2018FE KBS BRFF) -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R 5% B o

For the year ended 31 December 2019 20194 /Z
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B % 5zt 855} + & BB E i BA RKT)

4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL SO KR IE R e w
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(40) Supplementary information to the cash flow (40) BEREXRB R E R
statement
(a) Reconciliation from net profit to cash flows from operating (a) & FAEATHELTHRETRE
activities
2019 2018
20195 E 2018 F
Net profit SEF)E 581,364,757 628,400,490
Add: Accrual/(reversal) of provision for e EHR S (EE) KB EREES
asset impairment 2,197,796 (305,697)
Depreciation of investment properties KRECEHENTE 37,402,326 35,714,558
Depreciation of fixed assets BEEETE 115,574,027 140,682,242
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRREERE 22,048,389 =
Amortisation of intangible assets mEERE 3,736,188 3,729,715
Amortisation of long-term prepaid expenses REAFFEE B A # 1,158,198 1,101,745
Amortisation of deferred income 3 AT o B (1,944,444) (1,774,540
(Gains)/losses on disposal of fixed assets BREBRTEET =) 1Bk (3,404,673) 381,809
Financial (income)/expenses B A, & B (16,042,427) 135,864,829
Investment income 2B W (6,858,636) (52,5690,634)
(Increase)/decrease in deferred RIEFTS R EE S, WD
tax assets (8,213,732) 524,246
Increase in deferred tax liabilities BEFTE T A EE N 278,925 =
Increase in inventories FFEHRIE (80,784) (269,469)
Increase in operating receivables 4 1 R TR B AYIE N (121,961,593) (30,956,420)
Increase in operating payables K I R TR B AYIE N 226,023,719 364,607,155
Net cash flows from operating activities KEESEENR S REFH 831,278,036 1,225,110,029
(b) Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (b) RERBSZEMFEHERN
2019 2018
20195 & 2018 F
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of Re KB EBYNFRRE
the year 1,511,749,849 81,958,509
Less: Cash and cash equivalents at the B BeRReEBYNFIRE
beginning of the year (81,958,509) (672,968,315)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ReRRSEEWFEM CHD)E
cash equivalents 1,429,791,340 (591,009,806)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R 5% BT o

For the year ended 31 December 2019 20194 /&

(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B 5 55t 8651 + & #EEE (L BARKIT)

5 CHANGES IN THE SCOPE OF CONSOLIDATION &

There were no changes in the scope of consolidation for the current year.

6 INTEREST IN OTHER ENTITIES

(1) Interest in subsidiaries

SOEENEE

AEERBELEAHBENEE -

EHEMERPAER
£ F 2B

(a) Particulars of group entities (a) BESKENEK
Major
business Place of Registered Direct Voting  Way of
Type of entity location registration  Nature of business capital shareholding rights  acquisition
EEER RN
EAER FTELE  Eft ERME HfER i2t] hl  BEER
Meilan Freight (Note) Limited liability Haikou Haikou Rendering of cargo 20,000,000 51% 51%  Setup
company services
FHEE () BREARATF BOm O REEERS 20,000,000 51% 51% RURG
Hainan Ruigang Logistics Co., Ltd.  Limited liability Haikou Haikou Logistics services and 50,000,000 100% 100%  Setup
("Ruigang Logistics”) company business investment
BEREMRERAR BREARF O BOm MRREREERE 50,000,000 100% 100%  HUBGF
(Gociand)
Hainan Meilan Airport Hotel Limited liability Haikou Haikou Hotel investment and 5,000,000 100% 100%  Setup
Investment Holding Co., Ltd. company operation
("Hotel Investment”)
BEERWABEREBRAR  BREAAF B/0Om BOm BERELE 5,000,000 100% 100% HRUBE
(BERED
Hainan HNA Airport Fund Limited liability Sanya Sanya Entrusted management 10,000,000 100% 100%  Setup
Management Co., Ltd company of equity investment
("HNA Fund Management”) funds
R ERER AR AREEAR =M =M FRERREREES 10,000,000 100% 100%  FUESE
(E2EE])

Note: The percentage of shareholding in Meilan Freight held by the Company is 51%.
The key operating and financial decisions of Meilan Freight are made by the
Board of Directors. The resolution of the Board of Directors should be subject to
the approval of at least half of the directors who attend the Board of Directors’
meeting. The Company has the right to designate 3 out of total 5 board members
in Meilan Freight, so the Company has the voting rights of 60% in it.

There is no restriction of the use of the Group's assets nor the settlement of

the liability of the Group.

2 5 O HAINAN MEILAN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED >-)- ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 20194 £
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B % 5t 85) - % BB BARBT)

6 INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES (continued) N EEHMEFEANERZ@
(2) Interest in associates (2) EHELEFNES

(a) General information of associates (a) BELENEREE

Major business

Place of

Whether
strategic to
the Group’s

location registration Nature of business activities Shareholding
HEBER
FTERE it it Ed 3] ERERERMY FREH
Haikou Konggang Hainan province ~ Hainan province  Property development, Yes 30%
Haikou Haikou resort operation,
eco-agriculture
development and
gardening
Az BEAEAT HEMEEATT MERE - KEERLE = 30%
- ERRRHERE
B
HNA Airport Holdings Hainan province  Hainan province  Airport operation and Yes 24.5%
(Note) Haikou Haikou ground handling services;
airport investment,
holding, constructing and
rebuilding
RS IR (BT ) BEEEAT HEEEATT W358 & BN E AR 7S = 24.5%
HISIRE -~ R
B
Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method. AREBY FREIREHREBAERS AZE
Note: The place of incorporation and business of HNA Airport Group are in the PRC, and T B AAIS 1 AR 5 E /0 R i 4 e B AT & I 1E
there is no business transaction relationship between the Group and HNA Airport FEER BAEEEER FNTR - AEE
Group. The equity interest held by the Group is 24.5% and the voting rights are HBMEISIERFEARLEL61/524.5% - RAREL
1/7. Although the percentage of the voting rights held by the Group is less than B AE1/7 - BAER20% @ B2EMEISIZERE
20%, since one out of seven directors of the board of directors of HNA Airport EQVRESTMIBAEAEETH - BIASE

Holdings is nominated by the Group. Therefore the Group is able to exercise BRI EMESIEREMEALE - BUBE

significant influence over HNA Airport Holdings and regarded it as an associate of e BB AP EZRE -
the Group.
BUEREREAROBRAT > —T-AFFE 2O |
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 20194 /&

(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B % 5zt BA5) + & BEE (7 BA R ¥IT)

6

(2)
(b)

INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES (continued) N EHMEERPHESZ®
Interest in associates (Continued) (2) EHELEPHIER@®
Summarised information of insignificant associates (b) TEEMELEMELEE
2019 2018
20195 20185 &
Associates: B b2
Aggregated carrying amount of investments REREEBEAR 1,402,716,902 1,396,571,910
Aggregate of the following items in proportion OIS EZEFR DT ENEE
Net profit (Note (i) S AE (P EEG) 6,858,636 52,590,634
Other comprehensive income (Note (i) HhaR A das (MaEG) (7,240,191) (13,015,000)
Total comprehensive income IREWEBRE (381,555) 39,575,634
Capital surplus BEARRNIE 6,526,547 (16,586,695)

(i) The net profit and other comprehensive income have taken into account the
impacts of both the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities upon the
acquisition of investment in joint ventures and associates and the unification of
accounting policies adopted by the joint ventures and the associates to those
adopted by the Company.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker (“CODM") of the Group has been
identified as the Executive Directors and senior management led by the
chairman of the Company. The management reviews the Group's internal
reporting in order to assess performance and allocate resources. The
management has determined the operating segments based on these
reports.

The management considers the Group conducts its business within one
business segment — the business of operating an airport and a hotel and
provision of related services in the PRC and the Group also operates within
one geographical segment because its revenue is primarily generated from
and its assets are located in the PRC.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 20194 £
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B % 5t 85) - % BB BARBT)

8 RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY N BEIBRERERS

TRANSACTIONS
(1) Information of the parent of the Company (1) BATHER
(a) General information of the parent company: (a) BARERER :

Place of registration Nature of business

o 3t ES 2k

Haikou Meilan Haikou, Hainan Province Air transportation and ground handling services

BOEH BEEEOT TR it z= 5@ b N it DRI AR 7%

(b) Registered capital and changes in registered capital of the (b) SRATFEMERR HE L :
parent company:

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

20194 20184

12A31H 12H31H

Haikou Meilan BOXEE 4,248,629,699 3,811,290,643

During the year, Hainan Development Holdings Company Limited, Hainan
Airport Investment Management Company Limited and HNA Airport Group
Company Limited which are the shareholders of Haikou Meilan have made
further capital injections to Haikou Meilan, the registered capital of Haikou
Meilan increased from RMB3.811 billion to RMB4.249 billion. After the
completion of the capital injection and on 31 December 2019, Hainan
Development Holdings Company Limited and its wholly owned subsidiary
Hainan Airport Investment Management Company Limited held a total of
29.98% share in Haikou Meilan and became the largest shareholder in Haikou
Meilan. Hainan Development Holdings Company Limited is an affiliate of the
State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Committee of Hainan
Provincial Government.

The percentages of shareholding and voting rights in the
Company held by the parent company:

M20195FE - BOEMRF GEEERIERA
RAT - BEEARSEREEEGRQBNEME
BEBARAREEOXEMLE  FHEOXH
KM AR AREI811{ERINE ARK42.49
BT - AT E RFR2019F12A318 © §/E
BEEEREBRABIREEZETARIGHEEKS
REEBARARAHAENERN29.98%4
BiE - BBOEBME KRR - SEEAEER
BERARRBRERABNREEEEEER

ZRE-

ISENCIESRNCIENE ST G RIE PR -
el

31 December 2019
and 31 December 2018
2019%12H31A
&2018%12A831H
Shareholding (%) Voting rights (%)
BREHI% FKREL B %

Haikou Meilan O ER

50.19 50.19

Information of the subsidiaries
The general information and other related information of the subsidiaries are
set out in Note 6(1)(a).

7 AFAER
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8 RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(3) Information of other related parties

N BEBRLTBERERZ®

(3) HBam s HER

Relationship with the Group
B @R

HNA Group
B

Hainan Traffic Control Holding Co., Ltd. (“Hainan Traffic Control”)
BEREERERAG(ERER])

Hainan Developing Holding Company Limited (“Hainan Developing”)

SRR EEREIRA R (R

Haikou Meilan International Airport Passenger Transport Co., Ltd.
("Airlines Passenger Transport”)

BOXHBEERSTEERATAR(HISZTED

Hainan Meilan Airport Travelling Co., Ltd. (“Meilan Travel”) Nete1

MRS R RY A B A 7 (MR )

HNA Holdings
MR

Tianjin Airlines Co., Ltd. (“Tianjin Airlines”)
KEMEERETAR(XKEMZ])

Lucky Air Co., Ltd (“Lucky Air")
EEaEBmMEEREELR(EmEFEE)

Guangxi Beibu Gulf Airlines Co., Ltd (“Beibu Gulf Airlines”)
EritHEm=aREEAR(ILEEMmZE]D

Chang An Airlines Co., Ltd. (“Chang An Airlines")
REZMEBREALA(REME])

Yangpu Guoxing Construction Co., Ltd. (“Yangpu Guoxing”)
FERB B TA22 R AR A E (D m R )

Hainan HNA Duty Free Management Co.,Ltd (“HNA Duty Free”)
BEEMEREEXEBRERAR(EREE]D

Hainan HNA Property Management Co., Ltd. (“HNA Property”) Noe3
BrEEMMEERERNBR AR (DEMYED=

Has significant influence on the Parent Company

HERRBAEATE

Has significant influence on the Parent Company
HERREERTE

Has significant influence on the Parent Company

HERRBEATE

Under control of Parent Company

BRI

Under control of Parent Company

£ AR

Under control of Hainan Developing

XS BEBAE

Under control of HNA Group
e E ey

Under control of Hainan Developing

XS BE B A

Under control of Hainan Developing

XS BE B A

Under control of Hainan Developing

XS BE B A

Under control of Hainan Traffic Control
RGP RR A1

Under control of Hainan Traffic Control
RGP RR A1

Under control of HNA Group
e E ey
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8 RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY N BHMIBARRERXSZw
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(3) Information of other related parties (Continued) (3) HbEEE:S BN @

Relationship with the Group

BEAE @R

Hainan Airlines Food Company Co., Ltd. (“HNA Food") Under control of HNA Group
BEMmERGAERAR(DEME M) e E ey
HNA Group Finance Co., Ltd. (“HNA Group Finance") Under control of HNA Group
BMEES AR AR (M%) e E ey
HNA Safe Leasing Co., Ltd (“HNA Safe") Note2 Under control of HNA Group
AMBEAEEERRAR(ERBIE]® e B ey
Western Airlines Co., Ltd. (“Western Airlines”) Under control of HNA Group
mEMmEEREEA R (AR ZE]D) e B ey
HNA Cargo Transportation Co., Ltd. (“HNA Cargo”) Under control of HNA Group
BMEEAERAB(EMEE] e B ey
Honor (Sanya) Aviation Service Co., Ltd. (“Honor Sanya”) Nee4 Under control of HNA Group
BRCEDMERBERAR(BRE=0]) e B ey
Shanghai Deer Air Co., Ltd (“Shanghai Deer Air") Under control of HNA Group
FEeBRABMERRAR( EeR]) e B ey
Eking Technology Co., Ltd. (“Eking Technology") Nete® Under control of HNA Group
SMEERO AR A A SMmEH])# e B ey
Hainan Haidao Commercial Management Co., Ltd. (“Haidao Commercial”) Under control of HNA Group
BEEERMEERARAR(ESEE]D e B ey
HNA Holding Group Co., Ltd. (“HNA Holding"”) Under control of HNA Group
BMEEREEEGRAR(DEMEE]) e B ey
Suparna Airlines Co., Ltd. (“Suparna Airlines”) Under control of HNA Group
eEMmERHERA R (2] e B ey
Hainan New Generation Lottery Co., Ltd. (“New Generation Lottery”) Under control of HNA Group
R ERERRARAR(EEHE]D e B ey
HNA EcoTech Group Co., Ltd. (“HNA EcoTech") Under control of HNA Group
AMERRREEARAR(EMRER] e B ey
Hainan Townfree Currency Exchange Co., Ltd (“Townfree Exchange”) Under control of HNA Group
BrmREEEERERAR(RERR]) e B ey
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8 RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(3) Information of other related parties (Continued)

N BEBRLTBERERZ®

(3) HAREEEA B R @

Relationship with the Group
BEAEE MR

HNA Travel Group Co., Ltd. (“HNA Tourism")
BREEE ARG (DEMiREE])

Hainan Airlines Sales Co., Ltd. (“HNA Sale”)
BEEMMEHEEBRAT(TEMEED

Hainan Traffic Service Co.,Ltd. (“HTS")
8 MR 3R AR TS B BR A B (MR 323D

Beijing Capital Airlines Co., Ltd. (“Capital Airlines")
IEREBMEBERA R (EEMZED

HNA Asset Management Group Co., Ltd. (“HNA Asset Management Group”)
BMAEEREEERAR(EMEESRE])

Hainan Travel Information Technology Co., Ltd. (“Travel Information”)

BEEREERMBR AR (KREERD

Hainan E-card Parking Management Co., Ltd. (“Hainan E-card Parking”)
B NBEESERERAR (DR —RBEFES]

Hainan HNA China Duty Free Merchandise Co., Ltd. (“HNA China Duty Free”

BEEMTREYRAERAREMTR])

Note 1: Haikou Meilan transferred control of Meilan Travel in January 2019, after which
the company ceased to be a related party of the Group.

Note 2: HNA Tourism transferred control of HNA Safe in July 2019, after which the
company ceased to be a related party of the Group.

Note 3: Hainan E-card Management Co., Ltd (“Hainan E-card”) changed its name to
Hainan HNA Property Management Co., Ltd. (“HNA Property”) in 2019.

Note 4: Deer Jet Co., Ltd. (“"Deer Jet") changed its name to Honor (Sanya) Aviation
Service Co., Ltd. (“Honor Sanya”) in 2019.

Note 5: Hainan Eking Technology Co., Ltd. (“Hainan Eking Technology”) changed its

name to Eking Technology Co., Ltd. (“Eking Technology”) in 2019.
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(a)

(b)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R 5% B o

For the year ended 31 December 2019 20194 /Z
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B % 5zt 855} + & BB E i BA RKT)

BAEITERARRERZw®

RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY AN
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Related party transactions (4) EXB#HRXS
Pricing policies (a) EEHX
The Group's pricing policy of goods purchased from related parties, and REEM@EB A RENERNAR B @RI ETS
services provided to or received from related parties are based on market ek AT RSB ERATISERIEAT
price. The interest rates of deposits maintained with related parties of the BER - NEBEFHRIMEE T RITIFRAOF =R
Group are mutually agreed by taking into consideration of deposit interest 2EFERITRBTERRERLCE F B ET
rates of commercial banks over the same period.
Purchase of goods or receiving of services (b) HRBEVIIEZEZLK
2019 2018 2019 2018
20195 E 2018F % 20195 & 20185 %
The Group The Group The Company The Company
rEE AEH P NG| RNAF]
HNA Property S E 54,464,364 59,498,724 50,575,833 55,613,957
Haikou Meilan EOEE 30,354,548 26,969,304 24,018,213 21,103,994
Eking Technology SMmEHE 6,637,494 6,619,868 6,637,494 6,542,491
HNA Safe BB AE 1,647,117 4,117,069 1,406,981 3,088,868
Meilan Travel ER ke - 5,465,740 - 5,465,740
HNA Food BRR - 4,704,441 - 4,704,441
HNA Cargo BMEE - 26,757 - =
93,103,523 107,401,903 82,638,521 96,519,491
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R 5% BT o

For the year ended 31 December 2019 20194 /&
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B 5 55t 8651 + & #EEE (L BARKIT)

8 RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY

(4) Significant related party transactions (Continued)

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(4) EXRBBRZ@®

N BEBRLTBERERZ®

(c) Rendering of services (c) RHEEH
2019 2018 2019 2018
2019 E 2018F 20195 2018FE
The Group The Group The Company The Company
rEH rEH b UNE| ¥iN/NS]|
HNA Holdings A % 206,161,310 199,456,036 201,675,752 197,709,133
Capital Airlines BHEMZE 73,618,894 67,106,224 62,395,968 64,880,730
Tianjin Airlines RiEMZE 51,534,835 34,658,674 39,530,925 32,224,141
Beibu Gulf Airlines b EBE M ZE 26,840,766 19,231,614 20,107,190 17,213,039
Lucky Air RN 15,902,546 14,106,983 13,837,281 13,773,265
HNA China Duty Free pissil ki) 12,522,958 10,835,583 12,522,958 10,835,583
Western Air A ZE 6,577,461 6,578,046 6,504,301 6,551,963
Honor Sanya BF=—0 2,323,535 3,737,199 2,323,535 3,737,199
Chang An Airlines RZMmzE 2,861,467 2,653,138 2,861,467 2,653,138
HNA Cargo SRS 4,032,040 = - =
Suparna Airlines S WMz 463,798 62,398 - =
Meilan Travel e i - 50,670 - =
Others HAth 23,340 1,923,322 - 20,685
402,862,950 360,399,887 361,759,377 349,598,876
(d) Leases (d) #HE
The Group as the lessor: REEERLAR
2019 2018 2019 2018
20195 E 2018 % 20195 E 2018
The Group The Group The Company The Company
rEE REH RAT RNAR]
HNA Holdings TERIERR 4,224,000 4,224,000 4,224,000 4,224,000
Ruigang Logistics TSR - = 27,602,070 23,023,612
Hotel Investment BERE - = 11,916,697 22,157,404
Meilan Freight IHEE - = 1,860,874 2,193,871
Others Hth 2,617,718 1,745,420 2,617,718 1,745,420
6,841,718 5,969,420 48,221,359 53,344,307

2 58 HAINAN MEILAN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED h)‘ ANNUAL REPORT 2019



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R 5% B o

For the year ended 31 December 2019 20194 /Z
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B~ 1555t 805 + & BB B BA R K TT)

8 RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY N BEFBRERRERZ®
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(4) Significant related party transactions (Continued) (4) EXBEBRZ @
(d) Leases (Continued) (d) #HEw@®m
Increase of right-of-use assets in the current period with the Group as the NEBERAMT B G MAEREEE -
lessee:
2019 2018 2019 2018
20195 & 20185 & 20195 & 20185 &
The Group The Group The Company  The Company
A% A%E AL AT
Haikou Meilan AOXE 19,043,478 = - =
19,043,478 - - -
Interest expenses on lease liabilities in the current period with the Group as rEBEEREABESTEHRENHEESERNEX
the lessee: i
2019 2018 2019 2018
20195 & 20184 & 20195 E 20185 &
The Group The Group The Company  The Company
rEE REH AT PN/NE]
Haikou Meilan 80X 358,342 = - =
358,342 - - -
(e) Co-borrowing (e) HEEZR
2019 2018
20195 & 20184 &
Haikou Meilan AN
- Drawn down during the year - REBLERE 552,000,000 280,000,000
- The ending balance of the loan - FRARE 3,232,000,000 2,680,000,000
For details, please refer to Note 8(6)(d). FARERFES RMEEB)d) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R 5% BT o

For the year ended 31 December 2019 20194 /&
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B 5 55t 8651 + & #EEE (L BARKIT)

8 RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY N BHIBARREXZw
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(4) Significant related party transactions (Continued) (4) EXBEBRSZ @
(f) Guarantee received (f) EZER
2019 2018
20195 & 20185 €
Haikou Meilan BOXE 407,622,227 407,028,809
Haikou Meilan provided guarantees for the short-term borrowings and BOEMAALRNEHERNEZTERREME
entrusted loans to the Company. Details are set out in Note 4(14)(a) and Note BEEARFER - F15F2 LWL (14)(a) FFT
4(23)(d). U (23)(d) °
(g) Interest income (g) FEHWA
2019 2018 2019 2018
2019 & 2018F & 20195 & 2018F &
The Group The Group The Company  The Company
rEE AEH PN ANAF]
HNA Group Finance V8 i B 75 1,733,643 195,771 1,733,643 195,771
The interest rates on the above interest income are mutually agreed by taking A B R F) 2 E R TT R EF R R
into consideration of deposit interest rates of commercial banks over the KETREERETE o
same period.
(h) Transfer of assets (hy EEEE
In 2019, the Group and HNA Group entered into an agreement about the R20195F K » AEBEEMEBRERER
settlement of debt to transfer the Group's fixed assets of RMB1,481,312 FERE  BASEREEEBEARE1,481,312
(original price of RMB2,858,000) to HNA Group to offset the amounts payable T(REBARY?2,858,000)HETEEHET
to HNA Group of RMB2,858,000. M S B LA FE e B AR % 2,858,000
TCRIERS ©
(i) Remuneration of key management (i) FAREEAESHH
2019 2018
20195 E 20185 &
Remuneration of key management FAREEABSFHMH 4,470,856 5,033,530
Key management personnel include executive directors, non-executive FAHETEBEABREADRRIRNITES « JEHTE
directors, president, vice president, company secretary, chief financial officer BE - FBEE - RENE MHRERE

and supervisors of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R 5% B o

For the year ended 31 December 2019 20194 /Z
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B~ 1555t 805 + & BB B BA R K TT)

8 RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY N BEFBRERRERZ®
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(4) Significant related party transactions (Continued) (4) EXBETZ@®
(i) Emoluments of directors and supervisors () ESBSRESFHMH
Emoluments of directors and supervisors for the year ended 31 December 2019FE B EERESHHINOT

2019 were as follows:

Remunerations
paid in respect

of accepting Emoluments paid for
office as other services in connection
director or with the management of
supervisor the affairs of the Company
HIEMEL
ESQES-R
MEAHHE FREBAAAMIANNE
Salary,
housing
allowance,
other allowance
and benefits- Discretionary
Remuneration in-kind Pension bonuses Total
e
EEEH
Hi2AN
Name i % We ENHE EEZEHEMX MRS Rt
Wang Zhen T B8 - 656,485 35,074 36,000 721,559
Tu Haidong (Note (i) SR () - 39,331 4,351 - 43,682
Wang Hong (Note i)} E A (G - 542,740 35,074 36,000 613,814
Liao Hongyu (Note (i) (Note (ii)) (Note (i) BZSL 5 (B &) (B &5 i) (B8 5 i) - 145,609 24,257 36,000 205,866
Wang Hexin (Note (i) E%%ﬁ( FEG) - 468,098 35,074 36,000 539,172
Yu Yan B3 - 469,615 35,074 36,000 540,689
Xing Zhoujin =k - 563,490 35,074 36,000 634,564
Chan Nap Kee, Joseph (Note fii)) M8 o7 (P () 63,235 - - - 63,235
Yan Xiang (Note (ii) & AEEa) 63,235 - - - 63,235
Fung Ching, Simon (Note (i) 5 (G 136,765 - - - 136,765
George F Meng (Note (i) E( EA(D) 136,765 - - - 136,765
Deng Tianlin (Note fii) KA i) 136,765 - - - 136,765
He Linji (Note (ii) :5( EA(D) 136,765 - - - 136,765
Yang Xiao (Note (i) (Note (i) L GR{DIGE) - - - - -
Liu Guiling (Note (i) I‘%( () - 397,099 35,074 36,000 468,173
Zhang Shusheng (Note (i) t%( () 23,810 - - - 23,810
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R 5% BT o

For the year ended 31 December 2019 20194 /&
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B % 5zt BA5) + & BEE (7 BA R ¥IT)

8 RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY N BHMEIBARRERXS @
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(4) Significant related party transactions (Continued) (4) EXBETZ@®
(j);.  Emoluments of directors and supervisors (Continued) () EEREZEFHM@
Emoluments of directors and supervisors for the year ended 31 December 2018 F EBNESFRESNHFMNT :

2018 were as follows:

Remunerations
paid in respect
of accepting Emoluments paid for
office as other services in connection
director or with the management of
supervisor the affairs of the Company
FEMER
BEZgEE R
i fTame FEBADAMZAHOME
Salary,
housing
allowance,
other allowance
and benefits- Discretionary
Remuneration in-kind Pension bonuses Total
e
FE2E -
HitREA
Name % Be EWRlE  BELAEER Bige Ch
Wang Zhen T g - 159,904 12,813 = 172,717
Liao Hongyu (Note (i)) (Note (iil) (Note (i) E24T5 (P (i) (B &) (B = 6i) = 678,276 38,814 = 717,090
Hu Wentai EHSUTS - 402,620 - 10,000 412,620
Tu Haidong (Note (i) RIBE () = 550,692 37,514 10,000 598,206
Zhou Feng JEI # - 318,581 21,112 135,000 474,693
Yu Yan B =5 = 154,925 16,402 = 171,327
Wu Jian R R - 28,461 2972 = 31,433
Xing Zhoujin =k - 487,032 37,514 - 524,546
Chan Nap Kee, Joseph (Note fii)) M8 7 (P ) 63,235 = = = 63,235
Yan Xiang (Note (ii) & AEE) 63,235 = = = 63,235
Fung Ching, Simon (Note (ii) B AEEEG) 136,765 = = = 136,765
George F Meng (Note (ii) %’EE( F i) 136,765 = = = 136,765
Deng Tianlin (Note (ii) BRAR (B () 136,765 = = = 136,765
He Linji (Note (i) AFE (i) 136,765 = = = 136,765
Dong Guiguo EHE - - - - -
Yang Xiao (Note i) (Note (i) 1 B (MIRE) (ki) - - - - -
Liu Guiling (Note (i) BIEERR (PRE (i) = 468,072 37,514 = 505,586
Zhang Shusheng (Note (i) of% 2 28 (P i) 23,810 = = = 23,810
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(i)

(k)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 ¥Rk M ot

For the year ended 31 December 2019 20194 £

(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B % 5t 85) - % BB BARBT)

RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Significant related party transactions (Continued)

Emoluments of directors and supervisors (Continued)
Notes:

(i) Mr. Tu Haidong resigned from the president on 25 March 2019 and resigned
from executive director on 3 June 2019; Mr. Wang Hong was appointed as the
president on 25 March 2019 and appointed as executive director on 3 June
2019; Mr. Liao Hongyu resigned from non-executive director on 3 June 2019
and appointed as the chairman of supervisory board on the same day; Mr. Wang
Hexin was appointed as executive director on 3 June 2019; Mr. Yang Xiao
resigned from the chairman of supervisory board on 3 June 2019;

(ii) Mr. Chan Nap Kee, Joseph, Mr. Yan Xiang, Mr. Fung Ching, Simon, Mr. George
F Meng, Mr. Deng Tianlin and Mr. He Linji are non-executive directors of the
Company. Mr. Liao Hongyu is a former non-executive directors of the Company.

(iii) Mr. Liao Hongyu, Mr. Zhang Shusheng and Ms. Liu Guilin are supervisors of
the Company. Mr Yang Xiao is a former supervisor of the company and his
remuneration is paid by the company in which he is employed.

No directors or supervisors waived or agreed to waive any emoluments
during the year.

As at 31 December 2019, no emoluments were paid by the Company to
the directors and supervisors as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Company or as compensation for loss of office (2018: Nil).

The five individuals whose emoluments are the highest
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group for
2019 included five directors (2018: five directors) whose emoluments were
reflected in the analysis presented above.

AN

(4)
(i)

(k)

BHITBERERERS@®

BERBEERZ( zs)

EEREEFHN@E
GG

(i) R REENR2019F 325 HEEH + B
20196 ASHHEERITES : T RFEER2019
FI3A2AEMEEE - P2019F6 A3HETH
TEE B FEER2019F6 A38 HI3EH
TEE TRARBETESSER TEHL
£R2019F6 ASABENITES : BRBAER
20196 A3AHTEEE X/ -

(ii) BRyERE - FALE  BIAKLE  RERSL
£ BRMREEMARE LERRAFFRITE
- PUFEERARRFFNTES -

(i) BEIFEEE RABEEMIABRLLTRAF
EE -BHREERDAANES  HFHmEE
BRI

RELZEEZTREEREXABHEEAME -

HZE2019F12A318LLFE » X AR ERE
EREELHEMEARSIEMALRRRKIES
BEER W (B FEN(2018F & - ) o

FM &S0 A

20196 A B FH S E 0 AT AT A+ 2155
RIEF Q0185 - AAIHE) - EHHERBIE
=T
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 20194 /&
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B 5 55t 8651 + & #EEE (L BARKIT)

RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY

8

(5)

(a)

(b)
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TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Significant receivables from and payables to related

parties

Cash at bank and on hand

(a)

31 December

N

(5)

BAEITERARRERZw®

EREABLEY - BNFRIEGRE

31 December

31 December

31 December

2019 2018 2019 2018

20194 20184 20194 20184

12A31H 12A31H 12A31H 12A31H

The Group The Group The Company  The Company

rEE REH AT Pi/NE]

HNA Group Finance V8 A B 75 170,878,427 34,464,594 157,828,228 26,862,606
Accounts receivable (b) FEURBRFX

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2019 2018 2019 2018

20194 20184 2019% 20184

12831H 128310 12831H 12A31H

The Group The Group The Company  The Company

rEE AEH RAT ANAF]

HNA Holdings TERERR 75,600,531 57,684,674 69,611,202 55,329,603

Ruigang Logistics TSR - = 56,482,005 25,796,682

Hotel Investment BERE - = 34,750,228 26,210,142

Capital Airlines 33,564,750 25,427,517 23,695,553 23,068,492

Tianjin Airlines 25,198,216 16,182,283 13,018,063 13,601,678

Beibu Gulf Airlines bz 11,738,494 7,614,261 6,267,304 5,563,585

Lucky Air NS 7,606,061 4,679,043 5,544,229 4,325,302

Western Air EpA e 2,583,993 2,376,508 2,536,339 2,348,860

Suparna Airlines SR 2,795,538 2,303,913 2,451,724 2,237,771

HTS fin b 223 1,271,710 1,271,710 1,271,710 1,271,710

Chang An Airlines RZHzE 1,240,466 957,275 1,240,466 957,275

HNA China Duty Free B R 1,259,727 942,584 1,259,727 942,584

HNA Food RN 487,261 487,261 487,261 487,261

Meilan Travel ESl )i - 27,825 - =

HNA Cargo BMEE 4,153,001 = - =

Others Hib 1,647,707 2,767,575 1,334,432 1,924,146

169,147,455 122,722,429 219,950,243 164,065,091




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 20194 /Z
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B~ 1555t 805 + & BB B BA R K TT)

8 RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY N BEFBRERRERZ®
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(5) Significant receivables from and payables to related

(5) EABAESEUW - BARIERE

parties (Continued)
(c) Right-of-use assets

(c)

31 December

(%)

EREEE

31 December

31 December

31 December

2019 2018 2019 2018
20194 20184 20194 20184
12A31H8 12A31H 12A318 12A31H
The Group The Group The Company  The Company
rEE REH ¥ NN RAR]
Haikou Meilan psARES: | 11,902,174 = - =
(d) Other non-current assets (d) Ht3ERBEE

31 December

31 December

31 December

31 December

2019 2018 2019 2018
20195 20184 20195 20184
12A31H 12H31H 12831H 12A31H
The Group The Group The Company  The Company
A% A%E ART AR
Haikou Meilan (Note 8(6)(c)) 80 SR (M EE\(6)(c) - 570,000,000 - 570,000,000
Eking Technology SMEHE 1,837,985 2,525,757 1,837,985 2,525,757
1,837,985 572,525,757 1,837,985 572,525,757

(e) Other receivables (e) EbEUW
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018
20195 20184 2019%F 20184
12A31H 12H31H 12831H 12A318
The Group The Group The Company  The Company
A%E A%H AT AR
HNA Holdings TSI 6,250,995 5,111,239 6,250,995 5,111,239
Capital Airlines Bz 2,272,448 1,961,965 2,272,448 1,961,965
Airlines Passenger Transport W5 RE 712,692 560,511 712,692 560,511
Hotel Investment BIERE - - 31,634,695 18,015,476
Others HAh 832,928 730,559 665,039 524,319
10,069,063 8,364,274 41,535,869 26,173,510
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 20194 /&
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B 5 55t 8651 + & #EEE (L BARKIT)

RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY

8

(5)

(f)

(9)

2006

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Significant receivables from and payables to related

parties (Continued)
Accounts payable

(f)

31 December

€ )
FE 1 BRK

31 December

31 December

N BEBRLTBERERZ®

(5) EABAESEUW - BARIERE

31 December

2019 2018 2019 2018
20194 20184 201945 20184
12H31H 12A318 12A31H 12A318
The Group The Group The Company  The Company
rEE REH AT RAR]
HNA Property T 2 60,865,447 41,444,086 60,082,238 41,444,086
Eking Technology SR 13,786,554 6,857,738 13,781,954 6,805,013
HNA Food MR M 3,004,402 4,375,991 3,004,402 4,375,991
HNA Safe ERBE - 3,796,637 - 3,507,200
Meilan Travel =i - 366,672 - 366,672
Others Eith 2,236,051 1,594,634 1,761,341 1,594,634
79,892,454 58,435,758 78,629,935 58,093,596

Other payables (g) HAEATX
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018
20194 2018%F 20194 20184
12A31H 12A318 12A31H 12A318
The Group The Group The Company  The Company
rEE REH AT RAT]
Eking Technology SBH 9,840,901 18,816,974 9,840,901 18,816,974
Haikou Meilan BOXEH 36,103,342 15,977,729 - =
HNA Holdings TEAIERR 10,253,153 10,182,735 10,153,680 10,147,474
HNA Property SR 2 4,147,620 4,472,534 5,000 5,000
Yangpu Guoxing R B 4,143,989 4,330,296 4,143,989 4,330,296
HNA Food MR 243,284 1,136,099 243,284 1,136,099
Others Hith 1,410,722 2,355,706 1,052,622 3,243,606
66,143,011 57,272,073 25,439,476 37,679,449
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 20194 /Z
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B~ 1555t 805 + & BB B BA R K TT)

8 RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY N BEBRLTBERERZ®
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(5) Significant receivables from and payables to related  (5) EABIEt S EW - BN FIEREE

parties (Continued) € )
(h) Long-term payables (h) REEMAR
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018
20194 20184 20194 20184
12A31H8 12A31H 12A318 12A31H
The Group The Group The Company  The Company
rEE REH ¥ NN RAR]
Haikou Meilan peAmESy ) 190,128,973 294,348,071 190,128,973 294,348,071
HNA Group pisEESIEl 681,004,125 - 681,004,125 -
Ruigang Logistics T &7 - 205,828,026 214,794,687
Meilan Freight EWEE - 120,002,449 107,037,560
871,133,098 294,348,071  1,196,963,573 616,180,318
(i) Directors’ emoluments payable (i) BERESHMH
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018
20194 2018%F 20194 20184
12A31H 12A31H 12A31H 12A31H
The Group The Group The Company  The Company
rEE REH ¥NNE RAT]
Directors’ emoluments B 520,000 697,339 520,000 697,339
() Lease liabilities () HE&AE
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018
20195 20184 2019%F 20184
12A31H 12H31H 12A31H 12A318
The Group The Group The Company  The Company
rEH rEH FNNE PAN/NE
Haikou Meilan 8O XER 11,641,659 - - -
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8

(6)

(a)

(b)

208

RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Significant asset acquisition and cooperative
investment project with related parties

Terminal Expansion Project

On 26 August 2011, the Company entered into a Land Use Right Transfer
Agreement and an Acquisition Agreement with Haikou Meilan in respect of
construction of an international terminal, expansion of west gallery of the
terminal and a number of ancillary projects in the Meilan Airport (the “Terminal
Expansion Project”). On 12 December 2012, the Acquisition Agreement was
terminated and superseded by an Investment and Construction Agreement
entered into by the Company and Haikou Meilan on the same day.

Pursuant to the Investment and Construction Agreement, in order to facilitate
the construction of the Terminal Expansion Project and the possession of
relevant property ownership certificate(s) as a whole by Haikou Meilan, the
Company will transfer the land use rights for a site area of 125 acres to
Haikou Meilan at a consideration of RMB31,289,734. On 31 December 2019,
the Company had received the consideration of land use right transfer of
RMB31,128,973 from Haikou Meilan.

Terminal Complex Project

AN

(6)

(a)

BHITBERERERS®

EXEBTEEWBRSERERE

MLgEEIR

R20119F8A26H * A ARG OEMBMERE
IS BRI E - M ETRIE BB R TRIAR
Hi ISR ETEDRIFI T T AEEE R
E M UERE o R2012F128128 © BT
WEEHERL - AAARESAERRRE—B%
FTHIR A BRI R FTEU o

BEEEEZMBEINT ARAIEARE
31,289,734 L MBI RGO EHEEA R AL
125MA) b fE FAE - LAERIE O EMETM
WEEETRET REREBEEREMWIEZE
EE - R2019%F12A31H * ARRBE &K
HENEEINN I FEAREERARE
31,128,973 ©

ARG

31 December 31 December

2019 2018
2019 2018%F
12A31H 12H318
Construction payable to settle through LA B R B AFERE S 2
Yangpu Guoxing T2 458,644,677 478,389,119

As at 31 December 2019, according to the construction service agreement
of Terminal complex project and the three-parties agreement signed by the
Company, Yangpu Guoxing and related Terminal complex project constructors
(“project constructors”), the Company has made payments totalling
RMB1,317,819,364 to Yangpu Guoxing. According to the budget of Terminal
complex project and related signed construction agreement, the Company
estimated to make payments totalling RMB458,644,677 through Yangpu
Guoxing to related project constructors in future.
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RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY N BEHAIFBRERERZw
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Significant asset acquisition and cooperative (6) EXAFBASEEWBRSEREE
investment project with related parties (Continued) B @)
Equity acquisition (c) RERBE
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
20194 20184
12A31H 12A31H8
Payables to Haikou Meilan under the equity BB RS AER N2
transfer agreement IR S B 5K - 34,800,000
On 13 November 2015, the Company and Haikou Meilan entered into R2015F 118138 » ARRIEEBOEBWE:
an equity transfer agreement, pursuant to which Haikou Meilan agreed REEEGE  SOXEREE Z T’
to transfer 100% of the equity interest in Haikou Meilan Airport Assets SEEEEBERRAFII100%E - EBEARK
Management Co., Ltd. to the Group at a consideration of RMB604,800,000. 604,800,0007T > FEXTHRABEEFE © &
Due to the failure of relevant transfer procedures, the proposed transactions EH W ZHEN2019F3A31H KM - BOE
under the agreement were thus discontinued upon mutual consent of the B2 R2019F k8 A R#570,000,0007T A% 1 88
parties and the equity transfer agreement became invalid on 31 March 2019. BN o

Haikou Meilan had returned the consideration prepaid by the Company of
RMB570,000,000.

The assets of Hainan Meilan Assets Management Co., Ltd mainly include BEERREEEEEERARNEETERERE
apron, offices, access road. P WAE EBBREEE -

Phase Il Expansion Project (d) —HiERIEB

On 21 August 2015, the Company and Haikou Meilan entered into the M2015F8A21H » ARG DX —HiE
Investment and Construction Agreement in respect of the Phase Il Expansion BRI VIRERSRWZE  ATEHFSEERREE
Project and allocate the sub-projects being responsible by the two parties EMSmMARKFRREEE CHHEEREES
respectively and confirm the Company and its parent company are entitled B RIBRERRBE - ARFEERERBHTE
to ownership of the assets of their respective sub-projects. Pursuant to the FHEE S BN AARET1 6187 ° 2019912
agreement, the portion of construction being responsible by the Company was A318 - ZHEERIEE TR IEAETH o

estimated to be RMB7.16 billion. As at 31 December 2019, the construction
of Phase Il Expansion project was in progress.

Rl
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RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Significant asset acquisition and cooperative
investment project with related parties (Continued)
Phase Il Expansion Project (Continued)

In relation to the construction of Phase Il Expansion Project, Haikou Meilan
(as the borrower) and the Company (as the co-borrower) has entered into the
RMB Syndicated Loans Contract for the Phase Il Expansion Project of Haikou
Meilan International Airport (the “Syndicated Loans Contract”) with China
Development Bank, Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited and
Agricultural Bank of China Limited with a total loan facility of RMB?7.8 billion.
The term of the Syndicated Loan is 20 years from the date of first draw-
down of the loans, i.e. 30 November 2017. Pursuant to the Syndicated Loans
Contract, the Company as the co-borrower shares the rights, obligations
and responsibilities with Haikou Meilan, and is jointly liable for repayment
of the Syndicated Loans. The restrictions on Haikou Meilan as set out in
the Syndicated Loan Contract, e.g. statement of guarantee, draw-down and
repayments, default and liabilities of default are all applicable to the Company.

Haikou Meilan and the Company have entered into an agreement in respect
of the allocation of total loan facilities of RMB7.8 billion, pursuant to which
the facilities were allocated to Haikou Meilan and the Company at RMB3.9
billion each.

(i) The airport land use rights (Note 4(11)) and the buildings (Note 4(8))
of the Company were pledged as collateral for the Syndicated Loan.
Meanwhile,the Company agreed to pledge Phase Il Expansion Project
land use rights, aboveground buildings and the assets of the Phase
Il Expansion Project (including but not limited to land use rights and
buildings above ground) formed after completion of its construction as
the collateral for the Syndicated Loan. The Company has not obtained
the relevant certificates of land use rights for the Phase Il Expansion
Project. The Company would handle the mortgage registration
formalities according to the land ownership. Details of the balances of
construction in progress and prepaid land acquisition related to Phase
[l Expansion Project of the Company are set out in Note 4(9) and Note
4(13) respectively;

(ii) Haikou Meilan pledged its land use rights, buildings, Phase Il Expansion
Project land use right buildings (would handle the mortgage registration
formalities according to the land ownership), Phase || Expansion Project
assets (including but not limited to land use rights and buildings above
ground) formed after completion of the construction for the Syndicated
Loan;

(i) HNA Holding (a shareholder who indirectly holds shares in Haikou
Meilan) shall be jointly and severally liable for the Syndicated Loan.

AN

(6)

(d)
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RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY N BBRITBRERERXZw
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Significant asset acquisition and cooperative (6) EXBEHAIEEWBRESEREE
investment project with related parties (Continued) B @)

Phase Il Expansion Project (Continued) (d) —HiEZEIEHE @)

As at 31 December 2019, Haikou Meilan and the Company have drawn HZE2019F12A31H ' SOEHEEEEANR
down RMB3.23 billion and RMB1.94 billion from the Syndicated Loan under BAREI2IETHREER  ARFEEEERN
facilities respectively. During the year ended 31 December 2019, the overdue RRARE19.4ETTIREER - R2019FF -
of debts of Haikou Meilan had constituted a default event as defined in the ED%%%E1§%?@H¢@’|i5R BEEKREERE
Syndicated Loan Agreement, resulting in the loan syndicate has the right REEMNENEH  SHRREERAGEER
to take one or more of the following measures, including but not limited to AR —IHs 2 HIEE - BIE R TR LR
(i) suspension of the loan offering to the Company; (ii) cancel all or part of BEFAARR : (IBUER FARBINE IR H
the total commitment loan facility granted to the Company; (iii) announce RAGHEENE  (NEMARAFERAERIER
the early maturity of the loan and request the Company to early repay the ;'JE@ R ERARRRAERED BERNERR
Syndicated Loan drawn down by the Company. In addition, the loan syndicate o JEh - IREERABRERER ERKARTER
has the right to require the Company, as the co-borrower, to repay the I—Ha RAREEHEEETEETIOEHDR
principal and interest of the loan drawn down by Haikou Meilan. E'XEI’Jg KA,

Up to the date of these consolidated financial statements, the Company HEIAMBERRBRLEA » A7 REGAERF N
and Haikou Meilan have not yet obtained the written waiver from the loan RESERRENED#NRE - NEKIEBER
syndicate, nor have they received any request from the loan syndicate for ERAERIRAER - AARERIERBERA
early repayment. The Company has drawn down the facilities amounting SHTARE194E RA—FARBNIERD
to RMB1.94 billion as at 31 December 2019 and has classified the loans = f(ﬁﬁ?lﬂ(ﬂ ) c MEOEBEORINAEEYN
as current portion of non-current liabilities (Note 4(21)). In respect of the ERAHBAREINIET  ARARER
Syndicated Loans of RMB3.23 billion drawn down by Haikou Meilan and have Eﬁ BENEETRETK - RERILE R
been defaulted which the Company is jointly liable as the co-borrower, the o

Company considered the probability of payment is not high and thus has not
recognised this loan commitment.

BREMEREERBERDA » —E—FEFR 27/|
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COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments
Capital expenditures contracted for but not yet necessary to be recognised on
the balance sheet

(1)

A#HEBIE

EARAMTHABEE
EEAOMETHREEERBR EIIRNERES
A

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

2019%F 20184

12A31H 12H31H

Phase Il Expansion Project ZHEREIEE 2,802,013,072 1,633,056,201
Terminal Complex Project IhRTAR A BBIE B 63,773,751 65,244,519
Others Hb 1,366,579 4,831,722
2,867,153,402 1,703,132,442

Investment commitments
Details of Investment commitments are set out in Note 8(6)(c).

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE
Assessment on the impact of pneumonia epidemic

caused by the coronavirus

Since the outbreak of pneumonia epidemic (the “Epidemic”) caused by the
coronavirus in January 2020, various emergency public health measures
and other actions have been taken in the PRC and all around the world to
contain the spread of the Epidemic, including having certain control on crowd
movement and transportation, and implementing restriction on the date of
returning to work after the Chinese Lunar New Year vacation. The airline
industry has also been severely affected by the Epidemic.

Affected by the Epidemic, there was a significant decline in the business
volume of Meilan Airport in the short term. The Company plans to formulate
supportive measures, including a preferential scheme for the take-off and
landing fees of airlines and a reduction of rents for commercial tenants, to
mitigate the operational pressure of the Epidemic on airlines and commercial
tenants. For the two months ended 29 February 2020, the Group's revenue
from aviation business and non-aviation business recorded a decrease of 40%
and 22%, respectively, as compared with the same period of 2019. In March
2020, the routes of Meilan Airport were gradually resumed, and the Group
recorded a gradual recovery in passenger throughput, cargo throughput and
aircraft take-off and landing.

The Company will take various measures actively in response to the adverse
impact of the Epidemic on the Company’'s business volume, and will
continuously pay attention to the development of the Epidemic and closely
monitor the risks and uncertainties faced by the Group.

(2)

_|_
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OPERATING LEASE PROCEEDS AFTERTHE t+-35EEGEXHAKEHEER
BALANCE SHEET DATE FEE

As the lessor, the undiscounted lease proceeds receivable after the balance REBEERLEA  BEEAGBRBRERNEE
sheet date are as follows: WK AR CREELNT ¢

31 December

2019
20194
12A31H
Within 1 year —FEPUR 7,073,642
1to 2 years —3 = 2,995,393
2 to 3 years ZRI=%F 277,480
10,346,515
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK Tt T ERERR
The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk AEENLEEDTERSESCHAR  TER
(primarily including foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk), credit risk and b (EZRINERRE - FIXEK) - AR
liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management programme focuses on FER - AEERENRKREETSHESR™
the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to reduce potential adverse BT ERMY - kR EEAEENBEEDN
effects on the Group's financial performance. BETHZE -
Market risk (1) mWiZREE
Foreign exchange risk (a) 7= Bex
The Group's major operational activities are carried out in Mainland China and AEENETELEVRPRIER  TEEBUA
a majority of the transactions are denominated in RMIB. The Group is exposed R - XEBERRNINEEEMBERK
to foreign exchange risk arising from the recognised assets and liabilities, REINER 5 (INEBEMBERINERZ S HET
and future business denominated in foreign currencies, primarily with respect BEEETBAETNBE)FAEIIMERR - K&
to US dollars (“USD") and HK Dollars (“HKD"). The Group continuously BB EETEBINER ZMINEEERBENR
monitors the amount of assets and liabilities, and transactions denominated R DURARREREmBROINERR : ALt - 7
in foreign currencies, to mitigate the foreign exchange risk. Therefore, for the NEEUREFRY - NEBREZBEMERIIN
year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group did not enter into any EENREEEREL -

forward exchange contracts or currency swap contracts.

BEEREBREERBERAD » ZT—AEFR 273
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12 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK (continueay T-—€RTEREHREE@®

(1) Market risk (Continued) (1) ™ 15 B b c#)

(a) Foreign exchange risk (Continued) (a) SMER B @
As at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, the carrying amounts in H2019F 12 A31H K 2018F12A31H * A& EH
RMB equivalent of the Group's assets and liabilities denominated in foreign BEMIINEcREEMINESRBERTERAR
currencies were summarised below: BHSEYIRAT :

31 December 2019
2019%12H31H

usD Others Total
XtEH Hihshisig g a5
Financial assets denominated in HNEE B A B
foreign currency
- Cash at bank and on hand -BEES 618,207 15,592 633,799
Financial liabilities denominated in INES BB E
foreign currency
- Short-term borrowings - HEE R 523,215,000 - 523,215,000
— Other payables - HAbFERR 4,873,784 - 4,873,784
528,088,784 - 528,088,784
31 December 2018
2018512 A31H
uUsD Others Total
EtIEE E Ao EETH B B
Financial assets denominated in INES BB E
foreign currency
- Cash at bank and on hand -B¥ES 74,009 15,258 89,267
As at 31 December 2019, if RMB had strengthened/weakened by 5% against R2019F 128310 ' YRAEESEEZETLER
the USD while all other variables had been held constant, the Group's net BEMETLCHEE ARBHETLABEREE
profit for the year would have been approximately RMB19,780,147 higher/ 5% @ HtbEXRRIFTE - BIREEFHEASE
lower (31 December 2018: RMB2,775 lower/higher) for various financial IR 4 AR #19,780,14778(2018%F 12 A31
assets and liabilities denominated in USD. A m g mARK2,7757T) ©
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12 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK (continued)

(1)
(b)

Market risk (Continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk mainly arises from long-term interest bearing
borrowings including long-term borrowing and long-term payables. Financial
liabilities issued at floating rates expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk. Financial liabilities issued at fixed rates expose the Group to fair
value interest rate risk. The Group determines the relative proportions of
its fixed rate and floating rate contracts depending on the prevailing market
conditions. As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s Syndicated Loan Contract
is denominated in Renminbi with a floating exchange rate, of which the
amount is RMB1.944 billion (31 December 2018: Nil) (Note 4(21)).

The Group’s finance department continuously monitors the interest rate
position of the Group. Increases in interest rates will increase the cost of new
borrowing and the interest expenses with respect to the Group’s outstanding
floating rate borrowings, and therefore could have a material adverse effect
on the Group’s financial position. The Group makes adjustments timely with
reference to the latest market conditions and may enter into interest rate
swap agreements to mitigate its exposure to interest rate risk. In 2019, the
Group did not enter into any interest rate swap agreements.

As at 31 December 2019, if the borrowing rate at the floating rate rises or
falls by 50 basis points and other factors remain unchanged, the net profit of
the Group will decrease or increase by about RMB7.29 million (31 December
2018: Nil)

Credit risk
Credit risk mainly arises from cash at bank, accounts receivable and other
receivables.

The Group expects that there is no significant credit risk associated with cash
at bank and on hand since they are deposited at state-owned banks and other
medium or large size listed banks with good reputation and high credit rating.
The Group does not expect that there will be significant losses from non-
performance by these banks.

In addition, the Group has policies to limit the credit exposure on accounts
receivable, other receivables and contract assets. The Group assesses the
credit quality of and sets credit limits on its customers by taking into account
their financial position, the availability of guarantee from third parties, their
credit history and other factors such as current market conditions. The credit
history of the customers is regularly monitored by the Group. In respect of
customers with a poor credit history, the Group will use written payment
reminders, or shorten or cancel credit periods, to ensure the overall credit risk
of the Group is limited to a controllable extent.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has no significant collateral or other
credit enhancements held as a result of the debtor’s mortgage.

(1)
(b)
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12 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK (continueay T-—€RTEREHREE@®

(3) Liquidity risk (3) mERAER

Cash flow forecasting is performed by each subsidiary of the Group and AEEANSTARBEEBSNESREEN -
aggregated by the Group's finance department in its headquarters. The Group AEBTEAETFRARRSRSTEANOER L -
monitors rolling forecasts of the Group's short-term and long-term liquidity CEEEAFEEENBHMERENEST K - U
requirements to ensure it has sufficient cash and securities that are readily EREFAVNIBSFEBN I HERERENEE
convertible to cash to meet operational needs, while maintaining sufficient FH ARBEERELFAERBEHNERTE -
headroom on its undrawn committed borrowing facilities from major financial RETEoHBBESEERAERES AR -
institutions so that the Group does not breach borrowing limits or covenants LUmR R MR ESFRK -

on any of its borrowing facilities to meet the short-term and long-term
liquidity requirements.

(a)  The financial liabilities of the Group at the balance sheet date (a) MREEARBXRA AEEZSESmEEMN
are analysed by their maturity dates below at their undiscounted AR ARBESASZRIEEYI RN
contractual cash flows: T:

31 December 2019

20191283108

Within 1 year 1to 2 years 2to5years Overb years Total

—FHUR —3=%F “HRE EFHE A%t

Short-term borrowings REfE 935,113,007 - - - 935,113,007

Accounts payable JERTERTR 310,339,099 - - - 310,339,099

Other payables HiEM R 1,229,632,236 - - - 1,229,632,236

Syndicated Loan for the Phase ||~ —HiR2BERE H1E

Expansion Project REER 2,039,256,000 - - - 2,039,256,000

Lease liabilities HEAR 76,264,646 2,838,681 - - 79,103,327

Long-term payables EHREMAR 35,765,263 494,159,950 11,084,937 18,837,936 559,848,086

4,626,370,251 496,998,631 11,084,937 18,837,936 5,153,291,755

31 December 2018
2018%F12A31H

Within 1 year 110 2 years 2 to b years Over b years Total

—FHR —H=F ZHRE AEE AFf

Short-term borrowings SEGIEEA 379,450,000 = = - 379,450,000

Accounts payable JERTERTR 191,749,574 = = - 191,749,574

Other payables HAiER R 770,652,096 = = - 770,652,096

Debentures payable ERES 1,820,000,000 = = - 1,820,000,000
Interests and expense payable for 1 EHF 8 K

debentures EA 183,964,932 - - - 183,964,932

Long-term payables RHEMH 84,801,900 335,744,510 44,365,003 98,358,737 563,270,150

3,430,618,502 335,744,510 44,365,003 98,358,737  3,909,086,752

(b) At the balance sheet date, the Group has no lease contracts that had b)) MNEEBEXRA AEBEEEZIEMHAK
been signed but had not yet been performed. HIAMITHEESR -
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12 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK (continued)

(3)

Liquidity risk (Continued)
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(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B % 5t 85) - % BB BARBT)

1=

tMmIAREERER®

(3) FENRERR@®

(c)  Bank borrowings and other borrowings (including debentures payable, (c) MITERREMER(BEEMSES - E
finance lease payable and entrusted loans payable) are analysed by NRERERRENZREREERS
repayment terms as follows: T -

31 December 2019 31 December 2018

2019%12H31H 2018%12H31H

Bank Other Bank Other
borrowings borrowings borrowings borrowings
RITER Hi g SRITIE HAbER
Within 1 year 1FE AR 2,846,665,000 97,056,847 379,450,000 2,088,766,832
1 to 2 years 1226 - - = 41,396,439
2 to 5 years 2Z54F - - = 44,365,003
Over 5 years FBIB5E - - = 98,358,737

2,846,665,000

97,056,847 379,450,000 2,272,887,011

13 FAIR VALUE ESTIMATES

The level in which fair value measurement is categorised is determined by

(1)

the level of the fair value hierarchy of the lowest
to the entire fair value measurement:

_l_

level input that is significant

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or

liabilities.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3: Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Assets and liabilities not measure
disclosed

ZRREEME

ARBEFEERMBNER QA EER
EERMEAFEERERNBAEMBNRER
/A/}%)?E .

F—ER: HRAEEREBEAERETSLRL

F_EX: BRE-ERBAEMIBEEERE
BERRMEEATEENBAER -

F=ER: HHEEXRBENTABRBAE-

d at fair value but (1) FUAAAREBEFEEHEEEAAE

Financial assets and liabilities of the Group measured at amortised cost
mainly include receivables, payables, Syndicated Loan for the Phase Il

Expansion Project and long-term payables.

The difference between the carrying amount

and the fair value of such

financial assets and liabilities, which are not measured at fair value, is small
because the effect of discounting is not significant.

ENEENRE
ARBEURBRAHBNSREAENSBAKE
B0 BUHE - ENFE - CHIRRTER S
ERESHNREARS -

ZETURABEAENSREENSRAEN

REEEEAAEBEEZER)  ARNENFE
WREK -

mEREBRGARAR ) —2-nsen 2/ /
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14 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group's capital management policies aim to safeguard the Group’s ability

THERERE
AEFBEAEEBRNBIEZRATREAEERE
IFELE M ARRIRER TR - WEEMF]

to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders

and benefits for other stakeholders, and to maintain an optimal capital

structure to reduce the cost of capital. B o

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the BTHRBIABRERGER TEEMETARY
amount of dividends paid to shareholders, refund capital to shareholders, HEREMRFI S5 - MRFREER - BT
issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debts. A&k & & E ORI ER o

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is REBFAERNEBL REIEEER - L RIZ
calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total RERFERURERTH - & i’%x?%ﬁﬁi@%?i

borrowings (including bank borrowings, debentures payable, finance lease
payable and entrusted loans payable) less cash and cash equivalents. Total
capital is calculated as ‘shareholder’s equity’ as shown in the consolidated
balance sheet plus net debt.

The Company’s total capital is calculated as ‘owners’ equity’ as shown in
the balance sheet. The Company is not subject to external mandatory capital
requirements, and monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio.

The gearing ratios of the Group at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018
were as follows:

sAMEES  ARESRENEREBARE

(BRERITEN - BHES  BAREBERA
BNZREFORERE LR EEY - %éﬁ

REHEEBBERPAIIRAORERE

REZ AN o

BB

ZJK’“ﬁE!‘J%@’éZM%ﬁE’EﬁﬁﬂPFﬁ@’”i’xﬁ’ﬂﬁﬁ*ﬁ%
o ARBPEHIRINBBHIEEREZSR - F

Fﬁééé AREE

2019123310 KX20185 1273310 » AEEE

REABLLRFENT

31 December

31 December

2019 2018
20194 20184
12A31H 12A31H

Total borrowings BER
Bank borrowings RITER 2,846,665,000 379,450,000
Debentures payable EHES - 1,818,276,483
Finance lease payable R mEREER 63,784,158 65,294,938
Entrusted loans payable ENETEXR 28,172,227 27,578,809
2,938,621,385 2,290,600,230
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B BRERASEEY (1,511,749,849) (81,958,509)
Net liabilities ERHE 1,426,871,536 2,208,641,721
Shareholders’ equity AR R e 5,152,590,734 4,571,939,621
Total capital BE R 6,579,462,270 6,780,581,342
Gearing ratio BRBELE 21.69% 32.57%
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15 NOTES TO THE COMPANY’S FINANCIAL T1 AR MR
STATEMENTS
(1) Other receivables (1) HEWKFK
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
2019%F 20184
12A31H 12H31H
Receivables from subsidiaries FEWF A RIE SRR 31,634,695 8,596,082
Compensation paid on behalf of and due from airlines  FEUHI 2= A &) B {8 7 10,213,745 18,015,476
Others Hiptb 1,596,887 2,263,288
43,445,327 28,874,846
Less: Provision for bad debts W ERREE (724,306) (130,427)
42,721,021 28,744,419
(2) Long-term equity investments (2) REBRERE
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
20194 20184
12A31H 12H31H
Subsidiaries (Note (a)) F AR (MiEEa)
— Unlisted companies e VNG 18,200,000 18,200,000
Associates (Note 4(6)) AN (WE@ )
— Unlisted companies -3EmR 1,402,716,902 1,396,571,910
Less: Provision for impairment of long-term equity Ve E%@Hﬂgﬁﬁfﬁiﬁﬁﬁ
investments B B
1,420,916,902 1,414,771,910
There is no significant restriction on the realisation of long-term investments. RAR T FERBIZEESHNERR -
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15 NOTES TO THE COMPANY’'S FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (continued)

(2) Long-term equity investments (Continued)

(a) Subsidiaries

(2) RERERE®
(a) F2H

31 December

THARF BRI @

31 December

2019 2018
201945 20184
12831H 12A31H
Meilan Freight ITWEE 10,200,000 10,200,000
Hotel Investment HIERE 5,000,000 5,000,000
HNA Fund Management ESERE 3,000,000 3,000,000
18,200,000 18,200,000

(3) Employee benefits payable (3) FEAFES T HrEn
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
20194 20184
12A31H 12A31H
Short-term employee benefits payable (Note (a)) FE A 55 HRFT BN (P = (a) 18,577,748 14,991,276
Defined contribution plans payable (Note (b)) FEfS R E bR TR AT 8l (5% (b)) 99,880 100,598
Termination benefits payable (Note (c)) FERBHRAE A (P EE(c) 17,704 96,066
18,695,332 15,187,940
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15 NOTES TO THE COMPANY’S FINANCIAL TE AR B R E @
STATEMENTS (continued)
(3) Employee benefits payable (Continued) (3) ENBIHM@
(a) Short-term employee benefits (a) = EA%EEA
31 December Increase in Decrease in 31 December
2018 current year current year 2019
20184 20194
12H31H AR REFD 12A31H
Wages and salaries, bonus, TE - £8&5 -« FZBAMERL
allowances and subsidies 9,138,741 115,295,374 (115,740,627) 8,693,488
Staff welfare BIEMNE = 2,404,382 (2,404,382) -
Social security contributions HEREE 309,587 5,452,770 (5,459,606) 302,751
Including: Medical insurance Hep : BEREE 308,642 5,000,249 (5,006,660) 302,231
Work injury insurance TERKE 475 140,005 (140,109) 371
Maternity insurance EEREBE 470 312,516 (312,837) 149
Housing funds FERES 11,946 5,944,560 (5,944,560) 11,946
Labour union funds and TEEBNBIHELE
employee education funds 5,531,002 4,390,592 (352,031) 9,569,563
14,991,276 133,487,678  (129,901,206) 18,577,748
(b) Defined contribution plans (b) HERTFFE
31 December 2019 31 December 2018
20195128311 20184 12A31H
Amount Ending Amount Ending
payable balance payable balance
EfeE FREREE &% FARERFE
Basic pensions EXEERRE 10,625,530 - 9,639,459 =
Unemployment insurance KERBRE 912,516 99,880 776,414 100,598
11,538,046 99,880 10,315,873 100,598

BEEREBREERBERAD » ZT—AEFR 281



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R 5% BT o

For the year ended 31 December 2019 20194 /&

(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B % 5zt BA5) + & BEE (7 BA R ¥IT)

15 NOTES TO THE COMPANY’'S FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (continued)

(3) Employee benefits payable (Continued)

(c) Termination benefits payable

(3) ENBIHFM@
(c) ENBHEERA

31 December

THARF BRI @

31 December

2019 2018

2019 20184

12A31H 12H31H

Early retirement benefits payable FERTRRTER 76,202 178,770
Less: Termination benefits payable over one year B PR REEN B TEHEO —F

presented in long-term employee benefits LA R R
payable (58,498) (82,704)
17,704 96,066

(4) Long-term payables

(4) REAEMARK

31 December

31 December

2019 2018
20194 20184
12A31H 12H31H
Payables to HNA Group (Note 4(23)(a)) JE < i 5= B (B 3 7 (23) (a)) 681,004,125 =
Payables to Haikou Meilan (Note 4(23)(b)) FEf8 O ZE# (M ED (23)(b) 190,128,973 294,348,071
Payables to Ruigang Logistics FERIRE YR 205,828,026 214,794,687
Payables to Meilan Freight FEEREE 120,002,449 107,037,560
Finance lease payable (Note 4(23)(c)) FES b & & ) (M FEE (23)(c) - 65,294,938
Entrusted loans payable (Note 4(23)(d)) e Z LB Z (MR (23)(d) 28,172,227 27,578,809
1,225,135,800 709,054,065
Less: Current portion of entrusted loans (Note 4(23)) &l : —FAEHNEZLER
(P 7 P8 (23)) (28,172,227) (27,578,809)
Less: Current portion of finance lease payable B —FEARSNENRERER
(Note 4(23)) (BR3P (23)) - (43,687,921)
1,196,963,573 637,787,335

282 HAINAN MEILAN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED »)‘ ANNUAL REPORT 2019



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R 5% B o

For the year ended 31 December 2019 20194 /Z
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B % 5zt 855} + & BB E i BA RKT)

15 NOTES TO THE COMPANY’S FINANCIAL Ta AT B RME@®
STATEMENTS (continued)
(5) Revenue, cost of sales, and general and (5) EEWAMEERK  EEHEH
administrative expenses
2019 2018
Revenue =ELON 20195 20185 &
Aeronautical: sl dE 3
Passenger service income IRE RS & 349,874,021 345,919,512
Ground handling service income HoE AR 7% B 190,189,311 148,759,331
Fees and related charges on aircraft takeoff and TR ERE AR B
landing 132,931,037 128,267,182
Refund of Civil Aviation Development Fund EMmBERESRERML - 250,367,077
672,994,369 873,313,102
Non-aeronautical: FEMTZE M TS -
Franchise income RS IR A 412,800,059 400,505,151
Rental income HEB A 105,641,835 136,588,485
VIP room income BEEERA 75,664,796 41,157,501
Car parking income FEBRA - 11,993,993
Others EHAp g A 87,391,896 83,890,778
681,498,586 674,135,908
1,354,492,955 1,547,449,010
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15 NOTES TO THE COMPANY’S FINANCIAL Ta AT B RME@®
STATEMENTS (continued)

(5) Revenue, cost of sales, and general and (5) EEWAMEERK  EEHEH
administrative expenses (Continued) ()
Cost of sales and general and administrative expenses mainly include the EENAREEBEREZHATIEEHEK :

following items:

2019 2018
201956 E 2018 &
Depreciation expenses of fixed assets BEEENEER 111,592,324 137,510,232
Employee salaries and benefit expenses ETTERENER 105,168,439 89,743,125
Sub-contracted labour cost BBIKEABER 97,634,362 116,012,602
Airport and logistic services fee IS RN iR e R E 60,983,924 55,788,586
Depreciation of investment properties REUEHETES 37,402,326 35,714,558
Utilities KEE 34,863,250 36,213,047
Repairs and maintenance HwiEEH 30,562,257 40,931,199
VIP room costs EEFEEBIH 22,870,838 15,928,312
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRREENE 14,907,085 =
Security costs EHHEB L 14,586,155 18,660,881
Flight delays meal allowance MR & 9,179,379 9,287,359
Parking lot costs FEBEBIH - 4,036,339
Handling fees of CAAC Settlement Center EMBsERLFES 4,762,767 4,682,918
Amortisation of intangible assets B EERE 3,706,178 3,706,178
Audit fees EHEERA 2,272,000 2,749,396
— Audit and review service - Fi R EBIRTS 1,972,000 2,236,000
~ Non-audit services - FEEF RS 300,000 513,396
Travelling expense EIRE 2,342,257 1,344,013
Others H 42,206,896 34,672,259
595,040,437 606,981,004

As stated in Note 2(24), the Company had no short-term lease or low-value WM FE = (24)FTil - NARI2019F EERHHEE

lease in 2019. MEBEHRE -
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